
NYS DEPARTMENT OF STATE 
(SAPA No. ) 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE MAKING 

Submitting Agency: PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

TEXTISUBSTANCE AND ATTACHMENTS: [ ] E-MAIL (nvsregister@,dos.state.ny.us) 
[ I  DISK 

NOTE: Typing and submission instructions are at the end of this form. Please be sure to 
COMPLETE ALL ITEMS. Incomplete forms and nonscannable text attachments will be cause 
for rejection of this notice. 

1. A. Proposed action: 

The Public Service Commission ("Commission") is considering whether to approve, 
reject or modify, in whole or in part, a joint petition seeking approval of IBERDROLA 
S.A.'s ("IBERDROLA") acquisition of 100% of the common stock of Energy East 
Corporation ("Energy East"), the parent holding company of RGS Energy Group, Inc. 
("RGS"), New York State Electric & Gas Corporation ("NYSEG"), and Rochester Gas 
and Electric Corporation (RG&E") ("Proposed Transaction"). The Proposed Transaction 
is structured as a merger of Green Acquisition Capital, inc. ("Green Acquisition") with 
and into Energy East with Energy East as the surviving corporation that will be wholly- 
owned by IBERDROLA. NYSEG and RG&E, the New York regulated utilities, will 
remain wholly-owned subsidiaries of Energy East and will become wholly-owned 
subsidiaries of IBERDROLA. The Commission may consider all other related matters. 

B. [ I  This is a consensus rule making. A statement is attached 
setting forth the agency's detennination that no person is likely to 
object to the rule as written [SAPA 5 202(l)(b)(i)]. 

C. [ I  This rule was previously proposed as a consensus rule 
making under I.D. No. . Attached is a brief 
description of the objection that causedlis causing the prior notice 
to be withdrawn [SAPA 5 202(l)(e)]. 

D. [ 1 This rule is proposed pursuant to [SAPA § 207(3)], 5-Year 
Review of Existing Rules (see also item 16). 

2. Statutory authority under which rule is proposed: 

Sections 70 and 108 of the Public Service Law. 



3. Subject of the rule: 

A stock transfer and merger. 

4. Purpose of the rule: 

To determine whether to authorize IBERDROLA to acquire 100% of the common stock 
of Energy East, the parent holding company of NYSEG and RG&E, and all other related 
matters. 

5. Public Hearings (check box and complete as applicable): 

[ 1 A public hearing is not scheduled. (SKIP TO ITEM 8) 

[ 1 A public hearing is required by law and is scheduled below. 

[ 1 A public hearing is not required by law, but is scheduled below. 

Time: Date: Location: 

6. Interpreter sewices (check only if a public hearing is scheduled): 

[ I  Interpreter services will be made available to hearing impaired persons, at no 
charge, upon written request to the agency contact designated in this notice. 

7. Accessibility (check appropriate box if a public hearing is scheduled): 

[ I  All public hearings have been scheduled at places reasonably accessible to 
persons with a mobility impairment. 

[ I  Attached is a list of public hearing locations that are not reasonably accessible to 
persons with a mobility impairment. An optional explanation is submitted 
regarding the nonaccessibility of one or more hearing sites. 

8. Terms of rule (SELECT' ONE SECTION): 

A. [ 1 The full text of the rule is attached since it is under 2,000 words. 

B. [ 1 A summary of the rule is attached since the full text of the rule is over 
2,000 words. 

[ I  Full text is posted at the following State website: 

[ 1 Full text is not posted on a State website. 

[ 1 Full text is not posted on a State website; this is a consensus rule or 



a rule defined in SAPA Q 102(2)(a)(ii). 

C. [ I  Pursuant to SAPA 9 202(7)(b), the agency elects to print a description of 
the subject, purpose and substance of the rule as defmed in SAPA 
Q 102(2)(a)(ii) [Rate Making]. 

9. The text of the rule and any required statements and analyses may be obtained 
from: 

Agency Contact: [ I 
Agency Name: New York State Public Service Commission 
Office Address: Three Empire State Plaza 

Albany, New York 12223 
Telephone: 1 1 Email: [ 1 

10. Submit data, views or  arguments to (complete only if different than previously 
named agency contact): 

Agency Contact: Hon. Jaclyn Brilling, Secretary 
Agency Name: New York State Public Service Commission 
Office Address: Three Empire State Plaza 

Albany, New York 12223 
Telephone: (518) 474-6530 Email: [ 1 

11. Public comment will be received until: 

[ I  45 days after publication of this notice (MINIMUM public comment period when 
full text is attached because it is under 2000 words or full text of rule has been 
posted on a State website or the rule is a consensus rule or a rule defined under 
SAPA § 102(2)(a)(ii) p a t e  Making]). 

[ I  60 days after publication of this notice (MINIMUM public comment period when 
full text is not attached or full text is not posted on a State website or the rule is 
not a consensus rule or a rule defined under SAPA 9 102(2)(a)(ii) [Rate Making]). 

[ ]  5 days after the last scheduled public hearing required by statute (MINIMUM, 
with required hearing). This box may not be checked and the minimum 60-day 
comment period applies if full text is not attached or text is not posted on a State 
website or the rule is not a consensus rule or a rule defined under SAPA 8 
102(2)(a)(ii) w e  Making]). 

[ ] Other (specify): 

12. A prior emergency rule making for this action was previously published in the 
issue of the Register, I.D. No. 



13. Expiration date (check only if applicable): 

[ 1 This proposal will not expire in 365 days because it is for a "rate making" as 
defined in SAPA 102(2)(a)(ii). 

14. Additional matter required by statute: 

[ I  Yes (include material required by statute). 

[ ] No additional material required by statute. 

15. Regulatory Agenda (The Division of Housing and Community Renewal; Workers' 
Compensation Board; and the departments of Agriculture and Markets, Banking, 
Education, Environmental Conservation, Family Assistance, Health, Insurance, 
Labor, Motor Vehicles and State and other department specified by the Governor 
or his designee must complete this item. If your agency bas an optional agenda 
published, that should also be indicated below): 

[ I  This action was a Regulatory Agenda item in the first January issue of the - 
(year) Register. 

[ I  This action was a Regulatory Agenda item in the last June issue of the - 
(year) Register. 

[ I  This action was not under consideration at the time this agency's Regulatory 
Agenda was submitted for publication in the Register. 

[ ] Not applicable. 

16. 5-Year Review of Existing Rules (ALL ATTACHMENTS MUST BE 2,000 WORDS 
OR LESS) 

This rule is proposed pursuant to SAPA 8 207 (item 1D applies) (check applicable 
boxes): 

[ I  Attached is a statement setting forth a reasoned justification for modification of 
the rule. Where appropriate, include a decision of the degree to which changes in 
technology, economic conditions or other factors in the area affected by the rule 
necessitate changes in the rule. 

[ 1  Attached is an assessment of public comments received by the agency in response 
to the listing of the rule in the regulatory agenda. 

[ I  An assessment of public comments is not attached because no comments were 
received. 

[ I  Not applicable. 



17. Regulatory Impact Statement (RIS) 
(SELECT AND COMPLETE ONE: ALL ATTACHMENTS MUST BE 2,000 
WORDS OR LESS, EXCLUDING SUMMARIES OF STUDIES, REPORTS OR 
ANALYSES [Needs and Benefits]): 

A. The attached RIS contains: 

[ 1 The full text of the RIS. 

[ 1 A summary of the RIS. 

[ 1 A consolidated RIS, because this rule is one of a series of closely related 
and simultaneously proposed rules or is virtually identical to rules 
proposed during the same year. 

B. A RIS is not attached, because this rule is: 

[ I  subject to a consolidated RIS printed in the Register under I.D. 
No.: ; issue date: 

[ ] exempt, as defined in SAPA § 102(2)(a)(ii) [Rate Making]. 

[ 1 exempt, as defined in SAPA 5 102(11) [Consensus Rule Making]. 

C. [ I  A statement is attached claiming exemption pursuant to SAPA 8 202-a 
(technical amendment). 

18. Regulatory Flexibility Analysis (MA) for small businesses and local governments 
(SELECT AND COMPLETE ONE; ALL ATTACHMENTS MUST BE 2,000 
WORDS OR LESS): 

A. The attached RFA contains: 

[ I  The full text of the RFA. 

[ 1 A summary of the RFA. 

[ I  A consolidated RFA, because this rule is one of a series of closely related 
rules. 

B. [ I  A statement is attached explaining why a RFA is not required. This 
statement is in scanner format and explains the agency's finding that the 
rule will not impose any adverse economic impact or reporting, 
recordkeeping or other compliance requirements on small businesses or 
local governments and the reason($ upon which the finding was made, 
including any measures used to determine that the rule will not impose 
such adverse economic impacts or compliance requirements. 

C .  A RFA is not attached, because this rule: 



[ I  Is subject to a consolidated RFA printed in the Register under I.D. No.: 
; issue date: 

[ 1 Is exempt, as defined in SAPA 4 102(2)(a)(ii) [Rate Making]. 

[ 1 Is exempt, as defined in SAPA 4 102(11) [Consensus Rule Making]. 

19. Rural Area Flexibility Analysis (RAFA) 
(SELECT AND COMPLETE ONE; ALL ATTACHMENTS MUST BE 2,000 
WORDS OR LESS): 

A. The attached RAFA contains: 

[ 1 The full text of the RAFA. 

[ 1 A summary of the RAFA. 

[ I  A consolidated RAFA, because this rule is one of a series of closely 
related rules. 

B. [ I  A statement is attached explaining why a RAFA is not required. This 
statement is in scanner format and explains the agency's finding that the 
rule will not impose any adverse impact on rural areas or reporting, 
recordkeeping or other compliance requirements on public or private 
entities in rural areas and the reason@) upon which the finding was made, 
including any measures used to determine that the rule will not impose 
such adverse economic impacts or compliance requirements. 

C. A RAFA is not attached, because this rule: 

[ I  Is subject to a consolidated RAFA printed in the Register under I.D. No.: 
; issue date: 

[ 1 Is exempt, as defined in SAPA 5 102(2)(a)(ii) [Rate Making]. 

[ I  Is exempt, as defined in SAPA g 102(11) [Consensus Rule Making]. 

20. Job Impact Statement (JIS) 
(SELECT AND COMPLETE ONE; ALL ATTACHMENTS MUST BE 2,000 
WORDS OR LESS): 

A. The attached JIS contains: 

[ 1 The full text of the JIS. 

[ 1 A summary of the JIS. 

[ I  A consolidated JIS, because this rule is one of a series of closely related 
rules. 



B. [ I  A statement is attached explaining why a JIS is not required. This 
statement is in scanner format and explains the agency's finding that the 
rule will not have a substantial adverse impact on jobs and employment 
opportunities (as apparent from its nature and purpose) and explains the 
agency's finding that the rule will have a positive impact or no impact on 
jobs and employment opportunities; except when it is evident from the 
subject matter of the rule that it could only have a positive impact or no 
impact on jobs and employment opportunities, the statement shall include 
a summary of the information and methodology underlying that 
determination. 

[ I  A JIS/Request for Assistance [SAPA 8 201-a(2)(c)] is attached. 

C. A JIS is not attached, because this rule: 

[ I  is subject to a consolidated JIS printed in the Register under I.D. No.: 
; issue date: 

[ I  is exempt, as defined in SAPA 5 102(2)(a)(ii) [Rate Making]. 

[ 1 is proposed by the State Comptroller or Attorney General. 

AGENCY CERTIFICATION (To be completed by the person who PREPARED the 
notice). 

I have reviewed this form and the information submitted with it. The information contained in 
this notice is correct to the best of my knowledge. 

I have reviewed Article 2 of SAPA and Parts 260 through 263 of 19 NYCRR and I hereby certify 
that this notice complies with all applicable provisions. 

Name Signature 
Address 
Telephone E-Mail 

Please read before submitting this notice: 

1. Except for this form itself, all text must be typed in scannable format as described in the 
Department of State's Register procedures manual, Rule Making in New York. 

2. Collate the original notice and attachments as: (1) form; (2) text or summary of rule; 
and, if any, (3) regulatory impact statement, (4) regulatory flexibility analysis for small 
businesses and local governments, (5) rural area flexibility analysis, (6) job impact 
statement. Submit the originals, as collated and ONE copy of that collated set. 

3. Mail or hand deliver hard copy of rule making package to: Department of State, 



Division of Administrative Rules, 41 State Street, Suite 330, Albany, NY 12231-0001. 
a 

4. E-mail textlsubstance and attachments to: nvsreaister@,dos.state.nv.us or attach a disk 
containing the textlsubstance and required material. 



Substance o f  Provosed Rule 

On August -, 2007, a joint petition was filed by IBERDROLA, Energy East, RGS, Green 
Acquisition, NYSEG and RG&E seeking approval of the acquisition by IBERDROLA of 100% 
of the common stock of Energy East. 

IBERDROLA, a corporation (SociedadAndnima) organized under the Laws of the Kingdom of 
Spain, provides services to approximately 22 million electric points of supply and 2 million gas 
points of supply in Europe and in the Americas. 

Energy East is a public utility holding company with operations in New York, Connecticut, 
Massachusetts, Maine and New Hampshire. It is the parent company of RGS, NYSEG and - - 
RG&E. NYSEG provides service to approximately 870,000 electric customers and 257,000 
gas customers in the central, eastern and western parts of New York State. RGLE provides 
service to approximately 359,000 electric customers and 297,000 gas customers in nine upstate 
New York counties. 

Green Acquisition is a New York Corporation that was formed by IBERDROLA solely for the 
purpose of merging with and into Energy East. 

The joint petitioners state that IBERDROLA, a leading global utility and energy company with 
a market capitalization of approximately $70 billion, has the financial, managerial and 
technological capabilities t i  acquire 100 percent of the common stock of ~ n & g  East, while 
ensuring that NYSEG and RG&E continue to provide high-quality, safe and reliable electric 
and gas service to their customers. The Proposed Transaction and related matters are therefore 
in the public interest. 



AUDIT REPORT 

Annual Account8 and Management Report lor the year 
ended 31 December 2006 

(Translation of a repor( and annual accounts originally iuued in Spanish. 
In the evmt of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails) 



AUDIT REPORT ON THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 
Trmlrion of 8 repon Md umrl rroMO oripinlly i d  in Spmbh. In dm m n r  of d i i ,  

the Spnish-l.nsuoc venion pmnib (See Note 24) 

To the S ~ I d a s  of 
IBERDROLA, S.A. 

We h v e  audited tbe swl~al  accounts of IBERDROLA. S.A.. which mmist of tk b a h m  
d w t  .I December 31. 2006. the income statement and the notes the& for ibs year cbcn 
ended, tbc prepadon of which is thc responsibility of the Company's dircoton. Our 
rrspanrbilii & to expmas an opinion 011 the aforcrnmtioncd annual lccouars taken u a 
whole, bsred upon w r k  performed in acmrdaacc with auditing ollndsrds g d y  aoccplsd 
in Spis which require the examination, through the performance of sclcctive tests, of the 
evideDoc supponing the m u a l  aecountc, and the evaluation of their presentation, of the 
a c a m h g  principles applied and of the e h t ~  made. Ow wotic did not inoludo the audit 
of lbc 2006 annual acwunta of sevml subsidiaries, whose net inwstmmt value and revand 
of the 10118-tnm investments provision in thc accompanying annual accounts moum to 6% 
md 9%. respectively, of the Company's total assets and net profit. Tbe annual accountr of 
thcle companies have ban audited by othcr auditors (see Appendix for detail) and ow 
opinion in thir audit npon on the annd saormts of IBERDROLA. S.A. with respect to its 
investment in thwe companies is based only on the audit r e p i  of the other auditors. 

la accmhwe with Spanish m-tik kw, for compsrative ptlrposa the Compmyy's d i  
hvc included for u c h  of the captions included in the balance shect, thc h m e  s t amem ud 
dm statement of source and application of funds, in addition to the figurn of 2006, those of 
2005. Ow opinion refers only to the annual accounts for 2006. On Fcbnuvy 23. 2006. otber 
auditon i d  Wu audit reporl on the 2005 annual accounts, in which thcy e x p d  an 
mqdified opinion. 

In our opinion. hrcd on our audit and on the repom of the other auditom, th accompnyios 
ZdOd mlul .ocormtr give a true and f*r view, in all mated rccpocts, of th he equity and 
tluadal position of IBERDROLA. S.A. at December 31. 2006 ud the results of ib 
opsntionr and the source and appliMiaa of Amds for the ynr then ended. aud contain the 
rrquir#l information aecesoary for their adequate intapmation ud compmhcmion, i. 
w n f b d t y  with accounting principles and criteria generally accepted in Spin, applied on a 
b a d  wnuirtcnt with those of thc preceding year. 



lh rcompmykg mqcment wrt for the yw eaded Docembw 31,2006 conmias such 
cxpluu,tiolu m the diratm considcr appro* concuniog the sihmtim of the Company. 
tbe evolution of its b d i  md other mattem, and ir not m integral @ of the mud 
.ecolmtr. We h e  cbccked that the accounting infomaion included in th mnampmt 
rsport m a r t i d  Ibovc agrcu with the annual .ocounb for the yew &d Deccmkr 31, 
2006. Our worlt m tuditon b lhircd to verifying the mmgcmcnt rcpat in rccordsacc with 
the mpc mentioned io this purpnpb and d m  not inclrrde tbt rcricw of h f o d o n  o h  
than char obtained fivm thc Cornpenj's accounting mrda. 



ANNUAL ACCOUNTS AND MANAGEMENT REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31 DECEMBER 2006 



C O N T E N T S  

Balance sheets at 31 December 2006 and 2005 

Income statements for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005 

Notes to the annual accounts 

Company activity 
Basis of presentation of the annual accounts 
Profit distribution 
Accounting policies 
Intangible assets 
Tangible fixed assets 
Long and short-term investments 
Treasury stock 
Shareholders' equity 
Provisions for contingencies and expenses 
Debentures and other marketable debt securities 
Payable to credit institutions 
Balances with Group and associated companies 
Tax matters 
Revenues and expenses 
Segment reporting by business 
Guarantees with third parties and other contingent liabilities 
Directon' remuneration 
Remuneration of senior executives 
Financial position and events after 31 December 2006 
Fees for services provided by auditors 
Takeover bid for Scottish Power, Plc 
Statement of source and application of funds 
Explanation added for translation to English 

Appendix 

Management Report for 2006 

Profit distribution proposal for 2006 



T d b b  fired - ( N a 6 )  
M u l d s m s l p r  
T&d l l u w l u l ~ ~  d NCNwy 
OUu 6-, moll nl liVlllNI 
T s h n i  I~tUI I rnlm Inp- 
Advulcas md r*ha emwwclion in pyu 
Al- 
*~"","l*.d d u b n  

6 1""-, -"ti. 
Lo- lo Omup md vrociued owpmies (Note 13) 
Olb  I".", 
bna-urn mei nulnM. IN& 14) 
Lonn-Mn *I,, wd ,""."lor #lwn 
Ammt winblr d u l o  &rill in mru 
AIlOwYU 

Unbilled pou.uppl ld 
R-inbk bmOroupmmpMT(Na  11) 
Rwiv.bla b m  r.ociuo( mmk (No* 13) 
Sundwrcounu nuivabl. 
EmplOpl -i".bl" 
Tuu wiv.blr(Notr 14) 
Alb- 

TOTAL A S S I T S  12.573474 11.614.81S 



SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
SnnroU-' wIQ P o *  9) 

. . 
10-lp.y.blo 

P . * b k ~ G r a p ~ ( N o * 1 3 )  
Payable lo u m ~ s l o d  sanpnm (No* 13) 
Tnd. -u -*.bl. 



OERDROLA, S.A. 
Incorn. 11.tr-nb 
forthe y a m  rndd 31 h n b w  

DEBIT 
E x p u  
Pmourrmn(l 

BnctsyF-h-= 
O h r  amml apuua 

P-nncl oxpcnrr 
wwu, vluic. uld similr e x 7  
Employee vclfun C X p n r r  

Doprecialirm d .moni..rion arpnu 
Vuistim in -ling dlowawU 

vvi.tim in .Ilowuua for and h on ml lmib l~r ra ivmblcr  
0th- opcnting crpauu 

Outside m i c e  
T n u  o h  mul inranwtu 
m a r  current oprntlns upnm 

Finnoid d rhilu.Iplur 
On d a b  ro gmup m~"k 
On doba w mwaI8tod canpnk 
On dcbu mthird pniu d aimilr e x p m a  
Lo.rc. on nhm-em imoltmMu 

Exchmge la te4 
Vu iu im  in .llawmcu fa rhon-tam l n v m m m  
lntcml ex- allouble lo pwlr iom fw pru'nr ad similu oMisahn 

Extr.odln.r), p n l  

(.)The i m m  rntcmola for & y u r  emled 31 Decemba 2005 i. -14 for mrapvuiw p~porr only. 

Nola I lo 24 dovrikd in h atUchcd N- m thc muno and n* W i x  mm m i n b p l  pn 
of & imm stalem~ll  for the YOU e d d  31 m b u  N)06. 



Row- b m q u i @  in-0 
Gmup -mi- (Note 19 
*..osw sapnmr olon 15) 
Ocher sompnia 

Lou h.- .rdluv .rcM(bI 

Lou bdon u x r  

brpontc im"ra tu 

Lur br Ik pmr 

(.) ik i m m e  rmlemal for thr yem .ndod 31 Deeemb., IWS ir -nmd fbr canpntiv. pu- a l l .  

~ a ~ l 1 n 2 4 M M I n m c . a & ~ a a 1 o h . ~ n d i h . p p r d t . ~ . n i M p n l p n  
of h imm lunnoln for Ulo yew ondd 11 W b o r  2006. 



IBERDROLA, S.A. 

Notes to tbe Annual Accounts 

31 December 2006 

1. COMPANY ACTIVITY 

Pursuant to Article 2 of its bylaws, the corporate purpose of IBERDROLA, S.A. 
("IBERDROLA" or the "Company") is as follows: 

- To cany out all manner of activities and construction work and provide services 
required for, or related to, the production. transmission, switching and distribution or 
retailing of electric power or electricity by-products and their applications, and 
involving the raw materials or primary energies required for electric power generation, 
energy, engineering, computer and telecommunications services, services relating to the 
Internet, the treatment and distribution of water, the integral provision of urban and gas 
retailing services, and other gas storage, regasification, transmission or distribution 
activities, which will be provided indirectly through the ownership of shares or other 
equity investments in companies that do not engage in the retailing of gas. 

- The distribution, representation and marketing of all manner of goods and services, 
products, articles, merchandise, computer programs, industrial equipment, machinery, 
machine and hand tools, spare parts and accessories. 

- To engage in the research, study and planning of investment and corporate organisation 
projects, and to promote, set up and develop industrial, commercial and service 
companies. 

- To provide assistance and support services to the Group companies and other investees, 
providing for them the guarantees and collateral required for this purpose. 

The aforementioned activities may be performed in Spain and abroad, and may be performed 
totally or partially either directly by IBERDROLA or through the ownership of shares or other 
equity investments in other companies, subject in all cases to the legislation applicable at any 
given time and, in particular, to the legislation applicable to the electricity industry. 

The only energy business IBERDROLA is engaged in is the retailing of electricity and gas to 
eligible customers. 



IBERDROLA also provides various services to other Group companies, such as leasing of 
measuring devices, natural gas purchases for the Group's electricity generation plants, 
telecommunications-dated services (e.g. fibre optics networks and dispatching centres), 
information technology services and other non-operating, backbone and support services, as 
well as Group financing, which is managed centrally. 

LBERDROLA individually considered, it has no environmental liabilities, expenses, assets, 
provisions or contingencies that could have a significant effect on its equity, financial 
situation and results. Consequently, these notes do not include specific details regarding 
environmental issues. 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 

The accompanying Annual Accounts are presented in accordance with Law 1911989, of 25 
July, partially refonning and adapting Spanish corporate law to EC Directives on companies, 
with Royal Decree 43711998, of 20 March, approving the rules for adapting the Spanish 
National Chart of Accounts for electric utilities and with the Spanish National Chart of 
Accounts approved by Royal Decree 164311990, of 20 December, and, accordingly, they give 
a true and fair view of the net equity, financial position and results of operations of 
IBERDROLA. 

The Annual Accounts, which have been prepared by IBERDROLA's directors, will be 
submitted far approval by the shareholders in general meeting and an expected to be 
approved without modification. 

In addition, pursuant to cumnt legislation, IBERDROLA has prepa.red its Consolidated 
Annual Accounts in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (TFRSs). 
The principal balance sheet and income statement headings in the 2006 Consolidated Annual 
Accounts of the IBERDROLA Group are the following: 

Total ruets 
Equity: - Of the P a r a  
-Of minority interm 

Revenue 
Net profn for the year: 
-Attributable to the Parent 
- Minority interests 



3. PROFIT DISTRTBUTION 

The Board of Directors of IBERDROLA plans to submit for approval at the General 
Shareholders' Meeting the following distribution of 2006 income and retained earnings: 

Thousand of 
(Iuros 

Distfibution basis: 
Retained earnings 
2006 profit 

Distribution: 
To dividends: 

Interim (Note 9) 
Final dividend 

To retained earnings 

On 10 November 2006, the Board of D i t o r s  of IBERDROLA, based on its projected 
income for 2006, declared an interim dividend of EUR 405,697 thousand. This amount is 
recorded under "Interim dividend paid during the year" and "Other non-trade payables -Other 
payables" in the accompanying balance sheet at 31 December 2006 (see Note 9). This 
dividend was paid on 2 January 2007. The amount of this dividend is less than the maximum 
legal amount stipulated in Article 216 of the revised Spanish Corporations Law as regards 
profit obtained since the end of the previous fiscal year. 

IBERDROLA had at that date the minimum unrestricted reserves required under Article 194 
of the aforementioned Law for payment of the interim dividend. 

The provisional accounting statement prtpand as required by Article 216 of the revised 
Spanish Corporations Law disclosing the existence of sufficient liquidity for distribution of 
the interim dividend was as follows: 



Thousand of 
cum* 

Cash available at 1 November 2006 
Projected collections through 2 January 2007: 

Operating collections 
Financial collections 

Projected paymenu through 2 Janusry 200'1: 
Operating payments 
Financial payments 

Projected cash rvailable a12 January 2007, before 
pny~nent of the interim dividend 

Pavmcnt of dividend, net of withhold in^ 
~rbjeeted cash available at 2 ~anuay2CHl7. a h r  

payment of the interim dlvidcnd 
Projected collections through 10 November 2007: 
Operating and financial collectionr 
Non-operating collections 

Projected payments through I0 Novunba 2007: 
Operating and financial paymema 
Non-operating payments 
Final dividend 

Projected cash available at 10 November 2007 

In addition, at the date of preparation of these Annual Accounts, the Board of Directors of 
IBERDROLA had agreed to seek approval at the Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting for 
the distribution of a maximum final dividend of EUR 691,764 thousand, consisting of a fixed 
gross dividend of EUR 0.593 per share for all the outstanding shares of IBERDROLA at the 
date on which the Board so agreed (901,549,181) and of EUR 0.593 per share for all the 
shares, if any, as a result of the bid to acquire the shares of Scottish Power, Plc.. detailed in 
Note 22. This final dividend will be paid on July 2,2007. 

If this fmal dividend is approved at the Ordinary General Shareholders' Meeting, the total 
dividend in 2006 will amount to EUR 1.043 per share. The 2005 dividend amounted to EUR 
0.884 per share. 

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The main accounting policies used in preparing the accompanying Annual Accounts were as 
follows: 



a) Intangible assets 

Research and development expenses incurred in projects for which there are sound reasons to 
expect their technical success and economic and commercial profitability at year end are 
recorded as intangible assets and amortised over a period of between three and five years from 
completion of thiproject, depending on the individual characteristics. In 2006, IBERDROLA 
derecomised all its research and develovment vroiects, which had been fully amortised at 31 

External wsts incumd in research and development projects which an not expected to be 
profitable in the future are recorded with a charge to "Outside Services" in the income 
statement for the year in which they are incurred. 

The costs incurred in connection with the basic wmputer systems used by IBERDROLA's 
management and developed in-house, and the amounts paid for the title to or the right to use 
programs are also recorded under this balance sheet heading. These items ax. amortised on a 
straight-line basis over a maximum period of five years from the date on which each 
application is put to use. 

Personnel expenses related to IBERDROLA employees who have worked on research and 
development and information tecnology projects are rewgnised as an increase in the cost of 
the projects and recorded under "Capitalised expenses of in-house work on fixed assets" in the 
income statement. This heading included EUR 435 1 thousand in this wnnection in 2006. 

The amounts recorded by IBERDROLA for concessions, patents, licenses, trademarks and 
other relate to the cost effectively incumd in the acquisition thmbf and are amortised on a 
straight-line basis over the shorter of the related license term or the period over which they an 
expected to generate revenues. 

Assets under capital leases are recorded at the cash value of the asset and amortised in keeping 
with the criteria avvlied to intanaible assets (see Note 4.c) based on their estimated useful life. 
"Long-tenn debt -- Payable to &edit institutions" on &e liability side of the balance sheet 
includes the amount payable on the lease contract plus the purchase option. The interest 
expenses related to the leases arc recorded under "Deferred charges" in the balance sheet 
assets and taken to income in accordance with financial criteria (see Note 4.e). 



b) Tangible fixed assets 

Tangible fixed assets are valued at updated cost in keeping with prevailing legislation, 
including Royal Decree-Law 711 996 (see Notes 6 and 9). 

Cost includes the following expenses, incurred during the construction period only: 

Financial expenses related to external financing. 

In accordance with Royal Dcute 43711998 (see Note 2), the method used by 
IBERDROLA to determine the amount of financial expenses which can be capitalised 
is as follows: 

a) Specific-purpose financing used for the acquisition or construction of certain 
assets is allocated to IBERDROLA's assets and, accordingly, the related financial 
expenses an capitalised in full. 

b) General-purpose financing, both equity and debt, is allocated proportionally to the 
other assets, and the accrued interest on borrowed funds allocated to construction 
in progress (in the same proportions) by applying the effective average interest 
rate on such financing to the average aggregate capitalisable investment. 

The financial expenses capitalised as an increase in tangible fixed assets by 
IBERDROLA in 2006 by the method described above amounted to EUR 314 
thousand, included under "Capitalised financial expenses" with a charge to the related 
tangible fixed asset headings. 

Personnel expenses relating directly or indirectly to construction in progress. 

The personnel expenses capitalised in this connection in 2006 amounted to EUR 
11,534 thousand. This amount is recorded under "Capitalised expenses of in-house 
work on fixed assets" in the 2006 income statement. 

IBERDROLA transfers construction in progress to operating tangible fixed assets at the end of 
the related bial period. 

The costs of expansion or improvements of tangible fixed assets leading to increased 
productivity or capacity or to a lengthening of the useful lives of the assets are capitalised. 



Replacements or renewals of complete units am recorded as fixed asset additions, and the 
units replaced or renewed are derecognised. 

Periodic maintenance, upkeep and repair expenses are expensed currently. 

c) Depreciation of operating tangible fixed assets 

Operating tangible fixed assets are depreciated by the straight-line method at annual rates 
based on the following years of estimated useful life: 

Avenge years 
of estimated 
useful lives 

Buildings 
Data p r o w i n g  equipment 
Measuring devices 
Fibre optic installatiom 
Dispatching centres and other tangible fixed assets 

"Depreciation and amortisation expense" in the accompanying income statement for 2006 
includes EUR 61,119 thousand of depreciation of operating tangible fixed assets (see Note 6). 

d) Marketable securities and other similar investments 

Investments in short and long-term marketable fixed-income and equity securities are 
recorded in the balance sheet at the lower of cost or market value. Market value is the lower of 
the average listed price of the latest quarter or the closing price for listed securities that do not 
relate to Group and associated companies, or the underlying book value, adjusted to make the 
accounting policies applied uniform with those used by IBERDROLA, plus the amount of the 
unrealised gains disclosed at the time of the acquisition and still existing at present, for the 
rest (see Note 7). 

Reversible unrealised losses (cost higher than market value at year end) are. recorded under 
"Long-term investments - Allowances" on the accompanying balance sheet (see Note 7). In 
2006, IBERDROLA allocated EUR 158,878 thousand to allowances and reversed EUR 
243,766 thousand. These amounts are recorded under "Variation in allowances for intangible 
assets, tangible fixed assets and long-term investments" in the accompanying income 
statement. 



e) Deferred charges 

The accounting principles applied to the items under this balance sheet heading and their 
recognition in the income statement are as follows: 

1. Expenses incurred in the issue and placement of debentures and bonds and debt 
arrangement expenses are recorded under "Deferred charges" and amortised financially 
in accordance with the outstanding balance of the related issues and loans. In 2006, 
JBERDROLA amortised EUR 7,046 thousand of such deferred charges, recorded 
under "Financial and similar expenses - On debts to third parties and similar expenses" 
in the income statement. 

2. Expmses incurred in relation to specific actions or activities that arc expected to 
generate future income are recorded under "Defemd charges" and mortised over the 
estimated period during which they contribute to the generation of income. "Outside 
services" in the 2006 income statement includes EUR 15,200 thousand for this 
concept. 

3. Defemd interest expenses arise from the difference between the redemption value of 
the debt generated by financial lease transactions and the value of the leased goods. In 
2006, IBERDROLA amortised EUR 4,720 thousand of interest expenses, appearing 
under "Financial and similar expenses - On debts to third parties and similar expenses" 
in the accompanying income statement. 

fJ Inventories 

Inventories, which correspond mainly to natural gas and liquid natural gas, are valued at the 
lowcr of cost using the FIFO (fust in, firat out) method or market. 

At 31 December 2006, the gas stocks were deposited at the regasification and storage plants 
belonging to Enaghs, S.A., Bahia de Bizkaia Gas, S.A. and Planta de Regasificaci6n de 
Sagunto, S.A. 

At 31 December 2006, IBERDROLA had entered into take or pay contracts with several 
natural and liqudied natural gas suppliers for the supply of 116.4 bcm of gas in the period 
from 2007 to 2026, which reasonably cover the amounts earmarked for retailing and for 
consumption at the electricity production facilities. The prices under these contracts are 
determined on the basis of formulas commonly used in the market, which index the price of 
gas to the performance of other energy variables. 



g) Unbilled power supplied 

The revenue figure for each year includes an estimate of the power supplied to customers in 
the liberalised market but not billed because it had not been metered at year end for reasons 
relating to the regular meter-reading period. The estimated unbilled power at 31 December 
2006 amounted to EUR 63,431 thousand (see Note 15). This amount is included under 
"Accounts receivable - Unbilled power supplied" on the asset side of the accompanying 
balance sheet. 

h) Treasury stock 

Own shares held at the end of 2006 that were not acquired to reduce IBERDROLA's capital 
stock arc recorded under "Treasury stock" in the accompanying balance sheet. 

In keeping with prevailing accounting standards, treasury stock is valued at the lower of cost 
or market. Market value is the lower of: 

- The listing on the last day of the year. 

- The average listing of the last quarter. 

- The underlying book value. 

Unrealised losses arising from the difference between cost and listing are recorded under 
"Losses on transactions involving treasury stock" in the income statement. Any additional 
capital losses between cost and underlying book value are recognised with a charge to 
"Reserve for treasury stock" in the balance sheet. 

The reversal of previously recorded unrealised losses arising from subsequent value 
adjustments or disposals of treasury stock are recorded with a credit to income for the year or 
reserves, depending on the account to which they were previously charged. 

i) Deferred revenues 

This balance sheet heading includes the following items: 

- Unrealiscd positive value adjustments appear under "Deferred revenues - Exchange 
gains" as described in Note 4.m. 



- "Deferred revenues - Other deferred revenues" includes mainly collections or prepaid 
bills relating to the lease of fibre optics to third parties, which are taken to income on a 
straight-line basis over the life of the related contracts. 'Wet revenues - Sales" in the 
2006 income statement includes EUR 3,236 thousand for this concept. 

j) Employee benefits supplementary to social security benefits and other emp'loyee 
welfare commitments 

IBERDROLA's main commitments to its employees other than social security benefits are the 
following: 

a) The present employees of IBERDROLA and employees who have' retired since 9 
October 19% are covered by an employment-based, defmed-conhibution retirement 
pension scheme independent 60m the social security system. 

In accordance with this system and the collective labour agreement in f o m  for 
IBERDROLA, the periodic contribution to be made is calculated as a percentage of the 
annual pensionable salary of each employee. 1BERDROL.A finances these 
contributions for all its present employees, except for employees hired since 1 January 
1996, for whom the Company contributes one-thii and the employee contributes two- 
thirds. 

The contributions made by IBERDROLA in 2006 amounted to EUR 12,309 thousand 
and are recorded under "Employee welfare expenses" in the accompanying income 
statement. 

b) The employees who retired before 9 October 1996 are covered by a defined benefit 
retirement pension scheme, the actuarial value of which had been exkmalised in fill 
in previous years through an insurance policy. 

c) Also, in relation to &sent employees and employees who have retired since 1996, in 
connection with risk benefits (e.g. for death of spouse, permanent disability or death of 
present employee's parent) which guarantee capital equivalent to one year's rccogniscd 
salary and the long-service bonus at the time the event giving rise to such benefits 
occurs, are instrumented through an annually renewable insurance policy. The 
premium paid under the aforementioned insurance policy in 2006 amounted to EUR 
2,294 thousand and is recorded under "Employee welfare expenses" in the income 
statement. 



IBERDROLA also has certain commitments to its employees other than those indicated 
above, which are covered by in-house pension provisions (see Note 10.a) consisting mainly of 
long-service bonuses for serving employees and of free electricity for retired employees. 
IBERDROLA records the expense for both these commitments as they are accrued over the 
period of employment of the beneficiary concerned. The normal costs and financial expenses 
incurred in 2006 related to these commitments amounted to EUR 4,091 thousand and EUR 
12,187 thousand, respectively, recorded under "Employee welfare expenses" and "Interest 
expenses allocable to provisions for pensions and similar obligations," respectively, in the 
2006 income statement. In addition, the actuarial differences arising due to changes in the 
assumptions used to deteniine the actuarial liabilities accrued at the end of that year led to an 
expense of EUR 11,415 thousand, recorded with a debit to "Extraordinary revenues" in the 
accompanying 2006 income statement. 

"Provisions for pensions and similar commitments" in the accompany balance sheet includes 
the allocation for commitments to Board Members as per the Company's by-laws (see Note 
18.a). 

Note 10.a below describes how the provisions recorded for pensions and similar obligations 
arc assigned to cover the aforementioned commitments. 

k) Voluntary collective redundancy procedure and o t b a  earIy retirement plans for 
employees 

In 1997, the Board of Directors of IBERDROLA resolved to adapt, by various means, its 
labour force and that of some of its subsidiaries to the demands of the new competitive 
environment with the intention of establishing in the period from 1998 through 2004 specific 
early retirement plans and other means of reducing headcount until the targets had been met. 
These restructuring plans were put before the Company's employees' representatives, and an 
agreement was reached. Accordiig to IBERDROLA's best estimates, restructuring expenses 
at 1 January 1998 amounted to EUR 512,717 thousand, recorded under "Provisions for 
contingencies and expenses - Other provisions." IBERDROLA's policy is to transfer the 
costs related to plans already carried out to "Provisions for pensions and similar obligations" 
on the liability side of the balance sheet until they are extemalised or paid (see Note 10.a). 

From 1998 to 2001, fulfilling the intention it had expressed previously, IBERDROLA 
proposed to employees who met certain conditions certain early retirement plans and a 
"Special Labour Situation" arrangement prior to adhesion to the early retirement plan. 

In December 2000, the obligations to the employees who, having availed themselves of the 
above-mentioned retirement plans, had actually retired at 30 November 2000, were 
extemalised, and a single premium was paid to a third party for the actuarial value relating to 
the aforementioned obligations. 



Without prejudice to the continuity of the restructuring plans agreed on in prior years, in 2003 
IBERDROLA reached an agreement with the trade union representatives to implement a 
voluntary collective redundancy procedure applicable to all employees reaching 58 or more 
years of age before 31 December 2006, which was approved by the Ministry of Employment 
and Social Affairs in 2003. 

Between 2003 and 2006,2,333 employees had availed themselves of this procedure, of which 
633 were already covered by the restructuring plans established previously. 

The total actuarial provisions to cover the fucure costs of employees included in the 
aforementioned redundancy procedure and the restructuring plans before 2003 amount to EUR 
61,233 thousand and EUR 27,605 thousand, respectively, and are recorded under "Provisions 
for pensions and similar obligations" in the balance sheet at 31 December 2006 (see Note 
10.a). 

General and financial expenses incurred in 2006 in this connection amounted to EUR 631 
thousand and EUR 4,918 thousand, respectively, recorded under "Extraordinary expense.? 
and "Interest expenses allocable to provisions for pensions and similar obligations", 
respectively, in the accompanying income statement. The actuarial differences arising due to 
changes in the assumptions used to determine the actuarial liabilities accrued at the end of that 
year led to income of EUR 18,229 thousand, recorded with a credit to "Extraordinary 
revenues" in the accompanying 2006 income statement. 

Prior to 31 December 2006, IBERDROLA, a h r  reaching the corresponding agreement with 
the trade union representatives, extended the 2003 collective redundancy program to 
employees turning 58 in 2007, as well as to those employees who had the opporlunity to avail 
themselves of the initial plan but opted not to. The faculty to so extend the program was 
approved by the labour authorities in 2003. In the 2006 income statement "Extraordinary 
expenses" includes EUR 41,769 thousand for this concept, based on the best estimate of the 
number of employees that will avail themselves of the aforementioned program extension. In 
addition, the Company has transferred EUR 1,256 thousand included in the provision for 
long-service bonuses to the provision for the labour force reduction plan, as this was the 
amount allocated in prior years based on the estimate of the number of employees who would 
avail themselves of the extended labour force reduction plan. 



I) Provision for taxes and otber provisions for contingencies and expenses 

IBERDROLA records provisions for contingencies and expenses to cover probable w certain 
quantifiable third-party liability arising from litigation in progress or from indemnity 
payments, obligations or unpaid expenses of undetermined amount, and collateral and other 
similar guarantees provided by the Company based on its best estimate. These provisions are 
recorded when the related liability or obligation arises (see Note 10.b). 

m) Transactions in currencies otber than the euro 

Transactions carried out in currencies other than the e m  are translated to euros at the 
exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date. During the year, the differences arising 
between the exchange rates at which the transactions were recorded and those in force at the 
date on which the related collections or payments are made are charged or credited, as 
appropriate, to income. 

The cash balances held by JBERDROLA at 31 December each year in cwrencies other than 
the e m  arc translated to euros at the yearend exchange rate and any exchange differences are 
charged or credited, as appropriate, to "Exchange losses" or "Exchange gains? respectively. 
in the income statement 

Any fixedincome securities and receivables and payables denominated in currencies other 
than the e m  at 31 December each year are translated at the year-end exchange rate or the 
locked-in exchange rate if the Company had arranged hedges on the transactions concerned. 
Exchange differences are grouped by maturity and currency and the exchange losses that arise 
in each of these groups are allocated to "Exchange losses" in the related income statement, 
whereas unrealised exchange gains that arise in each currency group identified are recorded 
under "Deferred revenues - Exchange gains" on the liability side of the Balance Sheet until 
the related securities, rectivablcs or payables mature, once the exchange losses allocated 
previously to the income statement for each currency group have been offset. 

n) Classification of debt 

In the accompanying balance sheet, debts maturing in under 12 months fiom year-end are 
classified as current liabilities and those maturing at over 12 months as long-term debt 

o) Recognition of revenues and expenses 

Revenues and expenses are recorded on an accmal basis, i.e. when the actual flow of the 
related goods and services occurs, regardless of when the resulting monetary or financial flow 
arises. 



p) Settlements relating to regulated activities and shortfall in revenues 

In 1998, basically as a result of the entry into force of Spanish Electricity Industry Law 
5411997 and the related implementing regulations, inter-company settlements were created. 
These settlements are made by the Spanish National Energy Commission and take the form of 
collections from or payments to other electric utilities in order to redistribute tariff revenue, 
net of energy purchases made to cover demand from customers supplied unda the tariff 
system. Accordingly, each utility receives the revenue corresponding to its regulated activities, 
including distribution and hnsmission activities. Tariffs arc set annually by Royal Decree. 

IBERDROLA is the legal entity with which the revenue shortfall described h d e r  is senled 
and Iberdrola Distribuci6n EICctrica, S.A.U. is the entity with which power distribution and 
transmission activities are settled. 

As of the date of preparation of these Annual Accounts, IBERDROLA had not received the 
final settlements for these concepts corresponding to the years from 2002 to 2006. 

Because in 2006 and 2005 the revenues received by utilities for regulated sales to their 
customers were not sufilcient to remunerate the system's various activities and costs, the 
utilities themselves were forced to fmce  the resulting tariff deficit. 

In 2005, Royal Decree Law 5R005, of 1 1 March, d e d  provisionally that IBERDROLA must 
finance 35.01% of the tariff deficit. Subsequently, Royal Decree 1556/2005, of 28 December, 
established that the amounts contributed by each utility to finance the shortfall in revenue for 
2005 would be reimbursed through settlements for regulated activities in later years, including 
accmcd financing costs. 

As a consequence of this recognition by the Spanish government to mimbursc the tariff deficit 
independent of future billings, in 2005 IBERDROLA rccogniscd a receivable for its 
corresponding portion of the tariff deficit, estimated at EUR 1,259,115 thousand. This amount 

a is included under "Long-term invesiments - Account receivable due to shortfall in revenues" 
on the accompanying balance sheet at 3 1 December 2005. 



Later, Royal Decree 809/2006, passed to revise the electricity tariff applicable from 1 July 
2006,  led that 2005 tariff deficit could be securitised. Accordingly, prior to year-end 2006, 
the Iberdrola Group entered into a securitisation agreement with a group of financial entities 
by virtue of which it transferred the right to collect the 2005 tariff deficit receivable to said 
entities, along with substantially all the associated risks and rewards. "Long-term investments 
- Account receivable due to shortfall in revenues" in the balance sheet at 31 December 2006 
includes EUR 6,977 thousand corresponding to the difference between the amount securitised 
and IBERDROLA's best estimate of the percentage corresponding to it of the shortfall 
generated in 2005. 

Finally, Royal Decree 163412006, which establishes the electricity tariff applicable from 1 
January 2007, guarantees the recovery of the 2006 tariff deficit independent of future billings, 
as happened with the 2005 tariff deficit. As a result, "Long-term investments - Account 
receivable due to shortfall in revenues" in the balance sheet at 31 December 2006 includes 
EUR 579,670 thousand comsponding to the best estimate of the portion of the deficit in 2006 
that corresponds to IBERDROLA, assuming the same deficit allocation percentage of 35.01% 
(see Note 7). 

q) Rights to inspection and coupling and meter rentah 

The rights to inspection and coupling and meter rentals charged by IBERDROLA to 
customers in the liberaliscd market and to Iberdrola Distribuci6n El4ctrica, S.A.U. are 
recorded as revenues with a credit to 'Wet revenues - Services" in the income statement. In 
2006, IBERDROLA obtained EUR 118,698 thousand of revenues for these concepts (see 
Note 15). 

r) Corporate income tax 

IBERDROLA files consolidated tax returns with certain Group companies. 

The expense for corporate income tax for the year is calculated on the basis of book income 
before taxes, increased or decreased, as appropriate, by permanent differences from taxable 
income. 

Double taxation tax credits and other tax credits and tax relief earned as a m l t  of economic 
events occurring in the year are deducted from the income tax expense, unless there are doubts 
as to whether they can be realiscd. 



s) Severance costa 

Under current labour legislation, .IBERDROLA is required to pay severance to employees 
terminated under certain conditions. The Company docs not expect any future tenhinations 
that might give rise to material liabilities. Accordingly, the accompanying Annual Accounts 
do not include any provision for these concepts. 

t) Financial derivativw and hedges 

The financial derivatives held by IBERDROLA relate to hedges arranged to mitigate the 
Company's exposure to certain risks, mainly exchange rate and interest rate risk, and 
fluctuations in stock (gas and electricity) costs. 

The resulting gains or losses on these hedges are allocated to income by the same method of 
recognition with respect to timing as that applied to the gains or losses on the underlying 
hedged transaction. 

At year-end 2006, IBERDROLA had arranged cumncy and interest-rate swaps to hedge its 
financial debt (loans, debentures and other marketable securities, see Note 12) with nominal 
amounts of EUR 888,189 thousand and EUR 5,748,671 thousand, respectively. Of these 
amounts, EUR 1,224,644 thousand of interest-rate swaps were arranged with Group 
companies. IBERDROLA has also interest-rate options with a nominal amount of EUR 
1,280,000 thousand. 

In addition, at 31 December 2006, IBERDROLA had entered into hedges on gas costs for 0.3 
ban with certain financial institutions and a hedge on the cost of electricity with the Ibcrdrola 
Generaci6n, S.A.U. subsidiary, which led to a decrease in supply costs of EUR 111,467 
thousand in ihe year. 



The Company also entered into several trading derivatives to hedge the price performance of 
various stocks, as well as its own shares. Losses on these contracts arc recorded when known 
at the market value of each contract, while gains are taken to income when realised. "Financial 
and similar expenses - Losses on short-tenn investments" and "Other interest and similar 
revenues - Gains on short-term investments" in the 2006 income statement include EUR 
53,352 thousand and EUR 134.1 11 thousand, respectively, from contracts expiring in the year 
and the valuation of open positions at 3 1 December 2006. The detail of outstanding trading 
derivatives at 31 December 2006, is as follows: - 

Derivatives on troarury stock 
Market value 

No. of Maturity (thousands of 
Type of contract s h  date euros) 

Equity Swap 
Collar 
Put options sold 

Derivatives on otha markctable sccwitics 
Market value 

M a w  (thousands o f  
Type of contract No, o f  shares date curos) 

The market value shown in the preceding tables represents the potential gain for the 
IBERDROLA Group on the early settlement of its positions at 31 December 2006. 

In addition, the fair value of IBERDROLAIs derivatives which, in conformity with Spanish 
GAAP, have not been measured at market value amounts to EUR 10,847 thousand. 

On the other hand, at year-end, IBERDROLA had arranged with Group companies various 
exchange rate hedges amounting to USD 1,400,611 thousand to cover transactions. 
Additionally, exchange rate hedges arranged with others amounted to USD 333,822 thousand. 



5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

The changes in 2006 in intangible asset accounts and in the related accumulated amorlisation 
we= as follows: 

Thousand of euros 
Disposals, 

dsncognition, 
Balance at Additions reductions and Balanoe at 
01.01.06 or charges T m f c n  mitc-offs 12.3 1.06 

Q& 
Rcsurch and development 
expenam 6.27 1 (6.271) - 

Concessio~, pat~~~to ,  licenrsr, 
trademarks and o h  44,703 - (M) 44,649 

Computer aoftware 201,841 26,668 (18,244) 210,265 
Rights on leased au*s u.Au - - u!z.l 'w 

Total coat 366,225 26,668 (24,569) 359,047 - - - - - (9,277) 

Accumul8ted atnorib&& 
R-h and development 
expenses 6,271 (6271) - 

Conccssiona, patonto, licenses. 
trademarks and other 13,415 5,152 - 18,567 

Computer software 147.809 19,494 (8,338) 158,965 
Rights on leased ass- -AX2 &Xu L6JSHI iuJ2.3 
Total accumulated 
amortisation 176,857 25,897 (6,788) (14,609) 181357 

- - - 
Totnl net cost 189 f 68 771 (9,960) 177,690 - (2489) 

. -  - - - 
The detail of thc Company's outstanding financial leases at 31 December 2006 is the 
following: 

Thousand of cums 
Outstanding 
instalmcnts 

Tcnn of Months Initial Inscalments (plus Valw of 
lease elapsed at Cost at interest paid as of purchase purchase 

L w d  r5set (months) 12.3 1.06 source charge 12.3 1.06 option) option 



6. TANGIBLE FMED ASSETS 

The changes in 2006 in tangible fixed asset accounts and in the related accumulated 
amortisation and provisions were as follows: 

Thousand of oum 
Decreases, 

Balance at Addiiom disposals or Balance at 
01.01.06 or charges Transfen reductions 12.31.06 

!A& 
Operating tangible fixed assets 

Technical installations: 
Fibre optics network 185,335 27 10,804 196,166 
Measuring deviccs 674,316 29,705 - (20,834) 683,187 
Other communications installations lJ.w4- _ d 8 L P J Z L m  

978,710 29,732 17,614 (20,834) 1,005,222 
Otha opwating assets 4LZ91ZlU.U 9 3 2 2 ! % 9 n 4 5 6 . 9 9 9  

Total operating tangible nxed aucb  1,396,147 69,304 26,891 (30.121) 1.462.221 -- - -=- - -- 
Technical installations in pmgrw 22,651 10,176 (5.110) 27,717 
Advmccs and other construction in progress 9.953 l.Z&l uX?!m1261l1- 

Total cost 1,428,751 96,933 9,277 (33,753) 1,501,208 -- =--- -- -= -=- 

Accumulltcd 8mortls.tioo; 
Technical installations: 

Fibrc optics network 32,555 7,640 - 40.195 
Measuring devices 432,038 29,427 - (20,805) 440,660 
Other wmmunicatiom installations i ! z . z s ~  - - - A!.w 

542.343 43,419 - (20,805) 564,957 
Other o p t i n g  asJs*i ~~ 6m &%a 

6,788 (25,722) 
25Q.m 

Total aecurnulatcd arnortl88Uon 773.291 61,119 815,476 

~llowanocs for decline in value of tangible 
fixed assas It6?JL. I t Z 8 t l  2 2 J 4  

Total accumulated amortlsatiom and 
allowances 805,919 61.1 19 6,788 (29,005) 844,821 
-- - -  - 

Total n d  cod 622,832 35,814 2,489 (4.748) 656,307 

Amortisation in 2006 corresponding to the revaluation of assets permitted under Royal 
Decree-Law 711996 amounted to EUR 498 thousand, with EUR 5,132 thousand pending 
amortisation at year-end. 

At 31 December 2006, IBERDROLA had tangible fixed asset purchase commitments 
amounting to EUR 6,070 thousand. 

Fully depreciated operating tangible fixed assets at 31 December 2006 amounted to EUR 
449,371 thousand. 



7. LONG AND SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 

The movement in "Long-term financial investments" and "Short-term financial investments" 
and the related allowances in 2006 wen the following: 

Thousand of euros 
Additions Decrcatts, 

Balanes at or disposals or Balance u 
01.01.06 provisions Transfers reductions 12.3 1.06 

~oldings in associated ' 
companies 
Long-term invesmeni 
securities 

Loans to Group and associated 
companies (Note 13) 
Other loans 
Lcng-term taxes receivable 
(No= 14) 
Long-tm deposits and 
guarantee8 given 
Amount receivable due to 
shortfall in revenues 
(Note 4.p.) 
Allowances 

Sbort-term flnaneial 
investme- 
Loans to Group and associated 
companies (Note 13) 
Short-term investment 
securities 

Other loans 
Short-ten deposits and 
guarantees given 

Allowances 



Details of IBERDROLA Group and associated companies as of 31 December 2006 are as follows: 

x0fwKnhipby 
IBERDROW Thoaands of m o s  

Dividmds 
Namhtcpa ~c~eivedby 

Canpany 
IBERDR0I.A 

.Lmtion 
IBERDROLA m 

Line of bmims D i m  l n d i i  Total boob - csitJ Rams Rofit(Lms) 2006(Notc IS) 

muQola Gmeraci6n. SAU. (a) B i b  Emay 100 100 3.718.098 I,333,4U7 fSQU60 
k&ols Encrgia, S.AU. (a) sU.979 539,552 

M&d Holding m. IW I00 1,900,492 1.477.831 132.910 289262 
Ibadmla lnpiula  y ConmuccidR SAU. (a) Bilbao Servim 100 100 3.065 660 113.244 33.169 
lbdmla Intanatiorul. B.V. Holland Firuncc- Ir@xummcal 1W 100 388 388 16.3 16 1388 
mudrola Potlugel-Elmricidadc e Oar. SA (a) porngal E~~ 100 - lo0 854,559 200 872,280 19,139 
h b 0 l a  Energin3 RmavlbIa, S.AU. (a) Madrid Energy 100 - 100 223.566 164,600 408,989 152.098 
Corpnacibn IBV, Pattieipecioncs 

36.41 1 

Empraaridy SA. (a) B i b  Holding 50 50 136,857 2211.445 371,902 532.755 150.000 
Ammi S.AU. (a) Madd Sale of insulated wim, gear 

dcaricprmiiafcty 
mata*l 100 I00 3,925 3.606 16,545 4,806 

lbadrola inmobiliaiq SAU. (a) Mahid Rcalcst.rcdmlopncnt 100 I00 2s9.663 221.002 361.860 108.751 
Invcscigaci6n y Demmullo dc Equipos 
Av& SAU. Madrid Tckmkuhg  I00 lo0 5,381 2,725 1,567 1 .m 
NEO-SKY 2002, S A  Mahid Tclannmnmidom 9429 94.29 41,841 65.673 ((12,336) ('4962) 
IbcrdrolaDisuibuci6n W a ,  SAU. B i l k  h u g y  100 100 1,770,034 645,210 1,124,824 224 170,719 
EItUricaConqumx, SA. Cuanr Energy 53.59 53.59 1.520 3.087 2,065 378 241 
Amelm L c h  S.A. (a) V d l d d i  Enngy 100 100 20,103 1,082 6.723 4.575 1,187 
Gamesa Corpnsci6n Tml(lgica. SA(a) Vitoria Holding Co. 17 7.39 24.39 591,692 41,361 758,337 220.126(b) %m 
Ibadmla lnvarioms 2010, S.h B i l k  Finam 100 100 75,000 75,000 (m) 280 
Vector M Suvicim dc Mukaing SAU. Bilbaa Mark* 100 100 3,746 4.410 (4'0) (224) - 
IbdmIa lnfracsfirturss Gasism, S.L. Madrid Gnsmutim 100 100 5,138 5,000 110 28 
Vm Televisih, S.A. Madrid DigitJTartshi.l 20 20 3,519 27,329 (525) Q P 8 )  

Television 
Bahhdc Bidoia Oar, SL. i3ubaa En- 25 25 12.847 6,000 78.605 I 1.6% . . 3.000 
Euslraltcl S.A Zamudii Tel- 11.14 11.14 43,513 325,200 32.859 32.541 
Oth~companico J 4 . m  126 

9,719,781 )036Js - - 
(0) Cnwppnmccmpy. D a ~ f o r e s p i a S r r s n a a n d p a S t ( l o m ) h ~ 2 C M m ~ l i ~  s k & h ~ ~ t ~ ~ u b i ~ d ' i d l ~ m - R - ~ p s  



The detail of "Long-term investments - Long-term investment securities" in the balance sheet 
at 3 1 December 2006 is the following: 

7hou3ands of wos 
% of 

Cost ownership 

Long-term iaveshnent sccurlties: 
Galp, SA. 
Medgw S.A. 
Eutilia, S.A 
Ciudad Real Aeropumr, S.L. 
Refineria Balboa, S.A. 
Other 

The interest in Red Elwtrica de Espafla, S.A., which amounts to EUR 8,183 thousand, was 
reclassified under ''Short-term investment securities" in the balance sheet at 31 December 
2006, since IBERDROLA is obliged to dispose of this investment in 2007. 

The details of "Long-t& investments - Other loans", "Long-term trade accounts receivable" 
and "Short-tcnn financial investments - Other loans" are the following: 

noWanda 
of ewos htrrsstrate Maturity 

Other lon&term loans 
Home loans 
Other 

Long-term tnde accounts rewlvabk 
France Telccom Espana, S A. 
Madrid Municipal Council 
Other 

Other short-term loan8 
Shorl-term cash deposits 
Dividends declared bul not collected from: - Corporacibn IBV 

-Red Eltctrica d c  Espafia, SA. - Iberdrola Generaci6n, S.A.U. 
Pastorla ds Canalts, S.A. 
Other 

EURO LIBOR +O.3% 

3M BURIBOR + 1.5% 



Most significant transactions in 2006 

The most significant transactions, in 2006 involving IBERDROLA's equity investments were 
the following: 

- On 10 July 2006, IBERDROLA acquired an 11% stake in the share capital of Gamesa 
Corporaci6n Tecnol6gica, S.A. from Co1poraci6n IBV, Participaciones Empresariales, 
S.A., a 50%-owned subsidiary of IBERDROLA, for EUR 445,336 thousand. Following 
the transaction, IBERDROLA's stake in Gamesa Corporaci6n Tecnolt~gica, S.A. stands at 
24.39%. 

- On 4 July 2006, IBERDROLA participated, in proportion to its holding, in the capital 
increase carried out by Bahla de Bizkaia Gas, S.L., via the compensation of the EUR 
12,000 thousand participating loan it had with this company. 

- In 2006, IBERDROLA increased capital of its wholly owned Ibndrola Porngal - 
Elcctricidade e Gbs, S.A. in EUR 422,250 thousand. 

- On 27 February 2006, IBERDROLA transfend to its wholly owned subsidiary, Iberdrola 
Inmobiliaria, S.A., a member of Tax Group 2/86 of which IBERDROLA is parent, the 
entire shareholding in Media Park, S.A. for EUR 77,393 thousand. This amount was the 
investment's value that appeared in IBERDROLA's books. 

8. TREASURY STOCK 

The movement in this heading during the year was the following: 

Thousands of 
No. of sham curos 

Balance at I January 2006 109,537 1,151 
Acqukitiona 8,270,501 228.171 
Disposals (8,284,425) (227,427) 
Value adjustments rccorded in prior ysus 

reversed with credit to reaervac (Note 9) (804) 
Value adjustments recorded with a charge to 
profit and loss 

Balance at 31 December 2006 

At 31 December 2006, the Company had a restricted reserve for treasury stock for the MI 
amount of own shares held at that date (see Note 9). 

The gain on the disposals of .treasury stock in 2006 amounted to EUR 3,3 17 thousand and is 
recorded under "Gains on disposal of eeasury stock" in the accompanying income statement. 
Losses for this concept amounted to EUR 2,674 thousand, recorded under "Losses on 
transactions involving treasury stock" in the 2006 income statement. 



9. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

The movement in this heading in 2006 wai the following: 



Share Capital 

At 31 December 2006, the capital stock of IBERDROLA consisted of 901,549,18 1 shares of 
EUR 3 par value each. These shares are listed on the Spanish Continuous Market (Spanish 
computerised trading system), are included in the IBEX 35 index and, since September 2003, 
have been included in the European Eurostoxx 50 index. 

Since IBERDROLA's shares are represented by the book-entry system, the exact stakes held 
by its shareholders are not known. Nonetheless, based on publicly available information, at 
31 December 2006 the stakes held by ACS, Actividades de Construoci6n y Servicios, S.A., 
Bilbao Bizkaia Kubca and Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. in the share capital of 
IBERDROLA, S.A., directly and indirectly, stood at 10.882%, 9.97% and 6.47%, 
respectively. 

At 31 December 2006, the direct and indirect stakes in IBERDROLA held by Board members 
were the following: 

I$Qdmmh 

los t  lgnacio Sllncha Ciallln 
Juan Luis Arrcgui Ciarsolo 
Vlctor de Urrutia Vallcjo 
Jost Orbegom Arroyo 
Lucar M' dc Oriol L6pez-Montenegro 
Ricardo Alvarez Isasi 
Mariano Ybarra y Zublrla 
Jost Ignacio Bmocta Echevvrta 
Julio dc Migucl Aynat 
Sebastilln Battaner Arias 
Xavicr de lrala EstCvez 
Inigo Victor de Oriol h 
lnts Macho Stadler 
Braulio Mcdcl C h a r a  
lost  Carlos Pla Royo 

Numba of lhares 
Direct Indirect Total 

202.472 161973 364,445 
200 18,410,000 18,410,200 

525,000 863,500 1,388,500 
23,666 476,334 500,000 
17,330 162,403 179,733 
50.000 1,075,742 1,125,742 
34,001 30,000 64,001 
2.915 3 1,476 34,391 

44.521 44321 
13,500 - 13.500 
40,328 40.328 

At the General Shareholders' Meeting held on 30 March 2006 the Board of Directors was 
authorised, in accordance with Article 153.lb) of the Spanish Corporations Law, within a 5- 
year period ending 30 March 201 1, if deemed appropriate, to increase its capital stock by as 
much as one-half, in one or a series of increases, in the amount deemed appropriate, with the 
exclusion of preemptive subscription rights. At 31 December 2006, the Board of Directors had 
not availed of this authorization. 

The Spanish Corporations Law expressly permits the use of this account balance to increase 
capital and does not establish any specific restrictions as to its use. 



Legal reserve 

Under the Spanish Corporations Law, 10% of net profit for each year must be transferred to 
the legal reserve until the balance of this resem reaches at least 200/0 of the share capital. 

At 31 December 2006, this reserve had reached the threshold established ,by the 
aforementioned legislation. 

The legal reserve can be used to increase capital provided that the remaining reserve balance 
does not fall below 10% of the increased share capital amount. Otherwise, until the legal 
reserve exceeds 20% of capital stock, it can only be used to offset losses, provided that 
sufficient other reserves an not available for this purpose. 

~cvaluatioa reserved 

This reserve, included in the balance sheet of the 1996 Annual Accounts, arose as a result of 
the revaluation of tangible fixed assets made by IBERDROLA pursuant to Royal Decree-Law 
711996 of 7 June (see Note 4.b). 

This balance can be used, h e  of tax, to offset recorded losses (both prior years' accumulated 
losses and current year losses) or losses which might arise in the future, and to increase share 
capital. From 1 January 2007, the balance of this reserve can be taken to unrestricted reserves, 
provided that the monetary surplus has been realised. The surplus will be deemed to have been 
realised on the portion on which depreciation has bem taken for accounting purposes or if the 
revalued assets have been transfemd or d-gnised. If the balance of this account were used 
in any way other than as specified in Royal Decree-Law 711996, it would be subject to tax. 

Redeemed capital reserve 

Prior to 2001, IBERDROLA decreased capital by redeeming treasury stock, lowering capital - .  
stock by EUR 81.708 thousand and volun& reserves by EUR 238,722 tho&and, pursuant to 
a resolution adopted at the General Shareholders' Meeting held on 25 May 1996. 

In accordance with M c l e  167.3 of the Spanish Corporations Law, IBERDROLA has a 
restricted "Rcdcemed capital reserve" amounting to EUR 81.708 thousand, equivalent to the 
pay value of the decreased capital stock. 



10. PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCIES AND EXPENSES 

a) Provisions for pensions and similar obligations 

The mwment in 2006 in this heading on the liability side of the balance sheet. was as 
follows: 

Balance at 1 January 2006 
Provisions: 

Bylaw-stipulated emoluments (Note 18,s) 
With a charge to inwme and loss (Now 45 and 4.k) 

Less - payments made 
Balance at 31 D n e m k r  2006 

'Trovisions for pensions and similar obligations" in the accompanying balance shed at 31 
December 2006 included coverage of the following commitments (see Notes 4.j and 4.k): 

Long-sarviu bonua and 
electricity for employees , 

Voluntary collective redundancy p c d u m  (Note 4.k) 
Other restructuring plans (Note 4.k) 
Board of directors 

b) Provision for taxes and other provisions for ~~nlingeucles and expenses 

The detail of the movement in 2006 in this heading on the liability side of the accompanying 
balance sheet was as follows: 

musands of 
euros 

l3al.net at I January 2006 
Provisions 
Overprovision 
Provisions used and psj'ments 
Transfers 

Balance at 31 Dmmbcr 2006 





The balance of simple bonds and debentures outstanding at 31 December 2006, carried a 
weighted average annual interest rate of 8.88% considering the related hedges. 

The balance of "Other marketable debt securities" at 3 1 December 2006 carried an average 
annual interest rate of 3.401%. 

All these issues arc denominated in eums. 

At the General Shareholders* Meeting held 30 March 2006, the Board of Directors was 
authorised to issue EUR 9,000,000 thousand of five-year convertible bonds and debentures 
and up to EUR 4,000,000 of commercial paper. At 31 December 2006, it had not exercised 
this power. 

12. PAYABLE TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS 

The maturity of outstanding loans and credits at 31 December 2006, including financial lease 
instalments pending payment (see Note 4.a). is the following: 

2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
201 2 and beyond 

Sbort-tern 465,010 - 
113,032 
240,219 

1,443,262 
150,626 
u 

Long-term 3,692,955 --- 
The outstanding loans arc denominated in e m s  or foreign cumncy. However, at year-cnd 
2006, IBERDROLA had arranged currency (euro swap) and interest-rate swaps to hedge its 
financial debt (loans, debentures and other marketable securities, see Note 11) for EUR 
888,189 thousand and EUR 5,748,671 thousand, respectively (see Note 4.t). 

The loans outstanding at 31 December 2006 beat average annual interest of 3.69% 
considering the related hedges. 

These balances correspond to amounts drawn down and pending payment at 31 December 
2006. At year-end 2006, IBERDROLA had EUR 13,821,245 thousand of unused loans and 
credit facilities maturing between 2007 and 201 1 and bearing a weighted average interest rate 
of 5.2%. 



Most of the loans taken out by IBERDROLA have certain mandatory terms and covenants 
regarding balance sheet structure and other economic variables. At 31 December 2006, 
IBERDROLA was in compliance. with all these terms and covenants. 

13. BALANCES WITH GROUP AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 

The detail of short and long-term "Loans to Group and associated companies" in the balance 
sheet at 3 1 December 2006 is the following (see Note 7): 

Thousands of euros 
Short-term Long-term Total 

lberdmla Gsncnci6n, S.A.U. 
lberdrola Dirtribucibn E l a t r i y  SAW. 
lberdrola Energla, SA.U.(*) 
lberdrola Inmobiliaria, S.A.U. 
lberdmla Energias Renowbled de 
Castilla la Mmcha, S.A.U 

Energyworks do Braail, Ltda (*) 
Planta de Regasificaci6n de Sagumo,S.A. 
Bahia de Bizkaia Electricidad, S.L. 
Tarragons Power, S.L. 
Other Gmup companied 
Accrued interest pending collection 

(*) These loans are denominated in US dollsn and are shown at the official y e a r a d  exchange nte. 

The loans bear average interest of 4.25%. 

The maturity of long-term receivables is as follow': 

2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
2012 and beyond 

Thousands of suros 

The detail of IBERDROLA's short-term accounts with Group and associated companies at 31 
December 2006 is as follows: 



Thousands of euros 
Receivable Payable 

Long-tern 
Group cornpnia  

Iberdrola International, B.V, 
Iberdrola F in~zas ,  S.A. 
Torre Iberdrola, A.I.E. 

Short-tcm 
Group cornpnia  

Iberdrola Distribucidn Elktrim, S.A.U. 
Ibcrdrola Encrnlas Rmovablu de Castilla La M m h a  S.A.U. 
Iberdrola ~en&ci6n, S.A.U. 
Iberdrola Energlas Renovabled de Galicia, S.A.U. 
Iberdrola Energla, SA.U. 
Iberenova Promocionur, S.A.U. 
Iberdrola Energlas Renovablur de Angh, S.A.U. 
Iberdrola Inmobiliaria, S.A.U. 
Fuenas ElCctricas de Navarra, SA. 
HidroelCctrica IbCrica, S.L. 
Iberdrola Energlas Renovabled,S.A.U. 
Ciemr, S.A.U. 
Energywarks Cartagena,S.L. 
Energyworks Vit-Va1l.S.L. 
Iberdrola Energlas Rcnovablesde la Riojs S.A. 
Encrgyworks Aranda, S.L. 
Arnara, S.A.U. 
Siaemas Encrgttiws Chandmcs, S.A. 
Iberdrola Energias Renovables de Andalucla, 9A.U. 
NEO-SKY 2002. S.A. 
Iberdrola Inmobiliaria Catalunya, SA. 
S.E. Lor Camplllos, SA. 
Ibcrdrola Intcrnacional, BV 
lberdrola Finanzar, S.A. 
Iberdrola Cogemracibn, S.LU. 
Iberdrnla lngkierla y Conmucel6n, S.A.U. 
Iberdrola lnfraestruchlac Gasism. S.L. 
lbndrola Opcraci6n ~ a n t m i r n i e k ,  SA. 
Biovent Holding, S.A. 
ElCctrica Conquense, S.A. 
Vector M Sewicios deMarkcting, S.A. 
Idea Telemarketing, S.A. 
Ansclmo M n ,  S.A. 
Erne Hueneja T m .  S.L. 
Eme D6lar Uno, S.L. 
Erne D6lar Dos, S.L. 
Erne D6lar Tres, S.L. 
Other 

Asaoclated cornpales 
Tarragona Power. S.L. 
CorporaciIn IBV Participacioncs Emprssarialcs, S.A. 
Bahla Bizkaia Electricidad, S.L. 
Nuclenor. S.A. 
Other 



In general, except for the amount payable to Iberdrola International B.V. described in this 
Note, the aforementioned balances with Group companies arose from normal business 
transactions andlor IBERDROLA's own cash management. They do not have any set maturity 
and are settled quarterly and annually, bearing interest indexed to market rates. 

At 31 December 2006, Ibcrdrola International B.V. and Iberdrola Finanas, S.A. had granted 
loans to IBERDROLA for the amounts of various debt issues in foreign currcncy made by 
them and undennitten by IBERDROLA (see Note 17). The maturities of these unpaid loans at 
3 1 December 2006 were as follows: 

Thousands of 
Maturity c u m  

At 3 1 December 2006, these loans bore average annual interest of 3.71%. 

Accrued interest payable at year end amounted to EUR 94,583 thousand and is morded under 
"Cumnt liabilities -Payable to Group companies" in the accompanying balance sheet. 

14. TAX MATTERS 

In 2006, IBERDROLA, S.A., as the Parent of Tax Group 2/86, filed a consolidated income 
tax return in Spain. The Group will continue to be taxed under this tax regime indefinitely for 
as long as the related requirements are met and tbe Group docs not expressly waive 
application of the regime by filing the related taxpayer registration form. 

In years, IBERDROLA was involved in a series of corporate restructuring moves under 
the tax regime provided for under Chapter Vm, Title VII of the revised Spanish Corporate 
Income Tax Law enacted by Legislative Royal Decree 4R004 of 5 March. The disclosures 
required under this law are provided in the notes to the Annual Accounts of the years in which 
the transactions took place. 



The reconciliation of the profit per books to the taxable income for corporate income tax 
purposes for 2006 is as follows: 

ThowMds of nvos 
Increase Decrease Amount 

Pmfn before taxes 
Permanent differences 
Temporary differences 
Taxable income 

The difference between the tax charge allocated to 2006 and the tax payable for that year, 
which is recorded under "Long-term taxes receivableltaxes payable" or "Short-tmn taxes 
rcceivable/taxes payable" as appropriate, in the balance sheet at 31 December 2006, arose 
mainly as a result of the following: 

- Temporary differences derived mainly, for the purpose of determining the taxable 
income for corporate income tax purposes for each year, from the tax effect of 
expenses recorded for pension commitments and the voluntary collective redundancy 
procedure (see Note 4.k). 

- Temporary differences arising from changes in allowances for investment securities 
that are not deductible in the year in which they are recorded, for a net amount of EUR 
1,578 thousand (positive difference). 

- Temporary differences derived from the differences in accounting and tax criteria for 
recognising certain allocations to provisions and the accounting and tax depreciation of 
ccr(ain items. 

The accrued corporate income tax expense for 2006 was calculated as follows: 

hofit before tuxes 
Pmanent di&rmoss 
Adjusted income 

Gross tax at 35% 
Deductions (a) 
Effect of consolidated tawation: 

- Intergroup dividends (b) - Provision for marketable securities (c) 
-Correction for deductions (3) 

Other effects (d) 
Adjustment to tax ratc (e) 
Accrued corporate income tax expense 



(a) The tax credits taken by IBERDROLA, which basically correspond to deductions for 
double taxation, include a total of EUR 1,841 thousand relating to the tax credit for 
reinvestment of capital gains whose base was EUR 9,204 thousand. Pursuant to 
Articles 42 and 75 of the revised Spanish Corporate Income Tax Law of 5 March, 
which regulates this tax credit, it is hereby stated that the total amount.obtained in the 
transfer has been reinvested by the companies belonging to tax group 2/86, and that the 
assets in which the reinvestment was made in order to meet the commitment are still 
owned. 

(b) This mainly relates to eliminating from tax payable the effect of dividends received by 
companies in the tax group and the elimination of the tax credit for double taxation on 
these dividends. 

(c) Changes in 2006 in allowances for investment securities related to the 
allocation/application of the provision for IBERDROLA. S.A.'s stake in IBERDROLA 
ENERG~A, S.A.U. and other companies eliminated on tax consolidation as they 
belong to Tax Group 2/86. 

(d) Income tax incurred abroad. 

(e) Expense derived from the recalculation, pursuant to the change in tax regulations 
approved in November 2006, of pre-paid and defemd taxes and taxes pending nversal 
at 3 1 December 2006 according to the estimated tax rate at the time of the reversal. 

The commitments and obligations arising from the tax benefits of which IBERDROLA 
availed itself in 2006 and prior years were met (and are. currently being met) by the companies 
belonging to Tax Group 2/86, in the terms provided for in the revised Spanish Corporate 
Income Tax Law, enacted by Legislative Royal Decree 4/2004 of 5 March. 

Specifically, IBERDROLA took tax credits in previous years on the capital gains ohtined 
from the disposal of tangible fixed assets and hereby states that the full amount of the 
disposals has been reinvested in assets that it still owns in order to meet the commitment. 



The detail of "Taxes receivable" and "Taxes payable" on the asset and liability sides, 
respectively, of the balance sheet of IBERDROLA, S.A. at 31 Dccember 2006 is as follows: 

Thous~ds of euroa 
Shon-term Long-term 

Taxa receivable 
Prepaid income lax due to: 

Accnred cXpellW3 for 
pensions and other similar obligation8 

Other 
VAT refundable 
Corporate tax rehdable 
Sundry taxes reccivablc 
Social security taxes receivable 

Taxa pymble 
Defmcd income tax due to 

Value adjusbnats to fixed ass- 
Other 
VAT payable 
Taxes payable for withholdings 
Other 
Social security taxes payable 
Corporate inwme tax payable 

In general, IBERDROLA has open for review by the tax inspection authorities the year 2002 
and subsequent years for the main taxes applicable to it, except for corporate income tax, for 
which 2001 and subsequent years are open. 

In 2006, an injunction was imposed on part of Bizkaia corporate tax legislation applicable to 
some subsidiaries and associated companies (Provincial Regulatory Decree ID005 of 30 
December). The ruling is not final has official appeals have been filed and as it has not been 
published in the Official Gazetie of Bizkaia. 

These subsidiaries have calculated the amounts corresponding to this tax for 2006 and for 
those years open to inspection in accordance with provincial regulations in effect at the end of 
each year given that they consider that the final resolution of the appeals filed will not have a 
significant effect on the Annual Accounts taken as a whole. 

As a result of inspections by the tax authorities, tax assessments have been raised against 
several Group subsidiaries. The Group has signed in protest and appealed some of these. 

The directors of IBERDROLA, S.A. and, were appropriate, its tax advisors consider that no 
significant liabilities would arise for IBERDROLA in the event of a review of the years open 
to inspection or as a result of the matters mentioned in the paragraphs above. 



15. REVENUES AND EXPENSES 

Net revenues 

The detail of this heading in the accompanying income statement is the following: 

Sales 
Billed power supplied Mend  c y s t o m  
Elsceicity billed in 2006 for mngy supplied in 2005 
Unbilled power supplied to end customers in the year (Note 4.g) 
Gss billed to end customen in the year 
Gar billed in 2006 related to gas supplied h 2005 
Unbilled gas supplied (Note 4.g) 
Salw oftelecommunications sedecs  
Sales of goods and services 

Scwircr 
Rights to inspection, and coupling and meter rencals (Note 4.q) 
Other 



The breakdown of billed electricity and gas sales by autonomous community in Spain and 
sales to companies abroad is the following: 

Thousands of 
euros 

Net billed power salu 
Barque Country 
Madrid 
Castilla-Ls6n 
N a v m  
La Rioja 
Exuemadun, 
Castilla-La Mancha 
Comunidad Valenciana 
Murcia 
Catalonia 
Alagon 
Asturias 
Cantabria 
Galicia 
Andalusla 
Balcaric and CMyr Islands 

Power sales to 
companies abroad 

Procurements 

The detail of this heading the accompanying income statement for 2006 is as follows: 

'Ihowand8 of 
eums 

Parcham 
Power purchaacs from the whoksala 
electricity production market 

Gar purchases 
Changes in inventories 
Other power purchssw 
Other supplies 

Other external expenses 
Servicu received for the use of ncnuorks for the nrpply of: 
- Electricity - Gas 

Other e m a l  expasas 



Employee welfare expenses 

The detail of this heading in the accompanying income statement for 2006 is the following: 

Thousands of 
euros 

Employer social security coats 20,03 1 
Additional provisions for pensions and similar obligations and defined 
contributions to the external pension plan (Note 44J) 18.694 

Bylaw-stipulated directors' emoluments (Note 18.8) 16,602 
Other employee welfare expenam JUQ6 

68,733 



Trmsactions with Gmnp and awxhtcd companies ( 

The principal transactions carried out by IBERDROLA with Group and associated companies in 2006 affecting  venues and expenses in the 
year were the following: 

Group alnlpmics: 
Dedicated to pom-relatcd 

activities 
- Gmeraioa 664637 257334 - ll2,&59 845 l83J73 
- Transmission and 

disbi ion 126,704 'Dl* f 766 14.443 174.W. m a.ws 
- Other 81 Z M  Z738 453 88 9523 

Dedicated to otha a d M i a  ZssS 193 85 19,742 16.240 21L813 tl.231 

Asuclltcd mapn*s: 
Dedicated to powcz-ICW 
activities 166.1121 21816 l&!O 7,730 



Variation in allowances for intangible assets, tangible rued assets and long-term 
investments 

The detail of this heading in the accompanying income statement for 2006 is as follows: 

Long-tenn lavestmentr: 
lbtrdrola Energla, S.A.U. 
Euskaltcl 
Investigaci6n y Deamllo de Equip- Avanzados, S.A. 
NEO-SKY 2002, S.A. 
VwTV 
Other 

Taagibk bed assets: 
Allowances for decline in value of mgible f i t &  assets (Note 6) 

Extraordinary expenses 

The detail of this heading in 2006 is as follows: 

Thousands of euros 
Provision for pensions and 
similar obligations for rnmucturing plana (Notea and 4.k) 41,769 

Allocation to provision for contingencies and expenses 38,953 
Other AJLZ 

86,834 

Extraordinary income 

The detail of this heading in the income statement for the year ended 31 Decamber 2006 is the 
following: 

Long-servioo bonuses and elWiclty for employees (Note 4 j) (11,415) 
Voluntary collective redundancy procedure (Note 4.k) 18,229 
Reversal of provision for taxes and other provisions for 
contingencies and expenses 10,563 
Other u.zs! 

18,747 



Gains on disposal of intangible assets, tangible fixed assets and long-tenn investments 

The detail of this heading in 2006 is the following: 

Thousands of euros 

Sde of buildings 
Sale of land 
Other 

Employees 

The average number of employees at IBERDROLA in 2006, by professional category, was the 
following: 

Thowands of e m s  

University graduates 
kuociate degree graduates 
Other 

The preceding table does not include the 46 employees included under the "special labour 
situation" (see Note 4.k). 

16. SEGMENT REPORTING BY BUSINESS 

IBERDROLA has decided not to disclose business segment information, as it would not be 
representative because the company is basically a holding company. 



17. GUARANTEES WITH THIRD PARTIES AND OTHER CONTINGENT 
LIABILITIES 

At 3 1 December 2006, IBERDROLA had provided guarantees to other companies, as detailed 
below: 

Thousands of 
euros 

Veo Televiai6n 
Elcogbs, S.A. 
Time, SA. 
Iberdrola Energla Monterrey, SA. de C.V. 
lbcrdmla Energfa Altamim, S.A. 
Encrgyworh Fom, S.L. 
Encrgyworks Monzbn, SL. 
Ibcrdrola Ingenierla y ConstrucciC, S.A. 
Nco Sky2002, S.A. 

IBERDROLA has provided guarantees amounting to EUR 34,132 thousand to the Mexican 
Federal Electricity Commission to secure electricity supplies and the completion of combined 
cycle plants and EUR 1,099,231 thousand to MEFF Service, S.A. for operating in the 
electricity pool. The Company has also provided a total of EUR 439,737 thousand of wunter- 
guarantees for various bank loans to Group companies. 

The Company has also underwitten various bond issues placed by Group companies Iberdrola 
Finanzas, S.A. and Iberdrola International, B.V. (see. Note 13). 

IBERDROLA considers that any liabilities that could arise from the guarantees provided at 31 
December 2006 would not be material. 

18. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 

a) 2006 bylawatipulated remuneration 

Article 50 of IBERDROLA's bylaws provides that ''the Company shall assign, as an expense, 
an amount equal to up to 2% of the profit obtained in the year by the consolidated Group" for 
directors' remuneration. 



The Board of Directors has agreed to propose at the General Shateholdm' Meeting bylaw- 
stipulated remuneration of 1% of 2006 consolidated net profit (1.25% in 2005). In 2006 and 
2005 bylaw-stipulated remuneration would accordingly amount to EUR 16,602 thousand and 
17,276 thousand, respectively, which was lower than the limit pmvided for in Article 50 of 
the bylaws. of IBERDROLA. These amounts were recognised with a charge to "Personnel 
expenses" on the accompanying income statements (see Note 15). 

The breakdown of the remuneration of EUR 16,602 thousand and EUR 17,276 thousand is as 
follows: 

Bylaw-stipulated directors' emoluments 

The bylaw-stipulated directors' emoluments paid to the current directors with a charge to the 
aforementioned bylaw-stipulated directors' remuneration amounted to EUR 4,141 (*) 
thousand and EUR 3,741 thousand in 2006 and 2005, respectively. The amounts received by 
the directors depend on the duties assigned to them, the detail being as follows: 

Chairmen 
Deputy chairmen 
Committee memben 
Directors 

C) Thcsc amounts include bylaw-ltipulakd nrnuncdon for orben of the Board of Directon ch.l srsppd 
down horn their positions during the yonr. 

Attendance fees 

The attendance fees paid to the directors with a charge to the bylaw-stipulated directors' 
remuneration amounted to EUR 707 thousand and EUR 839 thousand in 2006 and 2005. 
respectively. 

Insurance premiums 

The premium incurred in order to cover benefits in the went of the death or disability of the 
cumnt directors amounted to EUR 262 thousand and EUR 284 thousand in 2006 and 2005, 
respectively. 

The premium paid to cover dictors' civil liability insurance in the same years was EUR 704 
thousand and EUR 732 thousand, respectively. 

Other 

Finally, payments for external services and compensation in kind in 2006 and 2005 amounted 
to EUR 1,170 thousand and EUR 1,468 thousand, respectively. The undishibuted bylaw- 
stipulated remuneration in 2006 and 2005 amounted to EUR 9,618 thousand and EUR 9,725 
thousand, respectively. 



b) Previous years' bylaw-stipulated remuneration 

Credits were made in 2006 to unpaid previous years' bylaw-stipulated remuneration for the 
following concepts: 

Fixed remuneration 

The outgoing Chairman's services contract gave rise to compensation of EUR 9,300 thousand 
and EUR 1.200 thousand in 2006 and 2005, respectively. 

Variable remuneration 

Variable remuneration received by the members of the Board of Directors of IBERDROLA 
who discharged executive duties amounted to EUR 1,000 thousand. 

Life insurance premiums 

The premium for regularising the insurance policy covering the vested pensions of the retired 
directors in 2006 and 2005 amounted to EUR 483 thousand and EUR 365 thousand, 
respectively. 

Provisions and guarantees provided by the Company for the directon. 

This heading includes EUR 5,280 of insurance premiums and EUR 1,470 thousand of 
severance paid to directors terminated, both wncepts charged to prior years' bylaw-stipulated 
directors' remuneration, compand to EUR 122 thousand of termination benefits paid with a 
charge to the 2005 bylaw-stipulated d b r s '  remuneration. 

Otber 

An additional EUR 165 thousand w m  paid for e x t d  services. 

c) Other remuneration 

The remuneration received in 2006 and 2005 by the members of the Board of Directon of 
IBERDROLA who discharged executive duties and included under "Personnel expenses" in 
the accompanying income statement, amounted to EUR 1,750 thousand and EUR 1,147 
thousand, respectively, of fixed remuneration; EUR 1,1 I I thousand and EUR 1,058 thousand, 
respectively, of variable remuneration; and EUR 567 thousand and EUR 733 thousand, 
respectively, relating to the amount of the life insurance premiums. 

The sum of the remuneration relating to the bylaw-stipulated directors' remuneration and those 
reflected under other headings in the accompanying 2006 and 2005 income statements is 
lower than the limit established in Article SO of tbe bylaws of IBERDROLA for the bylaw- 
stipulated directors' remuneration. 

At 31 December 2006 and 2005, the IBERDROLA Group had not granted any loans or 
advances to the members of the Board of Directors of IBERDROLA. 



In compliance with the terms of article 127 ter section 4 of (he Spanish Corporations Law, the 
members of  the Company's Board of Directors confirm that they hold equity investments and 
hold positions/pcrform duties (if any) in the following companies whose activities are 
identical, similar or complementary to that which comprises the Company's corporate 
purpose: 

Director 

Juan Luis Arregui Cianolo 

J& Orbegozo Arroyo 
L u w  Marla dc Oriol Lhpn-Mwtonegm 
L u m  Marla de Oriol MpceMontmegro 

Julio dc Miguel Aynat 
Scbanihn Banana Arias 

lnigo Victor de Oriol lbarra 

COnwnY 

Oamssa Corporsci6n 
Tecnolbgica, S.A. 

Fanox Electronic, S.L. 
Enduq S.A. 
Emprcsa do Alumbrado 
ElCceico de Ccuta, S.A. 

Metrovacwq S.A. 
Gamesa Corporacibn 
Tecnolbgica, SA. 

Empreen de Alumbrado 
ElCctrico de Ccuta, S.A. 

Abertis Infracstrucfuras, 
S.A. 

Position 
or 

functions 

Director 
None 
None 

None 
Director 

None 

D i i  

Following is the information required under the aforementioned legislation concerning the 
performance by the directors, as independent professionals or as employees, of activities that 
are identical, similar or complementary to the activity that constitutes the corporate purpose of 
IBERDROLA: 

Director company Position or hnctions 

Xabier de Inla EstCvez 
Braulio M d c l  Cknara 

Euskaltcl S.A. Director 
AguagMt Sur, S.A. Chairman 

19. REMUNERATION OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES 

The staff costs (salary, compensation in kind, social security costs, pension schemes, etc.) 
relating to senior executives amounted to EUR 10,049 thousand and EUR 10,365 thousand in 
2006 and 2005, respectively, and these amounts are recorded under "Personnel expenses" in 
the accompanying 2006 and 2005 income statements. 

The foregoing figures do not include the wages and salaries, sham option plans or 
contributions made by the Company to the 'IBERDROLA Pension Plan" received by the 
members of the Board of Directors of IBERDROLA with executive duties, since they are 
disclosed in Note 18. 



The employment contracts of the senior executives, including executive d i i t o r s  of 
IBERDROLA or of the Group contain golden parachute clauses for cases of termination or 
changes of control. These contracts have to be approved by the Company's Board of 
Directors. 

IBERDROLA has been including this type of clause in the contracts of its executives since the 
nineties; however, most contracts containing golden parachute clauses were entered into in 
October 2000. A total of 84 executives, including the Company's senior executives, have 
contracts of this nature. 

The objective is to achieve a level of loyalty among top-ranking executives that is effective 
and sufficient for the management of IBERDROLA and thereby avoid the loss of experience 
and skills that could jeop&dise the achievement of strategic objectives. In essenk, these 
clauses recognise termination benefits based on the length of service at the Company of the 
members of the executive team, with annual salary payments ranging from a minimum of one 
to a maximum of five years. 

In 2006 and 2005 them were no transactions with executives other than those carried out in 
the ordinary course of the Oroup's business. 

20. FINANCIAL POSITION AND EVENTS m E R  31 DECEMBER 2006 

In order to finance its investments planned for 2007 and to fund the cash needs arising from 
its financial position at 31 December 2006, IBERDROLA will need to obtain new fundig of 
approximately EUR 13,090,612 thousand. Of. this amount, EUR 11,846,612 thousand 
cornspond to financing needs in connection with the acquisition of Scottish Power Plc. (see 
Note 22). 

As indicated in Note 12 and taking into consideration the amounts described in Note 22, at 3 1 
Dcccmber 2006, IBERDROLA had approximately EUR 13,821,425 thousand of unused loans 
and cndit facilities, of which EUR 11,846,612 thousand related to a bridge loan to fund the 
acquisition of Scottish Power Pic. and leaving EUR 1,974,813 thousand available to meet the 
rest of the IBERDROLA Group's financing requirements. 

This figure, together with EUR 250,000 thousand of loans and debt issuances contracted after 
year-end and prior to the preparation of these Annual Accounts, guarantee that the Group's 
cash needs for 2007 will be fully covered. 



21. FEES FOR SERVICES PROVIDED BY AUDITORS 

Audit fees of the 2006 Annual Accounts of the various companies which comprise the 
IBERDROLA Group and subsidiaries by the main auditor and related companies amounted to 
EUR 3,218 thousand, of which EUR 947 thousand comspond to IBERDROLA. Audit fees 
paid to other auditors for the audit of the Annual Accounts of other Group companies 
amounted to EUR 742 thousand. 

In addition, fees paid during the year for other services rendered by the principal auditor and 
related companies to Group companies in 2006 amounted to EUR 654 thousand, of which 
EUR 182 thousand comsponded to services provided to IBERDROLA. Fees paid for other 
services rendered by other auditors for this concept amounted to EUR 1,768 thousand. 

22. TAKEOVER BID FOR SCOTTISH POWER, PLQ 

On 27 November 2006, the Boards of IBERDROLA and Scottish Power, Plc. (hereinafter, 
SCOTTISH POWER), a UK energy generator and distributor, reached agreement on the terms 
of a takeover agreement by which IBERDROLA, directly or via a wholly owned subsidiary, 
will acquire the shares of SCOTTISH POWER. The Board of Directors of SCOTTISH 
POWER voted unanimously in favour of the transaction. 

By vim of the aforementioned agreement, IBERDROLA will acquire all the outstanding 
shares of SCOTTISH POWER, including those issued as a result of the potential exercise of 
the conversion rights on SCOTTISH POWER Class B shares, in exchange for a combination 
of cash and new IBERDROLA shares to be received by shareholders of SCOTTISH POWER 
and SCOTTISH POWER ADS holders pursuant to the following exchange ratio: 

For every SCOTTISH POWER share, 400 pence sterling and 0.1646 new IBERDROLA 
shares. 

For every SCOTTISH POWER ADS, 1,600 pence sterling and 0.6584 new IBERDROLA 
shares. 

In addition, SCOTTISH POWER will declare an extraordiary dividend of 12 pence sterling 
for every SCOTTISH POWER share and 48 pence sterling for every SCOTTTSH POWER 
ADS tendered in the bid. 

The transaction values each SCOTTISH POWER share at 777 pence sterling and its ordinary 
share capital at approximately 11,600 million pounds sterling (based on calculations made on 
27 November 2006). 



The portion of the deal funded with cash will be financed through credit facilities taken out 
with a series of banks. IBERDROLA has obtained firm financing commitments totalling 
7,955 million pounds sterling (EUR 11,738 million based on calculations made on 27 
November 2006) from ABN Amro Bank NV, Barclays Capital and The Royal Bank of 
Scotland to finance the cash component of the bid and to refinance certain elements of 
SCOTTISH POWER'S existing borrowings. 

IBERDROLA believes the transaction will give rise to: 

The third largest energy group in Europe. 

Installed generation capacity at the resulting newco of 36,603 MW with 21.4 million 
points of supply based on figures at 30 September 2006. 

a 5,700 M W  of installed wind generation capacity and 333 MW of mini hydro generation 
capacity, making the resulting newco the largest global player in renewable energies. 

A M U ~  savings before tax and capital expenditure of at least 88 million pounds sterling 
and average capex savings of an estimated 30 million pounds sterling. 

The transaction schedule conterndates that the muisition will be apmved at the General 
Shareholdkrs' Meetings of IBER~ROLA and SCO~TISH POWER b;ke end of March 2007 
and for the deal to close before the end of April 2007. 



23. STATEMENT OF SOURCE AM) APPLLCATION OF FUNDS 

The funds obtained in 2006, their sowces and applications in fixed assets or working capital 
for the years ended 31 December 2006 rind 2005, are the following: 

Sources of hndr:  
Funds obtained from oparations 
Other deferred revenus 
Long-term loans 
Unpaid portion of equity investments 
Disposal of tangible fixed assets 
Disposal of t m u r y  stock 
Long-term trade accounts recsivablea 
Early repayment or Vansfu to short-term of long-term 

investments 
Total funds obtained 

Appllcltion of hnds: 
Debt arrangement expenses and othw dderred expenses 
Fixed asset additions 
- Intangible fured asscts 
-Tangible fixed assets - Long-term investments 

Treasury stock 
Dividends 
Repayment or kansfer to short-term of long-term debt 
Provisions for contingencies Md expenscs 
Unpaid portion of equity investments 
Long-twm trade accounts receivables 

Total hnds  rppUcd 

lncruae in worklng capltal 

Variation in working cnpital 
Inventories 
Accounts receivable 
Accounts payable 
Short-term investments 
ACCN~] accounts 
lnerense in worklng capital 

Thousands of euros 
2006 2005 



The reconciliation of income in 2006 and 2005 to the funds obtained from operations is as follows: 

Profit for the year 940,964 800JO1 

Add: 

Provisions for pensions and for contingencies and expensac 
Amonisation of deferred charges 
Losses on intangible as-, tangible flxed utcts and long- 
term invcsflents 

Losses on transactions involving trmauy stock 
Prepaid corporate income tax 
Value adjusmcnts of hwury smok 
Exchange losses 

LUX 
Variation in al lormn~s for Axed a m  
Overprovision for contingencies and expensa 
Deferred corporation income tax 
Value adjustment to treasury stock 
Capital subsidiu transferred to income for the ywr 
Gains on disposal of intangible mls, tangible Cued assets 
and long-term investments 

Gains on disposal of treasury stock 
Other deferred revenues 
Exchange gains 

Funds obtained from opemtlons 

24. EXPLANATION ADDED FOR TRANSLATION TO ENGLISH 

These Annual Accounts are presented on the basis of accounting principles g e n d l y  accepted 
in Spain. Consequently, certain accounting practices applied by the Company may not 
conform with generally accepted accounting principles in other countries. 



ANEXO I 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION RELATED TO SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANLES OF THE IBERDROLA 
GENERACION SUBGROUP IN 2006 

- 
S- 
Iberdroia Gmeracih, S.AU. 
Fuerzas Electrim de Navarrq S.A 
Hidroelhica Wca, S.L 
Iberduero, S.L.U 
Navidul Cagcnmaci~ S.A. 
lberdmla Cogcocracih, S L  
Ener- Cartagem S.L. 
Emrgymrks ViUarroblcdo, S L  
Energyworlcr Aranda, S.L. 
Encrgyworkr Carballo, S.L. 
Encrgyworks San Mii6n, S L  
Enerwworfo Milagos, S.L 
Energyworh Fool, S L  
Encrgyworks M d n ,  S L  
Encrgyworfo Vit-Vall, S.L 
Iberdmla Operacido y l&nmmmm . . . SA.U. 
Energymrh Venezuela, SA. 
Centrals Nuclcares Almaraz - Trilb. A.I.E. 

Bilbw 
Navlnc 
Bilbao 
Bilbw 
Madrid 
Mamid 
Murcia 

Albacm 
Burgos 

La C o r ~ a  
L&l 
B"%- 
Huacs  
Huesca 
vitoria 
Madrid 

v-h 
Madrid 

Eaam 
EncrgV 
Eacrgy 
hngy 
EnergV 
Holding 
hergy 
Energy 
Energy 
Energy 
h w  
E=w' 
k w  
Energy 
EMgy 
Savim 
EmgY 
hQK+ 

3,7lS,098 
s o p s  
54,219 
4 3 5  
1.81 1 

37,337 
9,720 

30 
142 

1.095 
l,%l 
l l 5 0  
1.354 
3,177 
(560) 
6,267 
2,533 

Auditor 

EmJc a Yolng 
Ernst a Young 
Ernst & Young 

EnKu&Ynmg 
Emst & Young 
Emst & Young 
Ernst & Young 
Emst CYouug 
Jhsk&Yotmg 
Ernst & Young 
Emst & Young 
Em!3t&Young 
Emst & Young 
Ernst & Young 
Emst & Young 

Debiuc 







Company 

Ibcrdrola Energia Chik, Ltda 
maaguas, Ltda 
Empesa de Servieias Sanitarior de Los Lagos, S.A. 
Ener- do Brasil, Ltda 
Capuava Enasy, Ltda 
Eleceicidad dc V s a c n y  S.A. de C.V. 
Eleceicidad dc Vaaauz U, S.A. & C.V. 
Iberdrola h @ a  La Lapa,  S.A. & C.V. 
smicios de Operaci6n Abnim, S.A. de C.V. 
M o l a  Energla del Golfo, S A  de C.V. 
Gerti6n Empresas ElCetricaq S.A 
Iberdrola Enwgfa Tamam~~Me. S.A. de C.V. 
Snvicios dc Opcracib La lagma, S.A. de C.V. 
Parqw EEol6gicos de Mtxico, S.A. dc C.V. 
Ibndrola Savicios dc Capacitaciba, SA. 

l.ad00 

a u l e  
Chile 
m e  
Brazil 
Bnzil 

Mexico 
Mexico 
Mexico 
Mexico 
Mexico 

Clllatnnaln 
Mexico 
Mexico 
Mcxiw 
Mexico 

~ o f a a o s  
%ofOwmdip capwrrsaves 

oflbmlrola and translation 
Ena& SA.  d diEkmtccs at Rol%(loss) 

L i n c o f l n u i i  12.31.06 12.31.06 (a) fa lhe year (a) Auditat 

HoIdimg co. 
Holding m. 

Water 
Enasy 
Energy 
Ennsy 
E n w  
Energy 
Scrvicca 
Ennsy 
Savices 
Enersy 
savim 

Energy 

- 
PWC 

Emst a Y0lmg 
Emst&Younp 
Ernst&Yololg 
Emst&Yolmg 
Emd & Yomg 
Emst & Young 
Emst & Young 

Deloitte 
Emst & Young 
Emst & Yomg 
Ems1 & Young 
Emst & Yotmg 



Company 

~ --.- ~.-, 
Companhia dc Elmicidadc do Bmdo do Mi SA (a) 
Companhia Enagctiu do Rio OIMdc & Natc. S.A (a) 
Cornpanhi. dc Elmicidadc do Pa~mboco ,  SA (a) 
Tmnopcmambuco, S.A (a) 
Terrnoiw. S.A. (a) 
NC Enugia S u m  (a) 
rtapcbr G- dc E&& SA (a) 
Dismbuidorn EI&xim n. S A  
Emvrcsa ElCctrica de Oudcnnlr SA. 
G a l i d o r a  E I C R ~ ~ ~  dc G&&& SA 
Crcdiagy S.A 
Entrgiq S.A. 
Grupo Nmga.com 
Tmspnisla EICarica Cen , S h  
Ganu Propnties, Inc. 
Gas Natural Mtriw, S.A deC.V. 
S i i  dc Adminimaci6n y SeniebS SA & C.V. 
AlmBeWlaiey Mancjo dc Mnclialm EI&bi~oz S h  

Location 

Brazil 
Brazil 
Brazil 
Brazil 
Brazil 
Brazil 
Brazil 
Brazil 

Gutcmh 
OuatClMh 
Guatemala 
Ovsttmala 
Guatemala 
Guaimala 
Guatunala 

Brazil 
Maim 
M a i m  

Guatemala 
auatannla 

Brazil 
Brazil 
Brazil 
Brazil 

Ouatanala 

Line of busincs 

Hold' i  m. - Enagy 
Enam 
Enam 
Emrgy 
Energy 
Enagy 
Savica 
E = w  
Energy 
Enagy 
hagy 
Energy 
Enaw 

Telkamnmicatim 
Energy 
Finance 
Em@' 
h m w  
Servica 

Holding m. 
h a w  
h a g y  
Energy 

RcdEstatc 

Lkl* 
Dd* 
Dclomc 
Dcloiac 
Deloiac 
PWC 

Lkloiftc 
h a  & ~ a m g  
Emst & Young 
Emst & Young 
Em* & Young 
Emst & Young 

PWC 
Emsr&YomR - 

Lkloitlc 
PWC 
PWC 

(a) F o r u m y d e s n h a r e ~ ~ 1 1 c ( i  ~ i a f ~ a m n c y , e r p i t a l d ~ ~ s s ~ ~ b i s t o r i a l ~ ~ r a t c ~ h r m n m d l a s s a t  
the average archmge ndc forthe pu. T-lation di&rence, therefon, show the dIffamcc bdanen tk amamt calculated by applying these exchange cites and 
mat by applying the exchange rate prevailing at 3 1 Dccmba 2006. 



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION RELATED TO SUBSIDIARIlCS AND ASSOCUTED COMPANIES OF TEIE IBERDROLA 
ENERGW RENOVABLES SUBGROUP IN 2006 

Rmovables at reserves at Rofit (loss) 
m -011 Line o f b u s i i  12.31.06 12.31.06 fortheyear Auditor 

maQola Eaabia Rraovabks, SAU. 
lbamova R o m ~  SA.U. 
Ciencr, SAU. 
lbadmlaPnaglaRmovaMes&cdstina- 
La Maucha, SAU. 

Ibadrola Em@= Rraovables dc 
Galicia, S.A.U. 

Energia I Vfa, SA. 
Biovent Eaergi4 S.A. 
Miicemalcs del Tajo, SA. 
E6lieas de la Rioja, SA. 
lbcrdrola Enugh R W k s  & Aodhds, SAU. 
Ibcrdrola Encrglas Renovablu dc Ara- SAU. 
tbcrdmla Eaergfas Rcnonblcs de La Rioj4 SAU. 
Sociedad Gestora de P q e s  E 6 I ' i  Camp0 
de Gibraltar, S.A. 

Orcasc 
Barcelona 
V a k b I ' i  
hwrid 
La Rioja 
Sevilla 

La Rioja 

Emst & Y m g  
Emsc & Young 
Emst a Young 

Emst& Yolmg - 
Emst& Y0uU.g . 
Fmst'QYormg 
Emst&Yolmg 
Emst a Young 
Emst & Young 



I Bimwnt Hold i i  S.A. 
Sistrmas Emrgeticos Chwdrcxa, W U .  
Sistemas Energeticas Mas G d l o ,  SA. 
Sistcmas Emrgtticos La Muela, SA. 
Sismas Energtticos del Mmcdyo, SA. 
So om de Parques E6lim de biduc.Ia, SA. 
h g. b v a b i l i ,  SPA. 

h gia of UK Lhnitsd 
At k S A  
lb bbks, S.U. 
lbuuvra negcu- cnngicn, GMBH 
Encrgias Rcnov8wis do Bmil, Ltda 
Iberdrolaherg. Reoovaveis, SA. 
Ibcrdrola W g i a  Odmvidm Spo3h z 
ogra~inon Odpovicdzialnocecil 
C. Rokas, SA. (*) 
Aerocastilla, SA. 
Gcmmi6n &Enagia Eblica, SA. 
Vientos de Castilla y Leba, S.A. 
Ehlicas Fuente Isabel, SA. 

l b a h l a  
!hda¶ Ca~ital and 

Rmovaila la &at ~o6tooss)  
L m a h  L i a e o f b a p i  1231.06 12.31.06 for U I ~  year Auditor 

Valladolid 
Ormse 
-m 

Soria 
Mglaga 

Italy 
United 

Kingdom 
Portugal 
Fmcc 

Oamaml 
Brazil 

Porngal 

Ensm 
b w  
Energy 
b w  
Energy 
Energy 
Energy 

Fmcrgy 
h w  
Eo-w 
Energy 
EnergV 
Energy 

EnrstQYomg 
Emst& Young 
Emst & Y m g  
Emrt & Y m g  
EmstBYoung 
Emrt& Young - 
Ema& Young 
Emst& Young 
Emst & Y m g  - 
Ewt& Yamg 
Emst&Ymg 

Polad m 100.00 (165) (1212) - 
Grrecs m 49.90 81,153 9,819 FmxdtYoung 

VaUadolid Eaergy 51.00 1,358 (9) - 
Valladolid Eoagy 51.00 94 (9) - 
VaUadolid Energy 51.00 55 (1 1) 
Valladolid Energy 51.00 55 (10) * 



t 

ANEXO 1 

Ccmpeny - 
-deEiiagIae61ieqsA. 
Enagiar dc Cntilla y Lc6n, S.A. 
Enagla Global Castellanq SA. 
Viardcfmk E6lica. S.L. 
Eme Mlar Uw, S.L. 
Erne Mlar Tres, S.L 
Erne Huenqa Tm, S L  
Erne Fnreira Dos, S.L. 
Peache Encrgias Rcmvablcs, SA. 
Sisternas Enngetims Tmlba ,  SA. 
Global Solar Eoergy, S.A 
Producciones EnergtticaJ de Csdilla y Lebn, SA. 
Eeobarcial, S.A 
Fmne Eolim dc Buchfeldm. SARL 
Wmdfann W i  GMBH 
EBV Widpark 23, GMBH 
bstenber& GMBH 
Energla W~atrowa Km&a S.P. ZOO EWK 
lbadrola Renewable m u  Usa Limited 
Community Energy INC 
Elecm S i m  de Sm Pedro, SA. 
Sitema hc&tims Lob CrmpiUoa, SAU. 
Ousaihimg Raisner, AS. 
Iberdrola Energla hbrbm & Cedabria, S.A 
Parque E6liw CNZ del Camtsro, S.L. 
Parque Eblico Los Colladob, S.L. 
Parque E4lico F m t c  Salada, S.L. 
Motion W i d  Farm, L.L.C. 

Locatioa 

Vallsdolii 
Vdlsdoli 
ValladoIii 
Valladolid 

Seville 
Seville 
Seville 
Sevilk 
Burg- 

Zaragom 
Murcia 

Valladoli 
Zamm 
Frana 

&any - 
Germany 
Poland 
us 
US 
a m  

VaUadoIii 
Estonia 

Cautabria 
Valladolid 
Valladolid 
Valladolid 

EE.W 

L i i  of 
bwinws 

Eaagy 
Emrgy 
Enagy 
Energy 
Energy 
Energy 
Energy 
Emrgy 
Energy 
Energy 
Energy 
Energy 
b g Y  
Energy 
Energy 
Enmw 
Emrgy 
Energy 
Emrgy 
Energy 
FJ=gY 
Energy 
Energy 
Enrnw 
h w  
Energy 
Energy 
Energy 

Auditor 

Ems(&Yarmp 
Emst & Ynmg 

Emst & Y m g  
EnuI & youilg 
Ernst&Ynmg 
ErnStayamg 

Emst&Yonag 
EnuI & Yamg - 

- - 
- 

Ems(& Yomg 
Ema & Yolmg 

Ema&YOmg - - 



Tbolrsaadrofm 
%of ownasb'i of 

lbadmla 
Energh capitala 

Line of Renovablcs at rwems at Rotit(k) 
COnmw lmation business 12.31.06 12.31.06 for the year Auditor 

Eansialj Alogmachis, S.A. Gmxx mngY 100.00 3,984 (225) olhas 
Higher Danacm Moor Wmd Qaan L . i i  UK EnmW 100.00 03)  (34) 
Perfed Wid,  SAS Group Francm Energy 100.00 2,927 (1.225) O(ha 

Iberd. Regen. Enagicn V- OmbH - -a 100.00 25 (2) - 
Widpark Julicher Land G=-mw 100.00 25 3 - 
EC Encrgoconsult ManMcaog&ti, I.E.K. H Q W V  Emrsy 100.00 32 (83) - 
Somozas Eoerglsr y Raunos Mcdicmmb'eks 
(SOERMASA), SA. La- E=B' 100.00 1 - 

['ED COMPAMES 

Mlicas de EusW, S.A. vizclya E-'W 50.00 27,695 11,199 Aacsl 
Desarrollo de Energias Rcrmables de 
La Rioja, S.A. 
Eaugias RenovabIes de la Regib de Mum& SA. 
Molioas dcl Cidscos, S.A. 
Sotavento Galicia, S.A. 
Molmos de La Rioja, S A  
E6licas de Campollauo, S.k 
Saltos de Bclmontejo, S.A. 
Energias Mlicas de Cuenca, SA. 
E l m  dc Malvana, SA. 
Electra de Montachez, SA. 
Sistema El&wico dc Con& HmCja, S L  
Elktra dc Layiq S.A. 

La Rioja 
Mmia  
La Rioja 
OreDss 

La Rioja 
Madrid 
Cucnca 
cuenca 
cxcem 
CBcens 
Granada 

Valladolid 

pmgy 
Energy 
k w  
Emrsy 
-w 
EnnEy 

Enam 
brrgy 
Enrrgy 
h a w  

EmstaYormg 
Emst a young 
Emst a young 
Ernst & Yomg 
Ernst a Young 

KPMG 
Emstayoung 
Emst a young - - - 

- 



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION RELATED TO SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES OF THE IBERDROLA 
INGENJER~A Y CONSULTOR~A SUBGROUP IN 2006 

oma?.hipof Clpiald 
Ibaincoa rtsovesat Pmiit(loss) 

comPny M o n  Lineo f tus i i  12.31.06 12.31.06 faheyear Auditor 

madrollhpnierh y Caosrmecii S.A.U. 
lbudmla Irymiala y Coasuhoria Savicim, S.A.U. 
lbadrola Consultoria e S m i w  do Brasil, Ltdr 
lbcrdmla lwnkrla y Corn- Mtxico, S.A. dc CV.Oroup 
Enem611 SA.  de CV 
Sublin 2 S.A. 
lberdrola Eogiaeaiag and casmdon Poland, sp 
Iberdrola Ingeniufa y Chstnwi6n Vmrmcla, S.A 
I b w  Hellas Tdmiki kai ai- EPE 
Ibcrdrola En* and consm&m Gumany GMBH 
lberdrola Engincaing and Gms~ UK, 
lberdrola lnzhiiiring I Smiteistvo LLC 

Ghwa I n g m k h  y Tecaologla, S.A. (7 
Ksyacb S i i  IntegaIQ, S.A. 
Empmwbs A@- Intemacid S A  
Empmios  A m o s ,  A.I.E. 

Vizcayl 
Madrid 
Bradl 

Mcxjoo 
Mexiffl 
Mexico 
Pol& 

Venezuela 
Gmia 

Alemania 
UK 

Russia 

Emn&Yolmg 
Errm&Yormg 
Embt & Young 
Emst&Young 
Emst&Young 
Emst & Young - 

- 
- 
- 

Madrid Savices 41.18 19.907 2,451 EmstBYomg 
Madrid Scrviccs 37.00 583 - EmstOYollng 
MsQid Savica 25.46 3393 211 EmPt&Yolmg 
Madrid W m  25.46 750 - Emst&Young 



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION RELATED TO SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES OF THE IBERDROLA - 
ANSELMO LEON SUBGROUP IN 2006 

'IbaramQofmrOs 
K of 

ownushipof capitdluld 
AmrcImow -at RoIit(laas) 

-Pam, Location L i n e o f b o s i  at12.31.06 12.31.06 fortheyear Auditor 

Amrclmo Le6n, S.A. VdhdoI'i Holding 100.00 1.88S 1.819 
Anselmo Le6n Dis!rhci6n S.L Valladolid E-'B' 100.00 5,453 2257 Erm(&Yonng 
Anselmo Le6n Hiddulicq S.L. Valladolid Enagy 100.00 1,503 499 - 

LTED COMPANIES 
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ANEXO I 

ONAL INFORMATION RELATED TO SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES OF THE IBERDROLA - 
IBERDROLA 1NMOBIL.IARIA SUBGROUP IN 2006 

Thousaadsofeclms 
% of 

oamaship of 
lbadrola Capital and 

lmnobiliarialt reavcsd Ro6t(lom) 
-Y Loatioa tiaeofbusiimss 1231.06 1231.06 forthem Auditor 

l b h l a  I m w b i i i  S.AU. 
F i q  S.A 
Prnwulra La CsQU.na dc Burps, SA. 
Romocians Iamobiliariff Renfapex 2000, S A  
K l i t  XXI 22.000, S.L. 
New K l i i  T*o 2001, S L  
Villavade Pmmotm C&abro Lmnesr, S L  
Gedapex, SA. 
h i c  Center, S.L. 
Norapex, S.A. 
Las Pedrazas GolC, S.L. 
U r b a n i i m  Marhy dc COPE, SL 
Iberdrola Inmobiliaria Catahmya, SAU. Sobgoop 
1berd.-Ros, S.L. 

Nova Caia Vilajoyo~q SA 
Cuo.mtcGolf, S.A. 

Madrid 
Madrid 
Madrid 
Madrid 
Madrid 
Madrid 
Madrid 
Madrid 

Valacia 
Madrid 
Madrid 
Madrid 

Barcelona 
Valencia 

Reel EsePtc 
Real Estate 
Rcal Estate 
Real Estate 
Real Estate 
Real Estate 
Real Estate 
Real Estate 
Rcal Estate 
Real Estate 
Real Estate 
Rcal Estate 
Real Estate 
Real Estate 

PWC 
PWC 
PWC 
KPMG 
Deloiue 
PWC 
PWC 

DeloiaC 
PWC 
PWC 

Dcloira 
PWC 
PWC 

Mdrid RcalEscaae 25.00 1.218 (12) , , 

Madrid Rcal Estate 26.00 l7.953 (30) ' Dcloittc 



ONAL INFORMATION RELATED TO SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANlE3 OF TEE IBERDROLA - 
IBERDROLA PORTUGALEL-CIDAD E GAS SUBGROUP IN 2006 

OwDCf36~ of wtal d 
Poaugala r*lencsa Rofa(loa) 

Compmy Location Line of bosincss 12.31.06 12.31.06 fortheyear A u d i i  

lberdmla Portugal Ekmicidad e Gas. SA. L i s h  EaagY lOOaO 872,481 18.859 EmJt&Yamg 
lbcrdrola Participyocs SGPS. SA. L i s b  Holding 100.00 1,344376 20,670 EmstdYamg 



ADDITIONAL MPORMATION RELATED TO SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES OF THE IBERDROLA - 
AMARA SUBGROUP IN 2006 

o f m a t '  r k a t  R~MO~JJ)  
Company Location Line of b u s ! !  12.31.06 1231.06 fortheyear Auditor 

Armrq SAU. 
Aman Braril Ltda. 
Amagy S.A. dc cv 
Amcrgy Savicios SA de CV 
Ergyccchh 
Amara Pormgd S A  

Madrid %Pb 100.00 19900 4.583 PWC 
Stlndor de Bahia S W ~  99.99 1,175 290 PWC 
M- m b  100.00 546 136 PWC 
M0-T Scrvif*r 100.00 9 4 PWC 
Houstoa @ 100.00 130 36 PWC 
Libon S W l Y  80.00 480 (52) PWC 

SalMdordeBahla %'Ply 30.00 (3.1 15) PWC 
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1 BUSINESS EVOLUTION 

IBERDROLA, S.A., individually considered, is a holding company only engaged 
in the retailing of electricity and gas to eligible customers which results come 
from this activity and from the individuals received from its subsidiaries. 
Therefore, the following information is basically referred to IBERDROLA Group. 

2 SIGNIFICANT FACTS FROM FISCAL YEAR 2006 

2.1 Kcv mrformance indicators 

In 2006, IBERDROLA reached a new record in the G~oup's production, which 
grew 10.8% to 91,991 GWh, driven by more environmentally-efficient 
technologies. Furthermore, this increased growth in production was achieved 
while reducing C02 emissions by 7.5%. In Spain, emissions decreased by 12.4%, 
with emission-he production of 65.8% out of a total of 68,348 GWh produced. 

A 49.2% increase in hydroetectric production, with 80.A availability in 
Spain, while wind production grew 13.2%, to 7.329 GWb (705 GWh 
international). 

Nuclear power stations have provided high availability, even taking into 
account the recharging periods, comsponding to an 8.7% increase in 
production over 2005. 

Combined-cycle production increased by 15.8%, while production through 
more contaminating sources of energy w a s  reduced, -26.7% for coal and 
-42.4% for fuel-oil. 

2.2 Financial resources 

As result of the active refinancing policy pursued by IBERDROLA, the average 
age of its debt continues to be around 5 years. Especially significant is the 
reduction in financial costs that the Company has achieved throughout the fiscal 
year, 4.41% as of December 2006, which is 14 basis points lower than December 
2005, despite rising interest rates. 

In this sense, it should be noted that on 15 December 2006, Ibcrdmla, together 
with Uni6n Fenosa and Hidrocantiibrico, assigned the right recognized in RD 
80912006, of June 30, corresponding to the revenue deficit from payments for 
regulated activities from the year 2005. The amount of the right, which was 
assigned to a group of international banks, was EUR 2,055 million, EUR 1,334 
million of which corresponded to Iberdrola. 



As to Regulation, the most noteworthy aspects of the regulatory framework in 
which the company operated during 2006 wen: 

2006 Rate: increased 4.48% on average over 2005. In July, a Royal Decree 
was published which revised the 2006 rates, producing an increase of 
1.38% beginning on July 1. 

Rate shortfall: then was a new rate shortfall in 2006, with a recovery 
against the rate for future years being recognized by the Government. 

Bilateralization: Royal b e - L a w  312006, of February 24, provided that 
energy acquired and sold on the wholesale market by companies within 
the same business group must be included in physical bilateral contracts. 
For purposes of recognizing the costs for purchasing energy from 
distribution companies, the energy subject to inclusion would be 
provisionally recognized at a price set at 42.35 eumslMWh. much below 
existing market prices during such times. 

Mibel: Orden ITC/2129/2006, of June 30, provided that distributors must 
acquire 5% of their energy requirements on the futures market, managed 
on the Portuguese side by MIBEL, during the second half of 2006. With 
Order ITC/3990/2006, of December 28, this percentage has increased to 
10% for requirements as from the first half of 2007. 

Looking to 2007, various regulatory developments have o c c d  that entail an 
advance towards the complete liberalization of the industry: 

The principle of rate sufficiency is recognized through the "ex-ante" 
acknowledgment of the shortfall, with additive rate methodology. 

w Quarterly revisions arc expected beginning on July 1. 

All references to the CTCs and the results thereof on rates disappear. 

An increase in compensation for distribution, with a special injection of 
funds into the activity equal to EUR 500 million, of which 31.75% 
corresponds to IBERDROLA. 

The generation price reference that is used is consistent with market 
values. 

The use of the real price of energy, together with a reduction in the access 
rates that caused shortfall (recognized ex-ante), will strengthen retailing. 



2.4 Main activities to carw out the Stnteeic Plan in 2006 

In 2006, IBERDROLA placed into operation 2,593 MW of additional capacity 
over the capacity existing in December 2005, reaching 30,384 MW of total 
installed capacity. The additions mainly correspond to: 

Combined cycles, with the start-up of Altamira V in Mexico (1,121 MW) 
and Escombreras (800 MW) in Spain. 

Renewable Energy, with the addition of 624 MW during the fiscal year. 

Thus, as of December 2006, IBERDROLA reached the installed capacity targets 
set at the commencement of the 2001-2006. Strategic Plan, after increasing 
installed capacity by 83% over the capacity it had at the beginning thereof 
(approximately 16,600 MW). Equilibrium has also been achieved in the mix that 
was sought: The new combined cycles already have a production similar to 
hydroelectric facilities, and renewable energy has increased its weight by 12% to 
reach 15% of the total. Furthermore, the weight of more contaminating 
technologies has been reduced. 

2.4.1 Combined Cvcle Power Stations (Swain) 

At the end of 2006, Ibcrdmla's total capacity at combined cycle p o w  statiom in 
Spain was 4,800 MW (5,600 MW under management), comsponding to 9 power 
stations. Thus, Iberdrola surpassed by 800 MW the initial target of the 2001-2006 
Strategic Plan, having 4,000 MW of combined cycles installed in our corntry at 
the end thereof. 

In 2006, the Company placed into service the Escombreras combined cycle plant 
(800 MW), in Cartagena (Murcia), the ninth plant that it has built in Spain since 
the entry into effect of the 2001-2006 Strategic Plan. This past August 11, the 
plant achieved base charge, commencing commercial operation thereof on 
November 20, and contributing to results as from the fourth quarter of the fiscal 
year. 

2.43 Hvdroelcetric and MinbHvdroelectric E n e m  

An additional 624 MW (607 hydroelectric and 17 mini-hydroelectric) were 
installed in 2006. Of this total, 420 MW correspond to Spain and 204 MW to 
other countries. With this contribution, as of the close of 2006. IBERDROLA had 
an installed capacity of 4,434 MW (4,102 MW hydroelectric and 332 MW mini- 
hydroelectric), 16.4% above the capacity existing at the close of 2005, and 434 
MW (1 1%) above the target set in the 2001-2006 Strategic Plan, which confirms 
the Company's position as a world leader in this business. 

The renewable energy facilities of IBERDROLA are present in thirteen Spanish 
autonomous communities and seven foreign countries (the United States, Poland. 
Brazil, France, Portugal, Germany and Greece). 



2.43 Latin America 

Total production in Latin America reached 23,643 GWh, 4,216 GWh more than in 
2005 (+21.7%), of which 20,327 GWh correspond to Mexico and 3.316 to South 
America. 

In Mexico, IBERDROLA has confirmed its position as the leading private 
producer of electricity. The Company already has more than 3,815 MW of 
installed capacity in this country. The 1,121 MW Altamira V combined cycle 
plant entered into operation during the fourth quarter of 2006, and the testing 
period commenced for the Tamazunchale power station in the Mexican state of 
San Luis Potosi, the largest combined cycle power station to be placed in 
operation in Mexico, with an installed capacity of 1,135 MW. 

In Brazil, during 2006, Neomergia (39%-owned by Iberdrola) was awarded the 
concessions to build, maintain and operate the Baguari hydroelectric power 
station and the Nova Aurora and Goiandira mini-hydroelectric power stations, 
which total 188 MW of installed capacity. 

As regards wind energy, in 2006, IBERDROLA finished the installation and start- 
up of the 49.30 MW Rio do Fogo wind fann in Brazil, and has begun 
developments in the State of Oaxaca in Mexico, which total up to 150 MW of 
capacity. 

In Greece. IBERDROLA is a strateeic Dartner of Rokas. the main mmoter and 
operator of wind farms, in which it a'49.9% interest, A d  has 2 1 6 ~ ~  of wind 
energy in operation. During the third quarter of the year, IBERDROLA acquired 
from-~oto' Oil Hellas 70% of ~orintdos Power, a dreek company with a license 
to participate in the auctions for new combined cycle capacity begun by the 
Government of such country. 

In Portugal, Ibcrdrola has 18 MW of wind energy in operation, corresponding to 
the Catefica wind farm. In addition, it has already installed the fvst 14 MW of the 
Alto Monqao wind fann. IBERDROLA also has 140 MW of advanced projects. 
Furthermore, IBERDROLA has received the approval of the Direc~Ho Geral de 
Energia lusa to build the first gas combined cycle plant in Portugual, in the 
municipality of Figueira da Foz, located between Lisbon and Opo~to (850 MW). 

In Latvia, IBERDROLA was awarded the construction, as well as the supervision 
of the operation and maintenance for 12 years, of a combined cycle plant with 420 
MW of installed capacity in Riga (Latvia). 

IBERDROLA has several projects in other countries within the E.U., such as 
Germany, Poland, France, Italy and the United Kingdom, mainly in the area of 
wind energy. 



2.4.5 United States 

IBERDROLA, which has waged on internationalization as one of its pillars of 
growth, considers the U.S. wind farm market to be key. In fact, it has become one 
of the most important markets for the development of IBERDROLA's objectives 
in the area of renewable energy. 

In 2006, IBERDROLA acquired 100% of Community Energy (CEI) for 30 
million dollars, and 100% of the companies MREC Parlners and its subsidiary 
Midwest Renewable Energy Projects, for more than 30 million euros. 

In all, IBERDROLA has 26 MW in operation and a portfolio of projects of more 
than 5,000 MW, which it plans to continue to grow, and already has a permanent 
office in the State of Pennsylvania. 

At the close of 2006, IBERDROLA had 9.9 million users in Spain, and the 
average total energy distributed on the network reached 99,520 GWh, an increase 
of 3.3% over the prior fiscal year. 82.2% of the energy was distributed to the 
Regulated market. 

Regarding supply quality, the ICEIT due to incidents in IBERDROLA's 
Distribution network was. 1.96 hours during 2006. This value signifies an 
availability of 99.98%. Iberdrola is thus in a leadership position in service quality, 
meeting the commitment made in its 2001-2006 Strategic Plan 

In Latin America, as of the end of 2006, IBERDROLA surpassed 8.5 million 
managed users in the region, and distributed energy reached 27,662 GWb, an 
increase of 4.0% over the prior fiscal year. 

2.4.7 Gar Suvvly 

IBERDROLA became the second-largest supplier of gas in Spain during 2006, 
supplying 15% of all gas consumed in the deregulated market. Furthermore, 
IBERDROLA ended this period with a global supply portfolio of more than 16 
bcm annually, of which 7 bcma cover its supply needs in Spain and almost 9 bcma 
do so in Mexico and Brazil. 

In 2006, the Company received a total of 101 shipments of liquefied natural gas 
(LNG) in LNG tankers, which unload at all regasification plants currently 
operating in Spain: Bilbao, Huelva and Sagunto. 



2.5 Com~liance with the 2001-2006 Strateeic Plan and launch of the 2007-2009 
Strateeic Plan 

IBERDROLA has achieved several of the targets set forth in the Plan ahead of 
schedule, with growth based on the basic business: 

w It as doubled its size, increasing its installed capacity by 83%, to 30,384 
MW, and its production by 80%, to 91,991 GWh, as compared to 
December 2000. 

It has also doubled its income, reaching Net Income of EUR 1,660.3 
million, as compared to its target of EUR 1,600 million. 

After successfully completing the 2001-2006 Strategic Plan, 
IBERDROLA is looking to a future of organic growth through the 2007- 
2009 Strategic Plan, and non-organic growth through the merger 
agreement reached with ScottishPower on 27 November 2006, when the 
Board of Directors of IBERDROLA and ScottishPowm reached an 
agreement regarding the terms of an offer by IBERDROLA for all of the 
capital stock of Scottish Power. 

3 PRMCIPAL RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE BUSITVESS A-S 
OF THE IBERDROLA GROUP 

3.1 Financial risk manaeement oolity 

Under the General Risk Policy, which was approved in November 2004 by the 
Board of Directors of IBERDROLA, the Group undertakes to use its capabilities 
to the full in order to ensure that all the significant risks of all kinds are adequately 
identified, measured, managed and controlled, applying the following "basic 
action guidelines": 

Incorporation of the risk-opprtunity approach into the Group's 
management. 

Separation, at operating level, of fiylctions between the risk-taking m a s  
and the areas responsible for analysing, controlling and supervising the 
risks. 

Assurance of short- and long-tmn business and financial stability. 
maintaining an appropriate balance between risk, value and benefit. 

Correct use of financial risk hedging instruments and their recognition in 
accordance with the applicable accounting and financial standards. 

Transparency in reporting on the Group's risks and the functioning of the 
systems developed to control them. 



Development of a risk-opportunity control and management culture within 
the IBERDROLA Group. 

Bring into line with general policy all the specific risk-related policics that 
have to be implemented. 

Compliance with cumnt regulations and legislation in relation to risk 
control, management and oversight. 

Continuous improvement on the basis of international best practices in 
Transparency and Gocd Corporate Oovernance in relation to risk control, 
management and oversight. 

In order to implement this policy and respect these principles, IBERDROLA has 
developed an Integral Risk Control and Management System based on a suitable 
definition, separation and assignment of functions and responsibilities, and of the 
required procedures, methodologies and support tools. 

The System, which in November 2005 received quality cxtification from 
AENOR under the IS0 9001:2000 standard, is based on thrcc fundamental 
wmmtones: 

A risk policy and limit structwe, developed in 2005, that guarantees that 
risks are managed by the businesses in a controlled fashion. 

* Monitoring and control of the risks in the income statement. 

Analysis and control of risks associated with new investments. 

In this context, IBERDROLA has certain risk policies and limits appmved by the 
Operating Committee that cover, among others, the following risks: 

3.2 Financial Risks 

3.2.1 Interest rate risk 

S e v d  items in the balance sheet and the associated financial derivatives bear 
interest at fixed rates and, thenfore, are exposed to fair value interest rate risk as a 
result of changes in market interest rates. Also, the IBERDROLA Group is 
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in respect of items in the balance sheet and 
derivatives that bear interest at floating rates. 

IBERDROLA mitigates this risk by managing the proportion of its debt that bears 
fixed interest to that which bears floating interest on the basis of the situation of 
the markets, through new sources of financing and the use of interest rate 
derivatives, all within the approved risk limits. 



3.2.2 Foreien currmw risk 

Fluctuations in the value of the cumncies in which borrowings are instrumented 
and purchases and sales are made with respect to the presentation currency may 
have an adverse effect on the finance costs and profit for the year. 

The following items could be affected by foreign c m n c y  risk: 

Debt denominated in currencies other than the local or functional cwrency 
arranged by the IBERDROLA Group companies. 

Collections and payments for supplies, services or investments in 
currencies other than the functional currency. 

Income and expenses of certain foreig 
other than the functional currency. 

p subsidi aries indexed to currencies 

Taxes derived from the accounting tor tax purposes in local'cumncies 
other than the functional cumncy. 

Pmfit or loss on consolidation of the foreign subsidiaries. 

Consolidated canying amount of investments in foreign subsidiaries. 

IBERDROLA reduces this risk by ensuring that all its economic flows are 
denominated in the presentation currency of each Group company, pmvided that 
this is possible and economically practicable. The resulting open positions are 
integrated and managed through the use of derivatives, within the approved limits. 

3.23 Liauiditv risk 

Exposure to adverse situations in the debt or capital markets can hinder or prevent 
the IBERDROLA Group from obtaining the financing requircd to properly carry 
on its business activities and implement its Strategic Plan. 

IBERDROLA's liquidity policy ensures that it can meet its payment obligations 
without having to obtain financing under unfavourable t m s .  For this purpose, it 
uses various management measures such as the arrangement of committed credit 
facilities of sufficient amount and flexibility, diversification of the coverage of 
financing needs through access to different markets and geographical areas, and 
diversification of the maturities of the debt issued. 

IBERDROLA Group is exposed to the credit risk arising from the default of a 
wuntcrparty (customer, supplier, shareholder or financial institution) which could 
have an impact in results. This risk is not very significant, as a consequence of 
the short customers'average collection period and the effect of risks policies in 
relation to the time limit on open positions and the creditworthiness of the counter 
parties. 



In particular, in the case of financial creditor positions, IBERDROLA follows a 
p ~ d e n t  policy of arranging derivatives and placing cash slupluses with highly 
solvent counterpar(ies based on the credit ratings of Moody's and SBP. 

33.1 Business and market risks 

The business activities of the IBERDROLA Grou~ are subiect to various business . - - 

risks, such as changes in demand, water availability, wind availability, and other 
climatological conditions, as well as various market risks, such as the price of fuel 
used for the generation of electric power, the price of do2 emission rights, and 
the wholesale price of electricity. 

In the case of the Spanish market, where IBERDROLA carries out its main 
business activities, the cumnt mix of generation facilities provides significant 
natural coverage among various production technologies that allows for the 
mitigation of these risks. 

The remaining risk from fluctuations in the products to which fuel is indexed and 
from exchange rates is mitigated through an appropriate diversification and 
management of supply contracts that contemplate: 

The indexation of prices, to the extent possible, to indexes that replicate 
changes in income occurring on the demand side (supply and generation 
markets). 

The inclusion of clauses to revise and re-open contracts that allow for the 
adjustment of prices to changes in the market. 

Finally, hedging transactions an performed whenever deemed necessary to 
maintain the risk within established limits. 

In the case of the Mexican market, the Group does not have a significant risk of 
regarding the price of commodities, as the main contracts are prepared in the form 
of "pass-through" agreements. 

Likewise, in the case of electricity trading transactions performed by 
IBERDROLA in the international markets, there is little risk due to the limited 
volume of such transactions and to the limits established for open positions, as 
regards both financial amount and time horizon. 



3.3.2 Reeulatorv risks 

The companies of the IBERDROLA Group are subject to a complex framework 
of laws and regulations regarding rates and other aspects of its activities in Spain 
and in each of the countries in which they operate. The introduction of new laws I 
regulations or modifications to existing ones might negatively affect activities, 
financial position and results of operations. 

Due to its importance at the level of the IBERDROLA Group, the rate imbalance 
or shortfall that occurs when the cost of electricity production estimated in the 
Rate Decree does not coincide with the actual cost existing during the fiscal year 
should be highlighted. 

Royal Decree 1634/2006, by which the electricity rate is established beginning on 
1 January, 2007, has guaranteed the recovery of the income shortfall arising 
during fiscal year 2006, regardless of future sales, just as occumd with the 
shortfall for fiscal year 2005. Therefore, the heading "Commercial debtors and 
other non-current accounts receivable" of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of 3 1 
December 2006 includes an amount of EUR 579,670 thousand corresponding to 
the best estimate of the income shortfall corresponding to IBERDROLA, once a 
deduction has been made for emission rights as described in the notes to the 
financial statements, and assuming the maintenance of the 35.01%. 

The risk policies promote continuous analysis and monitoring of regulatory 
changes, as well as the making of decisions based on reasonable regulatory 
hypothesis, at both the domestic and international levels. 

3.3.3 O~erational  risks 

During the operation of all of the IBERDROLA Group's activities, thm may be 
direct or indirect losses caused by inadequate internal processes, technological 
failures, human errors or a a result of certain external events. 

In particular, in the distribution business, these risks might cause supply cuts and, 
generally, a deterioration in the levels of required quality of supply, which can 
lead to claims and administrative penalties, with a corresponding financial and 
reputational impact. 

IBERDROLA mitigates these risks by making the required mVestments, afilying 
operating and maintenance procedures and programs, supported by quality 
systems, and planning appropriate personnel training and qualification programs 
and an appropriate insurance policy. 

33.4 Environmental risks 

The activities of the IBERDROLA Group are subject to risks relating to the extent 
of broad ~ l e s  and regulations that require the performance of environmental 
studies and the procurement of licenses and permits with environmental 
conditions, as well as risk associated with fees and other market instruments of an 
environmental nature - such as greenhouse gas emission rights. 



In addition, t h m  are other environmental risks inherent in the activities of the 
Group arising from the management of waste, effluents, emissions and soil at its 
facilities and that affect biodiversity, and that may give rise to claims for 
damages, sanction proceedings and damages to its image and reputation. 

Due to its future relevancy, the appmval at the end of 2006 of Royal Decree 
1370/2006, of November 24, should be highlighted, which approved the 
assignment to the electricity sector of an annual average of 54,053 million free 
greenhouse gas emission rights, approximately 39% less than the amount assigned 
for the 200512007 period. The allocation detailed for facilities will be known in 
the coming months. Actual emissions will depend upon electricity demand, 
climate conditions and the COZ and fuel market situation, and the Group's results 
will be affected by the difference between the amount of free rights that arc 
allocated and actual emissions, takiig into account the price of the rights on the 
market and the provisions of electricity regulation in this regard. 

The risk policies contemplate environmental risks in order to mitigate them, 
fostering the implementation of environmental management systems within the 
area of the Company's production and distribution facilties, and permanent 
cooperation with the affected regulatory entities and agents. 

33.5 Risks re la tin^ to new investments 

All new investments are subject to various market, credit, business, regulatory, 
business, operational and other risk., that may compromise the profitability 
objectives of the project. 

Noteworthy risks during the investment execution stage, due to the importance 
and complexity thereof, arc those relating to the construction of new generation 
facilities, mainly combined cycles and wind farms, which might require the 
procurement of governmental permits and authorizations, the acquisition of land 
or signing of lease agreements, the signing of equipment supply, construction 
services, operation and maintenance, fuel supply and transportation agreements, 
consumption agreements and financing agreements, all of which may cause delays 
and lead to increased costs. 

The risk policies relating to the new investments contemplate all of these risks and 
establish specific limits regarding forecasted profitability and the expected 
profitability at risk, which must be complied with in order for a project to be 
authorized. Furthermore, there are specific procedures for the approval of 
significant investments, that require the prior preparation of an investment dossier 
with a corresponding risk analysis. 



33.6 Risks associated with international activities 

All international activities of the IBERDROLA Group an exposed, to a greater or 
lesser extent and based on the nature thereof, to the above-mentioned risks 
(climatological, demand, regulation, fuel and energy prices, environment, etc.) 
and also to other kinds of risks inherent to the country in which its activities are 
being carried out. 

4 Environment 

IBERDROLA maintains a high score in the envimnmental dimension, according 
to SAM, the analyst for the Dow Jones Sustainability Index (DJSI). The analysis 
of environmental dimension for this index includes the following headings: 
environmental policy and management, environmental results (eco-efficiency), 
environmental information, advanced environmental management system, 
advanced environmental results, climate strategy, infrastructure projects, 
electricity generation, transportation and distribution, and biodiversity. 

The Company is in a leading position among companies within its industry in 
Climate Strategy, according to the rating of the analyst for the Dow Jones 
Sustainability Index, with a grade of 92 out of 100. Furthermore, it has been 
selected, for the second year in a row, as "Bat in Class" in the industry at the 
global level for its strategy with respect to Climate Change, forming part of the 
"Climate Leadership Index." The strategy, based on significant development of 
renewable energy and natural gas combined cycle power plants, has given rise to a 
balanced production structure, which allows the Company to maintain itself 
among the large European companies with lower C02 emissions per kwh output. 

IBERDROLA has become the leading Spanish electricity multinational that 
implements a Global Environmental Management System throughout its 
organizational structure, which system has been certified by the Asociaci6n 
Espaiiola de Normalizaci6n y Certificaci6n [Spanish Standardization and 
Certification Association] (AENOR). 

This system, the application of which has been made possible after more than two 
years of work in all corporate and business areas of the Company, will allow for a 
reduction of environmental risks, improving the management of resources and 
optimizing investments and costs. 

5 Research and develo~ment activities 

IBERDROLA's Innovation Policy is focused on increasingly efficient 
management of available resources, while at the same time ensuring that the most 
suitable technologies are introduced at a fast pace. Furthermore, the Company 
believes that innovation is a key element for sustainable development. Under 
these premises, and as a part of its commitment to innovation, the 2007-2009 
Strategic Plan has identified activities entailing an investment in this concept in 
the amount of EUR 200 million. 



In order to reinforce this strategy, a strong push was given in 2006 to innovation 
management, by doubling resources and commencing a series of initiatives, the 
following of which are most noteworthy: 

The introduction of Ibermhtica's Capital Innovation Model w e l o  
Capital Innovaci6nI as a key tool that will allow for the measurement and 
development of IBERDROLA's capacity for change and adjustment in the 
face of new circumstances in the market and the environment. 

The development of the R&D&i committees of the various businesses, the 
principal mission of which is to manage the innovation process from a 
perspective that is closer thento. 

The starl-up of IBERDROLA's Innovation Network de Innovaci6n], 
as a forum for the development of intense activity in technological 
monitoring, the promotion of projects, and the exchange of knowled8e. 

The commencement of the certification process for the R&D&i 
management system according to the UNE 166.000 set of nonns. 

The application of the Innovation Reference Framework within a pilot 
project in which companies such as Siemens, IBM and 3M have 
participated. 

The identification of 15 areas of knowledge, diicted by IBERDROLA's 
specialized technicians, that fonn the base of the Company's knowledge 
management system. 

In 2006, IBERDROLA developed 131 R&D&i projects, of which 35 were new 
initiatives. The total investment in the Company's innovation activities reached 56 
million curos, an increase of 4% over 2005. 



6 Treasurv Shares and ca~ i ta l  reduction 

The shaho lden  acting at the General Shareholders Meeting held on 30 March 
2006 authorized the Board of Directors, pursuant to Section 75 of the Spanish 
Corporations Law, to acquire shares of the Company under certain conditions and 
for a period of 18 months. Pursuant to such authorization, during 2006, 
IBERDROLA, S.A. has acquired 8,270,501 shares of its own stock for EUR 228 
million, with a par value of EUR 25 million. Furthermore, 8,284,425 treasury 
shares have been disposed of for an amount of EUR 227 million. 

The amount resulting from the transfers of the Company's treasury stock during 
fiscal year 2006 is greater than the cost of acquisition at which the Group had 
recorded for such treasury stock, at EUR 689 thousand. 

Finally, it should be pointed out that as of the close of fiscd year 2006, thm were 
95,613 shares of treasury stock, and there were derivatives outstanding on 
4,725,992 treasury shares. 



PROFIT DISTRIBUTION PROPOSAL 

YEAR 2006 

Distribution basis: 

Retained earnings 

2006 Profit 

Distribution: 

To dividends 

To retained earnings (minimun amount) 
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Glossary of Energy East Companies 



Abbreviations for the Energy East companies mentioned in this report: 

Berkshire Energy Berkshire Energy Resources is 
the parent of The Berkshire Gas Company. 

Berkshire Gas The Berkshire Gas Company is a 
regulated utility primarily engaged in the distribution 
of natural gas in westem Massachusetts. 

Cayuga Energy Cayuga Energy, Inc. owns 
interests in electric generation facilities that sell 
power in the NYlSO and PJM Interconnection 
wholesale markets at times of high demand. 

CMP Central Maine Power Company is a 
regulated utility primarily engaged in transmitting 
and distributing electricity generated by others to 
retail customers in Maine. 

CMP Group CMP Group. Inc. is the parent of 
Central Maine Power Company (CMP). 

CNE Connecticut Energy Corporation is the 
parent of The Southem Connecticut Gas 
Company (SCG). 

CNG Connecticut Natural Gas Corporation is a 
regulated u t i l i  primarily engaged in the retail 
distribution of natural gas in Connecticut. 

RG&E Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 
is a regulated utility primarily engaged in 
generating, purchasing and delivering electricity 
and purchasing and delivering natural gas in an 
area centered around the city of Rochester, 
New York. 

RGS Energy RGS Energy Group, Inc. is the 
parent of NYSEG and RG&E. 

SCG The Southem Connecticut Gas Company 
is a regulated utility primarily engaged in the 
retail distribution of natural gas in Connecticut. 

SGF South Glens Falls Energy. LLC operated a 
natural gas fired generating unit In New York. 

TEN Cos. TEN Companies, Inc. owns and 
manages a district heating and cooling network 
in Hartford. Connecticut. 

The Energy Network The Energy Network, 
Inc. owns and manages our non- 
regulated businesses. 

CTG Resources CTG Resources, Inc. is the 
parent of Connecticut Natural Gas 
Corporation (CNG). 

Energetix Energetii, I ~c .  markets electric and 
natural gas services in upstate New York. 

Energy East, the company, we, our or us 
Enerav East Comoration is the Darent comDanv of . . 
~ ~ s - ~ n e r ~ y  ~roup.  Inc., ~onnecticut Energy 
Corporation, CMP Group, CTG Resources, 
Berkshire Energy Resources, The Energy 
Network, Inc. and Energy East Enterprises, Inc. 

MNG Maine Natural Gas Corporation is a small 
natural gas delivery company in the state of Maine. 

NYSEG New York State Electric 8 Gas 
Corporation is a regulated utility primarily 
engaged in purchasing and delivering electricity 
and natural gas in the central, eastern and 
western parts of the state of New York. 

Glossary of Terms 

Abbreviations or acronyms frequently used in this report: 



A W  Administrative Law Judge 

APE 25 Accounting Principles Board Opinion 
No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees 

ARP 2000 Alternative Rate Plan 2000 

ASGA Asset Sale Gain Account 

Bechtel Bechtel Power Corporation 

CGG Constellation Generation Group, LLC 

Connecticut Yankee Connecticut Yankee Atomic 
Power Company 

DOE United States Department of Energy 

DPUC Connecticut Department of Public 
Utility Control 

DSM demand side management 

DTE Massachusetts Department of 
Telecommunications and Energy 

Dth dekathen 

Electric Rate Agreement Electric portion of 
RGBE's 2004 Electric and Natural Gas 
Rate Agreements 

EPA United States Environmental 
Protection Agency 

EPS earnings per share 

ESCO energy service company 

FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board 

FERC Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

FIN 46(R) FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised 
December 2003). Consolidation of Variable Interest 
Entities, an interpretation of Accounting Research 
Bulletin No. 51 

FIN 47 FASB lnterpretation No. 47, Accounting for 
Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations, an 
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143 

FIN 48 FASB lnterpretation No. 48. Accounting for 
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of 
FASB Statement No. 109 

Ginna Robert E. Ginna Nuclear Power Plant, a 
nuclear power plant sold by RG&E in June 2004 

IRP Incentive Rate Plan 

ISO-NE IS0 New England Inc. 

ITC investment tax credit 

LlCAP locational installed capacity (pricing 
mechanism in the New England market) 

MD&A Management's Discussion and Analysis 
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

MPUC Maine Public Utilities Commission 

MW, MWh megawatt, megawatt hour 

Natural Gas Rate Agreement natural gas 
portion of RGBE's 2004 Electric and Natural 
Gas Rate Agreements 

NRC United States Nuclear 
Regulatoly Commission 

NUG nonutilii generator 

NYISO New York Independent System Operator 

NYPA New York Power Authorfty 

NYPSC New York State Public 
Service Commission 

NYSDEC New York State Department of 
Environmental Conservation 

Glossary of Terms (Continued) 

NYSERDA New York State Energy Research Statement 123 Statement of Financial Accounting 
and Development Authority Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based 

Compensation 
OCC The Office of Consumer Counsel in the 
State of Connecticut Statement 123(R) Statement of Financial 



OPE6 other post-employment benefits 

PJM Interconnection PJM Interconnection, LLC 

ROE retum on equity 

RTO Regional Transmission Organization 

Russell Station A coal-fired electric generation 
facility in Greece. New York 

SAR stock appreciation right 

SEC or the Commission United States 
Securities and Exchange Commission 

SPDES State Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System 

Statement 71 Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 71. Accounting forthe Effects of 
Certain Types of Regulation 

Statement 87 Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 87, Employers' Accounting for 
Pensions 

Statement 106 Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 106, Employers' Accounting for 
Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions 

Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), 
Shared-Based Payment 

Statement 133 Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities 

Statement 143 Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 143, Accounting for Asset 
Retirement Obligations 

Statement 157 Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 157, Fair Value Measurements 

Statement 158 Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 158, Employers' Accounting for 
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement 
Plans, en amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 
88, 106 and 132(R) 

TCC transmission congestion contract 

VEBA voluntary employees' beneficiary 
association 

Voice Your Choice RG&E's and NYSEG's electric 
commodity option programs 

Yankee companies Maine Yankee Atomic 
Power Company. Connecticut Yankee Atomic 
Power Company. and Yankee Atomic Electric 
Power Company 

Forward-looking Statements 

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a safe harbor for forward-looking 
statements in certain circumstances. This Form 10-K contains certain forward-looking 
statements that are based upon management's current expectations and information that is 
currently available. Whenever used in this report, the words "estimate," "expect," "believe" 
"anticipate," or similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. 

In addition to the assumptions and other factors referred to specifically in connection with 
such statements, factors that involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to 
differ materially from those contemplated in any forward-looking statements are discussed 
in Item 1A - Risk Factors and Item 7 - MD&A - Market Risk, and also include, among others: 

the deregulation and continued regulatory unbundling of a formerly vertically integrated 
utility industry, . our ability to compete in the rapidly changing and competitive electric andlor natural gas 
utility markets, 
regulatory uncertainty and volatile energy supply prices, 

. implementation of NYSEG's Electric Rate Order issued by the NYPSC that has been in 



effect since January 1,2007, 
implementation of the Energy Policy Act of 2005, 

increased state and FERC regulation of, among other things, intercompany cost 
allocations, . the operation of the NYISO and retroactive NYISO billing adjustments, 
the operation of ISO-NE as an RTO and CMP's continued participation in ISO-NE, 
our continued ability to recover NUG and other costs, 
changes in fuel supply or cost and the success of strategies to satisfy power 
requirements, 

our ability to expand our products and services including our energy infrastructure in 
the Northeast, 
the effect of commodity costs on customer usage and uncollectible expense, 

our ability to maintain enterprise-wide integration synergies, 
market risk from changes in value of financial or commodity instruments, derivative or 
nonderivative, caused by fluctuations in interest rates or commodity prices, 
the ability of third parties to continue to supply electricity and natural gas, 
our ability to obtain adequate and timely rate relief andlor the extension of current 
rate plans, 
the possible discontinuation or further modification of fixed-price supply programs in New 
York, 
nuclear decommissioning or environmental incidents, 
legal or administrative proceedings, 
changes in the cost or availability of capital, 
economic growth or contraction in the areas in which we do business, 
extreme weather-related events such as floods, hurricanes, ice storms or snow storms, 
weather variations affecting customer energy usage, 
authoritative accounting guidance, 
acts of terrorism, 
the effect of volatility in the equity and fixed income markets on the cost of pension and 
other postretirement benefhs, 
the inability of our internal control framework to provide absolute assurance that all 
incidents of fraud or error will be detected and prevented, and 
other considerations that may be disclosed from time to time in our publicly disseminated 
documents and filings. 

We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a 
result of new information, future events or otherwise. 

PART I 

Item 1. Business 

General development of business 

Enerav East Cornoration: Energy East is a public utility holding company organized under the 
laws of the state of New York in 1997. Energy East is a super-regional energy services and 
delivery company with operations in New York, Connecticut, Massachusetts, Maine and New 



Hampshire. We conduct all of our operations through our wholly-owned subsidiaries including 
CNE, CMP Group, CTG Resources, Berkshire Energy, RGS Energy and The Energy Network. 

CNE's wholly-owned subsidiary, The Southern Connecticut Gas Company, is a regulated 
utility primarily engaged in the retail distribution of natural gas in Connecticut. 

CMP Group's wholly-owned subsidiary, Central Maine Power Company, is a regulated 
utility primarily engaged in transmitting and distributing electricity generated by others to 
retail customers in Maine. 

CTG Resources'wholly-owned subsidiary, Connecticut Natural Gas Corporation, is a 
regulated utility primarily engaged in the retail distribution of natural gas in Connecticut. 

Berkshire Energy's wholly-owned subsidiary, The Berkshire Gas Company, is a regulated 
utility primarily engaged in the distribution of natural gas in western Massachusetts. 

RGS Energy's wholly-owned subsidiaries are NYSEG and RG&E. NYSEG is a regulated 
utility primarily engaged in purchasing and delivering electricity and natural gas in the 
central, eastem and western parts of the state of New York. NYSEG sold a majority of its 
generation assets in 1999 and most of its remaining generation assets in 2001. RG&E is 
a regulated utility primarily engaged in generating, purchasing and delivering electricity 
and purchasing and delivering natural gas in an area centered around the city of 
Rochester, New York. RG&E sold its largest generating station, Ginna, in 2004. 

The Energy Network's wholly-owned subsidiaries include Cayuga Energy and NYSEG 
Solutions, Inc. 

We created a support services company in 2004, Utility Shared Services Corporation, to 
consolidate support service functions for our largest regulated utilities. This consolidation 
allows us to optimize the efficiency of those services. 

Rochester Gas and Electric Cor~oration: RG&E is a public utility organized under the laws of 
the state of New York in 1904. RGS Energy was incorporated in 1998 in the state of New York 
and became the holding company for RG&E in August 1999. In June 2002, pursuant to a Plan 
of Merger, RGS Energy became our wholly-owned subsidiary and also became the holding 
company for NYSEG. 

The following general developments have occurred in our businesses since January 1, 2006: 

See Item 7 - MD&A - Electric Delivery Rate Overview, Electric Delivery Business 
Developments, Natural Gas Delivery Rate Overview and Natural Gas Delivery 
Business Developments. 

Reaulation 

We operate under the authority of the NYPSC in New York, the MPUC in Maine, the DPUC in 
Connecticut and the DTE in Massachusetts. We are also subject to regulation by the FERC. 
The FERC and state utility commissions have authority to regulate and monitor, among other 



things, intercompany cost allocations of holding company systems such as Energy East. 

c Financial information about segments 

See Item 8 - Note 15 to our Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 13 to RG&E's 
Financial Statements. 

rn Narrative description of business 

Principal business 

Our principal business consists of our regulated electricity transmission and distribution 
L operations in upstate New York and Maine and our regulated natural gas transportation, 

storage and distribution operations in upstate New York, Connecticut, Maine and 
Massachusetts. We serve approximately two million electricity customers and one million 
natural gas customers. Our service territories reflect diversified economies, including high- 
technology firms, insurance, light industry, consumer goods manufacturing, pulp and paper, 

c. 
ship building, colleges and universities, agriculture, fishing and recreational facilities. Our 
operating revenues derived from regulated electricity sales were 58% in 2006, 56% in 2005 
and 58% in 2004. Operating revenues derived from regulated natural gas sales were 32% in 
2006, 34% in 2005 and 33% in 2004. No customer accounts for more than 5% of either electric 
or natural gas revenues. 

NYSEG conducts regulated electricity transmission and distribution operations and 
regulated natural gas transportation, storage and distribution operations in upstate New 
York. It also aenerates electricity. ~rimarilv from its several hydroelectric stations. 
NYSEG serves approximately 871',000 electricity and 256,000 natural gas customers in 
its service territory of approximately 20,000 square miles, which is located in the central, 
eastem and western parts of the state of New York and has a population of 
approximately 2.5 million. The larger cities in which NYSEG serves electricity and natural 
gas customers are Binghamton, Elmira, Auburn, Geneva, lthaca and Lockport. 

RG&E's principal business consists of its regulated electricity generation, transmission 
and distribution operations and regulated natural gas transportation and distribution 
operations in western New York. RG&E generates electricity from one coal-fired plant, 
three gas turbine plants and several smaller hydroelectric stations. RG&E serves 
approximately 359,000 electricity and 296,000 natural gas customers in its service 
territory of approximately 2,700 square miles. The service territory contains a substantial 
suburban 

area and a large agricultural area in parts of nine counties including and surrounding the 
city of Rochester, New York with a population of approximately one million people. 
Approximately 66% of RG&E1s operating revenues for 2006, 63% for 2005 and 64% for 
2004 were derived from electricity sales, with the balance each year derived from natural 
gas sales. No customer accounts for more than 5% of either electric or natural 
gas revenues. 

CMP conducts regulated electricity transmission and distribution operations in Maine 



serving approximately 596,000 customers in its service territory of approximately 11,000 
square miles with a population of approximately one million people. The service territory 
is located in the southern and central areas of Maine and contains most of Maine's 
industrial and commercial centers, including the city of Portland and the Lewiston- 
Auburn, Augusta-Waterville, Saco-Biddeford and Bath-Brunswick areas. 

SCG conducts natural gas transportation and distribution operations in Connecticut 
serving approximately 176,000 customers in its service territory of approximately 560 
square miles with a population of approximately 800,000. SCG's service territory extends 
along the southern Connecticut coast from Westport to Old Saybrook and includes the 
urban communities of Bridgeport and New Haven. 

CNG conducts natural gas transportation and distribution operations in Connecticut 
serving approximately 155,000 customers in its service territory of approximately 800 
square miles with a population of approximately 800,000, principally in the greater 
Hartford-New Britain area and Greenwich. 

Berkshire Gas conducts natural gas distribution operations in western Massachusetts 
serving approximately 36,000 customers in its service territory of approximately 520 

- 
square miles with a population of approximately 220,000. Berkshire Gas' service territory 
includes the cities of Pittsfield and North Adams. 

See Item 7 - MD&A - Electric Delivery Rate Overview, Electric Delivery Business 
Developments, Natural Gas Delivery Rate Overview and Natural Gas Delivery Business 
Developments. 

Other businesses 

Our other businesses include retail energy marketing companies, a nonutility generating 
company, a FERC-regulated liquefied natural gas peaking plant, a natural gas delivery 
company, a propane air delivery company, telecommunications assets, a district heating and 
cooling system, and an energy consulting services company. We include their results of 
operations, financial condition and cash flows in our Other segment. 

Energetix, lnc. and NYSEG Solutions, Inc. market electricity and natural gas services 
throughout the state of New York. The revenues from these two companies accounted 
for approximately 9% of Energy East's total revenues in 2006, 10% in 2005 and 9% in 
2004. 

Cayuga Energy owns electric generation facilities that sell power in the NYISO and PJM 
Interconnection wholesale markets at times of high demand. 

CNE Energy Services Group, Inc. has an interest in two small natural gas pipelines that 
serve power plants in Connecticut. CNE Energy Services Group has a long-term lease 
for a liquefied natural gas plant that serves the peaking gas markets in the Northeast and 
has an equity interest in an energy technology venture partnership. 

Energy East Enterprises, Inc. includes Maine Natural Gas, a small natural gas delivery 



company and New Hampshire Gas, Inc., a propane air delivery company. 

MaineCom Services owns fiber optic lines and provides telecommunications services 
in Maine. 

TEN Companies, Inc. owns and manages The Hartford Steam Company, a district 
heating and cooling network in Hartford, Connecticut, and owns an interest in the 
Iroquois Gas Transmission System. 

The Union Water-Power Company owns and manages real estate in Maine and New 
Hampshire and provides energy consulting services throughout New England. 

Sources and availabilitv of raw materials 

Electric 

See ltem 7 - MD&A - Electric Delivery Rate Overview, Electric Delivery Business 
Developments and Commodity Price Risk and ltem 8 - Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial 
Statements and Note 1 to RG&E's Financial Statements. 

NYSEG satisfied the majority of its power requirements for 2006 through purchases under 
long-term contracts with NUGs, the New York Power Authority and Constellation Nuclear, and 
through generation from its several hydroelectric stations. NYSEG managed fluctuations in the 
cost of electricity for its remaining power requirements through the use of electricity contracts, 
both physical and financial. 

RG&E satisfied the majority of its power requirements for 2006 through purchases under long- 
term contracts with the New York Power Authority, Constellation Nuclear, and Ginna Nuclear 
Power Plant, LLC. A small portion, less than 20%, was satisfied from its generation facilities 
including coal, natural gas, hydroelectric and peaking. RG&E managed fluctuations in the cost 
of electricity for its remaining power requirements through the use of electricity contracts, both 
physical and financial. 

Coal- RG&E's 2007 coal requirements are expected to be approximately 400,000 tons. 
RG&E's coal supply portfolio contains both spot and term agreements with multiple suppliers. 
In 2006,80% of RG&E1s coal requirements was purchased under contract and 20% was 
purchased on the spot market. RG&E maintains a reserve supply of coal ranging from 30 to 
60 days. 

Under a Maine State Law adopted in 1997, CMP was mandated to sell its generation assets 
and relinquish its supply responsibility. CMP no longer owns generating assets but retains its 
power entitlements under long-term contracts with NUGs and a power purchase contract with 

Entergy Nuclear Vermont Yankee, LLC. Since March of 2000 CMP has sold its power 
entitlement under auctions approved by the MPUC. By its orders issued in December 2004, 
December 2005 and January 2007, the MPUC approved CMP's sale of its entitlements for 
various periods ranging from one to three years, through February 28, 2010. CMP's retail 
electricity prices are set to provide recovery of the costs associated with its ongoing power 



entitlement obligations. CMP's revenues and purchased power costs would increase if it were 
required to be the standard-offer provider of electricity supply for retail customers. There would 
be no effect on CMP's net income in such an event, however, because CMP is ensured cost 
recovery through Maine state law for any standard-offer obligations. 

Natural Gas 

NYSEG, RG&E, CNG, SCG, Berkshire Gas and MNG satisfied their natural gas supply 
requirements through purchases from BP Energy Company and other natural gas suppliers, 
natural gas storage capacity contracts and winter peaking supplies and resources. A majority 
of the natural gas supply purchased was acquired under long- and short-term supply contracts 
and the remainder was acquired on the spot market. Firm underground natural gas storage 
capacity is contracted for using long-term contracts. Firm transportation capacity was acquired 
under long-term contracts and was utilized to transport both natural gas supply purchased and 
natural gas withdrawn from storage to local distribution systems. Winter peaking supplies and 
resources are either owned by Energy East, NYSEG and RG&E and are attached to the 
distribution system, or are contracted for under long-term arrangements. 

See ltem 7 - MD&A - Natural Gas Delivery Rate Overview, Natural Gas Delivery Business 
Developments and Commodity Price Risk and ltem 8 - Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial 
Statements and Note 1 to RG&E1s Financial Statements. 

Franchises 

Our operating utilities have valid franchises, with minor exceptions, from the municipalities in 
which they render service to the public. 

Seasonal business 

Winter peak electricity loads are primarily due to space heating usage and fewer daylight 
hours. Summer peak electricity loads are due to the use of air-conditioning and other cooling 
equipment. Our sales of natural gas are highest during the winter months primarily due to 
space heating usage. 

Workina ca~ital  

Our operating utilities have been granted, through the ratemaking process, an allowance for 
working capital to operate their ongoing electric andlor natural gas utility systems. Their major 
working capital requirements include natural gas inventories, which increase during the 
summer and fall for winter sales; accounts receivable, which are highest during periods of 
peak sales; and cash requirements to pay for utility construction and operating expenses. 

Com~etitive conditions 

In New York, the NYPSC has experimented with programs that require utilities to actively 
encourage their customers to migrate to ESCO suppliers. NYSEG and RG&E have filed 
proposed parameters for ESCO referral programs. To date the NYPSC has not acted on these 
filings and NYSEG and RG&E have requested postponement of the respective tariffs for six 
months. NYSEG and RG&E are unable to predict the ultimate effect of these programs on their 
ability to continue to provide commodity service to their customers. 



See ltem 1A - Risk Factors and ltem 7 - MD&A - Electric Delivery Rate Overview, Electric 
Delivery Business Developments, Natural Gas Delivery Rate Overview, Natural Gas Delivery 
Business Developments and Critical Accounting Policies. 

Research and develo~ment 

Our consolidated expenditures for research and development were $3 million in 2006, 
$4 million in 2005 and $5 million in 2004. RG&E1s expenditures were $2 million in 2006, 
$1 million in 2005 and $2 million in 2004. Expenditures were for internal research programs 
and contributions to research administered by the NYSERDA, the Electric Power Research 
Institute and the Northeast Gas Association. Research and development expenditures are 
intended to improve existing energy technologies and develop new technologies for the 
delivery and efficient customer use of energy. 

Environmental matters 

Energy East and RG&E are subject to regulation by the federal government and by state 
and local governments with respect to environmental matters, such as the handling and 
disposal of toxic substances and hazardous and solid wastes and the handling and use of 
chemical products. Electric utility companies generally use or generate a range of potentially 
hazardous products and by-products that aresubjectto such regulation. r hey are also 
subject to state laws regarding environmental approval and certification of proposed major 
transmission facilities. 

From time to time, environmental laws, regulations and compliance programs may require 
changes in Energy East's and RG&E1s operations and facilities and may increase the cost of 
energy delivery service. Historically, rate recovery has been authorized for environmental 
compliance costs. 

We made capital expenditures totaling approximately $10 million, including $2.5 million by 
RG&E, to meet environmental requirements during the three years ended December 31, 2006. 
Future capital additions for current facilities to meet environmental requirements are not 
expected to be material. However, we have plans to voluntarily adopt a number of 
environmentally friendly initiatives, including-an advanced metering .infrastructure. We may 
also have significant expenditures for repowering Russell Station using new technology which 
minimizes emissions. 

Waterandairaualitv: Energy East and RG&E are required to comply with federal and state 
water quality statutes and regulations including the Clean Water Act. The Clean Water Act 
requires that generating stations be in compliance with federally issued National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System permits or state issued SPDES permits, which reflect water 
quality considerations for the protection of the environment. RG&E has SPDES permits for two 
of its generating stations. The Energy Network owns interests in two natural gas-fired peaking 
generating stations and TEN Cos. owns and operates two steam plants, all of which have the 
required federal or state operating permits. 

Energy East and RG&E are required to comply with federal and state oil spill statutes and 
regulations including the Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasures (SPCC) regulations. 
Revisions to such regulations were recently finalized and require that the company and RG&E 
update current oil SPCC plans by the proposed date of July 1, 2009, and prepare new SPCC 



plans for locations that are covered under the regulations. These SPCC locations include 
electric operations service centers and substations, gas operation centers and liquefied natural 
gas facilities. 

RG&E is required to comply with federal and state air quality statutes and regulations for 
operation of its coal-fired and combustion turbine generating stations. All of RG&E's generating 
stations have the required federal or state operating permits. Stack tests and continuous 
emissions monitoring indicate that the generating stations are generally in compliance with 
permit emission limitations, although occasional opacity exceedances occur. Efforts continue 
in the identification and elimination of the causes of opacity exceedances. Russell Station, 
RG&E1s sole coal-fired station, is scheduled to close at the end of 2007 upon the completion of 
RG&E1s transmission project which will substantially reduce the company's and RG&E's 
emissions. RG&E may also seek the necessary approvals to repower Russell Station using 
clean coal technologies. 

The 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments limit emissions of sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxides and 
require emissions monitoring. The EPA allocates annual emissions allowances to RG&E's 
coal-fired generating station based on statutory emissions limits under Phase II (which began 
January I, 2000) of the 1990 Amendments. An emissions allowance represents an 
authorization to emit, during or after a specified calendar year, one ton of sulfur dioxide. A 
similar allowance program under Title I of the 1990 Amendments controls nitrogen oxides 
emissions from RG&E's coal-fired station and a combustion turbine generating station. Another 
requirement of the 1990 Amendments is for the coal-fired station and a combustion turbine 
generating station to have a facility operating permit (Title V permit). The Title V permits 
required for each station have been granted. In 2005 the EPA finalized rules requiring further 
reductions in sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxides emissions, as well as mercury emissions from 
coal-fired generating stations. The reductions will begin in 2009 for nitrogen oxides and 2010 
for sulfur dioxide and mercury. However, the methods to achieve the reductions will be 
proposed by the individually affected states. Except for mercury emissions in New York, these 
methods have not been proposed by the states in which the company operates at this time. 
New York has submitted its mercury emissions control implementation plan to the EPA for 
approval. The first phase takes effect in 2010 and requires each existing coal-fired power plant 
to meet a facility-wide cap equivalent to a 50% reduction from baseline. New coal-fired units 
and existing facilities in phase 2 (starting in 2015) will need to meet an emission limit that is 
approximately equivalent to a 90% reduction. New York will not allow allowance trading to 
meet compliance as is allowed under the Clean Air Mercury Rule. 

Regulations adopted by the state of New York that further limit acid rain precursor emissions 
from electric generating units, possibly at an additional cost to RG&E, became effective 
on October I, 2004, for nitrogen oxides and January I ,  2005, for sulfur dioxide. The current 
federal summertime limits for nitrogen oxides are now applied year round. Emissions reduction 
targets are set at 50% below the current federal limits for sulfur dioxide and are being phased 
in between 2005 and 2008. Emissions reductions will be achieved through a New York State 
only market-based allowance trading system similar to those under the 1990 Amendments. 
Beyond the allowances allocated to RG&E, there is limited availability of economically- 
viable allowances. 

RG&E purchases emissions allowances as necessary in order to comply with the Clean Air Act - 



and New York State acid rain regulations and estimates its cost for allowances will be 
approximately $13 million for 2007. In addition, RG&E has installed control equipment at its 
facilities at a cost of over $16 million as part of its compliance with the Clean Air Act. If RG&E 
were unable to satisfy some of its environmental commitments with emissions allowances, 
either because of regulatory changes or an inability to obtain emissions allowances, RG&E 
would be required to take alternative actions, which may include reduced plant operation or 
shutdown, or repowering with clean coal technologies to comply with the Clean Air Act and 
New York State acid rain regulations. 

The federal Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative (RGGI) will set a cap on carbon dioxide 
emissions from electric generators at current emission levels starting in 2009, reducing to 10% 
below the 2009 cap levels incrementally from 2015 to 2018. Seven northeastern states signed 
a memorandum of understanding in December 2005. A model rule for states to implement the 
RGGI was finalized in August 2006. Though the model rule specifies that at least 25% of levels 
are to be auctioned for consumer benefit or strategic energy program, distribution of the 
remaining 75% is left up to individual states. 

New York has issued a "pre-proposal" draft of its RGGl rule which generally follows the model 
rule. One aspect of the rule is that New York proposed to auction 100% of allowances, with 
proceeds to be used for "energy efficiency and clean energy technology purposes." Electricity 
supply generators will be required to purchase necessary allowances to continue operations 
and there would be a corresponding impact on the cost of the electric supply produced by 
these generators. The actual draft rule for public comment is expected by mid-2007 with a final 
rule by late 2007 or early 2008. 

Maine, through the Maine Department of Environmental Protection, is in the process of drafting 
its implementation rules based on the model rule. The draft rule would require specific 
reductions or allowance purchases by the affected emission sources in Maine and establishes 
a framework for allowance trading and purchasing carbon dioxide offsets from eligible sources. 
At this time Maine has not determined if, or how much of, the initial allowances would be 
auctioned or granted and how any auction proceeds would be applied or distributed. If the 
allowances are auctioned, electric supply generators would be required to purchase necessary 
allowances to continue operations and there would be a corresponding increase in the cost of 
electric supply produced by these generators. The company cannot predict the outcome of this 
rulemaking or its ultimate impact on the price of electric supply in Maine. 

See ltem 3 - Legal Proceedings, ltem 7 - MD&A - Electric Delivery Rate Overview, Electric 
Delivery Business Developments, Natural Gas Delivery Rate Overview, Natural Gas Delivery 
Business Developments and ltem 8 - Note 10 to our Consolidated Financial Statements and 
Note 9 to RG&E1s Financial Statements. 

Number of em~lovees 

As of January 31, 2007, Energy East had 5,884 employees, including 1,016 RG&E employees. 

Financial information about geographic areas 

Neither Energy East nor RG&E have foreign operations. 

Available information 



We make available free of charge through our lntemet Web site, http://www.energyeast.com, 
our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K 
and amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after those reports are 
electronically filed with the SEC. Access to the reports is available from the main page of our 
lnternet Web site through "Financial Information" and then "SEC filings." Our Code of Conduct 
and Corporate Governance Guidelines and the charters of the Audit, Compensation and 
Management Succession, and Nominating and Corporate Governance committees are also 
available on our lnternet Web site. Waivers of the Code of Conduct are not contemplated. 
However, in the unlikely event of an amendment to, or waiver from, the Code of Conduct 
applicable to our principal executive, financial and accounting officers, we will post such 
information through our Web site. Access to these documents is available from the main page 
of our lntemet Web site through "Financial Information" and then "Corporate Governance." 
Printed copies of these documents are also available upon request by contacting Investor 
Relations at (207) 688-4336. 

Item 1A. Risk Factors 

We regularly identify, monitor and assess our exposure to risk and seek to mitigate the risks 
inherent in our energy services and delivery businesses. However, there are risks that are 
beyond our control or that cannot be limited cost-effectively or that may occur despite our risk 
mitigation efforts. The risk factors discussed below could have a material effect on our financial 
position, results of operation or cash flows. 

NYSEG's Electric Rate Order issued by the NYPSC that went into effect on January 1, 
2007, will significantly impact NYSEG's earnings potential. 

The reduction in rates and changes in NYSEG's commodity supply program reduces NYSEG's 
earnings potential by $35 million to $45 million, which will have an adverse effect on NYSEG's 
financial condition and results of operations. In addition, we cannot predict the effect of the 
Electric Rate Order on our credit ratings. 

The NYPSC has experimented with programs that require utilities to actively encourage 
their customers to migrate to ESCO suppliers. 

The NYPSC has experimented with programs to require utilities to actively encourage 
customers to switch to ESCOs for the purchase of electricity or natural gas. NYSEG and 
RG&E have developed such "ESCO Referral" programs, and they have been submitted to the 
NYPSC for review and approval. However, to date, the NYPSC has not acted to implement 
these programs at RG&E or NYSEG. The NYPSC has also dismantled the Office of Retail 
Market Development, upon the resignation of its director, and has re-assigned staff to other 
offices of the NYPSC. We cannot predict the outcome of these proceedings. 

Our regulated utilities are subject to substantial governmental regulation on the federal, 
state and local levels. 

On the federal level, the FERC regulates our utilities' transmission rates, affiliate transactions, 
the issuance of certain short-term debt securities by our electric utilities and certain other 
aspects of our utilities' businesses. State commissions regulate the rates, terms and conditions 



of service, various business practices and transactions, financings, and transactions between 
the utilities and affiliates. Local regulation affects the siting of our transmission and distribution 
facilities and our ability to make repairs to such facilities. Our allowed rates of return, rate 
structures, operation and construction of facilities, rates of depreciation and amortization, 
recovery of costs (including exogenous costs such as storm-related expenses), are all 
determined by the regulatory process. The timing and adequacy of regulatory relief directly 
affect our results of operations and cash flows. Furthermore, compliance with regulatory 
requirements may result in substantial costs in our operations that may not be recovered. We 
cannot predict the effect that any future changes or revisions to laws and regulations affecting 
the utility industry may have on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

We are a holding company whose material assets are the stock of our subsidiaries. 

Accordingly, we conduct all of our operations through those subsidiaries. Our ability to pay 
dividends on our common stock and to pay principal and accrued interest on our debt depends 
upon our receipt of dividends from our principal subsidiaries. Payments to us by those 
subsidiaries depend, in turn, upon their results of operations and cash flows, which are 
subject to the risk factors discussed in this section. The ability of our subsidiaries to make 
payments to us is also affected by the level of their indebtedness, and the restrictions on 
payments to us imposed under the terms of such indebtedness and restrictions imposed by the 
Federal Power Act. 

Our natural gas companies may be affected by various factors that could limit their 
ability to obtain natural gas supplies. 

Supply and demand factors including hurricanes or other natural disasters could affect our 
future ability to obtain natural gas supplies. Increases in demand and lower supplies can result 
in higher natural gas prices. While higher costs are generally passed on to customers pursuant 
to natural gas adjustment clauses, and therefore do not pose a direct risk to our earnings, we 
are unable to predict what effect increases in natural gas prices may have on our customers' 
energy consumption or ability to pay. 

Transmission projects are subject to regulations and other factors beyond our control. 

Our electric utility companies have substantial transmission capital investment programs 
including an RG&E transmission project of approximately $1 19 million that has received the 
required regulatory approvals and proposed transmission projects in Maine that could require 
significant investment. These transmission projects are expected to increase reliability, meet 
new load growth requirements and interconnect with new generation, including renewable 
generation. The regulatory approval process for transmission projects is extensive and we may 
not be able to obtain the approvals required for our proposed transmission projects. Various 
factors beyond our control, including an increase in the cost of materials or labor, may increase 
the cost of completing construction projects and may delay construction. 

Our new transmission projects are subject to the effects of new legislation, regulation and 
reaional interwetations of a~olicable kws and reaulations. Anv chanaes to these laws and 
regulations may increase the costs or timing of our transmission projects. 



The FERC has jurisdiction over transmission expansion and generation interconnection. The 
FERC has issued several orders regarding transmission expansion and generation 
interconnection cost allocation. Changes to the rules and regulations concerning transmission 
expansion and generation cost allocations may affect future transmission rates. 

RTOs and independent system operators now oversee wholesale transmission services in 
NYSEG's, RG&E1s, and CMP's service territories and between regions. Our transmission 
facilities are operated by and subject to the rules and regulations of the NYISO and ISO-NE. 
Changes to those rules and regulations could cause us to incur additional expenses to 
maintain our facilities. 

Our ability to provide energy delivery and commodity services depends on the 
operations and facilities of third parties. 

These third party facilities include independent system operators, electric generators from 
whom we purchase electricity and natural gas pipeline operators from whom we receive 
shipments of natural gas. The loss of use or destruction of our facilities or the facilities of third 
parties that are used in providing our services, or with which our electric or natural gas facilities . 

are interconnected, due to extreme weather conditions, breakdowns, war, acts of terrorism or 
other occurrences could greatly reduce potential earnings and cash flows and increase our 
costs of repairs and/or replacement of assets. While we carry property insurance to protect 
certain assets and have regulatory agreements that provide for the recovery of losses for such 
incidents, our losses may not be fully recoverable through insurance or customer rates. - 

The demand for our services is directly affected by weather conditions. 

The demand for our services, especially our natural gas delivery service, is directly affected by 
weather conditions. Milder winter months or cooler summer months could greatly reduce our 
earnings and cash flows. Loss of revenue due to power outages in severe weather could also - 
reduce our earnings or require us to defer some costs for future recovery, thus reducing our 
cash flow. While our natural gas distribution companies mitigate the risk of warmer winter 
weather through weather normalization clauses or weather insurance, and we have historically 
been able to defer major storm costs for future recovery, we may not always be able to fully 
recover all lost revenues or increased expenses. - 

We use derivative instruments, such as swaps, options, futures and forwards to manage 
our commodity and financial market risks. 

We could recognize financial losses as a result of volatility in the market values of these - 
contracts. We also bear the risk of a counterparty failing to perform. While we employ prudent 
credit policies and obtain collateral where appropriate, counterparty credit exposure cannot be 
eliminated, particularly in volatile energy markets. 

Our ability to hedge our commodity market risk depends on our ability to accurately forecast 
demand in future periods. Because of changes in weather and customer demand from period 
to period, we may hedge amounts that are greater or less than our actual commodity 
deliveries. Such differences may lead to financial losses and, if the differences exceed certain 
levels, could result in our hedges becoming ineffective under accounting guidance. Gains or 



losses on ineffective hedges are marked-to-market on our income statement without reference 
to our underlying sale of the commodity. 

Prices for electricity and natural gas are subject to volatility in response to changes in 
supply and other market conditions. 

We pass commodity price increases on to electric customers who choose a variable prlce 
option and to all natural gas customers. We have a comprehensive hedging program in place 
to mitigate the price risk for the load required for electric customers who choose a fixed price 
option under NYSEG's and RG&E's current commodity option programs. Higher prices passed 
on to customers can lead to higher bad debt expense and customer conservation resulting in 
reduced demand for our energy services. 

Our pension plan assets are primarily made up of equity and fixed income investments. 

Any fluctuations in the performance of those markets, as well as changes in interest rates, 
could increase our funding requirements for pension and postretirement benefit obligations and 
cause us to recognize increased expense. In addition, the cost to implement regulatory 
requirements and potential revisions to accounting standards could affect our financial 
position, results of operations or cash flow. 

Our business follows the economic cycle of the customers in the regions that we serve. 

A falling, slow or sluggish economy as found in our upstate New York service territories and 
reduced demand for electricity andlor natural gas in the areas in which we do business - 
through forced temporary plant shutdowns, closing operations or slow economic growth - 
would reduce our earnings potential in the affected region. 

We are subject to  extensive federal and state environmental regulation. 

Our subsidiaries' operations are subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental 
laws, rules and regulations that monitor, among other things, emission allowances, pollution 
controls, maintenance, site remediation, upgrading equipment and management of hazardous 
waste. Various governmental agencies require us to obtain environmental licenses, permits, 
inspections and approvals. Compliance with environmental laws and requirements can impose 
significant costs, reduce cash flows and result in plant shutdowns. 

Our ability andlor cost to access capital could be negatively affected by changes In our 
financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

If any of our utility subsidiaries' credit ratings were to be downgraded, our ability to access the 
capital markets, including the commercial paper markets, could be adversely affected and our 
borrowing costs would increase. Some of the factors that affect credit ratings are cash flows, 
liquidity and the amount of debt as a component of total capitalization. An example of a factor 
that could cause our subsidiaries' debt as a component of total capitalization to increase is the 
need to borrow money to pay for unexpected repairs to their transmission and distribution 
systems caused by a catastrophic event. 



The application o f  our critical accounting policies reflects complex judgments and 
estimates. 

Those policies include industry-specific accounting standards applicable to our rate-regulated 
utilities, accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets, pension and other postretirement 
benefit plans, unbilled revenue and allowance for doubtful accounts. The adoption of new 
accounting standards, changes to current accounting standards or interpretations of such 
standards may materially affect our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. - 

The NYPSC proceeding regarding NYSEG's OPEB reserve could have a significant one- 
time impact on earnings. 

On August 23, 2006, the NYPSC issued its decision in the NYSEG rate case. Among other - 
things, the NYPSC instructed the ALJ to open a separate proceeding regarding the NYPSC 
staffs position that NYSEG should have retained $57 million of interest in its OPEB reserve 
and used it to reduce rate base. A proceeding has been opened and hearings on the issues 
raised by the NYPSC staff are currently scheduled for July 2007. NYPSC acceptance of its 
staffs position would result in NYSEG treating all or a portion of the $57 million as an addition 
to its internal OPEB reserve, with a corresponding charge to income. While we are vigorously 

. 

opposing staff on these issues, contending that the NYPSC staff is engaged in retroactive 
ratemaking, we cannot predict how this matter will be resolved. 

ltem 1 B. Unresolved Staff Comments 

None for Energy East or RG&E. 

ltem 2. Properties 

See ltem 7 - MD&A - Electric Delivery Business Developments. 

NYSEG's electric system includes hydroelectric and gas turbine generating stations, 
substations and transmission and distribution lines, substantially all of which are located in the - 

state of New York. 

RG&E1s electric system includes coal-fired, combustion turbine and hydroelectric generating 
stations, substations and transmission and distribution lines, all of which are located in the 
state of New York. 

CMP's electric system includes substations and transmission and distribution lines, all of which 
are located in the state of Maine. 

The Energy Network owns interests in two natural gas-fired peaking generating stations: one 
located in the state of New York and operated by Cayuga Energy, a wholly-owned subsidiary; 
and one located in the state of Pennsylvania for which Cayuga Energy manages fuel 
procurement and electricity sales. 

The operating companies' generating facilities consist of: 



Generating 
ca~abilltv 

Operating Company Type and location of station ' (MW;) 
NYSEG Gas turbine (Newcomb, NY) 2 
NYSEG Gas turbine (Auburn, NY) 7 
NYSEG Hydroelectric (Various - 7 locations) 60 
RG&E Hydroelectric (Rochester. NY - 3 locations) 47 
RGLE Coal-fired (Greece, NY) 257 
RG&E Gas turbine (Hume. NY) 63 
RGLE Gas turbine (Rochester, NY - 2 locations) 28 
The Energy Nehvork Gas turbine (Carthage. NY) 67 
The Energy Network Gas turbine (Archbald, PA) 24(') 

Total 555 

1') Cayuga Energy's 50.1% sham oftha generating capablllly. 

CMP owns the following percentages of stock in three companies with nuclear generating 
facilities: Maine Yankee in Wiscasset, Maine, 38%; Yankee Atomic in Rowe, Massachusetts, 
9.5%; and Connecticut Yankee in Haddam, Connecticut, 6%. The three facilities have been 
permanently shut down. Maine Yankee completed its decommissioning in 2005 and Yankee 
Atomic completed its decommissioning in 2006. Connecticut Yankee expects to complete its 
decommissioning in 2007. Each of the three facilities has an established NRC-licensed 
independent spent fuel storage installation on site to store spent nuclear fuel in dry casks until 
the DOE takes the fuel for disposal. (See Item 7 - MD&A - CMP Nuclear Costs.) 

CMP owns 31 1 substations in the state of Maine having an aggregate transformer capacity of 
6,772,787 kilovolt-amperes. The transmission system consists of 2,564 circuit miles of line. 
The distribution system consists of 21,984 pole miles of overhead lines and 1,255 miles of 
direct bury and network underground lines. 

NYSEG owns 439 substations in the state of New York having an aggregate transformer 
capacity of 15,221,800 kilovolt-amperes. The transmission system consists of 4,400 circuit 
miles of line. The distribution system consists of 30,521 pole miles of overhead lines and 2,063 
miles of direct bury and network underground lines. 

RG&E owns 164 substations in the state of New York having an aggregate transformer 
ca~acitv of 6,480,400 kilovolt-amperes, The transmission system consists of 763 circuit miles 
of overhead linesand 502 circuit miles of underground lines. The distribution system consists 
of 17,258 circuit miles of overhead lines and 5,274 circuit miles of underground lines. 

The operating utilities' natural gas systems consist o f  

Miles of Miles of 
Transmission Distribution 

Operating Company Location Pipeline Pipeline 
NYSEG New York State 72 7.878 
RGLE New York State 109 8,471 
SCG Connecticut - 3,722 
CNG Connecticut - 3,657 
Berkshin, Gas Massachusetts - 733 
MNG Maine 2 80 
New Hampshire Gas 



(Propane air) New Hampshire - 28 

NYSEG owns the Seneca Lake Natural Gas Storage Facility, which is able to store 
approximately 1.4 billion cubic feet of natural gas. As of December 31, 2006, the facility was at 
approximately 95% of capacity. 

A portion of our utility plant is subject to liens or mortgages securing certain of our subsidiaries' 
first mortgage bonds. None of CMP's, NYSEG's or CNG's utility plant is subject to liens or 
mortgages securing first mortgage bonds. RG&E, Berkshire Gas and SCG have first mortgage 
bond indentures that constitute a direct first mortgage lien on substantially all of their 
respective properties. (See ltem 8 - Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 
5 to RG&E1s Financial Statements.) 

ltem 3. Legal Proceedings 

See ltem 7 - MD&A - Electric Delivery Rate Overview, Electric Delivery Business 
Developments, Natural Gas Delivery Rate Overview and Natural Gas Delivery Business 
Developments and Item 8 - Note 10 to our Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 9 to 
RG&E1s Financial Statements. 

Since the NYPSC, DPUC, MPUC and DTE have allowed our operating utilities to recover in 
rates remediation wsts for certain of the sites referred to in the second and fourth paragraphs 
of Note 10 to our Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 9 to RG&E's Financial 
Statements, there is a reasonable basis to conclude that such operating utilities will be 
permitted to recover in rates any remediation costs that they may incur for all of the sites 
referred to in those paragraphs. Therefore, Energy East and RG&E believe that the ultimate 
disposition of the matters referred to in the paragraphs of the Notes referred to above will not 
have a material adverse effect on their results of operations, financial position or cash flows. 

(a) In October 1999 RG&E received a letter from the New York State Attorney General's office 
alleging that RG&E may have constructed and operated major modifications to the Beebee 
and Russell generating stations without obtaining the required prevention of significant 
deterioration or new source review permits. The letter requested that RG&E provide the 
Attorney General's office with a large number of documents relating to this allegation. In 
January 2000 RG&E received a subpoena from the NYSDEC ordering production of similar 
documents. RG&E supplied documents and complied with the subpoena. 

The NYSDEC served RG&E with a notice of violation in May 2000 alleging that between 1983 
and 1987 RG&E completed five projects at Russell Station and two projects at Beebee Station, 
which is currently shut down, without obtaining the appropriate permits. RG&E believes it has 
complied with the applicable rules and there is no basis for the Attorney General's and the 
NYSDEC's allegations. Beginning in July 2000 the NYSDEC, the Attorney General and RG&E 
had a number of discussions with respect to resolution of the notice of violation. In October 
2006 the Attomey General's office and the NYSDEC notified RG&E of their intention to file a 
complaint in federal court for violations at Russell Station unless a settlement can be reached. 
Were the Attorney General and the NYSDEC to commence a Clean Air Act lawsuit against 
RG&E, they would need to demonstrate, among other things, that the challenged modifications 
to the Russell generating station cause an "increase" in emissions from the station. The issue 
of what constitutes the appropriate test for an emissions increase currently is before the United 
States Supreme Court in Environmental Defense v. Duke Energy Corporation, Docket No. 05- 



848. Oral argument was held on November 2006, and a decision is expected in the first half of 
2007. RG&E, the NYSDEC and the Attorney General continue to discuss this matter and no 
suit has been filed to date. RG&E is not able to predict the outcome of this matter. 

(b) The State of Connecticut filed suit in February 2007 against Energy East and its affiliates 
TEN Companies, CNG and CTG Resources, Inc. for an alleged $14 million overcharge for 
heating and cooling services supplied to state buildings since 1992. While the company 
believes that there is no merit to this action, it cannot predict the outcome of this matter. 

ltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

None for Energy East or RG&E. 

Executive Officers of the Registrants 

(Identification of executive officers is inserted in Part I in accordance with Regulation S-K, ltem 
401(b), Instruction 3.) The ages of the officers set forth below are as of December 31, 2006. 

Energy East Corporation 
Name and Position Age Period Business experience -January 2002 to date 

served - -- 
wnky W. von Sshack 62 to date Chairman. Pmsldent and Chief Execullve OMwr 
Chalrman. Pmsident and Chbf 
Executive Otlicer 
RobeR E. Rude 53 2005 to dale Senior Vim Pmsident and Chief Regulatory OMcsr 
Senior Vice President and Chbf to 2005 Vice President and Controller 
Regulatory ORmr 
Richanl R. Benaon 49 2007 Senlor Vice President and Chbf AdminisbaNw OMcer 
Senior Vlce Presaent and 2005 tc 2007 Vice Pnsident and Chief Administrative Officer 
Chief Administrabve Officer 2004 to 2005 Vlce President. Administrative Services of Enemy East Management 

Corporation 
to 2004 Vice President Human Resourms of Energy East Management 

Corporation 
Robeft D. Kurnp 45 2007 Senior Vice Pmsident and Chief Flnandel OMmr 
Senior Vim PmsMenl and Chbf 2005 to 2007 Vice President. Controller and Chief Accounting OMcer 
Finandal Omcer 2002 to ZOO5 Vice President Treasurer and Secretary 

to 2002 Vice President and Treasurer 
F. ~1chm.1 ucChln 57 2007 Senior Vice President and Chief Develo~mant and . . ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  
Senior Vice President and Chid 
Development and Integration O W r  

Integration Officer 
2005 lo 2007 Vice President - Finance. Tnasumr and Chbf lnlepration Ofllcer 

Vice Presidenl. Finance and Chkf Integration O W r  of Energy East 
2003 to 2005 Management Corporation 

Vice President. Finance of Enemy Ean Management Corporation -. 
10 2003 

Paul K. Connolly. Jr. 62 2006 to date Vice President - General Counsel 
Vim Pmsident - General Counsel lo 2005 Panner - LeBoeuf. Lamb. Gmene and MacRae LLP 
Ang.18 M. Sparks-Beddob 42 to date Vice President. Public Affairs of Energy East 
Vice Pmsident. Public Manapement Corporation 
Affairs of Energy East 
Management COrporaHon 

New York State Electric & Gas 
Corporation 
Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 
Name and Position Age Period Business experience - January 2002 to date 

sewed - 



James P. L.uri(o 50 2005 to dab President and Chief Exewtiw Officer of New York State Electric 8 Gas 
president and Chief Executive Ommr Corporation and Rochester Gas and 
of New York State Electric Corporation 
Electric & Gas Corporation 20M to ZOO5 President of New York Sl l te Electric 8 Gas Corporetlon and Rochsster 
and Rochester Gas and Gas and Electric Corpontlon 
Electric Corporation 2003 to 2004 President and Treasurer of New York Stale 

Electric 8 Gas Caraaratlan - . . - - . . - - -. . . . - . . .. . . . 
to 2003 Pres.oent and Ch~ef Operatlnp Offiwr of ConnMlcut Natural Gar 

CorporaUon and The Southem Connecticut 

Central Maine Power Company 
Name and Position Age Period Business experience -January 2002 to date 

sewed 
S.n J. Burns 51 2005 to date President and Chkf ExewUva O m ~ r  of Centnl Mshe 
President and Chief Exewthrs Officer Power Company 
of Central Maine to 2005 President of Central Malne Power Company 
Power Company 

The Berkshlre Gas Company 
Connecticut Natural Gas Corporation 
The Southern Connecticut Gas Company 
Name and Position Age Period 

served 

Robert M. Alleaslo 56 2005 to dab 
President and Chief Executive Omwr 
of Connecticut Natural Gas Corporation 
and The Southern Connecticut Gas 2004 b dola 

Business experience -January 2002 to date 

President and Chlef Executive Officer of Connedlwt 
Natural Gas Corporation and The Southern Connecticut 
Gas CornDem 
chairman and C ~ W  Executive m c e r  of m e  ~~ t t t ah i r e  
Gas Cornoanv - - . . . - . ., 

2004 to 2005 ~ x e w t i i ~ i c h  President and Chimf Ownt lnp Oftlcer of Connectlwt 
Chairman and Chlef ExecutlM Ofk4r Natural Gas Corporation and The Soulhem Conne~tkut Ga8 Company 
ofThe Berkshire Senior Vice President, Operating Services of Connectlwt Natural Gas 
Gas Camaanv 2003 lo 2004 Comoration and The SouUlem Connecticut 

 ad Company 
President. Chkf ExecuNve Ommr and Treasurer ofThe Berkahlm Gar 

to 2004 Company 
Wca President Opratlnp Setvices of Connedicut 

to 2003 Natural Gas Corporation and The Southem Connecticut 
Gas Company 

K.nn I.. l l n k  49 2004 b date President. Treasurer and Chief Operatinp Omwr ofThe Berkshire Gas 
President. Treasurer and Chief Company 
Operatinp Offimr of The Berkshire Gas 2003 b 2004 Vice President and General Manager of The Berkshire 
Company Gas Company 

to 2003 Vice President of The Berkshlre Gas Company 

Wesley W. von Schack has an employment agreement for a term ending June 30,2007. 
Mr. von Schack's agreement provides for his employment as Chairman, President & Chief 
Executive Officer of the company. The agreement provides for automatic one-year extensions 
unless either party gives notice that such agreement is not to be extended. 

Robert M. Allessio, Sara J. Burns and F. Michael McClain each have an employment 
agreement, which is automatically extended each month unless either party to an agreement 
gives written notice that it is not to be extended. Ms. Burns' agreement provides for her 
employment as President of CMP and Mr. Allessio's agreement provides for his employment 
as Chief Executive Officer of Berkshire Gas. 

Each officer holds office for the term for which he or she is elected or appointed, and until his 
or her successor is elected and qualifies. The term of office for each officer extends to and 
expires at the meeting of the Board of Directors following the next annual meeting of 



shareholders. 

PART I1 

Item 5. Market for Registrants' Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer 
Purchases of Equity Securities 

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. The number of shareholders of 
record was 29,896 at January 31,2007. 

Quarter Ended March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 

2006 
Dividends Declared per Share S.29 $.2S t.29 t.30 
Common Stock Price 
High $25.57 $25.39 $25.20 $25.66 
Low f 22.98 $22.18 $23.36 $23.62 

2005 
Dividends Declared per Share S.275 1.275 t.275 $.29 
Common Stock Price 
High $26.95 $30.07 $29.35 $25.95 
Low 524.98 $25.09 $24.82 $22.50 

RGS Energy, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Energy East, owns all of RG&E's common stock. 
See Item 8 - RG&E's Statements of Changes in Common Stock Equity for information 
regarding dividends declared. 

Equity Compensation Plan Information 

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2006, with respect to shares of 
common stock that may be issued under Energy East's 2000 Stock Option Plan and its 
Restricted Stock Plan. 

(4 
(a) Number of securities 

Number of securities (b) remaining available for 
to be issued upon Weightedsverage future issuance under 

exercise of exercise price of equity compensation plans 
outstandina ootlons outatandina ootlons lexcludlna securities ~ ~ ~ ~ 

Plan category and S ~ R ;  and S ~ R ;  reflected in column(a)) 
Equity Compensation 
Plan Approved by 
~tockholders (2000 
Stock Option Plan) 3,658,555 $24.03 6,731.246 
Equity Compensation 
Plan Not Approved 
by Stockholders 
(Restricted Stock Plan) 
(1) NIA NIA . . 

Total 3,658,555 7,726,870 



('1 see I b m  B -   om 12 to our Consolidated Flnancial Statements for information regarding the Reslrlctsd s t o a  Plan. 

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 

Energy East Corporation 

Period 

(c) 
Total number 

(dl 
Maximum 

of shares number of shares 
(a) purchased as that may yet be 

Total number (b) part of publicly purchased under 
of shares Average price announced plans the plans or 
purchased paid per share or programs programs 

Month #I 
(October I ,  2006 to 
October 31,2006) 

Month #2 
(November I, 2006 to 
November 30,2006) 4,919(l) $23.94 

Month #3 
(December 1,2006 to 
December 31.2006) 6.189(') $25.32 

Total 

('1 Represents shams or our mmmon stock (Par Value s.01) purchased in open-market tmnsadlons on behaif of our Employaes'~mck Purchase 
Plan. 

RG&E had no issuer purchases of equity securities during the quarter ended 
December 31,2006. 

ltem 6. Selected Financial Data 

See the information under the heading Selected Financial Data for Energy East, which is 
included on page II-23. 

RG&E meets the conditions set forth in General Instruction I (l)(a) and (b) of Form 10-K for 
a reduced disclosure format. Accordingly, the ltem 6 information related to RG&E is 
not presented. 

ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations 

See the information under the heading Manaqement's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial 
Condition and Results of O~erations for Energy East, which is included in this report on pages 
11-24 to JI-55. 



RG&E meets the conditions set forth in General Instruction I(l)(a) and (b) of Form 10-Kfor a 
reduced disclosure format and is therefore including a management's narrative analysis of the 
results of operations as specified in General Instruction I(2)(a) of Form 10-K. See information 
under the heading Manaaement's Narrative Analvsis of Results of Operations for RG&E, which 
is included in this report on pages 11-97 to 11-98. 

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Dlsclosures About Market Risk 

See ltem 7 - MD&A - Market Risk for Energy East and see the Notes to Financial Statements 
in Itern 8 that are referred to in Energy East's Market Risk disclosure. 

See ltem 7A - Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk for RG&E on page 
11-99 and see the Notes to Financial Statements in ltem 8 that are referred to in RG&E1s ltem 
7A disclosures. 

ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 

Index to 2006 Financial Statements 

Energy East Corporation 
Consol~dated Bamce Sheets 
Consolidated Statements of Income 
Consolidated Statements of Ca&Ehm 
p- 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Report of Independent Reaistered Public Accountina Firm 
Financial Statement Schedule II. 
Consolidated Valuation and Quallfvina I@XW& 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 
Statements of Income 
Balance Sheets 
Statements of Cash Flma 

in Common Stock EQuihl Statements of Chanaes 
potes to Financial Statements 
Re~0r t  of Independent Reaistered Public Accountina Firm 
Financial Statement Schedule II. 
Valuation and Qualihn'na Accounts 

ltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and 
Financial Disclosure 

None for Energy East or RG&E. 

ltem 9A. Controls and Procedures 

11-101 
11-102 
11- 104 
11-105 
11-106 
11-126 

11- 127 



Management's Annual Report on Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

The principal executive officers and principal financial officers of Energy East and RG&E 
evaluated the effectiveness of their respective company's disclosure controls and procedures 
as of the end of the period covered by this report. "Disclosure controls and procedures" are 
controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information 
required to be disclosed by the company in the reports that it files or submits under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, within the time periods specified in the SEC rules and forms, 
is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, and is accumulated and communicated to 
the company's management, including its principal executive officer and principal financial 
officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Based on their 
evaluation, the principal executive officers and principal financial officers of Energy East and 
RG&E concluded that their respective company's disclosure controls and procedures 
are effective. 

Energy East Management's Annual Report on lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Energy East's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal - control over financial reporting. lnternal control over financial reporting is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Under the supervision and with 
the participation of management, including the principal executive officer and principal financial 
officer, an evaluation was conducted of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial - 
reporting based on the framework in lnternal Control - lntegrated Framework issued by The 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on Energy 
East's evaluation under the framework in lnternal Control - Integrated Framework, 
management concluded that Energy East's internal control over financial reporting was 
effective as of December 31.2006. 

Energy East management's assessment of the effectiveness of its internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 31,2006, has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers 
LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report on page n-94. 

? 

Changes in lnternal Control over Financial Reporting 

On October 1, 2006, RG&E modified certain internal controls over financial reporting to 
accommodate the implementation of a new customer care system. The customer care system 
is used for customer bill production and integrates RG&E1s revenue, accounts receivable and - cash management transactions with Energy East's centralized accounting system. 

There were no other changes in Energy East's or RG&E1s internal control over financial 
reporting that occurred during each company's most recent fiscal quarter that have materially 
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the respective company's internal control 
over financial reporting. - 

Item 9B. Other Information 

None for Energy East or RG&E. 



CI Selected Financial Data 

Energy East Corporation 

n 
(Thousand., bxcspt par Sham ~mounb)  

Operating Revenues 
Depreciation and amortization 
Other taxes - Interest Charges, Net 
Income from Continuing 
Operations 

Net Income 

Earnings per Sham from 

CI 
Continuing Operations, basic $1.77 $1.75 $1.63 $ 1.43 $1.45 (2) 

Eamings per Sham from $1.76 
Continuing Operations, diluted $ 1.74 $1.62 $1.43 $1.45 (2) 

Eamings per Share, basic $1.77 $1.75 $1.57 $1.45 $1.44 (2) 

Earnings per Share, diluted $1.76 $1.74 $1.56 $1.44 $1.44 (2) 

M Dividends Declared per Share $1.17 $1.115 $1.055 $1 .OO $36 
Average Common 
Shares Outstanding, basic 146,962 146.964 146,305 145.535 131,117 

Average Common 
Shares Outstanding, diluted 147,717 147,474 146,713 145.730 131,117 

Utility Capital Spending $408,231 $331,294 $299,263 $289,320 $229.387 
n 

Total Assets $1 1,562,401 $1 1.487.708 $10,796,622 $1 1,330,441 $10,944,347 
Lona-term Obliaations, 
capital  eases and 
Redeemable Preferred Stock 

4 

("Dm loth.  completion of our mHOertransadion durinq 2002 me CanaolMated Rnandal Itabmsn(. include RGS Enargy's results bepinning with July 
2002. 
(2) includes the wdledown of our investment In NEON CommuniuUons, Inc. that decreased nbt income $7 miillon and EPS 6 cent6 and tile effect of 
ra~lmduring expenses that decreased net i n w m  $24 milion m d  EPS 19 ma. 

Manaaement's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of  
Operations 

Energy East Corporation 

r Overview 

Energy East's primary operations, our electric and natural gas utility operations, are subject to 
rate regulation established predominately by state utility commissions. The approved 
regulatory treatment on various matters significantly affects our financial position, results of 
operations and cash flows. We have long-term rate plans for NYSEG's natural gas segment. 
RG&E, CMP and Berkshire Gas that currently allow for recovery of certain costs, including 



stranded costs; and provide stable rates for customers and revenue predictability. Where long- 
term rate plans are not in effect, we monitor the adequacy of rate levels and file for new rates 
when necessary. NYSEG's five-year electric rate plan expired December 31,2006, and new 
rates went into effect on January 1, 2007. SCG received approval for new rates that became 
effective January 1, 2006, and CNG recently entered into a settlement agreement that, if 
approved, will result in new rates effective April 1,2007. As of January 31,2007, Energy East 
had 5,884 employees. 

We continue to focus our strategic efforts on the areas that have the greatest effect on 
customer satisfaction and shareholder value. NYSEG implemented a new customer care 
system in the first quarter of 2006 and RG&E implemented a similar system in October 2006. 

The continuing uncertainty in the evolution of the utility industry, particularly the electric utility 
industry, has resulted in several federal and state regulatory proceedings that could 
significantly affect our operations and the rates that our customers pay for energy. Those 
proceedings, which are discussed below, could affect the nature of the electric and natural gas 
utility industries in New York and New England. 

- 
We expect to make significant capital investments to enhance the safety and reliability of our 
distribution systems and to meet the growing energy needs of our customers in an 
environmentally responsible manner. Capital spending is expected to exceed $3 billion through 
201 1, including $496 million in 2007. Major spending programs include the installation of 
advanced metering infrastructure in New York and Maine requiring a $500 million investment; 
$500 million of transmission investments, predominantly in Maine; a high efficiency transformer - 
replacement program; and a "green" fleet initiative. The majority of these planned transmission 
investments will be pursuant to a regional reliability planning process and will qualify for the 
FERC's transmission investment ROE incentive adders. (See New England RTO.) We will also 
be investigating the repowering of the Russell Station using clean coal technologies, at a 
potential estimated cost of approximately $500 million. We estimate that over one-half of our - 
capital spending program will be funded with internally generated funds and the remainder 
through the issuance of a combination of debt and equity securities. 

Manaaement's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of 
O~erat iong 

Energy East Corporation 

Strategy 

We have maintained a consistent energy delivery and services strategy over the past several 
years, focusing on the safe, secure and reliable transmission and distribution of electricity and 
natural gas. Our operating companies have become increasingly efficient through realization of 
merger-enabled synergies. The company intends to augment this strategic focus by 

- 
addressing many of the precepts of the Energy Policy Act of 2005 including: a) investing in 
transmission to increase reliability, meet new load growth and connect new, renewable 
generation to the grid; b) investing in advanced metering infrastructure to promote customer 
conservation and peak load management; c) investing in our distribution infrastructure to make 
it more efficient by reducing losses; and d) investing in new regulated generation that is - 



environmentally friendly and, where possible, sustainable. 

Our individual company rate plans are a critical component of our success. While specific 
provisions may vary among our public utility subsidiaries, our overall strategy includes creating 
stable rate environments that allow those subsidiaries to earn a fair return while minimizing 
price increases and sharing achieved savings with customers. 

Electric Delivery Rate Overview 

Our electric delivery business consists primarily of our regulated electricity transmission, 
distribution and generation operations in upstate New York and Maine. The electric industry is 
regulated by various state and federal agencies, including state utility commissions and the 
FERC. The following is a brief overview of the principal rate agreements in effect for each of 
our electric utilities. 

Electn'c Rate Plans: NYSEG had an electric rate plan that took effect as of January 1, 2002, 
and expired on December 31,2006. That rate plan provided for equal sharing of the greater of 
ROES in excess of 12.5% on electric delivery, or 15.5% on the total electric business (including 
commodity earnings that over the term of the rate plan were estimated to be $25 million to $40 
million on an annual basis based on future energy prices at the time the plan was approved) 
for each of the years 2003 through 2006. For purposes of earnings sharing, NYSEG was 
required to use the lower of its actual equity or a 45% equity ratio. At December 31, 2006, the 
equity NYSEG used for earnings sharing approximated $740 million, which was based on the 
45% equity ratio limitation. Earnings levels were sufficient to generate estimated pretax sharing 
with customers of $5 million in 2006, $28 million in 2005, and $17 million in 2004. 

On August 23, 2006, the NYPSC issued an order requiring that NYSEG reduce its electric 
delivery rates by approximately $36 million, or approximately 6%, effective January 1, 2007. 
(See NYSEG Electric Rate Order .) 

RG&E1s current rates were established by the 2004 Electric Rate Agreement, which addresses 
RG&E1s electric rates through at least 2008. Key features of the Electric Rate Agreement 
include freezing electric delivery rates through December 2008, except for the implementation 
of a retail access surcharge effective May 1, 2004, to recover $7 million annually. An ASGA 
was established that was originally estimated to be $145 million at the end of 2008 and will be 
used at that time for rate moderation or other purposes at the discretion of the NYPSC. The 

Manaaement's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations 

Energy East Corporation 

Electric Rate Agreement also established an earnings-sharing mechanism to allow customers 
and shareholders to share equally in earnings above a 12.25% ROE target. Earnings levels 
were sufficient to generate $6 million of pretax sharing in 2006 and $23 million in 2005. 

NYSEG and RG&E currently offer their retail customers choice in their electricity supply 
including a fixed rate option, a variable rate option under which rates vary monthly based on 
the actual cost of electricity purchases and an option to purchase electricity supply from an 
ESCO. Both NYSEG's and RG&E's customers make their supply choice annually. Those 



customers who do not make a choice are served under a variable price option. Customers also 
pay nonbypassable wires charges, which include recovery of stranded costs. The table below 
shows the percentages of load that are projected to be served under the various commodity 
supply options for 2007. 

NYSEG RG&E 

Fixed Price Option 17% 21 % 

Variable Price Option 45% 29% 

Energy Sewice Company Option 38% 50% 

- 
Experience has shown that the majority of our residential and small commercial customers 
want their utility to remain a supply option and prefer a fixed price option. NYSEG and RG&E 
believe that their programs are among the most successful of any retail access plans in New 
York State in terms of active participation and customer migration. In addition, their programs 
have produced customer benefits in excess of $130 million through 2006. Customer benefits 
include the customer's portion of earnings sharing and costs that were absorbed by NYSEG A 

and RG&E that would otherwise have been deferred for future recovery had earnings levels 
been insufficient to generate sharing. 

CMP's distribution costs are recovered under the ARP 2000, which became effective January 
1,2001, and continues through December 31,2007, with price changes, if any, occurring on - 
July 1. CMP's annual delivery rate adjustments are based on inflation with productivity offsets 
of 2.75% in 2006 and 2.9% in 2007. Price adjustments since 2002 have generally resulted in 
rate decreases. 

CMP uses formula rates for transmission that are FERC regulated. The formula rates provide - 
for the recovery of CMP's cost of owning, operating and maintaining its local and regional 
transmission facilities and local control center, including a FERC-approved base level ROE of 
10.9%, plus a 50 basis point adder for regional facilities and a 100 basis point adder applicable 
to regional facilities placed in service after December 31, 2003, and approved as part of the 
ISO-NE regional planning process. The formula rates are updated annually in a filing to the - 
FERC on June 1st. CMP's transmission rates increased approximately $20 million for the rate 
year effective June 1,2006. The increase enables CMP to recover its share of ISO-NE 
regional transmission costs and its local transmission costs. 

Manaaement's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of  
Operations 

Energy East Corporation 

Pursuant to Maine statutes, CMP recovers the above-market costs of its purchased power 
agreements, as well as costs incurred to decommission and dismantle the nuclear facilities in 
which CMP has an ownership share, through its stranded cost rates. In January 2005 the 
MPUC approved new stranded cost rates for the three-year period ending February 2008. 
Any difference between actual and projected stranded costs is deferred for future refund 



or recovery. CMP is prohibited by state law From providing commodtty service to its customers. 

Electric Delivery Business Developments 

NYSEG Electric Rate Orde~  In September 2005 NYSEG filed a six-year Electric Rate Plan 
Extension with the NYPSC, to commence on January 1,2007. NYSEG's Electric Rate Plan 
Extension, as subsequently amended, proposed, beginning on January 1,2007, to reduce the 
nonbypassable wires charge by $168 million and increase delivery rates by $104 million, 
thereby resulting in an annualized overall electricity delivery rate decrease of $64 million, or 
8.6%. NYSEG proposed to accomplish the reduction in its nonbypassable wires charge by 
accelerating benefits from certain expiring above-market NUG contracts and capping the 
amount of above-market NUG costs over the term of the rate plan extension (referred to as 
NYSEG's NUG levelization proposal). NYSEG also proposed to increase its equity ratio from 
45% to 50%. In addition, NYSEG's proposal would have allowed customers to continue 
to benefit from merger synergies and savings. 

In early February 2006 Staff of the NYPSC (Staff) and six other parties submitted their direct 
cases. Staff presented only a one-year rate case. In its presentation, Staff proposed a delivery 
rate decrease of approximately $83 million, or about 13.4%. Staff neither rebutted nor 
addressed NYSEG's revised and updated rate plan extension proposal, including its NUG 
levelization proposal, and opposed NYSEG's proposal to extend its Voice Your Choice 
commodity program. Staff also raised several retroactive accounting issues that will be 
addressed in a future proceeding. The most significant of those issues concerns NYSEG's 
internal other post employment benefits (OPEB) reserve (explained below), which, if accepted 
by the NYPSC, would have a material effect on earnings. 

On August 23, 2006, the NYPSC issued its order in this proceeding. Major provisions of the 
Order include: 

A decrease in delivery rates of $36 million. NYSEG's most recent update in the 
proceeding requested a $58 million increase in delivery rates. 

A 9.55% ROE. NYSEG had requested an 11% ROE. 

An equity ratio of 41.6% (approximately $610 million of equity) based on Energy East's 
consolidated capital structure. NYSEG had requested a 50% equity ratio based on its 
actual capital structure. 

. A refund of $77 million to be paid from NYSEG's ASGA that had previously been 
reserved for customers. The ASGA was initially created in 1998 as a result of the sale of 
NYSEG's generating stations and had been enhanced during NYSEG's prior electric rate 
plans with the customers' share of earnings from the earnings sharing mechanism. 
Payment of the refund will be made through a credit to customers' bills by the end of April 
2007. 

Manaaement's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations 
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. One retroactive accounting issue raised by Staff concerns $57 million of interest 
associated with NYSEG's internal OPEB reserve, which NYSEG has offset against other 
OPEB costs in its income statement over the past decade. The NYPSC determined that 
$3.6 million in annual revenues that NYSEG receives will remain subject to refund 
pending further examination of NYSEG's accounting for OPEB costs. A proceeding 
related to this issue began in the fourth quarter of 2006 and could result in NYSEG - 
treating all or a portion of the $57 million as an addition to its internal OPEB reserve, with 
a corresponding charge to income. NYSEG is vigorously defending its position and 
contends that the NYPSC staff is engaged in retroactive ratemaking, but is unable to 
predict its outcome. 

- . Significant modifications to NYSEG's previously approved Voice Your Choice commodity 
program, including: 

- Use of the variable rate supply option as the default for all customers not 
making a supply election, rather than the previous fixed price default option. - 

- A 30% reduction in the cost allowance used to set the supply rate. 

- The use of an earnings collar for supply of plus or minus $5 million pre-tax 
with sharing outside the collar of 80% to customers and 20% to shareholders. 
NYSEG previously could earn 300 basis points ROE on supply 
(approximately $22 million) after which earnings were shared equally. 

NYSEG believes that the commodity options program in the Order is unworkable in the long- 
term and inconsistent with the development of a competitive retail market for supply. In 
particular, NYSEG believes that the lower cost allowance used to set the supply rate does not - 
cover the cost and risk of providing fixed price electricity at retail, and will stifle participation by 
retail energy service providers. 

NYSEG estimates that the effect of the order will be to reduce its earnings by $35 million to 
$45 million. This estimate includes the effects of the delivery rate reduction, the lower ROE, - 
the lower equity base that NYSEG is allowed to earn on and the changes in the commodity 
program, including the revised sharing provisions. 

On September 7, 2006, NYSEG filed a petition with the NYPSC for rehearing and request for 
oral argument responding to certain aspects of the Order including the disallowance of system 
implementation costs. On December 15, 2006, the NYPSC denied NYSEG's petition. 

Niaaara PowerProiect Relicensing: The NYPA's FERC license with respect to the Niagara 
Power Project expires on August 31, 2007. In order to continue to operate the Niagara 
Power Project, the NYPA filed a relicensing application in August 2005. The NYPA's - 
relicensing process is important to NYSEG's and RG&E's customers because an aggregate of 
over 360 MWs of Niagara Power Project power has been allocated to the companies based on 
their contracts with the NYPA. (NYSEG and RG&E also receive allocations from the St. 
Lawrence Project pursuant to those same contracts.) The contracts expire on August 31, 2007, 
upon termination of the NYPA's FERC license. The annual value of the Niagara allocation to 
the companies at current electricity market prices is approximately $77 million and the loss of 

- 
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allocation would increase NYSEG's and RG&E1s residential customer rates. However, the 
NYPA has stated that the allocation of Niagara Power Project power to NYSEG and RG&E 
should not be addressed in the relicensing proceeding and that the disposition of the power will 
be in accordance with state and federal requirements. 

Advanced Metering Infrastructure: In February 2007 in response to an August 2006 NYPSC 
order, NYSEG and RG&E filed a plan to install advanced metering infrastructure (smart 
meters) for all of their electric and natural gas customers. Smart meters would enable 
customers to better control their energy usage by providing time-differentiated rates. Smart 
meters would also improve the companies' response to service interruptions, enhance safety, 
and provide internal usage and demand data that will ultimately lead to peak demand reduction 
and defer the need for generation sources. The plan calls for a total capital investment of 
approximately $370 million between 2008 and 2010. 

Errant Voltaae: In January 2005 the NYPSC issued an Order Instituting Safety Standards in 
response to a pedestrian being electrocuted from contact with an energized service box cover 
in New York City. The incident occurred outside of our service territory. All New York utilities 
were directed to respond to that order by February 19,2005, with a report that provided a 
detailed voltage testing program, an inspection program and schedule, safety criteria applied 
to each program, a quality assurance program, a training program for testing and inspections 
and a description of current or planned research and development activities related to errant 
voltage and safety issues. The order also established penalties for failure to achieve annual 
performance targets for testing and inspections, at 75 basis points each. 

In early February 2005 NYSEG and RG&E filed, with two other New York State utilities, a joint 
petition for rehearing that focused on several areas including the impracticability of the 
timetable established in the order. In response to the order, in late February 2005 NYSEG and 
RG&E filed a testing and inspection plan that is consistent with the timetable identified in the 
joint petition for rehearing. NYSEG and RG&E are implementing their plans, including testing 
of equipment. On July 21, 2005, in response to the petition for rehearing, the NYPSC issued 
an order detailing the revised requirements for stray voltage testing and reduced penalties 
during the first year to 37.5 basis points. NYSEG and RG&E filed the required annual reports 
with the NYPSC on January 17, 2006. In August 2006 NYSEG and RG&E completed their first 
complete cycle of testing and at the request of the NYPSC, submitted an interim report on 
October 23, 2006, detailing their results. Under the provisions of their respective rate plans, 
they are allowed to defer and recover these costs. 

For 2006. costs incurred to comply with the order were approximately $4 million for NYSEG 
and $2 m.illion for RG&E. For 2007, estimated additional costs to comply with the order are 
approximately $6 million for NYSEG and $3 million for RGBE. 



RG&E Transmission Prqiect: In December 2004 RG&E received approval from the NYPSC to 
upgrade its electric transmission system in order to provide sufficient transmission and ensure 
reliable service to customers in anticipation of the shutdown of the Russell Station. The project 
includes building or rebuilding 38 miles of transmission lines and upgrading substations in the 
Rochester, New York area. In August 2005 RG&E selected the team of EPRO Engineering, 
E.S. Boulos and O'Connell Electric Company for the project. Construction on the project began 
in the first quarter of 2006 and is expected to be completed by December 2007. The estimated 
cost of the project is approximately $1 19 million. 
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RG&E Dis~ute Settlement Related to NMP2 Exit Aareement In November 2001 RG&E and 
three other NMP2 joint owners, including Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation (Niagara 
Mohawk), sold their interests in NMP2 to Constellation Nuclear, LLC. In connection with the - 

sale of NMP2, RG&E informed Niagara Mohawk that RG&E1s payment obligations and rights 
to certain TCCs would cease according to the terms of an exit agreement executed by RG&E 
and Niagara Mohawk in June 1998. Niagara Mohawk disagreed with RG&E's position, 
claiming that RG&E must continue to make annual payments that were to decline from about 
$7 million per year in 2002 to $4 million per year in 2007, and remain at that level until 2043. In - 
August 2001, RG&E filed a complaint asking the New York State Supreme Court, Monroe 
County, to find that, as a result of the sale of its interest in NMP2, RG&E has no further 
obligation to make payments under the exit agreement and that the TCCs to which RG&E was 
entitled under the exit agreement should be returned to and accepted by Niagara Mohawk. 

In the first quarter of 2006, RG&E and Niagara Mohawk stayed the litigation and entered into 
confidential mediation with an ALJ appointed by the NYPSC. On June 29, 2006, the parties 
executed a settlement agreement that provides for RG&E1s one-time payment of $34 million to 
Niagara Mohawk and further provides that RG&E retain the rights and obligations related to 
the TCCs until 2043, including the value accumulated to date of approximately $4 million. The - settlement agreement was contingent upon the fulfillment of certain closing conditions, 
including FERC acceptance of an amendment to and restatement of the exit agreement. All 
of the necessary closing conditions were fulfilled, including a favorable judgment from the 
FERC and the lack of a negative finding by the Director of Accounting and Finance of the 
NYPSC, and RG&E made the required payment. In accordance with the 2001 settlement and 
order associated with the transfer of RG&E's share of NMP2 to Constellation Nuclear and - 
RG&E1s Electric Rate Agreement, RG&E adjusted its regulatory asset established as a result 
of the sale of NMP2 for the amount of the $34 million payment to Niagara Mohawk, which was 
offset by the accumulated TCC amount of approximately $4 million. The payment will also be 
adjusted by any future TCC amounts. RG&E1s results of operations were not affected by the 
settlement of this dispute. The current amortization and recovery of this regulatory asset in - 
rates remains unchanged. 

Threatened Litiaation for Russell Station: In October 1999 RG&E received a letter from the 
New York State Attorney General's office alleging that RG&E may have constructed and 
operated major modifications to the Beebee and Russell generating stations without obtaining - 



the required prevention of significant deterioration or new source review permits. The letter 

m 
requested that RG&E provide the Attorney General's office with a large number of 
documents relating to this allegation. In January 2000 RG&E received a subpoena from the 
NYSDEC ordering production of similar documents. RG&E supplied documents and complied 
with the subpoena. 

The NYSDEC served RG&E with a notice of violation in May 2000 alleging that between 1983 
and 1987 RG&E completed five projects at Russell Station, and two projects at Beebee 
Station, which is currently shut down, without obtaining the appropriate permits. RG&E 
believes it has complied with the applicable rules and there is no basis for the Attorney 
General's and the NYSDEC's allegations. Beginning in July 2000 the NYSDEC, the Attorney 
General and RG&E had a number of discussions with respect to the resolution of the notice of 

L violation. In October 2006 the Attorney General's office and the NYSDEC notified RG&E of 
their intention to file a complaint in federal court for violations at Russell Station unless a 
settlement can be reached. 

Manaaement's Discuss ion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
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Were the Attorney General and the NYSDEC to commence a Clean Air Act lawsuit against 
RG&E, they would need to demonstrate, among other things, that the challenged modifications 
to the Russell generating station cause an "increase" in emissions from the station. The issue 
of what constitutes the appropriate test for an emissions increase currently is before the United 

n 
States Supreme Court in Environmental Defense v. Duke Energy Corporation, Docket No. 05- 
848. Oral argument was held on November 2006, and a decision is expected in the first half of 
2007. RG&E, the NYSDEC and the Attorney General continue to discuss this matter and no 
suit has been filed to date. RG&E is not able to predict the outcome of this matter. 

CMP Alternative Rate Plan: In December 2005 CMP and the Maine Office of the Public 
Advocate filed with the MPUC a stipulation for an extension of CMP's ARP 2000. The 
stipulation was also supported by low-income customer advocates, and a coalition of industrial 
energy customers signed the stipulation agreement. The stipulation maintained the provisions 
of CMP's ARP 2000 and proposed a three-year extension with four additional items: (i) a 0.5% 
increase in the scheduled productivity offset of 2.75% for July 2006 and provided for 

fi  productivity offsets 

averaging 2% for 2008, 2009 and 2010, (ii) an additional $2.2 million in assistance for low- 
income customers annually starting in 2006, (iii) CMP agreed to educate its customers on the 
regional benefits of adjusting usage during peak hours and demand periods and also agreed to 

L limit the promotion of increased usage during specified higher demand periods and (iv) CMP 
agreed to commit to investing an additional $25 million through 201 0 for enhancements to the 
reliability, safety and security of its distribution system. 

In February 2006 the MPUC approved that portion of the stipulation increasing assistance to 
low-income customers for one year. On April 28,2006, the Staff of the MPUC filed its analysis 
and recommendations with the MPUC commissioners, opposing the stipulation other than the 



portion that was approved. CMP and the other stipulating parties responded to the Staffs 
recommendations in a brief filed on May 19, 2006. On June 5, 2006, the MPUC determined 
that the stipulation was not in the public interest unless substantially modified, and on June 21, - 

2006, the MPUC agreed to dismiss the proceeding at the request of the stipulating parties. 
CMP will file a proposal for a new alternative rate plan by May 1, 2007, to be effective January 
1, 2008. In the interim, CMP continues to operate under the terms of ARP 2000. 

CMP Electricitv SUDD~V Res~onsibiIi?L Under Maine statutes, CMP's customers can choose to - 
arrange for competitive energy supply or take default supply under standard-offer service as 
arranged by the MPUC. The MPUC conducts periodic supply solicitations for standard-offer 
service by customer class. If the MPUC does not accept any competitive supply bid for a 
standard offer arrangement, the MPUC can mandate that CMP be a standard-offer provider of 
electricity supply service for retail customers and CMP would recover all costs of such an 
arrangement in rates. As of January 2007, the MPUC has approved standard-offer service 
arrangements for all of CMP's customer classes through competitive solicitation. The supply 
prices and terms of the arrangements vary by class, including a laddered three-year 
arrangement for residential and small commercial customers that solicits one-third of the 
supply each year and a six-month arrangement for medium and large commercial and 
industrial customers. 

Manaaement's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of 
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CMP Nuclear Costs: CMP owns shares of stock in three companies that own nuclear 
generating facilities in New England that have been permanently shut down, and are 
decommissioned or in process of being decommissioned: Maine Yankee Atomic Power 
Company (38% ownership), Connecticut Yankee Atomic Power Company (6% ownership) and 
Yankee Atomic Electric Power Company (9.5% ownership). Each of the three facilities has an 
established NRC licensed independent spent fuel storage installation on site to store spent 
nuclear fuel in dry casks until the DOE takes the fuel for disposal. The Yankee companies - 
commenced litigation in 1998 charging that the federal government had breached the contracts 
it entered into with each of the Yankee companies in 1983 for spent nuclear fuel disposal. The 
contracts provided for the federal government to begin removing spent nuclear fuel from the 
Yankee companies, no later than January 31, 1998, in return for payments by each of the 
Yankee companies. Two federal courts found that the federal government breached its 
contracts with the Yankee companies and other utilities. A trial in the U.S. Court of Federal 
Claims to determine the monetary damages owed to the Yankee companies for the DOE'S 
continued failure to remove spent nuclear fuel concluded in January 2005. The Yankee 
companies' individual damage claims are specific to each plant and include costs through 
2010, the earliest year the DOE expects that it will begin removing fuel. 

On September 30, 2006, the U.S. Court of Federal Claims issued a favorable ruling for the 
three Yankee companies in their litigation with the federal government over its failure to 
remove spent nuclear fuel from the three former nuclear power plant sites. In the ruling, 
Yankee Atomic was awarded $33 million in damages for costs through 2001, Connecticut 
Yankee was awarded $34 million for costs through 2001, and Maine Yankee was awarded $76 

- 



million for costs through 2002. CMP's sponsor-weighted share of the award is approximately 
$34 million. Since spent nuclear fuel continues to be stored at the sites, the Yankee companies 

rn will have the opportunity to recover more damages in future lawsuits. On December 4, 2006, 
the federal government appealed the decision, delaying payment of the damage awards. Any 
awards ultimately received will be credited to the Yankee companies' respective electric 
ratepayer-funded, decommissioning or spent fuel trust funds. CMP cannot predict the ultimate 
outcome of this matter. 

r 

Pursuant to a FERC approved settlement, in July 2004 Connecticut Yankee filed for FERC 
approval of a revised schedule of decommissioning charges to be collected from its wholesale 
customers, based on an updated estimate of decommissioning costs. Estimated 
decommissioning and long-term spent fuel storage costs for the period 2000 through 2023 

r increased by approximately $390 million in 2003 dollars and result in annual collections of 
$93 million from Connecticut Yankee's owners, including CMP. The revised estimate reflects 
increases in the projected costs for spent fuel storage, security, liability and property insurance 
and the fact that Connecticut Yankee had to take over all work to complete the 
decommissioning of the plant due to its termination of its contract with Bechtel, the turnkey 

m decommissioning contractor, in July 2003. On August I I, 2006, Connecticut Yankee filed a 
settlement agreement supported by all parties, including the FERC trial staff, that resolved all 
of the issues contested and will allow Connecticut Yankee to collect the increased 
decommissioning costs. FERC approved the settlement agreement in November 2006. The 
revised decommissioning charges will be collected in wholesale rates effective January 1, 

C 
2007, until December 2015. 

Manaaernent's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of  
O~erations 

Energy East Corporation 

Nonutilitv Generation: We expensed approximately $560 million for NUG power in 2006 and 
we estimate that our combined NUG power purchases will total $568 million in 2007, $392 - million in 2008, $229 million in 2009, $84 million in 2010 and $85 million in 201 1. CMP and 
NYSEG continue to seek ways to provide relief to their customers from above-market NUG 
contracts that state regulators ordered the companies to sign, and which, in 2006, averaged 
10.2 cents per kilowatt-hour for CMP and 11.3 cents per kilowatt-hour for NYSEG. Recovery of 
these NUG costs is provided for in CMP's stranded cost rates and in NYSEG's rates through a 
nonbypassable wires charge. (See Item 8 - Note 9 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.) 

New Enaland RTO: In March 2004 the FERC issued an order that accepted a six-state New 
England RTO that CMP participates in and which is operated by ISO-NE and the New England 
transmission owners. The RTO began operations effective February 1,2005. As an RTO, ISO- 
NE is responsible for the independent operation of the regional transmission system and 
regional wholesale energy market. The transmission owners retain ownership of their 
transmission facilities and control over their revenue requirements. The FERC also approved 
both a 50 basis point ROE incentive adder for regional transmission facilities subject to RTO 
control and a 100 basis point ROE incentive adder for new regional transmission facilities 

- approved as part of the regional planning process. The New England transmission owners 
appealed the application of the adders to local facilities to the Circuit Court of Appeals for the 



District of Columbia. Other parties appealed the FERC's decision to grant the adders to 
regional facilities. On June 30,2006, the Court denied the appeals and upheld the FERC's 
decisions. On October 31, 2006, the FERC issued an Opinion and Order on Initial Decision 
establishing the ROE applicable to the RTO, including CMP's transmission system. The 
October 31 order adopts a base-level ROE of 10.2 percent, with three adjustments as follows: 
a 50 basis point incentive for RTO participation; a 100 basis point incentive for new 
transmission investment; and a 74 basis point adjustment reflecting updated bond data, as 
applicable to the period commencing with the date of the order. The resulting ROEs for 
existing regional transmission facilities were 10.7 percent for the period February I ,  2005, 
through October 31, 2006, and are 11.4 percent for the going-forward period. 

The ROEs that will apply to post-2003 regional transmission facilities approved as part of the 
regional reliability planning process will include an incremental 100 basis point adder, and are . 

11.7 percent prior to the date of the order, and 12.4 percent for the going-forward period. 
Several parties have filed for rehearing of the order and can appeal the final order. The New 
England transmission owner filing parties submitted a filing in compliance with the order on 
December 21, 2006 to establish a refund and billing procedure as required by the final Order. 
On February 6, 2007, several parties filed a late protest to this compliance filing. CMP cannot 
predict the outcome of these proceedings. 

Locational Installed Ca~acitv Markets: In 2003 the FERC required ISO-NE to file a proposed 
mechanism to implement, by January 1, 2006, location or deliverability requirements in the 
installed capacity or resource adequacy market to ensure that generators that provide capacity 
within areas of New England are appropriately compensated for reliability. In response, in 2004 - 
ISO-NE developed and filed with the FERC a market proposal based on an administratively set 
demand curve (previously referred to as locational installed capacity or LICAP). In June 2005 
the FERC ALJ issued an initial decision, essentially adopting the ISO-NE market proposal, with 
minor modifications. 

Manaaement's - Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of 
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CMP and other parties that oppose the ISO-NE market proposal filed exceptions to the 
recommended decision in July 2005. The Energy Policy Act of 2005 included a "sense of 
Congress" provision to the effect that the FERC should carefully consider the objections of the 
New England states to the proposal in the recommended decision. Following oral arguments, 
the FER? granted the request to conduct settlement discussions to consider alternatives. 
Settlement discussions beaan in November 2005 and in Januatv 2006 the settlement ALJ 
reported to the FERC that most of the parties had reached an agreement in principle on an 
alternative. The alternative would provide fixed transitional capacity payments from 2006 until - 
2010 and provide capacity payments based on a Forward Capacity Market Auction thereafter. 
CMP opposed this settlement agreement because of the cost of the transition payments to 
electric customers in Maine. The ISO-NE and a majority of New England Power Pool 
(NEPOOL) participants supported the settlement agreement. That alternative has been filed 
with the FERC as a component of a comprehensive settlement agreement. 

- 



The MPUC, among other parties, filed comments opposing the settlement agreement, because 
the proposal could have an adverse effect on Maine's economy by increasing its generation 
supply rates, including standard offer rates, by an estimated 5% to 10%. On June 15, 2006, 
the FERC issued an order accepting the settlement agreement without modification. The 
MPUC and other parties opposed to the settlement agreement filed a request with the FERC 
asking it to reconsider its June 15 order. On October 31,2006, the FERC issued an Order on 
Rehearing and Clarification denying requests for rehearing and affirming its approval of the 
settlement agreement. With the FERC's denial of the rehearing requests, the resulting 
increased costs associated with regional installed capacity have been reflected in Maine 
consumers' generation supply rates since December 2006. Several parties, including the 
MPUC, have filed notices of appeal in the US Circuit Court of Appeals, seeking to overturn the 
FERC's orders approving the settlement agreement. CMP cannot predict the outcome of these 
proceedings. 

MPUC lnauiries into Lona-Tern Utilitv Contractina and Continued Partici~ation in New 
Enaland RTO: Maine lawmakers enacted legislation in 2005 that requires the MPUC to 
conduct two inquiries. The first concerns whether or not CMP and other Maine electric utilities 
should continue to participate in the New England RTO, as operated by the ISO-NE. In this 
inquiry, the MPUC issued an interim report to the Maine Legislature on January 16, 2007, 
reporting its preliminary findings: inequities exist in the current cost allocation system of the 
ISO-NE tariff; no insurmountable legal, economic or technical barriers preclude withdrawal 
from the ISO-NE; and reasonable alternatives exist. The MPUC has begun the next phase of 
this inquiry in which three options will be explored: altering the transmission cost allocation 
formula; exiting the RTO and creating a state-wide independent transmission company; or 
joining with New Brunswick and other Maritime provinces to create a Maine-Canada market. 
The MPUC has set a June 2007 target date for a draft report to the legislature containing 
recommendations for further action. 
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The second inquiry concerns regional energy markets and generation deregulation. The 
MPUC conducted an initial inquiry into the development of a Maine electric resource adequacy 
plan and the use of long-term generating capacity contracts between utilities and capacity 
suppliers and developed provisional long-term contracting rules and the first report on resource 
adequacy, which were submitted to the legislature for further action in early 2007. Because the 
proposed long-term contracting rules are considered major, substantive rules, the Maine 
Legislature must vote on their adoption. 

CMP will continue to participate in the MPUC and subsequent legislative proceedings and 
cannot predict the outcome of the inquiries. 

Natural Gas Delivery Rate Overview 

Our natural gas delivery business consists of our regulated natural gas transportation, storage 
and distribution operations in New York, Connecticut, Massachusetts and Maine. The natural 



gas industry is regulated by various state and federal agencies, including state utility 
commissions. All of our natural gas utilities have a natural gas supply charge or a purchased 
gas adjustment clause to defer and recover actual natural gas costs. The following is a brief 
overview of the current rate agreements in effect for each of our natural gas utilities. 

Natural Gas Rate Plans: NYSEG's Natural Gas Rate Plan, which became effective October 1, 
2002, freezes overall delivery rates through December 31, 2008, and contains an earnings- 
sharing mechanism, a weather normalization adjustment mechanism and a gas cost incentive 
mechanism. The earnings-sharing mechanism requires equal sharing of earnings between 
NYSEG customers and shareholders of ROES in excess of 12.5% through 2008. For purposes 
of earnings sharing, NYSEG is required to use the lower of its actual equity or a 45% equity 
ratio, which approximates $250 million. No sharing occurred in 2006, 2005 or 2004. 

RG&E's current rates were established by the 2004 Natural Gas Rate Agreement, which 
addresses RG&E's natural gas rates through 2008. Key features of the Natural Gas Rate 
Agreement include freezing natural gas delivery rates through December 2008, except for the 
implementation of a natural gas merchant function charge to recover approximately $7 million 
annually beginning May 1, 2004. The Natural Gas Rate Agreement also implemented a 
weather normalization adjustment to protect both customers and RG&E from fluctuating 
revenues due to swings in temperature outside a normal range, and a gas cost incentive 
mechanism to provide a means of sharing with customers any future gas supply cost savings 
that RG&E achieves. An earnings-sharing mechanism was established to allow customers and 
shareholders to share equally in earnings'above a 12.0% ROE target. No sharing occurred in 
2006,2005 or 2004. 

SCG's current rates became effective on January 1,2006, pursuant to a settlement agreement 
that is in effect through December 31, 2007. The total increase in revenue requirements for 
firm rates was set at 8.4% or about $26.7 million and included amounts for recovery of 
previously deferred costs including bad debts. 

CNG's IRP expired on September 30, 2005, and its rates have continued in effect since then, 
but the earnings sharing mechanism, the rate stay-out commitment and the exogenous cost 
provision were no longer applicable. On September 29, 2006, CNG filed for new rates to 
become effective on April I, 2007. On December 21, 2006, CNG and other participants in the 
proceeding filed a settlement agreement with the DPUC for an increase of $15.5 million that 
would be in effect through March 31, 2008. (See CNG Regulatory Proceeding.) 
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Berkshire Gas' current rate plan is a 10-year rate plan that went into effect on February 1, 
2002, and runs through January 31,2012, with a mid-period review in 2007. The plan has no 
ROE cap and has an annual inflationary rate adjustment that is determined based on the gross 
domestic product minus 1% as a productivity offset. The adjustment is made on September lSt 
each year. Berkshire Gas does not believe the mid-period review will result in any significant 
changes to its rate plan. 



Natural Gas Delivery Business Developments 

A Natural Gas S u ~ ~ l v  Aareements: Our natural gas companies - NYSEG, RG&E, SCG, CNG, 
Berkshire Gas and MNG - each have a three-year strategic alliance with BP Energy Company 
ending on March 31, 2007, that gives them the right to acquire natural gas supply and 
optimizes transportation and storage services. We are exploring our options for a new alliance. 

rn CNG Reaulatow Proceeding: On March 21, 2006, the DPUC notified CNG that it had initiated 
a general rate review of CNG pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes, which state that the 
DPUC must conduct a financial review or require a rate case every four years. On September 
29, 2006, CNG submitted a general rate filing, requesting a net rate increase of $28.2 million, 
or 7.9%, in base delivery revenues effective April I, 2007, based on an 11 .O% ROE. The 

n 
requested increase includes $6.7 million for increased bad debt expense, including a hardship 
program, $5.6 million for sharing of achieved management efficiencies and $4.3 million to 
offset lower normalized customer usage. 

On December 21,2006, CNG and the OCC filed with the DPUC a proposed Settlement 
Agreement in which the parties have agreed to a net increase in firm revenues of $15.5 million 
(4.2% of total firm revenues), and a 10.1% ROE. CNG has also agreed to freeze its base 
distribution rates for a period of at least 30 months, until October 2009, to implement an 
automated meter reading system by July 2008, and to a non-firm delivery margin threshold of 
$8.6 million with sharing of 86% to customers and 14% to shareholders. A final decision by the 
DPUC is expected in April 2007. 

a 

Manufactured Gas Plant Remediation Recoverv: RG&E and NYSEG independently began cost 
contribution actions against FirstEnergy Corp. (formerly GPU, Inc.) in federal district court; 
RG&E in the Western District of New York in August 2000 and NYSEG in the Northern District 
of New York in April 2003. The actions are for both past and future costs incurred for the 
investigation and remediation of inactive manufactured gas plant sites. Discovery is ongoing in 
both actions. A trial date for the RG&E action has been set for the fourth quarter of 2007. Any 
proceeds from these actions will go to customers. RG&E and NYSEG are unable to predict the 
outcome of these actions at this time. 

n Environmental Insurance Settlements: In 2005 we served demands on three of our liability 
insurance carriers seeking coverage for environmental investigation and clean-up costs 
incurred at three former manufactured gas plant sites located in Massachusetts. In 2006 we 
settled claims against two carriers for substantial cash payments from each. We are still in 
negotiations with the third carrier and cannot, at this time, predict the results of these 
negotiations. Pursuant to Massachusetts regulations, we are allowed to retain a share of these 
settlement proceeds for shareholders. 
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New Accounting Standards 
rn 



The FASB released FIN 48 in July 2006 and issued Statements 157 and 158 in September 
2006. See ltem 8 - Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for explanations about 
these new accounting standards and when they will become or became effective. 

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments 

At December 31, 2006, our contractual obligations and commercial commitments are: 

Total 2007 2008 2009 201 0 201 1 Atler 201' 
(Thousands) 

Contractual 
Obligations 
~ o n ~ j e r r n  - 
debt(') $7,521,068 $497,028 $318.678 $365.525 $467,371 $407,927 $5,464,33! 
Capital lease 
obligations(l) 37.1 16 3,486 3.466 3.513 3,513 2.791 20,32: 
Operating 
leases 
Nonutility - 
generator 
power 
purchase 
obligations 1,621,553 567,815 392.057 229,209 83,586 84,927 463,951 
Nuclear plant 
obligations 229,354 28,878 25,240 13.543 12,631 3.868 145,19. - 
Unconditional 
~urchase 
obligations: 

Electric 2,032,368 373,401 290,453 296,135 311.961 279,568 480,85( 
Natural gas 212,320 86,017 71,276 27,264 16,589 9.864 1,29( 

Pension and - 
other 
postretirement 
benefitd2) 2,252.779 184,804 193.507 203.1 12 213.599 225,162 1,232,59! 

Other long-term 
obligations 7.179 3,727 1,621 885 596 267 8: 

Total - 
Contractual 
Obligations $14,201,499 $1,758,608 $1,309,589 $1,150,967 $1,121,510 $1,024,888 $7,835.95: 

(')Amount. for longCnn debt and u p b l  h e n  obliialionr Include M u m  intamfi payments. Futum Internsf pnyment. on variable-rate debt am 
determined using established rates at December 31. 2006. 
(2) Amount. are Mrough 2016 only. 

@)The above lable excludes our wulatory Ilabllilbs. deferred income taxer, asset retlmment ablipatlon and envlmnmental mmbdlation costs because 
the related Mure cash flows a n  unmrlain. See ltem 8 -Notes 8. 7, 0 and 14 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for addnlonal informaSon 
regarding our financial commllments at December 31,2006. 
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Critical Accounting Policies 

In preparing our financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, management must often make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and 
related disclosures at the date of the financial statements and during the reporting period. 
Some of those judgments can be subjective and complex, and actual results could differ from 
those estimates. Our most critical accounting policies include the effects of utility regulation on 
our financial statements, the estimates and assumptions used to perform our annual 
impairment analyses for goodwill and other intangible assets, to klculate pension and 
other postretirement benefits and to estimate unbilled revenues and the allowance for 
doubfful accounts. 

Reaulatow Assets and Liabilities: Statement 71 allows companies that meet certain criteria to 
capitalize, as regulatory assets, incurred and accrued costs that are probable of recovery in 
future periods. Those companies record, as regulatory liabilities, obligations to refund 
previously collected revenue or obligations to spend revenue collected from customers on 
future costs. 

We believe our public utility subsidiaries will continue to meet the criteria of Statement 71 for 
their regulated electric and natural gas operations in New York, Maine, Connecticut and 
Massachusetts; however, we cannot predict what effect a competitive market or future actions 
of the NYPSC, MPUC, DPUC, DTE or FERC will have on their ability to continue to do so. If 
our public utility subsidiaries can no longer meet the criteria of Statement 71 for all or a 
separable part of their regulated operations, they may have to record as an expense or as 
revenue certain regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities. 

Approximately 90% of our revenues are derived from operations that are accounted for 
pursuant to Statement 71. The rates our operating utilities charge their customers are set 
under cost basis regulation reviewed and approved by each utility's governing regulatory 
commission. 

Goodwill and Other lntanaible Assets: We do not amortize goodwill or intangible assets with 
indefinite lives. We test both goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives for impairment 
at least annually and amortize intangible assets with finite lives and review them for 
impairment. Impairment testing includes various assumptions, primarily the discount rate and 
forecasted cash flows. We conduct our impairment testing using a range of discount rates 
representing our marginal, weighted-average cost of capital and a range of assumptions for 
cash flows. Changes in those assumptions outside of the ranges analyzed could have a 
significant effect on our determination of an impairment. We had no impairment in 2006 of our 
goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite lives. (See Item 8 - Note 4 to our Consolidated 
Financial Statements and Note 3 to RG&E's Financial Statements.) 

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans: We have pension and other postretirement 
benefit ~ l ans  coverina substantiallv all of our em~lovees. In accordance with Statement 87 and . . 
statement 106, the valuation of benefit obligations and the performance of plan assets are 
subject to various assumptions. The primary assumptions include the discount rate, expected 
return on plan assets, rate of compensation increase, health care cost inflation rates, mortality 
tables, expected years of future service under the pension benefit plans and the methodology 
used to amortize gains or losses. 
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Assumptions are based on our best estimates of future events using historical evidence and 
lona-term trends. Changes in those assumdions. as well as changes in the accountina 
sta;;dards related to and postretirement benefit plans, co;ld have a ~i~nificanieffect 
on our noncash pension income or expense or on our postretirement benefit costs. As of 
December 31, 2006, we increased the discount rate from 5.50% to 5.75%. The discount rate is 
the rate at which the benefit obligations could presently be effectively settled. The discount rate 
was determined by developing a yield curve derived from a portfolio of high grade noncallable 
bonds that closely matches the duration of the expected cash flows of our benefit obligations. 
(See ltem 7 - MD&A - Other Market Risk, and ltem 8 - Note 14 to our Consolidated Financial 
Statements and Note 12 to RG&E1s Financial Statements.) 

Unbilled Revenues: Unbilled revenues represent estimates of receivables for energy provided 
but not yet billed. The estimates are determined based on various assumptions, such as 
current month energy load requirements, billing rates by customer classification and delivery 
loss factors. Changes in those assumptions could significantly affect the estimates of 
unbilled revenues. (See ltem 8 - Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 1 
to RG&E's Financial Statements.) 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: The allowance for doubthl accounts is our best estimate of 
the amount of probable credit losses in our existing accounts receivable, determined based on 
experience for each service region and operating segment and other economic data. Each 
month the operating companies review their allowance for doubtful accounts and past due 
accounts over 90 days andlor above a specified amount, and review all other balances on a 
pooled basis by age and type of receivable. When an operating company believes that a 
receivable will not be recovered, it charges off the account balance against the allowance. 
Changes in assumptions about input factors such as economic conditions and customer 
receivables, which are inherently uncertain and susceptible to change from period to period, 
could significantly affect the allowance for doubtful accounts estimates. (See ltem 8 - Note 1 to 
our Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 1 to RG&E's Financial Statements.) 
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Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Cash Flows 

The following table summarizes our consolidated cash flows for 2006,2005 and 2004. 



Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
(Thous.nds) 

Operating Activities 
Net income 
Noncash adjustments to net income 
Changes in working capital 
Other (101,227) (83,940) (88,691) 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 379,494 500,272 339,100 
- - 

Investing Activities 
Sale of generation assets 
Excess decommissioning funds retained 
Utility plant additions 
Current investments available for sale, net 
Other 7,547 20,133 1.600 
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Investing Activities (227,759) (368.431) 96.953 

Financing Activities 
Net issuance of common stock 
Net (repayments of) increase in debt and 
  referred stock of subsidiaries a 150,367) ii36,374j 
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (178,371) (1 23.297) (472,457) 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (26,636) 8.544 (36,404) 
Cash and ~ a d h  Equivalents, Beginning of year 120,009 11 1,465 147.869 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $93,373 $120,009 $1 11,465 

O~eratina Activities Cash Flows: Net cash provided by operating activities was $379 million in 
2006 compared to $500 million in 2005 and $339 million in 2004. The major items that 
contributed to the $121 million decrease in cash provided by operating activities for 2006 were: 

. A reduction in accounts payable and accrued liabilities primarily due to payments for 
natural gas and electricity purchases and to refunds of amounts previously held on 
deposit that reduced cash flow by $339 million, and . The payment of $34 million by RG&E to resolve a dispute with Niagara Mohawk. (See 
RG&E Dispute Settlement Related to NMP2 Exit Agreement.) 
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Those decreases in cash flow were partially offset by: 

. A reduction in receivables that increased cash flow by $123 million, . A reduction in inventory due to lower natural gas prices that increased cash flow by 
$88 million, and . Lower pension contributions that increased cash flow by $54 million. 

The $161 million increase in cash provided by operating activities for 2005 was primarily due 



to: 

. lncreased accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $1 03 million primarily for the 
purchase of electricity and natural gas at higher prices than in the prior year. . A decrease in the amount of taxes paid in the current year of $93 million, primarily due to 
taxes paid in 2004 for the sale of Ginna. . A decrease of $35 million in customer refunds related to the proceeds from the sale of 
Ginna in 2004. RG&E refunded $60 million in 2004 and $25 million in 2005. 

Those increases in cash flow were partially offset by: 

. Increased expenditures of $40 million to replenish natural gas inventories, 

. An increase of $37 million due to higher accounts receivable resulting from higher 
prices, and . An increase of $35 million in pension contributions. 

Investing Activities Cash Flows: Net cash used in investing activities was $228 million in 2006 
compared to $368 million in 2005 and net cash provided by investing activities of $97 million in 
2004, The $140 million decrease in 2006 was primarily due to the liquidation of current 
investments available for sale. The $465 million change in 2005 was primarily due to effects of 
the sale of Ginna in 2004. 

Utility capital spending totaled $408 million in 2006, $331 million in 2005 and $299 million in 
2004, including nuclear fuel for RG&E in 2004. Capital spending in all three years was 
financed principally with internally generated funds, and was primarily for the extension of 
energy delivery service, necessary improvements to existing facilities, compliance with 
environmental requirements and governmental mandates, new customer care systems 
for NYSEG and RGE, and the RG&E transmission project. 

Utility capital spending is projected to be $496 million in 2007, the majority of which is 
expected to be paid for with internally generated funds and will be primarily for the same 
purposes described above, except for the now completed customer care systems for NYSEG 
and RG&E. (See Item 8 - Note 9 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.) 

Cash flows from investing activities include proceeds from the liquidation of auction rate 
securities, which are recorded as current investments available for sale. We use auction rate 
securities in a manner similar to cash equivalents and the amount invested in such securities 
will increase as short-term funds are available. Our investments in auction rate securities have 
decreased during the year as a result of the operational activities discussed above. 
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Financing Activities Cash Flows: Net cash used in financing activities was $178 million in 2006 
compared to $123 million in 2005 and $472 million in 2004. The $55 million increase in 2006 



was primarily due to lower net issuance of long-term debt securities than in 2005. The $349 
million decrease in 2005 was primarily the result of lower debt redemptions than in 2004 when 

1 funds were available from the sale of Ginna. 

Capital Structure at December 31, 2006 2006 2004 
Lona-term debt(') 57.1% 57.0% 57.2% - ~~ 

Short-term debt(2) 
rn Preferred stock - - 

Common equity 41 .O% 40.9% 30.0% 
100.0% 100.0% l00.O0h 

c (') ~ndudas current poltion of lono-term debt 

(2) Includes no&. payable 

The financing activities discussed below include those activities necessary for the company 
and its principal subsidiaries to maintain adequate liquidity and improve credit quality and 

n ensure access to capital markets. Activities include minimal common stock issuances in 
connection with our lnvestor Services Program and employee stock-based compensation 
plans, new short-term facilities and various medium-term and long-term debt transactions. 

Our equity financing activities during 2006 and early 2007 included: 

1 . Raising our common stock dividend 3.4% in October 2006 to a new annual rate of 
$1.20 per share. . Repurchasing 250,000 shares of our common stock in February 2006, primarily for 
grants of restricted stock. . Awarding 273,733 shares of our common stock in 2006, issued out of treasury stock, to 

a certain employees through our Restricted Stock Plan, at a weighted-average grant date 
fair value of $24.75 per share of common stock awarded. . Issuing 204,235 shares of our common stock in 2006, at an average price of $24.21 per 
share, through our Investor Services Program. The shares were original issue shares. . Repurchasing 350,000 shares of our common stock in January 2007, primarily for grants 

a of restricted stock. . Awarding 296,145 shares of our common stock in February 2007, issued out of treasury 
stock, to certain employees through our Restricted Stock Plan, at a weighted-average 
grant date fair value of $24.76 per share of common stock awarded. 

In January 2006 CMP issued $10 million of Series F medium-term notes at 5.27%, due in 
2016, and $30 million of Series F medium-term notes at 5.30%, due in 2016, to refinance 
maturing debt. 

In April 2006 NYSEG issued $12 million of Series 2006A tax-exempt multi-mode bonds, due in - 2024 at an initial interest rate of 3.10%, which is presently reset weekly in an auction process, 
to refinance $12 million of maturing debt that had an interest rate of 6%. 
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In July 2006, we redeemed all of our 8 114% junior subtirdinated debt securities at par and 
expensed approximately $1 1 million of unamortized expense in July 2006 in connection with 
the redemption. $1 0 million of this amount was related to the issuance of the associated trust 
preferred securities. The redemption was financed by the issuance of $250 million of 
unsecured long-term debt at 6.75%, due in 2036, and by the issuance of short-term debt. (See 
Item 8 - Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.) We settled the hedges we had 
entered into in connection with the refinancing at a gain of approximately $15 million, which we 
will amortize over the life of the new debt. 

In August 2006, we issued an additional $250 million of unsecured long-term debt at 6.75%, 
due in 2036. We used substantially all of the proceeds to redeem $232 million of 5.75% notes 
that were scheduled to mature in November 2006. We settled the hedges we had entered into 
in connection with the refinancing at a gain of approximately $8 million, which we will amortize 
over the life of the new debt. 

In December 2006 NYSEG issued $100 million of senior unsecured notes at 5.65%, due in 
2016. A portion of the proceeds was used to refund short-term debt that was issued to - 
refinance a $25 million tax-exempt note that matured on December I, 2006, and to fund the 
$77 million customer refund that will be made by the end of April 2007. 

Available Sources of Funding 
- 

Energy East is the sole borrower in a revolving credit facility providing maximum borrowings of 
up to $300 million. Our operating utilities are joint borrowers in a revolving credit facility 
providing maximum borrowings of up to $475 million in aggregate. Sublimits that total to the 
aggregate limit apply to each joint borrower and can be altered within the constraints imposed 
by maximum limits that apply to each joint borrower. In June 2006 we extended our two - 
revolving credit facilities for one year. Both facilities now have expiration dates in 201 1 and 
require fees on undrawn borrowing capacity. Two of our operating utilities have uncommitted 
bilateral credit agreements for a total of $10 million. The two revolving credit facilities and the 
two bilateral credit agreements provided for consolidated maximum borrowings of $785 million 
at December 31,2006, and December 31,2005. 

We use commercial paper and drawings on our credit facilities (see above) to finance working 
capital needs, to temporarily finance certain refundings and for other corporate purposes. 
There was $109 million of such short-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2006, and $121 
million outstanding at December 31, 2005. The weighted-average interest rate on short-term 
debt was 6.0% at December 31,2006, and 4.6% at December 31,2005. 

- 

We filed a shelf registration statement with the SEC in June 2003 to sell up to $1 billion in an 
unspecified combination of debt, preferred stock, common stock and trust preferred securities. 
We plan to use the net proceeds from the sale of securities under this shelf registration, if any, 
for general corporate purposes. We currently have $305 million available under the shelf - 

registration statement. 
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Market Risk 

Market risk represents the risk of changes in value of a financial or commodity instrument, 
derivative or nonderivative, caused by fluctuations in interest rates and commodity prices. 
The following discussion of our risk management activities includes "fo~ward~ooking" 
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from those 
contemplated in the "forward-looking" statements. We handle market risks in accordance with 
established policies, which may include various offsetting, nonspeculative derivative 
transactions. (See ltem 8 - Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.) 

The financial instruments we hold or issue are not for trading or speculative purposes. Our 
quantitative and qualitative disclosures below relate to the following market hsk'exposure 
categories: Interest Rate Risk, Commodity Price Risk and Other Market Risk. 

jnterest Rate Risk: We are exposed to risk resulting from interest rate changes on variable-rate 
debt and commercial paper. We use interest rate swap agreements to manage the risk of 
increases in variable interest rates and to maintain desired fixed-to-floating rate ratios. We 
record amounts paid and received under those agreements as adjustments to the interest 
expense of the specific debt issues. After giving effect to those agreements we estimate that, 
at December 31, 2006, a 1 % change in average interest rates would change our annual 
interest expense for variable-rate debt by about $5 million. Pursuant to its current rate plans, 
RG&E defers any changes in variable-rate interest expense. (See ltem 8 - Notes 6, 7 and 11 to 
our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes 5, 6 and 10 to RG&E's Financial 
Statements.) 

We also use derivative instruments to mitigate risk resulting from interest rate changes on 
anticipated future financings, and amortize amounts paid and received under those 
instruments to interest expense over the life of the corresponding financing. 

-k Commodity price risk, due to volatility experienced in the wholesale 
energy markets, is a significant issue for the electric and natural gas utility industries. We 
manage this risk through a combination of regulatory mechanisms, such as allowing for the 
pass-through of the market price of electricity and natural gas to customers, and through 
comprehensive risk management processes. These measures mitigate our commodity price 
exposure, but do not completely eliminate it. 

NYSEG and RG&E offer their retail customers choice in their electricity supply including fixed 
and variable rate options and an option to purchase electricity supply from an ESCO. During 
the fourth quarter of 2006, NYSEG's and RG&E1s electric customers chose their supply options 
for 2007. The table below shows the percentages of load that are projected to be served under 
the various commodity supply options for 2007. 

NYSEG RG&E 

Fixed Price Option 17% 21% 



Variable Price Option 45% 29% 

Energy Sewice Company Option 38% 50% - 
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NYSEG's and RG&E's exposure to fluctuations in the market price of electricity is limited to the 
load required to serve those customers who select the fixed rate option, which effectively 
combines delivery and supply service at a fixed price. NYSEG and RG&E use electricity 
contracts, both physical and financial, to manage fluctuations in the cost of electricity required 
to serve customers who select the fixed rate option. We include the cost or benefit of those 
contracts in the amount expensed for electricity purchased when the related electricity is sold. 
Owned electric generation and long-term supply contracts reduce NYSEG's exposure, and 
significantly reduce RG&Ets exposure, to market fluctuations for procurement of their fixed rate 
option electricity supply. 

As of February 15, 2007, the portion of expected load for fixed rate option customers not 
supplied by owned generation or long-term contracts is 100% hedged for NYSEG for on-peak - 
and off-peak periods in 2007. A fluctuation of $1 .OO per megawatt-hour in the average price of 
electricity would change NYSEG's earnings less than $150 thousand for NYSEG in 2007. 
RG&E expects to meet its fixed price load obligations in 2007 with owned generation or long- 
term supply contracts. The percentage of NYSEG's and RG&E's hedged load is based on load 
forecasts, which include certain assumptions such as historical weather patterns. Actual 
results could differ as a result of changes in the load compared to the load forecast. - 

Other comprehensive income associated with our financial electricity contracts for the year 
ended December 31,2006, was $7 million, reflecting a decrease of $162 million as compared 
to December 31, 2005. The decrease is primarily a result of wholesale market price changes 
for electricity and the settlement of positions in 2006. Other comprehensive income for 2006 - 

will have no effect on future net income because we only use financial electricity contracts to 
hedge the price of our electric load requirements for customers who have chosen a fixed price 
option. 

All of our natural gas utilities have purchased gas adjustment clauses that allow them to - 
recover through rates any changes in the market price of purchased natural gas, substantially 
eliminating their exposure to natural gas price risk. We use natural gas futures and forwards to 
manage fluctuations in natural gas commodity prices in order to provide price stability to 
customers. We include the cost or benefit of natural gas futures and forwards in the commodity 
cost that is passed on to customers when the related sales commitments are fulfilled. We 
record changes in the fair value of natural gas hedge contracts as regulatory assets or 
regulatory liabilities. 

Energetix and NYSEG Solutions offer retail electric and natural gas service to customers in 
New York State and actively hedge the load required to serve customers that have chosen - 
them as their commodity supplier. As of February 15, 2007, the energy marketing subsidiaries 



expected fixed price load was 100% hedged for 2007. A fluctuation of $1 .OO per megawatt- 
hour in the average price of electricity would change earnings less than $20,000 in 2007. The 

* percentage of hedged load for the energy marketing subsidiaries is based on load forecasts, 
which include certain assumptions such as historical weather patterns. Actual results could 
differ as a result of changes in the load compared to the load forecast. 

&f 
Operations 
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NYSEG, RG&E, Energetix and NYSEG Solutions face risks related to counterparty 
performance on hedging contracts due to counterparty credit default. We have developed a 
matrix of unsecured credit thresholds that are dependent on a counterparty's Moody's or S&P 
credit rating. When our exposure to risk for a counterparty exceeds the unsecured credit 

c threshold, the counterparty is required to post additional collateral or we will no longer transact 
with the counterparty until the exposure drops below the unsecured credit threshold. 

Other Market Risk: Our pension plan assets are primarily made up of equity and fixed income 
investments. Fluctuations in those markets as well as changes in interest rates may cause us 

a 
to recognize increased or decreased pension income or expense. Our pension income would 
change by approximately $7 million if our expected return on plan assets were to change by 
114% and by approximately $6 million if our discount rate were to change by 114%. Under 
RG&E1s Electric and Natural Gas Rate Agreements and under NYSEG's natural gas rate plan, 
we defer changes in pension income resulting from changes in market conditions. (See Item 8 
- Note 14 to our Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 12 to RG&E1s Financial 
Statements.) 

Results of Operations 

Earnings per Share 

2006 2005 2004 
(Thouunds, except per sham amount.) 

Income from Continuing Operations $259,832 $256,833 $237.621 
Net Income $259,832 $256.833 $229,337 

r Average Common Shares 
Outstanding, basic 146,962 146,964 146,305 

Earnings per Share from Continuing 
Operations, basic $1.77 $1.75 $1.63 

Earnings per Share, basic $1.77 $1.75 $1.57 

C 
Com~arino - 2006 to 2005: Earnings per share from continuing operations, basic for 2006 
increased two cents compared to 2005. The major increases in earnings per share were: 

. 18 cents due to higher margins on electricity sales, primarily reflecting lower accruals 
under various earnings-sharing mechanisms, 



7 cents in lower income tax expense reflecting variances in recurring flow-through items, 
differences in the 2005 filed tax return compared to the 2005 book tax expense and 
settlement of an audit of our 2002 and 2003 federal income tax returns, 
4 cents resulting from the environmental insurance settlements in the fourth quarter of - 

2006, 
5 cents due to the termination of SGF's operations in 2005, including 4 cents from the 
writedown of the assets, and 
2 cents due to reductions in various operating and maintenance expenses. 
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Those increases were partially offset by decreases in earnings per share of: 

11 cents resulting from higher storm and flood costs, 
7 cents resulting from higher bad debt expense, including 4 cents for amounts that were 
previously deferred and began to be recovered as part of a rate increase for SCG 
effective January 1,2006, . 6 cents for higher interest expense resulting from higher rates on short-term and variable 
rate debt, and higher carrying costs on regulatory liabilities, 
5 cents for the recognition ofunamortized-expense resulting from the redemption of our 
8 114% iunior subordinated debt securities and associated trust  referred securities in 
July 2066, 
4 cents in increased depreciation expense, due to placing NYSEG's customer care 
system into service in the first quarter of 2006, 
2 cents from lower margins on natural gas sales due to warmer weather. This amount 
would have been higher except for the SCG rate increase effective January 1, 2006, and 
the effect of weather normalization mechanisms. 

Com~arina 2005 to 2004: Earnings from continuing operations, basic for 2005 increased 12 
cents per share compared to 2004. The major increases in earnings per share were: 

21 cents due to higher margins on electric sales under electric commodity programs for 
New York customers, 

17 cents resulting from a 3% increase in electric deliveries, and 
4 cents resulting from increased natural gas margins. The increase resulted primarily 
from increased sales to interruptible customers and RG&E1s adoption of a natural gas 
merchant function charge in 2004. 

Those increases were partially offset by decreases in earnings per share of: 

19 cents per share resulting from higher operating and maintenance expenses, including 
approximately 5 cents for storm-related repairs and maintenance, 9 cents for increases in 
allowances for doubtful accounts, 2 cents for higher regional network services 
transmission costs and 4 cents for medical and other benefits costs. The higher 



operating and maintenance expenses were partially offset by a decrease of 8 cents for 
lower stock option expenses. Stock option expense in 2005 included a one cent-per- 
share charge for the adoption of Statement 123(R), . 4 cents per share from the termination of SGF's operations and the writedown of 
assets, and . 7 cents for the one-time effects from the sale of Ginna and the approval of RG&E's 
Electric and Natural Gas Rate Agreements that increased earnings in 2004. The one- 
time effects included the flow-through of excess deferred taxes and lTCs and the 
elimination of certain reserves established pending regulatory treatment. 

Manaaement's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results o t  
O~erations 

Energy East Corporation 

a 
Energy Delivery 

Revenues for our utility operating companies are highly dependent upon the volume of 
deliveries of electricity and natural gas. We have regulatory mechanisms in place to provide 
recovery of certain costs, including stranded costs and natural gas purchase costs, 
independent of sales volume, and some of our natural gas companies have weather - normalization clauses that mitigate the effect of delivery volume changes due to weather. 
Changes in delivery volume can nevertheless have a significant effect on our results of 
operations, financial position and cash flows. 

Electric revenues are also dependent upon the volume of sales of electricity to retail customers 
a under Voice Your Choice commodity programs offered by our New York utilities. The cost of 

the electricity sold to retail customers is either recovered as a passthrough or hedged to 
substantially eliminate the risk of price volatility. Changes in commodity sales volume, 
however, can have a significant effect on our results of operations and cash flows. 

Percentage increases (decreases) in energy delivery volumes and electric commodity sales 
volumes compared to the prior year are: 

Electricitv Deliveries Natural Goo Deliveries 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Other . . ~ ~ 

1 
Transportation of customerowned natural gas N A N A (7%) (1 %) 
Total Retail 13%) 3% 18%) (2%) . . 

Wholesale (2%) 21 % (87% ) (45% j 
Total Deliveries (2%) 7% (8%) (2%) 

Electricity commodity sales (7%) (8%) N A N A 
NA - not applicable 

.L 



Several factors influence the volume of energy deliveries. The major factor is weather. In 2006 
winter temperatures were significantly warmer than normal. The effects of warmer or colder 
winter weather are especially significant for our natural gas companies. We estimate that for 
2006, 2% of the 3% decline in retail electricity deliveries and 6% of the 8% decline in retail 
natural gas deliveries was the result of warmer winter weather. Weather conditions for New 
York and New England for the past three years are summarized below. 

Manaaernent's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results Qf 
Operations 

v East Corporation 

Weather Conditions 

2006 2005 2004 Nonnal 

New York 
Heating-degree days 5,991 6,870 6,983 6,974 
(Warmer) colder than prior year (13%) (2%) 
(Warmer) colder than normal (14%) (2%) 

Cooling-degree days 562 748 324 493 
(Cooler) warmer than prior year (25%) 131% 
(Cooler) warmer than normal 14% 52% 

New England 
Heatingdegree days 5,447 6.229 6,260 6.315 
(Warmer) colder than prior year (13%) (1 %) 
(Warmer) colder than normal (14%) ( I  %) 

Cooling-degree days 444 506 250 388 
(Cooler) warmer than prior year (1 2%) 102% 
(Cooler) warmer than normal 14% 30% 

Operating Results for the Electric Delivery Business 

Operating Revenues 
Retail $2,254,003 $2,250,105 $2,191,500 
Wholesale 554,300 568,746 402.122 
Other 214,734 150.707 187.700 
Total Operating Revenues 3,023,037 2,969.558 $2,781,322 

Operating Expenses 
Electricity purchased and fuel used in generation 1,467,068 1,457,746 1,321.081 
Other operating and maintenance expenses 715,219 672.595 667.503 
Depreciation and amortization 187,587 178,806 196,782 
Other taxes 148,589 143.359 154.038 
Gain on sale of generation assets - - (340,739) 
Deferral of asset sale gain - - 228,785 
Total Operating Expenses 2,518,463 2,452,506 2,227.450 



Operating Income $504,574 $517,052 $553,872 

.. O~eratina Revenues: The $53 million increase in operating revenues for 2006 was primarily 
the result of: 

An increase of $57 million due to higher commodity prices for retail electric energy sold 
by NYSEG and RG&E under various commodity options where they provide supply, 

a An increase of $60 million in average delivery prices resulting from a transmission rate 
increase at CMP and higher transition charges for NYSEG and RG&E, 
An increase of $53 million resulting from lower accruals for earnings sharing including 
$14 million in the first quarter of 2006 for the finalization of actual earnings-sharing 
amounts for 2005 per NYSEG's and RG&E's annual compliance filings, and 

rn An increase of $31 million in other revenues primarily for accruals to recover actual 
purchase power costs, including $25 million for higher Ginna-related costs. 

Energy East Corporation 

L 
Those increases were partially offset by: 

A decrease of $78 million resulting from a 7% reduction in sales volume under the New 
York utilities' Voice Your Choice commodity programs where they provide supply, 
A decrease of $22 million in wholesale sales resulting from a 2% decline in 
wholesale volume, 

a A decrease of $12 million in other revenue including $6 million related to a NUG incentive 
at CMP and $6 million of accruals for transmission congestion costs, both recorded in 
2005, and 
A decrease of $35 million resulting from a 3% decline in retail deliveries, about 2% of 
which was caused by cooler summer temperatures and warmer winter weather. Heating 
degree days declined 13% in 2006. The other 1 % of the decline was largely attributable 
to the expiration of a major NUG contract for CMP, since the NUG is now using electricity 
previously sold to CMP to meet its own load requirements. 

The $188 million increase in operating revenues for 2005 was primarily the result of: 
1 

An increase of $73 million from increases in market prices for electric energy sold by 
NYSEG and RG&E under commodity options where they provide supply, 
An increase of $168 million in wholesale revenues, which included $100 million from 
increased wholesale sales by NYSEG and RG&E, $29 million from higher prices on 
those sales and $39 million as a result of higher prices on the sale of CMP's NUG 
entitlements, effective March 1, 2005, . An increase of $42 million resulting from a 3% increase in retail deliveries. About half of 
this increase resulted from warmer summer weather and the remainder resulted from 
general economic conditions, and - An increase of $36 million in other electric revenues, including $6 million from CMP's 
NUG contract restructuring incentive and the remainder primarily from accruals to reflect 



actual generating and purchase power costs. 

Those increases were partially offset by: 

. A decrease of $102 million resulting from lower transition charges. The transition charge 
reflects the difference between the market price of electricity and the prices set by our 
long-term electricity supply contracts, and decreases as market prices increase, and . A decrease of $28 million as a result of higher accruals for earnings sharing under 
NYSEG's and RG&E1s electric rate plan provisions. 

O~emtino Exwnses: The $66 million increase in operating expenses for 2006 was primarily 
the result of: 

. An increase of $9 million in purchased power costs resulting from a $39 million increase 
for higher wholesale electricity market prices, and $25 million for higher purchased power 
costs for RG&E related to Ginna purchases, partially offset by a $55 million decrease due 
to the expiration of a major NUG contract in 2006, . An increase of $43 million in operating and maintenance costs, including $26 million for 
storm restoration, $9 million for a write-off resulting from the August 2006 NYSEG rate 
decision and $9 million for higher bad debt expense, . An increase of $9 million in depreciation resulting largely from NYSEG's new customer 
care system, and . An increase of $5 million in other taxes. 

Energy East Corporation 

The $225 million increase in operating expenses for 2005 was primarily the result of: 

. An increase of $1 12 million as a result of the regulatory treatment in 2004 of RG&E's 
gain on the sale of Ginna, which included RG&E1s recognition of a $341 million pretax 
gain partially offset by the after-tax deferral of the gain of $229 million, . A net increase of $1 million in operating expenses as a result of the sale of Ginna, 
reflecting an increase in purchased power costs of $63 million, substantially offset by 
decreases of $37 million in other operating and maintenance expenses, $21 million in 
depreciation and $4 million in other taxes, 

. An increase of $75 million in power purchases largely resulting from increased wholesale 
sales and higher market prices for electric supply purchased for the New York electric 
commodity customers, . An increase of $10 million due to certain credits to other operating expenses that resulted 
from RG&E1s Electric Rate Agreement and reduced expenses in 2004, and 

. Increases in various other operating and maintenance expenses, excluding Ginna, 
totaling $27 million. Higher storm costs accounted for approximately $1 1 million of that 
increase, higher transmission-related expenses accounted for an additional $6 million, 



higher uncollectible expense accounted for $9 million and increased medical and other 
benefits accounted for $8 million. Lower stock option expense reduced electric operating 
expenses by $10 million. 

Operating Results for the Natural Gas Delivery Business 

2006 2005 2004 
* (Thouunds) 

Operating Revenues 
Retail $1,676,525 51,764,235 $1.534.900 
Wholesale 563 643 182 
Other 20,513 18,669 14,068 

n Total Operating Revenues 1,697,601 1,783,547 1,549,150 

Operating Expenses 
Natural gas purchased 1,079,980 1,161,059 952.808 
Other operating and maintenan- expenses 248.727 246,339 231.182 
Depreciation and amortization 86,728 85,050 88,998 

n Other taxes 95,390 98,589 93.500 
Total Operating Expenses 1,508,825 1,591.037 1,366,486 

Operating Income $188,776 $192,510 $182.664 

O~eratina Revenues: The $86 million decrease in operating revenues for 2006 was primarily 
n the result of: . A decrease of $146 million as a result of a 9% decrease in delivery volumes excluding 

transportation, largely due to warmer winter weather and customer conservation. Heating 
degree days in 2006 declined 13% compared to 2005 and caused approximately two- 
thirds of the sales decline. 

ement s DISCUS I - sion and Analvsis of F b c W  Condition 
O~erations 
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That decrease was partially offset by: 

rn . An increase of $24 million primarily as a result of higher market prices for natural gas that 
were passed on to customers, . An increase of $20 million due to higher base rates for SCG effective January 1, 2006, 
and 

C. . An increase of $16 million resulting from weather normalization mechanisms. 

The $234 million increase in operating revenues for 2005 was primarily the result of: 

. An increase of $244 million as a result of higher prices of purchased natural gas that 
were passed on to customers, and . An increase of $23 million in other natural gas revenues resulting primarily from higher 



interruptible sales. 

Those increases were partially offset by: 

. Lower retail deliveries of $33 million due in part to warmer weather but also reflecting 
economic conditions including higher market prices for natural gas. 

O~eratina ExDenSeS: The $82 million decrease in operating expenses for 2006 was primarily 
the result of: 

. A reduction of $100 million due to lower volumes of natural gas sold, and . Reductions in various operating and maintenance expense items totaling $9 million. 

Those decreases were partially offset by: 

. An increase of $18 million due to higher market prices for purchased natural gas, and . An increase of $8 million in bad debt expense, primarily resulting from amounts that were 
previously deferred and began to be recovered as part of SCG's rate increase effective 
January I, 2006. 

The $225 million increase in operating expenses for 2005 was primarily the result of: 

. An increase of $209 million for purchased gas costs, resulting from an increase of 
$241 million due to higher prices offset by $32 million for lower volumes, and . An increase of $15 million in other operating and maintenance costs, including $12 
million related to an increase in the allowance for doubtful accounts. 

Manaaement's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cond~tton . . and Results of 
Operations 

Energy East Corporation 

Operating Results for the Energy Marketing Business 

The primary business included in our Other segment is our energy marketing business 
comprised of Energetix, Inc. and NYSEG Solutions, Inc., which market electricity and natural 
gas to customers throughout the state of New York. They currently have 132,000 electricity 
customers and 42,000 natural gas customers in the service territories of RG&E, NYSEG and 
several other New York state utilities. Sales and revenues for these companies have become 
more significant in recent years as changes in the regulatory environment in New York have 
fostered the development of competitive energy suppliers. 

Electricity sales (MWh) 4.516 5,025 4.541 



Natural gas sales (Dth) 7,309 10,605 11,194 
1 

Operating Revenues 

Electric 

Natural gas 
a Total Operating Revenues 397,460 519,081 363.746 

- 

Operating Expenses 

Electricity purchased 300.053 307,251 261,512 

a Natural gas purchased 76,489 101.073 82.767 

Other operating expenses 12,698 13.560 11.419 

Total Operating Expenses 388.140 51 1,884 355.898 
-- 

A Operating Income $9,320 $7,197 $8.048 

O~eratina Revenues: The $122 million decrease in operating revenues for 2006 was primarily 
the result of: 

rn . A decrease of $41 million due to decreased sales volume for electricity due warmer 
winter weather and cooler summer weather. 
A decrease of $34 million due to decreased sales volume for natural gas due to a 
significant reduction in heating degree days, and . A decrease of $52 million due to lower prices for electricity. 

a 

Those decreases were partially offset by an increase of $6 million for higher prices for 
natural gas. 

The $155 million increase in operating revenues for 2005 was primarily the result of: 
a . An increase of $29 million due to increased sales volume for electricity due to customers 

being added as a result of NYSEG's and RG&E1s Voice Your Choice programs. 
An increase of $1 08 million due to higher prices for electricity, and . An increase of $23 million due to higher prices for natural gas. - 

Those increases were offset by a decrease of $5 million due to decreased sales volume for 
natural gas. 

Management's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations 

Energy East Corporation 
* 

O~erafinu Exoenses: The $124 million decrease in operating expense for 2006 was primarily 



the result of: 

A decrease of $40 million in purchased electricity due to decreased sales volume, - 
A decrease of $31 million in purchased natural gas due to decreased sales volume, and 
A decrease of $57 million in purchased electricity due to lower prices. 

Those decreases were partially offset by an increase of $6 million in purchased natural gas 
due to higher prices. - 

The $1 56 million increase in operating expenses for 2005 was primarily the result of: 

An increase of $29 million in purchased electricity due to increased sales volume, 
An increase of $108 million in purchased electricity due to higher prices, and 
An increase of $23 million in purchased natural gas due to higher prices. 

Those increases were partially offset by a decrease of $4 million in purchased natural gas due 
to decreased sales volume. 

Other Items 

2006 2005 2004 
(Thousands) 

Other (Income) $(46,126) $(32,9W) $(35,497) 
Other Deductions $24,578 $8.858 $15.803 
Interest Charges, net $308,824 $288.897 $276,890 
Income Taxes on Continuing Operations $155,255 $169,997 $251,445 

Other (Income1 and Other Deductions: (See Item 8 - Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial 
Statements.) 

The changes for 2006 include: 

An $8 million increase in Other (income) from environmental insurance settlements, 
A $4 million increase in Other (income) from higher gains on risk management activity, - 

An $1 1 million increase in Other deductions for the recognition of unamortized expense 
resulting from the redemption of our 8 114% junior subordinated debt securities and the 
associated trust preferred securities in July 2006, and 
A $6 million increase in Other deductions from higher losses on risk 
management contracts. 

The changes for 2005 include: 

A $3 million increase in Other (income) from interest income, . A $6 million decrease in Other (income) due to the effect of a one-time increase as a % 

result of the RG&E Electric Rate Agreement in 2004, 
A $6 million decrease in Other deductions for lower losses on hedge activity related to 
risk management contracts, 
A $3 million decrease in Other deductions for losses from the disposition of nonutility 
property, and - 
A $4 million increase in Other deductions from miscellaneous losses. 



Manaaement's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations 

Energy East Corporation 

Interest Chames. Net: lnterest charges, net increased $20 million in 2006. The increase is 
primarily due to: 

. Higher carrying costs on regulatory liabilities, and . Higher rates on short-term and variable rate debt. 

lnterest charges, net increased $12 million in 2005. The increase is primarily due to: 

. A net increase of $137 million in the aggregate amount of long-term debt, and . An increase in rates on variable rate debt and notes payable. 

Income Taxes on Continuing O~erations: The effective tax rate for continuing operations was 
37% in 2006,40% in 2005 and 51 % in 2004. 

The decrease in the 2006 effective tax rate for continuing operations was primarily due to 
variances in recurring flow-through items, differences in the 2005 filed tax return compared to 
the 2005 book tax expense and settlement of an audit of our 2002 and 2003 federal income 
tax returns. 

The 2005 effective tax rate was essentially at the combined federal and state statutory rate 
and declined primarily due to the effect of the regulatory treatment of RG&E's deferred gain on 
the sale of Ginna in 2004. 

Pension Income: Periodic pension income is included in other operating and maintenance 
expenses and reduces the amount of expense that would otherwise be reported. Pension 
income for 2006 was the same as in 2005 and $1 million higher than in 2004. 

Periodic pension income (pretax) 

As a Dercent of net income 

The operating companies amortize unrecognized actuarial gains and losses either over 10 
years from the time they are incurred or using the standard amortization methodology, under 
which amounts in excess of 10% of the greater of the projected benefit obligation or market 
related value are amortized over the plan participants' average remaining service to retirement. 
We expect pension income to decline in future years as prior year gains are fully amortized. 

We estimate pension income of $43 million for 2007 and expect to contribute between 
$10 million and $20 million to our pension plans in 2007. (See Item 8 - Note 14 to our 



Consolidated Financial Statements.) 

Energy East Corporation 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 

December 31, 2006 2005 
(Thousands) 

Assets 
Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
lnvestments available for sale 
Accounts receivable andunbilled revenues, net 
Fuel and natural gas in storage, at average cost 
Materials and supplies, at average cost 
Deferred income taxes 
Derivative assets 
Prepayments and other current assets 193,226 92,613 
Total Current Assets 1,626,809 1,930,558 

Utility Plant, at Original Cost 
Electric 5,557,858 5,403,134 
Natural gas 2,654,426 2,574.574 
Common 550,440 450,641 

8,762,724 8,428.349 
Less accumulated depreciation 2,935,798 2,764,399 
Net Utilitv Plant in Service 5.826.926 5.663.950 - 

Construction work in progress 121,097 1 19;504 
Total Utility Plant 5,948,023 5.783.454 

Other Property and Investments 183,315 203,159 
Regulatory and Other Assets 
Regulatory assets 
Nuclear plant obligations 263,659 309.888 
Deferred income taxes . 13,482 
Unfunded future income taxes 256,683 117.241 
Environmental remediation costs 128,925 135,376 
Unamortized loss on debt reacquisitlons 52,724 60,933 
Nonutility generator termination agreements 79,241 86,890 
Natural gas hedges 47,372 - 
Pension and other ~ostretirement benefits 351.011 - . 
Other 356,299 384,173 

Total regulatory assets 1,535,914 1,107,963 
Other assets 
Goodwill 
Prepaid pension benefits 
Derivative assets 
Other 118,561 126,214 

Total other assets 2,268,340 2,462,554 
Total Regulatory and Other Assets 3,804,254 3,570.537 
Total Assets $1 1,562,401 $1 1,487,708 

Tha on papas 81 thmuoh 83 am an inkoral part of our conrolldated Rnandal statamanm. - 



Energy East Corporation 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 

December 31, 2006 2005 
(ThousmIda) 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 
Current portion of long-term debt $260,768 $326.527 
Notes payable 109,363 121,347 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 470,325 629.1 58 
interest accrued 57,243 46,522 
Taxes accrued 44,009 - 
Deferred income taxes - 80.984 
Unfunded future income tax 19,664 - 
Derivative liabilities 71.678 2.019 
Customer refund 70,770 14,698 
Other 209,839 171,754 
Total Current Liabilities 1,313,659 1.393.009 

Regulatory and Other Liabilities 
Regulatory liabilities 
Accrued removal obligation 843,273 797.544 
Deferred income taxes 105,528 - 
Gain on sale of generation assets 127,674 173.216 
Pension benefits 127,330 22.798 
Natural gas hedges - 49.205 
Other 93,260 124.251 

Total regulatory liabilities 1,297,073 1,167,014 
Other liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 1,105.117 1.033.287 
-Nuclear plant obligations 202,963 234.907 
Pension and other postretirement benefits 530,838 428.691 
Environmental remediation costs 168,949 166.462 
Derivative liabilitv 21.871 24.887 
Other 306,263 475.081 

Total other liabilities 2,336,021 2,363.315 
Total Regulatory and Other Liabiiitiea 3,633,094 3,530.329 

Debt owed to subsidiary holding solely parent debentures - 355,670 
Other long-term debt 3,726,709 3,311,395 
Total long-term debt 3,726,709 3,667,065 
Total Liabilities 8,673,462 8,590.403 

Commitments and Contingencies 
Preferred Stock of Subsidiaries 
Redeemable solely at the option of subsidiaries 24.592 24,631 

Common Stock Equity 
Common stock (8.01 par value. 300.000 shares authorized. 
147,907 shares outstanding at December 31. 2006, and 
147.701 shares outstanding at December 31. 2005) 1,480 1,478 

Capital in excess of par value 1,505,795 1.489.256 
Retained earnings 1,382,461 1,294.580 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (23,779) 89,085 
Treasury stock, at cost (52 shares at December 31.2006. 
and 53 shares at December 31, 2005) (1,610) (1.725) 



Total Common Stock Equity 2,864,347 2,872,674 
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equlty $11,562,401 $1 1,487,708 

Tha a on pages 61 through 93 are an lntepml part of our consolidated financial staternentr. 

Energy East Corporation 
Consolidated Statements of lncome 

2006 2005 2004 Year Ended December 31, 
> 

(Thousands, except per sham rmounta) 

Operating Revenues 
Ut i l i i  S4.720.638 $4.753.105 $4.330.472 . . . , 

0the; 510,027 545.438 426.220 
Total Operating Revenues 5,230,665 5,298,543 4,756,692 

Operating Expenses 
Electricity purchased and fuel used in generation 
Utility 
Other 

Natural gas purchased 
Utility 
Other 

Other operating expenses 
Maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Other taxes 
Gain on sale of generation assets 
Deferral of asset sale gain - - 228,785 

Total Operating Expenses 4,527,173 4,605,388 4,006.739 
Operating Income 703,492 693.155 749.953 
Other (Income) 
Other Deductions 
Interest Charges, Net 
Preferred stock Dividends of Subsidiaries 1,129 1,474 3,691 
lncome From Continuing Operations 
Before Income Taxes 415,087 426,830 489,066 - 

Income Taxes 155,255 169,997 251.445 
Income From Continuing Operatlons 259,832 256,833 237,621 
Discontinued Operations 
Loss from discontinued operations (including loss 

on dis~osal of U7.565) in 2004) 
Income taxes . - '1.175' 
Loss From Discontinued Operations - - (8,284) 
Net Income $259,832 $256.833 $229,337 
Earnings per Share From Continuing 
Operations, basic $1.77 $1.75 $1.63 

Earnings per Share From Continuing 
Operations, diluted $1.76 $1.74 $1.62 

Loss per Share From Discontinued 
Operations, basic and diluted - - $(.w 

Earnings per Share, basic $1.77 $1.75 $1.57 
- 
Earnings per Share, diluted $1.76 $1.74 31.57 
Average Common Shares Outstanding, basic 146,962 146,964 146.305 



Average Common Shams Outstanding, diluted 147,717 147,474 . 146.713 

The &on pages 81 through 93 am an Inlegmi part of our ansolidated financlsl statbmbnb. 

Energy East Corporation 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended m m h r  51. aooS 2006 2004 
(Thousands) 

Opentlna AcUvlu.r 

Net incomb S2K8.032 $258,833 S229.337 
Adjwtmenta to recondh net imome to net cash 
proYided by opbratlng aaiviibs 
Depreclatlon and amort l~t ion 418.162 382.873 377.181 
Income taxes and inwstment tax abdita deferrbd, net 31.126 69,729 83.327 
Income taxes mlated to galn on a rb  of penerntion asset6 11 1.954 
Gain on sale of generation aSMb (340.739) 
Deferral of asset sale pain 228.785 
Pension inmms (30,WlI (28.867) (28.808) 

Changes in cufmnl operating asssts and IlablMiel 

Accounts remivebb and unbilbd muenubs, nbt 16.026 (1 07.308) (70,087) 
lnwntoy 1.437 (88.735) (43.579) 
Prepaymbnb and other w m n t  asHU (6646 )  (38.373) 1.326 
Accounts payabb and accrued liabilnbs (140.621) 108.932 91.527 
Taxes accrual 11,148 1.378 (91.840) 
interest accrusd 10.721 3.053 (5.520) 
Customer mlund (lS,@s) (25.329) (58.21 9) 
Other current liabillaes (?S,787) 11,448 (37.21 3) 
Pension wntrlbutions 1400) (54.320) (19.661) 

Changes in other assels 

RGLE nudear plant dispute ~ f i e m e n l  (3S.666) (125) (141) 
Other (1.722) (76.167) (82.733) 

Changes in omer llaMlit(es 

RGLE generation mlated ASGA charges (66.420) (25.798) 81.064) 
Omer (10.430) 18,150 25.247 

~ e t  cash ~rov1d.d by Opmntlng Activilbs 379,494 500.272 339.100 

Investing A c t h l t l r  

Sale of generation @as& 453.878 
Excess dewmmlssloniw funds retained 76.593 
Utilltv plant additions (400,231) (331,284) (299.283) 
Other property addMom (S,817) (2.507) (5.623) 
other property sold 342 25.704 6.161 
Mslurlties of current InvbsunenU available for ub 1.064.666 1.835,W5 884,680 
Purchases of cunent i n~sbnenb  availabh for salb (881.740) (1.692.275) (1.1 30.335) 

investments 11.022 (3.064) 1.062 
Net Cash (Used in) Pmvldd by investing AcUvl th  (227.759) (368.431) 96.953 

Financing AcUvlt lr 

Issuance of common stock 
Repurchase of common stock 
Issuance of first morlgase bonds 
Repayments of first mortgape bonds and preferred 
stock of subsidiaTies, illCluding net premiums 

Derivative adh.lty 
Long-term note issuanas 
Long-term note repayments 
Notes payable mreb monma or len, net 
Notes payable issuanms 
Notes payable repaymenb 
Book overdraft 
Dividends on mmmm stock 



N.1 Cash Used In Financing AcUvltles (170,571) (123,297) (472.457) 

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equlvalsnt. (28.636) 8,544 (36,404) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents. Beginning of Yaar 120,009 11 1.465 147.869 
Cash and Cash Equivalenn, End of Year 193.373 1120,009 $111.465 

The nPteP on pages 61 through 93 are m Intapmi part of our conrolldated financial italemen@. 

Energy East Corporation 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Common Stock Equity 

Common Stock ~ccumulated 
OMmndlng Capit.1 in Othmr 

S.O? Par Value Excess ot Rm1.ln.d Compnhensk* 
(Thousmds. except por ahan  amount.) S h a m  Amount ParValum Earnings Incomm (Loos) 
Babnce, Januaw 1.2001 146.262 51,463 $1,456,220 31.126.457 s(11.214) 
Net income 229,337 

Other wmprehenslve inwme. net of tu (32.347) 

Compmhenslve income 

Common stock dMdends 
declared ($1.055 per share) (154.281) 

Common stock issued - 
Investor Sewims Program 872 9 20.962 

Common stock repurchased (250) 

Common s~ issued -restricted stock plan 242 (1 32) 

AmorUzalion of deferred wmpensatlon 
under reslrlctad stock plan 

Treasury stock transactions, net (8) 94 

Amolti2aUon of capbl st& issue expense, net 374 

BabnN. December 31,2004 147.118 1.472 1.477.518 1.201.533 (43.561) 
Net inmme 258,833 

Other mmprehsn.hn Income. m t  of tax 

Comprehensive Income 

Common stock dlvkIends 
d&md ($1.115 per share) 

Common stock issued - 
lnwstor SePYIms Pmonm 

Common st& repurchasad 

Common st& issued - restdded stock Plan 

AmorUzatlon of defermd compeMatlon 
under restricted stock plan 

Treasury stock ImnsacUonr. m t  

AmMtiration of caplal aock lsllue expenre. net 

Babnm. D.umb.r 31,2006 147.701 1,478 1.489.256 1,294,580 89,085 
Net Income 259,832 

Olher comprahenslve income, net of tax (113.502) 

Comprehenslve Income 

Adjuebnem to initially apply siatement 158 638 

Common stod dlvldsnds 
declared ($1.17 per share) 

Common stock issued - 
Investor Servlmr Program 

Common stock repurchasad 

Common stock issued - resmded stock plan 274 (6.722) 

Amortbalion of mstrlctad stodc plan oran@ 8.458 

Treasury st& mnra&ns, net (22) (2) 

Amortkatlon of mpltll stack issue expense, net 9.862 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Energy East Corporation 

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies 

Background: Energy East is a public utility holding company under the Public Utility Holding 
Company Act of 2005. We are a super-regional energy services and delivery company with 
operations in New York, Connecticut, Massachusetts. Maine and New Hampshire. Our wholly- 
owned subsidiaries, and their principal operating utilities, include: Berkshire Energy - Berkshire 
Gas; CMP Group - CMP; CNE - SCG; CTG Resources - CNG; and RGS Energy - NYSEG 
and RG&E. 

Accounts receivable: Accounts receivable at December 31 include unbilled revenues of 
$221 million for 2006 and $315 million for 2005, and are shown net of an allowance for 
doubtful accounts at December 31 of $59 for 2006 and $53 million for 2005. Accounts 
receivable do not bear interest, although late fees may be assessed. Bad debt expense was 
$81 million in 2006, $66 million in 2005 and $45 million in 2004. 

Unbilled revenues represent estimates of receivables for energy provided but not yet billed. -. ~ 

The estimates are determined based on various assumptions, such as current month energy 
load reauirements, billina rates by customer classification and delivew loss factors. Chanaes in - 
those assumptions coul i  significantly affect the estimates of unbilled revenues. 

The allowance for doubtful accounts is our best estimate of the amount of probable credit 
losses in our existing accounts receivable, determined based on experience for each service 
region and operating segment and other economic data. Each month the operating companies 
review their allowance for doubtful accounts and past due accounts over 90 days andlor above 
a specified amount, and review all other balances on a pooled basis by age and type of 
receivable. When an operating company believes that a receivable will not be recovered, it 
charges off the account balance against the allowance. Changes in assumptions about input 
factors such as economic conditions and customer receivables, which are inherently uncertain 
and susceptible to change from period to period, could significantly affect the allowance for 
doubtful accounts estimates. 

Asset retirement obligation and FIN 4 2  In accordance with FASB Statement 143 and FIN 
47, we record the fair value of the liability for an asset retirement obligation andlor a conditional 
asset retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred and capitalize the cost by 
increasing the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. We adjust the liability to its 
present value periodically over time, and depreciate the capitalized cost over the useful life of 
the related asset. Upon settlement we will either settle the obligation at its recorded amount or 
incur a gain or a loss. Our rate-regulated entities defer any timing differences between rate 
recovery and depreciation expense as either a regulatory asset or a regulatory liability. 

FIN 47 clarifies that the term conditional asset retirement obligation as used in Statement 143 
refers to an entity's legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing 



andlor method of settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may:not be within 
the control of the entity. FIN 47 requires that if an entity has sufficient information to reasonably 
estimate the fair value of the liability for a conditional asset retirement obligation, it must 
recognize that liability at the time the liability is incurred. We began applying FIN 47 effective 
December 31, 2005. Our application of FIN 47 did not have a material effect on our financial 
position, and there was no effect on our results of operations or cash flows. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Our asset retirement obligation (ARO) including our estimated conditional asset retirement 
obligation at December 31 was $57 million for 2006 and $30 million for 2005. The ARO 
primarily consists of obligations related to removal or retirement of: asbestos, polychlorinated 
biphenyl (PCB) contaminated equipment, gas pipeline and cast iron gas mains. The long-lived 
assets associated with our AROs are generation property, gas storage property, distribution 
property and other property. Our pro forma conditional asset retirement obligation was 
$27 million at December 31, 2004. 

The following table reconciles the beginning and ending aggregate canying amount of the 
ARO for the years ended December 31,2006 and 2005. The increase for 2006 is primarily for 
removal of asbestos from generating stations and the increase for 2005 is primarily for initially 
applying FIN 47. 

Year ended December 31, 2006 2005 
(Thousands) 

ARO, beginning of year 
Liabilities incurred during the year 
Liabilities settled during the year 
Accretion exDense . 

Revisions in estimated cash flows 6;230 - 
ARO, end of year $57,253 $29,895 

We have AROs for which we have not recognized a liability because the fair value cannot be 
reasonably estimated due to indeterminate settlement dates, including: the removal of hydro 
dams due to structural inadequacy or for decommissioning; the removal of property upon 
termination of an easement, right-of-way or franchise; and costs for abandonment of certain 
types of gas mains. 

Statement 143 provides that if the requirements of Statement 71 are met, a regulatory liability 
should be recognized, for financial reporting purposes only, for the difference between removal 
costs collected in rates and actual costs incurred. We classify those amounts as accrued 
removal obligations. 

Basic and diluted earnings pershare: We determine basic EPS by dividing net income by 
the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. The 
weight&-average common shares outstanding for diluted EPS include the incremental effect 
of restricted stock and stock options issued and exclude stock options issued in tandem with 



SARs. Historically, we have issued stock options in tandem with SARs and substantially all 
stock option plan participants have exercised the SARs instead of the stock options. The 

r numerator we use in calculating both basic and diluted EPS for each period is our reported 
net income. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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The reconciliation of basic and dilutive average common shares for each period follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
(Thousands) 

Basic average common shares outstanding 
Restricted stock awards 
Potentially dilutive common shams 
Options issued with SARS (131) (343) (313) 
Dilutive average common shares outstanding 147,717 147.474 146,713 

We exclude from the determination of EPS options that have an exercise price that is greater 
than the average market price of the common shares during the year. Shares excluded from 
the EPS calculation were: 2.3 million in 2006, 0.4 million in 2005 and 2.0 million in 2004. (See 
Note 12 for additional information concerning stock-based compensation.) 

Consolidated statements o f  cash flows: We consider all highly liquid investments with a 
maturity date of three months or less when acquired to be cash equivalents and those 
investments are included in cash and cash equivalents. 

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash F l o w  Information 2006 2005 2004 
(Thousands) 

Cash paid during the year ended December 31: 
Interest, net of amounts capitalized $249,662 $247,434 $245.992 
Income taxes, net of benefits received $93,294 $102.647 $140,823 

The amount of capitalized interest was $2 million in 2006 and $1 million in 2005 and 2004. 

Decommissioning expense: Other operating expenses for 2004 include nuclear 
decommissioning expense accruals. As a result of the sale of Ginna in June 2004 we no 
longer have a decommissioning obligation and will not incur additional decommissioning 
expense. 

Depreciation and amortization: We determine depreciation expense substantially using the 
straight-line method, based on the average service lives of groups of depreciable property, 
which include estimated cost of removal, in service at each operating company. The weighted- 
average service lives of certain classifications of property are: transmission property - 56 
years, distribution property - 50 years, generation property - 48 years, gas production property 
- 31 years, gas storage property - 25 years, and other property - 30 years. RG&E determines 
depreciation expense for the majority of its generation property using remaining service life 



rates, which include estimated cost of removal, based on operating license expiration or 
anticipated closing dates. The remaining service lives of RG&E's generation property range 
from 1 years for its coal station to 31 years for its hydroelectric stations. Our depreciation 
accruals were equivalent to 3.1% of average depreciable property for 2006 and 3.3% of 
average depreciable property for 2005 and 2004. 

We charge repairs and minor replacements to operating expense, and capitalize renewals and 
betterments, including certain indirect costs. We charge the original cost of utility plant retired . 

or otherwise disposed of to accumulated depreciation. 
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Estjmates: Preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make . 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

FIN 48: In July 2006 the FASB released FIN 48, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty 
in income taxes recognized in financial statements in accordance with Statement 109 by 

. 

prescribing a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement 
recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or to be taken in a tax return. The 
evaluation of a tax position is a two-step process. The first step is for an entity to determine if it 
is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination. The second step 
involves measuring the amount of tax benefit to be recognized in the financial statements 
based on the largest amount of benefit that meets the prescribed recognition threshold. The 
difference between the amounts based on that position and the position taken in a tax return is 
generally recorded as a liability. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 
15, 2006. Upon adoption of FIN 48, the cumulative effect of applying the provisions of FIN 48 
must be reported as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings for that fiscal - 
year. We adopted FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007. While we are still in the process of 
measuring the effect of the adoption, we estimate that the adoption will not have a material 
effect on our results of operations or financial position. 

Goodwill: We record the excess of the cost over fair value of net assets of purchased - 
businesses as goodwill. We evaluate the carrying value of goodwill for impairment at least 
annually and on an interim basis if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired. We 
may recognize an impairment if the fair value of goodwill is less than its carrying value. (See 
Note 4.) 

Investments available forsale: We held current investments of $20 million at December 31, 
- 

2006, and $193 million at December 31, 2005, which consisted of auction rate securities 
classified as available-for-sale. Our investments in these securities are recorded at cost, which 
approximates fair market value due to their variable interest rates, which typically reset every 7 
to 35 days. Despite the long-term nature of their stated contractual maturities, we have the 
ability to quickly liquidate such securities. As a result, we have no cumulative gross unrealized 



holding gains (losses) or gross realized gains (losses) from our current investments. All income 
generated from these current investments is recorded as interest income. 

a 
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Other (Income) and Other Deductions: 

Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
a (Thousands) 

Interest and dividend income $(16,699) $(15,802) $(12,421) 
Allowance for funds used during construction (2,266) (1.552) (582) 
Gains on energy risk contracts (6,158) (2,701) (4,544) 
2004 RG&E Electric and Natural Gas Rate Agreement - - (6.1 17) 

C 
Earnings from equity investments (3,483) (3.959) (3,930) 
Environmental recovery (8,383) - - 
Miscellaneous (9,137) (8.890) (7,903) 
Total other (income) $(46,126) S(32.904) S(35.497) 

Losses from disposition of nonutility property $916 $100 $3,543 
Losses on energy risk contracts 6,376 40 5,727 

4 Recognition of expense resulting from retirement of 11,248 - - 
debt and trust preferred securities 
Donations, civic and political 3,363 3.744 1,665 
Merger-enabled gas supply savings (851) 796 4,651 
Miscellaneous 3,526 4.178 217 

CI 
Total other deductions $24,578 $8,858 $15,803 

Principles of consolidation: These financial statements consolidate our majority-owned 
subsidiaries after eliminating intercompany transactions, except variable interest entities for 
which we are not the primary beneficiary. 

a Regulatory assets and liabilities: Pursuant to Statement 71 our operating utilities capitalize, 
as regulatory assets, incurred and accrued costs that are probable of recovery in future electric 
and natural gas rates. Substantially all regulatory assets for which funds have been expended 
are either included in rate base or are accruing carrying costs. Our operating utilities also 
record, as regulatory liabilities, obligations to refund previously collected revenue or to spend 
revenue collected from customers on future costs. 

Unfunded future income taxes and deferred income taxes are amortized as the related 
temporary differences reverse. Unamortized loss on debt reacquisitions is amortized over 
the lives of the related debt issues. Nuclear plant obligations, demand side management - program costs, gain on sale of generation assets, other regulatory assets and other regulatory 
liabilities are amortized over various periods in accordance with each operating utility's current 
rate plans. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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At December 31, 2006 and 2005, our Other regulatory assets and liabilities consisted of: 

- -  

(Thousands) 

Statement 106 
Customer Hardship Arrearage Forgiveness 
Program and Three-way Payment Plan 43,94Q 42,222 

Loss on sale of RG&E Oswego generating unit 41,895 48.371 
Asset retirement obligation 30,808 9,315 
Deferred ice storm costs 28.81 1 32,014 
Deferred pension costs 25,562 16.771 
Stranded cost reconciliation 24,349 18.545 
Deferred natural gas costs 21,087 77,838 
RG&E merger costs 12,406 24.393 
Other 75,613 50,924 
- 

Total other regulatory assets $356,299 $384,173 
Deferred natural gas costs $20,567 $18,095 
Economic development 
Pension 
Nuclear decommissioning 
Overcollection of Gross Receipts Tax 
Accrued earnings sharing 
Other 43,420 40,453 
Total other regulatory liabilities $93,268 $124,251 

Revenue recognition: We recognize revenues upon delivery of energy and energy-related - 
products and services to our customers. 

Pursuant to Maine State Law, since March 1, 2000, CMP has been prohibited from selling 
power to its retail customers. CMP does not enter into purchase or sales arrangements for 
power with ISO-NE, the New England Power Pool, or any other independent system operator - 
or similar entity. CMP sells all of its power entitlements under its NUG and other purchase 
power contracts to unrelated third parties under bilateral contracts. 

NYSEG and RG&E enter into power purchase and sales transactions with the NYISO. When 
NYSEG and RG&E sell electricity from owned generation to the NYISO, and subsequently - 
repurchase electricity from the NYISO to serve their customers, they record the transactions 
on a net basis in their statements of income. 

Risk management: The financial instruments we hold or issue are not for trading or 
speculative purposes. 

We use interest rate swap agreements to manage the risk of increases in variable interest 
rates and to maintain desired fixed-to-floating rate ratios. We record amounts paid and 
received under the agreements as adjustments to the interest expense of the specific debt 
issues. We also use derivative instruments to mitigate risk resulting from interest rate changes - 
on anticipated future financings and we amortize amounts paid or received under those 



instruments to interest expense over the life of the corresponding financing. 
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NYSEG, RG&E, Energetix and NYSEG Solutions face risks related to counterparty 
performance on hedging contracts due to counterparty credit default. We have developed a 
matrix of unsecured credit thresholds that are dependent on a counterparty's Moody's or S&P 
credit rating. When our exposure to risk for a counterparty exceeds the unsecured credit 
threshold, the counterparty is required to post additional collateral or we will no longer transact 
with the counterparty until the exposure drops below the unsecured credit threshold. 

n 
We use electricity contracts, both physical and financial, to manage fluctuations in the cost of 
electricity. We include the cost or benefit of those contracts in the amount expensed for 
electricity purchased when the electricity is sold. 

n 
All of our natural gas operating utilities have purchased gas adjustment clauses that allow 
them to recover through rates any changes in the market price of purchased natural gas, 
substantially eliminating their exposure to natural gas price risk. We use natural gas futures 
and forwards to manage fluctuations in natural gas commodity prices and provide price 
stability to customers. We include the cost or benefit of natural gas futures and forwards in the 
commodity cost when the related sales commitments are fulfilled. 

m 

We recognize the fair value of our financial electricity contracts, natural gas hedge contracts 
and interest rate swap agreements as current and noncurrent derivative assets or other current 
and noncurrent liabilities. Our financial electricity contracts and interest rate swap agreements 
are designated as cash flow hedging instruments, except for our fixed-to-floating interest rate 
swap agreement totaling $125 million, which is designated as a fair value hedge. We record 
changes in the fair value of the cash flow hedging instruments in other comprehensive income, 
to the extent they are considered effective, until the underlying transaction occurs. We record 
the ineffective portion of any change in fair value of cash flow hedges to the income statement 
as either Other (Income) or Other Deductions, as appropriate. We report changes in the fair 

L. value of the interest rate swap agreement on our consolidated statements of income in the 
same period as the offsetting change in the fair value of the underlying debt instrument. We 
record changes in the fair value of natural gas hedge contracts as regulatory assets or 
regulatory liabilities. 

n 
We use quoted market prices to determine the fair value of derivatives and adjust for volatility 
and inflation when the period of the derivative exceeds the period for which market prices are 
readily available. 
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C 
As of December 31,2006, the maximum length of time over which we had hedged our 
exposure to the variability in future cash flows for forecasted energy transactions was 36 



months. We estimate that losses of $2 million will be reclassified from accumulated other 
comprehensive income into earnings in 2007, as the underlying transactions occur. 

We have commodity purchases and sales contracts for both capacity and energy that have 
been designated and qualify for the normal purchases and normal sales exception in 
Statement 133. as amended. 

Statement 123(R): Statement 123(R) is a revision of Statement 123 and requires a public - 
entity to measure the cost of employee services that it receives in exchange for an award of 
equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award and recognize that cost over 
the period during which the employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award. 

Statement 123(R) also requires a public entity to initially measure the cost of employee 
services received in exchange for an award of liability instruments (e.g., instruments that are 
settled in cash) based on the award's current fair value, subsequently rerneasure the fair value 
of the award at each reporting date through the settlement date and recognize changes in fair 
value during the required service period as compensation cost over that period. We early 
adopted Statement 123(R) effective October 1,2005, using the modified version of prospective 
application. Our adoption of Statement 123(R) did not have a material effect on our financial - 

position, results of operations or cash flows. We describe our share-based compensation plans 
more fully in Note 12. 

As required by Statement 123(R), we no longer record deferred compensation cost for awards 
of restricted stock, but instead recognize capital in excess of par value and compensation cost - 
for the restricted stock over the estimated vesting period. The estimated vesting period is the 
period during which the employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award as 
adjusted based on the expected achievement of performance conditions. 

Our restricted stock awards have a retirement eligibility provision. Effective with our adoption of - 
Statement 123(R) we follow the nonsubstantive vesting period approach, according to which 
an award is considered to be vested for expense recognition purposes when an employee's 
retention of the award is no longer contingent on providing subsequent service. Therefore, we 
recognize compensation cost immediately for any new awards of restricted stock to employees 
who are eligible for retirement on the date of the grant. We follow the nominal vesting period 
approach for any restricted stock awards granted prior to our adoption of Statement 123(R) 

- 

and record compensation expense over the estimated vesting period for these restricted stock 
awards, beginning on the grant date. If an employee retires before the end of the estimated 
vesting period, we recognize at the date of retirement any remaining unrecognized 
compensation cost related to that employee's restricted stock. Our pro forma compensation 
cost for restricted stock for 2006, 2005 and 2004 following the nonsubstantive vesting period - 
approach is not materially different from the compensation cost we recognized following the 
nominal vesting period approach. 
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Statement 157: In September 2006 the FASB issued Statement 157. Changes from current A 



practice that will result from the application of Statement 157 relate to the definition of fair 
value, the methods used to measure fair value, and expanded disclosures about fair value 

m measurements. Statement 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or 
permit fair value measurements in which the FASB previously concluded that fair value is the 
relevant measurement attribute. It does not require any new fair value measurements, but may 
change current practice for some entities. Statement 157 will be effective for financial 
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods 
within those fiscal years, with earlier application encouraged. The provisions are to be applied 
prospectively, with certain exceptions. A cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings is 
required for application to certain financial instruments. We will adopt Statement 157 effective 
January I, 2008. We are currently assessing the effect Statement 157 would have on our 
results of operations, financial position and cash flows. 

n 
Statement 158: In September 2006 the FASB issued Statement 158, which amends FASB 
Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R), and requires an employer to: 

. recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of defined benefit pension andlor other 

rn 
postretirement plans as an asset or liability in its balance sheet; . recognize changes in the funded status of such plans in the year in which the changes 
occur through comprehensive income; . measure the funded status of a plan as of the date of its year-end balance sheet, and . disclose in the notes to the annual financial statements certain effects that the delayed 
recognition of the gains or losses, prior service costs or credits and transition asset or 
obligation are expected to have on net periodic benefit cost for the next fiscal year. 

The funded status of a benefit plan is measured as the difference between plan assets at fair 
value and the benefit obligation, which is the projected benefit obligation for a pension plan 
and the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation for any other postretirement benefit 

r plan. As required by Statement 158, gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise 
during the period but are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost pursuant 
to Statement 87 or Statement 106 are recognized as a component of other comprehensive 
income, net of tax. Gains or losses, prior service costs or credits and the transition asset or 
obligation remaining from the initial application of Statements 87 and 106 that are recognized 
in accumulated other comprehensive income are adjusted as they are subsequently 
recoanized as com~onents of net Deriodic benefit cost Dursuant to the recoanition and 
amo2ization provisions of those ~ktements. ~ o w e v e r , ' ~ n e r ~ ~  East's operating companies are 
rate-regulated entities that meet the criteria to apply Statement 71. Based on our assessments 
of the facts and circumstances applicable to the jurisdiction and regulatory environment of 

C 
each operating company, we have determined that all of our operating companies are allowed 
to defer as regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities the above indicated items. Other entities 
that are not rate-regulated would recognize those items as a component of other 
comprehensive income andlor include them in accumulated other comprehensive income. 

a - 
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a 
We initially applied the recognition and disclosure provisions of Statement 158 as of December 



31, 2006, which increased assets and liabilities, but had no effect on our results of operation or 
cash flows. Retrospective application of the recognition provisions and measurement 
provisions is not permitted. We measure our pension and other postretirement plan assets and 
benefit obligations as of the date of our fiscal year-end balance sheet and therefore have no 
need to change our measurement date. The incremental effect of applying Statement 158 for 
our qualified plans on individual line items in our balance sheet as of December 31, 2006, is: 

Before After 
Appllcation of Application of 
Statement 158 Adjustments Statement 158 

(Thousands) 

Regulatory and Other Assets 
Deferred income taxes 
Pension and other postretirement beneffis 
Other 

Total regulatory assets 
Other assets 
Prepaid pension benefits 
Other 

Total other assets 
Total Regulatory and Other Assets 
Total ~ s s e t s  $1 1.393.326 $169.075 $11,562,401 

Current Liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 
Other 

Total current liabilities 
Regulatory liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 
Pension benefits 
Other 

Total regulatory liabilities 
Other liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 
Pension and other postretirement benefits 
Other 
Total other liabilities 
Total Regulatory and Other Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 

Accumulated other comprehensive income 
Total Common Stock Equity 2,846,892 17.455 2,864,347 
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $1 1,393,326 $169.075 $1 1,562,407 

Taxes: We file a consolidated federal income tax return and allocate income taxes among 
Energy East and its subsidiaries in proportion to their contribution to consolidated taxable 
income. The determination and allocation of our income tax provision and its components are 
outlined and agreed to in the tax sharing agreements among Energy East and its subsidiaries. - 
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Deferred income taxes reflect the effect of temporary differences between the amount of 
assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting purposes and the amount recognized for 
tax purposes. We amortize lTCs over the estimated lives of the related assets. 

We account for sales tax collected from customers and remitted to taxing authorities on a net 
basis. 

Variable interest entities: FIN 46(R), addresses consolidation of variable interest entities. A 
variable interest entity is an entity that is not controllable through voting interests andlor in 
which the equity investor does not bear the residual economic risks and rewards. FIN 46(R) 
requires a business enterprise to consolidate a variable interest entity if the enterprise has a 
variable interest that will absorb a majority of the entity's expected losses. As of March 31, 
2004, we applied FIN 46(R) to all entities subject to the interpretation, as required. 

We have power purchase contracts with NUGs. However, we were not involved in the 
formation of and do not have ownership interests in any NUGs. We have evaluated all of our 
power purchase contracts with NUGs with respect to FIN 46(R) and determined that most of 
the purchase contracts are not variable interests for one of the following reasons: the contract 
is based on a fixed price or a market price and there is no other involvement with the NUG, the 
contract is short-term in duration, the contract is for a minor portion of the NUG's capacity or 
the NUG is a governmental organization or an individual. One of our NUG contracts expired in 
April 2006. We are not able to determine if we have variable interests with respect to power 
purchase contracts with six remaining NUGs because we are unable to obtain the information 
necessary to: (1) determine if any of the six NUGs is a variable interest entity, (2) determine if 
an operating utility is a NUG's primary beneficiary or (3) perform the accounting required to 
consolidate any of those NUGs. We routinely request necessary information from the six 
NUGs, and will continue to do so, but no NUG has yet provided the requested information. We 
did not consolidate any NUGs as of December 31,2006,2005 or 2004. 

We continue to purchase electricity from the six NUGs at above-market prices. We are not 
exposed to any loss as a result of our involvement with the NUGs because we are allowed to 
recover through rates the cost of our purchases. Also, we are under no obligation to a NUG if it 
decides not to operate for any reason. The combined contractual capacity for the remaining six 
NUGs is approximately 462 MWs. The combined purchases from the six NUGs totaled 
approximately $352 million in 2006, $376 million in 2005 and $325 million in 2004. 

Note 2. Sale of Ginna 

In June 2004, after receiving all regulatory approvals, RG&E sold Ginna to CGG. RG&E 
received at closing $429 million and received in September 2004 an additional $25 million for 
post-closing adjustments. Our 2004 statement of income reflects a gain on the sale of Ginna of 
$341 million. The deferral of the asset sale gain, after related taxes of $1 12 million, is 
$229 million. 
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RG&E's Electric Rate Agreement resolved all regulatory and ratemaking aspects related to the 
sale of Ginna, including providing for an ASGA of $378 million after the post-closing 
adjustments, and addressing the disposition of the asset sale gain. Upon closing of the sale of 
Ginna, RG&E transferred $201 million of decommissioning funds to CGG, which has taken 
responsibility for all future decommissioning funding. RG&E retained $77 million in excess 
decommissioning funds, which was credited to its customers as part of the ASGA. 

Note 3. Impairment of Assets and Disposal of Other Businesses 

In keeping with our focus on regulated electric and natural gas delivery businesses, during 
recent years we have been systematically exiting certain noncore businesses. All businesses 
sold were previously reported in our Other business segment. 

In December 2006 Energy East Telecommunication, Inc. a subsidiary of The Energy Network, 
Inc. sold its assets for $0.8 million, resulting in no after tax gain or loss. In the fourth quarter of 
2005 South Glens Falls Energy, LLC decided to shut down operations of its 67 MW natural 
gas-fired peaking co-generation facility located in South Glens Falls, New York. Our 
subsidiary, Cayuga Energy owned 85% of SGF. The determination to shut down operations 
was based on SGF's inability to recover costs given the current and forecasted prices for 
natural gas and electricity. 

SGF also had an agreement to sell steam that was resulting in ongoing losses. On January 26, 
2006, SGF filed for bankruptcy under Chapter 7 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. SGF 
has ceased operations and in 2005 we recorded an after-tax loss of $5.2 million, representing 
the impairment of SGF's assets. 

In October 2004 Energy East Solutions, Inc., a subsidiary of The Energy Network, Inc., 
completed the sale of its New England and Pennsylvania natural gas customer contracts and 
related assets at an after-tax loss of less than $1 million. In July 2004 The Union Water-Power 
Company, a subsidiary of CMP Group, sold the assets associated with its utility locating and 
construction divisions at an after-tax loss of $7 million. In 2004 we recognized a loss from 
discontinued operations of $8 million or 6 cents per share. 

In 2003 Energetix, a subsidiary of RGS Energy, sold its subsidiary Griffih Oil Co., Inc. In 2004 
we recorded a change in taxes of $1.2 million related to the sale of Griffith Oil to reflect actual 
taxes in accordance with the filing of our 2003 federal and state income tax returns. 
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The results of discontinued operations of the businesses sold were: 

Year Ended December 31, 2004 
(Thousands) 

Component of Energy East Solutions, Inc. 



Revenues $48,634 
Loss from operations of discontinued business S(859) 
Income taxes (benefits) (142) 
Loss from discontinued operations $(717) 

Certain Divisions of The Union Water-Power Company 
Revenues $13.1!% 
Loss from operations of discontinued business $(6,250) 
Income taxes 151 
Loss from discontinued operations $(6,401) 

Griffith Oil Co., Inc. 
Revenues - 
Loss from o~erations of discontinued business - 
Income taxes $1,166 
Loss from discontinued operations $(I ,166) 

Totals for discontinued operations 
Total revenues $ 61.790 
Total loss from operations of discontinued businesses $(7.109) 
Total income taxes 1,175 

Total loss from discontinued operations $(8,284) 

Note 4. Goodwill and Other lntangible Assets 

We do not amortize goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite lives (unamortized intangible 
assets). We test goodwill and unamortized intangible assets for impairment at least annually. 
We amortize intangible assets with finite lives (amortized intangible assets) and review them 
for impairment. W; completed our annual impairment testing inthe third quarter of 2006 and 
determined that we had no impairment of goodwill or unamortized intangible assets. 

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill at December 31, 2006, are for preaquisition 
income tax adjustments. The amounts of goodwill by operating segment (in thousands) are: 

Dec. 31,2006 Dec. 31, ZOOS 

Electric Delivery $845,296 $844,491 
Natural Gas Delivery 677,080 676,588 
Other 3,672 4,274 
Total $1,526,048 $1,525,353 

Other Intangible Assets: Our unamortized intangible assets had a carrying amount of 
$2 million at December 31, 2006, and $19 million at December 31, 2005, and primarily 
consisted of franchise costs in 2006 and pension assets in 2005. Our amortized intangible 
assets had a gross carrying amount of $27 million at December 31, 2006 and $31 million at 
December 31, 2005, and primarily consisted of investments in pipelines and customer lists. 
Accumulated amortization was $14 million at December 31, 2006 and $18 million at December 
31, 2005. Estimated amortization expense for intangible assets is approximately $1 million for 
each of the next five years, 2007 through 201 1. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Energy East Corporation 



Note 5. lncome Taxes 

Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
(Thousands) 

Current 

Federal 
State 16,105 14,800 19,186 

Current taxes charged to expense 124,130 101,858 11 8,454 
Deferred 
Federal 
State 11,832 15.438 17,545 

Deferred taxes charged to expense 34.228 71.259 141.062 
ITC adjustments (3,103) (3.120) (8.071) 

Total for Continuing Operations $155,255 $169.997 $251,445 

Our tax expense differed from the expense at the statutory rate of 35% due to the following: 

0 2005 2004 
(Thousands) 

Tax expense at statutory rate 
Depreciation and amortization not normalized 
ITC amortiation 
ASGA. Ginna 
State taxes, net of federal benefd 
Other, net (13,351) (8,303) (19,119) 

Total for Continuing Operations $155.255 $169,997 $251,445 

The effective tax rate for continuing operations was 37% in 2006,40% in 2005, and 51% in 
2004. The increase in 2004 was primarily a result of the regulatory treatment of the deferred 
gain from RG&E's sale of Ginna. RG&E recorded pretax income of $1 12 million and income 
tax expense of $1 12 million. (See Note 2.) 
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At December 31,2006 and 2005, our consolidated deferred tax assets and liabilities 
consisted of: 

Current Deferred lncome Tax Assets (Liabilities) 
Derivative assets 
Other 66,111 29,406 
Total Current Deferred Income Tax Assets (Liabilities) $93,187 $(80.984) 

Noncurrent Deferred lncome Tax Liabilities 
Depreciation 
Unfunded future income taxes 



Accumulated deferred ITC 35,320 38,604 
Deferred (gain) on sale of generation assets (31,718) (49,715) 
Pension 246,955 170.541 
Statement 106 postretirement benefts (119,115) (135,205) 
Derivative (liabilities) (4,536) (11,132) 
Other (13,548) (75,502) 
Total Noncurrent Deferred Income Tax Liabilities 1,210,242 1.019.805 

Valuation allowance 403 - 
Less amounts classified as regulatory liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 105,528 (1 3,4821 
Noncurrent Deferred Income Tax Liabilities $1,105,117 $1,033,287 

Deferred tax assets $262,103 $300.960 
Deferred tax liabilities 1,379,158 1,401,749 
Net Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes Liability $1,117,055 $1,100.789 

Energy East and its subsidiaries have New York State loss canyforwards of $17.2 million, 
which expire between 2020 and 2023, and an associated valuation allowance of $0.4 million. 

Note 6. Long-term Debt 

Debt owed to subsidiary holding solely parent debentures: The debt owed to a subsidiary 
holding solely parent debentures consisted of Energy East's 8 114% junior subordinated debt 
securities that were to mature on July 1, 2031, and were held by Energy East Capital Trust I 
(the Trust). We redeemed all of the junior subordinated debt securities at par on July 24, 2006, 
financed by the issuance of $250 million of unsecured long-term debt at 6.75%, due in 2036, 
and by the issuance of short-term debt. We expensed approximately $11 million of 
unamortized debt expense in July 2006 in connection with the redemption. Also in July 2006 
the Trust redeemed, at par, its $345 million, 8 114% Capital Securities. 
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Other long-term debt: At December 31, 2006 and 2005, our consolidated other long-term 
debt was: 

Amount 
rrhousands) 

Compmny Intonat Ratea Maturity 2006 2006 

Flnt mortpagb bonds ''1 
RG6E Serb8 S. TT, UU 6 W 
RG6E PCN 2004 Serlw A 6 8 
SCG Medium Term Nola I. II 6 Ill 
SCG Serbs W 

Barkshln Gas Serbs P 10.06% 2019 10,000 10,000 
Total 6mI rnortpap. bonds 826.600 830.500 

una.cumd pohtlon contml notea. Rx.d 



NYSEG 1994 series A 8 E 
NYSEG 1985 Serbs A. B 8 0 
NYSEG 2004 series C 
RG6.E 1998 Series A 
CMP Industrial Dentlaoment AuMoritv -~ 

~ ~7 ~~ ~ 

of the state of New ~ampshlrd~otes 5.375% 2014 19,500 19,500 

Total unsewred pollution control notes, Wed n7.000 314.000 

Unaacumd pollution contml notu, variable 

NYSEG 2006 SeMs A 3.75% 2024 12.000 
NYSEG 2005 Series A 3.75% 2028 86,000 65.000 
NYSEG 2004 Serbs A 6 B 3.80% - 3.85% 2027 - 2028 104.000 104.000 
NYSEG 1994 Series B, C. D l  8 D2 3.50% - 3.60% 2029 175.000 175,000 
RG8E 1997 Series A. B 8 C 3.38% - 3.50% 2032 101,900 101,900 
TEN COS industrial Rentnue Vadabls Rats Demand - ~ ~ 

Bonds 3.82% 2025 - 2030 14.900 14.900 
TOW unwcured mllution control notes. wt!able 472.800 460.600 

Energy East 
Energy East 
Energy East 
Energy East 
Energy East 
NYSEG 
CMP 
CNG 
Berkshira Gar 
EnergeLbc 
TEN Cos 

VaIIOua long-tmrm dabt 

Unwmmd Note 
Unsewmd Note 
Unsecured Note 
Unsecured Note 
Unsecured Notw 
Unsecured Notes 
Series E 6. F Medlurn Tern Notea 
Medium Term Notes Series A. B 6 C 
Unsecured Notes 
Promissory Note 
Senior Secured Term Notes 

NORVARCO Promissory a d  Senior Note 7.05% - 10.48% 2020 16,373 17.558 
Total various lono-term debt 2.398.682 2.034.1 15 . . . . 
Obllgatlons under capital leases 26.187 26.855 

UnamoRized premium and dkCOUnt on debt, net f8.692) (28.348) - 
3,987,477 3,637,922 

LOSS debt due wimln one year, Included In current UabHltles 260.768 326.527 

Totmi $3.726.709 $3.31 1.395 

1.  he nnt monoape bonds are secured by lienr on substan((a#y all of me reapdhn ~ n y *  pmpenies. 
- 
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There are federal and state regulatory restrictions on our ability to borrow funds from our utility 
subsidiaries. While we may be able to borrow funds from our utility subsidiaries by obtaining 
regulatory approvals and meeting certain conditions, we do not expect to seek such loans. 
Energy East has no secured indebtedness and none of its assets are mortgaged, pledged or 
otherwise subject to lien. None of Energy East's debt obligations are guaranteed or secured by 
its subsidiaries. 

At December 31, 2006, other long-term debt, including sinking fund obligations, and capital 



lease payments (in thousands) that will become due during the next five years is: 

Cross-default Provisions: Energy East has a provision in its senior unsecured indenture, 
which provides that its default with respect to any other debt in excess of $40 million will be 
considered a default under its senior unsecured indenture. Energy East also has a provision in 
its revolving credit facility, which provides that its default with respect to any other debt in 
excess of $50 million will be considered a default under its revolving credit facility. 

Note 7. Bank Loans and Other Borrowings 
C 

Energy East is the sole borrower in a revolving credit facility providing maximum borrowings of 
up to $300 million. Our operating utilities are joint borrowers in a revolving credit facility 
providing maximum borrowings of up to $475 million in aggregate. Sublimits that total to the 
aggregate limit apply to each joint borrower and can be altered within the constraints imposed 

I* by maximum limits that apply to each joint borrower. Both facilities have expiration dates in 
201 1 and require fees on undrawn borrowing capacity. Two of our operating utilities have 
uncommitted bilateral credit agreements for a total of $10 million. The two revolving credit 
facilities and the two bilateral credit agreements provided for consolidated maximum 
borrowings of $785 million at December 31,2006 and 2005. Energy East pays a facility fee of 
10 basis points annually on its $300 million revolver and each joint borrower pays a facility fee 
on its revolver sublimit, ranging from 6 to 10 basis points annually depending on the rating of 
its unsecured debt. 

We use commercial paper and drawings on our credit facilities to finance working capital 
fi 

needs, to temporarily finance certain refundings and for other corporate purposes. There was 
$109 million of such short-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2006, and $121 million 
outstanding at December 31, 2005. The weighted-average interest rate on short-term debt was 
6.0% at December 31,2006, and 4.6% at December 31,2005. 

In our revolving credit facility we covenant not to permit, without the consent of the lender, our 
ratio of consolidated indebtedness to consolidated total capitalization to exceed 0.65 to 1 .OO at 
any time. For purposes of calculating the maximum ratio of consolidated indebtedness to 
consolidated total capitalization, we have amended the facility to exclude from consolidated net 
worth the balance of 'Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ' as it appears on the 
consolidated balance sheet. The facility contains various other covenants, including a 

* restriction 
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on the amount of secured indebtedness Energy East may maintain. Continued unremedied 
failure to comolv with those covenants for 15 days after written notice of such failure from the 

r lender constit$es an event of default and would-result in acceleration of maturity. Our ratio of 
consolidated indebtedness to consolidated total capitalization pursuant to the revolving credit 



facility was 0.58 to 1.00 at December 31, 2006. We are not in default, and no condition exists 
that is likely to create a default, under the facility. 

In the revolving credit facility in which our operating utilities are joint borrowers, each joint 
borrower covenants not to permit, without the consent of the lender, its ratio of total 
indebtedness to total capitalization to exceed 0.65 to 1.00 at any time. For purposes of 
calculating the maximum ratio of consolidated indebtedness to total capitalization, the facility 
was amended to exclude from consolidated net worth the balance of 'Accumulated other 
comprehensive income (loss)' as it appears on the consolidated balance sheet. The facility 
contains various other covenants, including a restriction on the amount of secured 
indebtedness each borrower may maintain. Continued unremedied failure to observe those 
covenants for five business days after written notice of such failure from the lender constitutes 
an event of default and would result in acceleration of maturity for the party in default. No 
borrower is in default, and no condition exists that is likely to create a default, under the facility. 

Note 8. Preferred Stock Redeemable Solely at the Option of Subsidiaries 

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, our consolidated preferred stock was: 

Par Redemption Shares Amount 
Subsidiary Value Price Authorized and (Thousands) 
and Series per Share Per Share Outstanding(') 2008 2005 

CMP, 6% Noncallable $100 - 5,180 $51 8 $51 8 
CMP, 4.60% 100 101 .OO 30.000 3.000 3.000 
CMP, 4.75% 100 101 .OO 50.000 5,000 5,000 
CMP, 5.25% 100 102.00 50,000 5,000 5.000 
NYSEG, 3.75% 100 104.00 78,379 7,838 7,838 
NYSEG. 4.50% (1 949) 100 103.75 11.800 1,180 1.180 
NYSEG, 4.40% 100 102.00 7,093 709 709 
NYSEG, 4.15% (1954) 100 102.00 4,317 432 432 
Berkshire Gas. 4.80% 100 100.00 1,651 165 204 
CNG 6.00% 100 1 10.00 4.104 41 1 41 1 - . . - , . . . . . - ~ ~ ~ ~~~ 

CNG, 8.00% Noncallable 3.125 - 108i706 339 339 
Total $24,592 $24.631 

(')At Dacambar31.2006. Enemv East and i t l  subsidiaries had 16.731.748 shams of $100 Dar Mlue Dmferred stock. 18.800.000 shams of 125 aar . . - ~ ~ ~ .  . . ~ .~~~ ~ ~ ~ - -  .-. 
valu. pntsnad stock. 775.609 %ares of13.925 par value preferred stock. 600.000 shams i f  $1 par Glue preferred stock. 10.000.000 shares o i&l  
par value preferred stock. 1.000.000 shams of $100 par value prefemnm stock and 8,000,000 sharer of $1 par vacua prehrenm stock authorized bul 
unissued. 
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Our subsidiaries redeemed or purchased the following amounts of preferred stock during the 
three years 2004 through 2006: 

Subsidia~ Date Series Amount 

Berkshire Gas September 16.2004 
Berkshire Gas September 15.2005 



Berkshire Gas September 15,2006 4.80% $39.3 

RG&E 
RGBE 
RGBE 
RG&E 
RGBE 
RGBE 

May 5,2004 
May 5.2004 
May 5,2004 
May 5, 2004 
May 5.2004 
May 5,2004 

CMP June 10,2005 3.50% $22.000 

Votlng rights: If preferred stock dividends on any series of preferred stock of a subsidiary, 
other than the CMP 6% series and the CNG 8.00% series, are in default in an amount 
equivalent to four full quarterly dividends, the holders of the preferred stock of such subsidiary 
are entitled to elect a majority of the directors of such subsidiary (and, in the case of the CNG 
6.00% series, the largest number of directors constituting a minority of the board) and their 
privilege continues until all dividends in default have been paid. The holders of preferred stock, 
other than the CMP 6% series and the CNG 8.00% series, are not entitled to vote in respect of 
any other matters except those, if any, in respect of which voting rights cannot be denied or 
waived under some mandatory provision of law, and except that the charters of the respective 
subsidiaries contain provisions to the effect that such holders shall be entitled to vote on 
certain matters affecting the rights and preferences of the preferred stock. 

Holders of the CMP 6% series and the CNG 8.00% series are entitled to one vote per share 
and have full voting rights on all matters. 

Note 9. Commitments and Contingencies 

Capitaispending: We have commitments in connection with our capital spending program. 
We plan to invest over $3 billion in our energy delivery infrastructure during the next five years, 
including amounts dedicated to electric reliability. We expect that over one-half of our capital 
spending will be paid for with internally generated funds and the remainder through the 
issuance of debt and equity securities. The program is subject to periodic review and revision. 
Our capital spending will be primarily for the extension of energy delivery service, increased 
transmission capacity, necessary improvements to existing facilities, the installation of an 
advanced metering infrastructure and compliance with environmental requirements 
and governmental mandates. 

Nonutility generator power purchase contracts: We expensed approximately $560 million 
for NUG power in 2006, $631 million in 2005, and $61 3 million in 2004. We estimate that our 
NUG power purchases will be $568 million in 2007, $392 million in 2008, $229 million in 2009, 
$84 million in 2010 and $85 million in 201 1. 
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Nuclear entitlement powerpurchase contracts: In connection with our sales of nuclear 



generating assets in 2004 and 2001, we entered into four entitlement contracts under which 
we purchase electricity at a fixed contract price. We expensed approximately $258 million for 
nuclear entitlement power in 2006, $263 million in 2005, and $1 99 million in 2004. We estimate 
that our nuclear entitlement power purchases will be $281 million in 2007, $287 million in 2008, 
$293 million in 2009, $309 million in 2010, and $276 million in 201 1. 

NYlSO billing adjustmenl: The NYlSO frequently bills market participants on a retroactive 
basis when it determines that billing adjustments are necessary. Such retroactive billings can 
cover several months or years and cannot be reasonably estimated. NYSEG and RG&E 
record transmission or supply revenue or expense, as appropriate, when revised amounts are 
available. The two companies have developed an accrual process that incorporates available 
information about retroactive NYlSO billing-adjustments as provided to all market participants. 
However, on an ongoing basis, they cannot fully predict either the magnitude or the direction of 
any final billing adjustments. 

NYPSC proceeding on NYSEG's accounting for OPEB: On August 23,2006, the NYPSC 
issued its decision in the NYSEG rate case. Among other things, the NYPSC instructed the 
ALJ to open a separate proceeding regarding the NYPSC staffs position that NYSEG should 
have retained $57 million of interest in its OPEB reserve and used it to reduce rate base. A . 

proceeding has been opened and hearings on the issues raised by the NYPSC staff are 
currently scheduled for July 2007. NYPSC acceptance of its staffs position would result in 
NYSEG treating all or a portion of the $57 million as an addition to its internal OPEB reserve, 
with a corresponding charge to income. While NYSEG is vigorously opposing staff on these 
issues, contending that the NYPSC staff is engaged in retroactive ratemaking, it cannot predict - 
how this matter will be resolved. 

Note 10. Environmental Liability and Nuclear Decommissioning 

Environmental liabiiity From time to time environmental laws, regulations and compliance - 

programs may require changes in our operations and facilities and may increase the cost of 
electric and natural gas service. 

The EPA and various state environmental agencies, as appropriate, have notified us that we 
are among the potentially responsible parties who may be liable for costs incurred to 

A 

remediate certain hazardous substances at 22 waste sites. The 22 sites do not include sites 
where gas was manufactured in the past, which are discussed below. With respect to the 
22 sites, 13 sites are included in the New York State Registry of Inactive Hazardous Waste 
Disposal Sites, three are included in Maine's Uncontrolled Sites Program, one is included on 
the Massachusetts Non-Priority Confirmed Disposal Site list and nine sites are also included 
on the National Priorities list. 

- 
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Any liability may be joint and several for certain of those sites. We have recorded an estimated 
liability of $2 million related to 12 of the 22 sites. We have paid remediation costs related to the 
remaining 10 sites, and do not expect to incur any additional liability. We have recorded an - 



estimated liability of $4 million related to another 12 sites where we believe it is probable that 
we will incur remediation costs and/or monitoring costs, although we have not been notified 

r that we are among the potentially responsible parties. The ultimate cost to remediate the sites 
may be significantly more than the accrued amount. Factors affecting the estimated 
remediation amount include the remedial action plan selected, the extent of site contamination 
and the portion attributed to us. 

We have a program to investigate and perform necessary remediation at our 60 sites where 
gas was manufactured in the past. Eight sites are included in the New York State Registry, 
eight sites are included in the New York Voluntary Cleanup Program, four sites are part of 
Maine's Voluntary Response Action Program and one of those four sites is part of Maine's 
Uncontrolled Sites Program, three sites are included in the Connecticut Inventory of 

c Hazardous Waste Sites, and three sites are on the Massachusetts Department of 
Environmental Protection's list of confirmed disposal sites. We have entered into consent 
orders with various environmental agencies to investigate and, where necessary, remediate 47 
of the 60 sites. 

n 
Our estimate for all costs related to investigation and remediation of the 60 sites ranges from 
$162 million to $290 million at December 31, 2006. Our estimate could change materially 
based on facts and circumstances derived from site investigations, changes in required 
remedial action, changes in technology relating to remedial alternatives and changes to current 
laws and regulations. 

^ The liability to investigate and perform remediation, as necessary, at the known inactive gas 
manufacturing sites was $162 million at December 31,2006, and $161 million at December 
31, 2005. We recorded a corresponding regulatory asset, net of insurance recoveries, since 
we expect to recover the net costs in rates. - Our environmental liabilities are recorded on an undiswunted basis unless payments are fixed 
and determinable. Nearly all of our environmental liability accruals, which are expected to be 
  aid throuclh the vear 2017, have been established on an undiscounted basis. Some of our 
operating ;tility subsidiaries have received insurance settlements during the last three years. 
which they generally accounted for as reductions to their related regulatory assets. The DTE 

,, allows utilities in Massachusetts to retain a percentage share of insurance proceeds 
for shareholders. 

Nuclear decommissioning: CMP has ownership interests in three nuclear generating 
companies in New England, which it accounts for under the equity method. All three 

rrr companies have permanently shut down their facilities which have been decommissioned or 
are in the process of being decommissioned. 
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Each of the three nuclear generating companies has an established NRC licensed 
1 

independent spent fuel storage installation on site to store spent nuclear fuel in dry casks until 
the DOE takes the fuel for disposal. 



Maine Yankee Connecticut 
Yankee Atomic Yankee 

6 in Mllllon8) 

Ownership share 38% 9.5% 6% 
2006 decommissioning and spent fuel $24.1 $4.7 $7.3 
storage costs 

Share of remaining decommissioning 
and other costs (in 2006 dollars) $62.1 $7.3 $19.8 
Equity interest at December 31,2006 $6.0 - $2.6 

Maine Yankee's decommissioning was completed in 2005, Yankee Atomic's decommissioning 
was completed during 2006 and Connecticut Yankee's decommissioning is scheduled to be 
completed during 2007. Connecticut Yankee increased its decommissioning collections to $93 
million annually as of January 2005. CMP's share of that increase is approximately $6 million. - 

Under Maine statutes, CMP is allowed to recover in rates any increases in decommissioning 
costs and pursuant to its 2005 stranded cost settlement with the MPUC, CMP began to collect 
the higher decommissioning costs for Connecticut Yankee in March 2005 and for Yankee 
Atomic in March 2006. 

Note 11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of our financial instruments are shown in the 
following table. The fair values are based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar 
issues of the same remaining maturities. 

December 31. 2006 2005 
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated 
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value 

(Thouund.) 

Noncurrent investments -classified as 
available-for-sale $85,386 $95,457 $88,432 $88,432 

Debt owed to affiliate - - $355,670 $358,817 
First mortgage bonds $824,625 $863,903 $829.551 $922,079 
Pollution control notes, fixed $277,000 $279,143 $314,000 $322,510 
Pollution control notes, variable $472,800 $472,800 $460.800 $460.800 - 
Various long-term debt $2,356,290 $2,439.918 $2,006,716 $2.150.762 

The carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents, current investments available for sale, 
notes payable, derivative assets, derivative liabilities and interest accrued approximate their 
estimated fair values. - 

- 
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Note 12. Share-Based Compensation 

As of December 31,2006, we have two share-based compensation plans, which are described 
below. The total compensation cost recognized in income for those plans for the years ended - 



December 31 was: $12.0 million for 2006, $4.1 million for 2005 and $21.1 million for 2004. The 
total income tax benefit recognized in income for the share-based compensation arrangements 
for the years ended December 31 was: $4.8 million for 2006, $1.7 million for 2005 and $8.4 
million for 2004. 

Stock optionsBARs: Under our 2000 Stock Option Plan (the Plan), which was approved by 
our shareholders, we may grant to senior management and certain other key employees stock 
options and SARs for up to 13 million shares of Energy East's common stock. Awards are 
intended to more closely align the financial interests of management with those of our 
shareholders by providing long-term incentives to those individuals who can significantly affect 
our future growth and success. Our policy is to grant SARs in tandem with any stock options 
granted. Employees may choose to exercise either the SARs, which are settled in cash, or the 
stock options. The exercise price of stock options1SARs granted is the market price of Energy 
East's common stock on the last trading date prior to the date of grant. The stock 
optionsISARs generally vest one-third upon grant, one-third on the first day of the new year 
following their grant and the last third a year later, subject to, with certain exceptions, 
continuous employment. All stock optionsISARs expire 10 years after the grant date. The 
Compensation and Management Succession Committee of Energy East's Board of Directors, 
which administers the Plan, may in its discretion take one or more of specified actions in order 
to preserve a participant's rights under an award in the event of a change in control (as defined 
in the Plan). 

Effective with our adoption of Statement 123(R) on October 1,2005, (see Note 1) we began 
estimating the fair value of each stock OptionISAR award using the Black-Scholes-Merton 
option valuation model and the assumptions noted in the table below. In accordance with 
Statement 123(R), we measure the fair value of the stock optionslSARs on the date of grant, 
when we begin to recognize compensation cost, and remeasure the fair value at the end of 
each reporting period. We incur a liability for our stock option plan awards in accordance with 
Statement 123(R) because employees can request that the awards be settled in cash rather 
than by issuing equity instruments. The liability at the reporting date is based on the fair value 
at that date, and the compensation cost for the reporting period then ended is based on the 
percentage of required service that has been rendered at that date. We base the expected 
volatility and the dividend yield on 36-month historic averages for Energy East's common 
stock. The expected term of options1SARs granted represents the period of time that we 
expect the options1SARs to be outstanding, which we derive using the simplified method 
allowed by the SEC. An expected term derived using the simplified method is essentially one- 
half of the remaining contractual term. The risk-free rate for each option is based on the U.S. 
Treasury yield curve in effect at the end of the reporting period for maturities consistent with 
:he expected term. 

2006 ZOOS 

Expected volatility 12.42% 13.93% 
Expected dividends 4.49% 4.46% 
Expected term (in years) 0.2-5.0 0.7-5.0 
?isk-free rate 4.58%-4.99% 4.19%-4.36% 
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We applied APB 25, as permitted by Statement 123, to account for our stock-based 
compensation prior to our adoption of Statement 123(R). In applying APB 25 we incurred a 
liability for our stock optionslSARs, as explained above, and used the intrinsic value method to 
determine the liability and related compensation during the nine months ended September 30, 
2005, and the year 2004. Statement 123 required the amount of the liability for awards that call 
for settlement in cash to be measured each period based on the current stock price, which 
produced the same result as using the intrinsic value method in applying APB 25 for such 
awards. 

The following table provides a summary of stock optionlSAR activity under the Plan and other 
information, for the year ended and as of December 31,2006. 

Welghtsd- 
Weighted- Average Aggregate 

Stock Average Remaining Intrinsic 
Options1 Exercise Contractual Value 

SARs Price Tenn (Years) ( T ~ O I I S ~ I ~ S )  

Outstanding at January 1, 2006 3,159,988 $23.81 

OptionsJSARs granted 788.880 $25.1 1 
SARs exercised 103.495 $21.58 
OotionsISARs forfeited or emired 186.818 f 26.22 

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of stock options1SARs granted during the years 
snded December 31 was: $2.47 per share for 2006, $2.84 per share for 2005 and $2.93 per 
;hare for 2004. The total intrinsic value of share-based liabilities paid during the years ended 
3ecember 31 was: $0.3 million for 2006, $10.5 million for 2005 and $13.4 million for 2004. 

Qestrictedstock: We have a Restricted Stock Plan for our common stock under which an 
aggregate of two million shares may be granted, subject to adjustment. We award shares of 
sstricted stock to selected employees, which shares are issued in the name of the employee, 
vho has all the rights of a shareholder subject to certain restrictions on transferability and a 
isk of forfeiture. The restricted shares generally vest no later than January 1 of the sixth year 
after the award is granted and based on the conditions outlined in the restricted stock award 
)rants, including the achievement of targeted shareholder returns. We issue shares of 
estricted stock out of Energy East's treasury stock. We repurchased 250,000 shares of our 
:ommon stock in February 2006, primarily for grants of restricted stock. The grant-date fair 
falue of shares of restricted stock awarded is based on the market price of Energy East's 
:ommon stock on the date of the restricted stock award and is not subsequently remeasured. 
Ve generally expense the compensation cost for restricted stock ratably over the requisite 
;ervice period; however, compensation cost for certain shares may be expensed immediately 
lr over shorter periods based on the achievement of performance criteria or the retirement 
~rovision included in the Restricted Stock Plan. The weighted-average grant date fair value per 
.hare of restricted stock granted during the years ended December 31 was: $24.75 for 2006, 
i26.42 for 2005 and $23.90 for 2004. 

lotes to Consolidated Financial Statements 



Energy East Corporation 

.. The following table provides a summary of restricted stock activity and other information for the 
year ended and as of December 31,2006: 

Welghted-Average 
Grant-Date 

Restricted Stock Plan Shares Fair Value 
C 

Nonvested at January 1,2006 576.278 $24.29 
Granted 273,733 $24.75 
Vested (49,625) $23.95 
Forfeited (750) $25.37 

Nonvested at December 31,2006 799,436 $24.46 
a 

As of December 31, 2006, there was $4.6 million of total unrecognized compensation cost 
related to shares granted pursuant to the Restricted Stock Plan, which we expect to recognize 
over a weighted-average period of less than one year. The total fair value of shares vested 
during the years ended December 31 was: $1.2 million for 2006, $2.1 million for 2005 and 
$0.7 million for 2004. 

Notes to Consolidated F h n c i a l  Statements 
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Note 13. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

Bwkncm Balmnm B a k n w  Baht 
Januery ZOOI Dmcember 2006 D.cemb.r rn Decem 
1.2004 Change 31,2004 Change ' 31,2008 Chanae (') 31. 21 - 

(lhouunds) 
Unnallred gmlns (losses) 
on investment.: 
Unrealired holding gains 
during period, n a  of inwme 

a tax (expense) of. S(316) for 
2004, S(210) for 2005. and 
S(8M) for 2006 $491 $333 t 1.454 

Net unrealized (iosses) gains 
on investments S(896) 491 S(405) 333 S(72) 1.454 $1.: 
Minimum pension iiabiiily 
adjustment, net of income W 
benefil (expense) of $8,114 for 2004. 

$88.74 for 2005 and 
S(43.850) for 2006 (40.120) (7.915) (48.035) (18.883) (85.018) 65.018 

Adjustment to initially apply Statement 
158 for nonqualified plans, net of 
income tax benefit of $11.153 for2006 

(16.817) (18.8 

Unrealired gains (10s-8) On 
derivatives qualikd as hedpa: 
Unreaiized gains durinp 
period on derivatives quallfiod 
as hedges. net of income tax 
(expense) benefit of S(5.061) for 

2004, S(107.041) lor 2005 
and $1 12.687 for 2006 
ReclassWcation adjustment for 
(gains) included in net 
income, net of inmme tax 
expense (beneR) of $22.037 



for 2004. $1 1.087 for 2005 
and S(7.843) for 2006 (33.887) (1 8.056) 11,040 

Net unrealized gains (IOSSeS) O n  

derivatives qualified as 29,802 (24.023) 4.879 149.296 154.175 (162.510) (8.3 - 

Accumulated Other 
Compnhenrlve 
Income (Loss) S(11.214) 502.347) S(43.561) $132,646 $89,085 S(ll2.864) S(23.7 

("The redudion in the minimum pension liablltty includes $17.4 mllllon forthe adjustmenl to lnltillly apply Stalemen1 158. 

(2) See Risk management in Note 1. 
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Note 14. Retirement Benefits 

We have funded noncontributory defined benefit pension plans that cover substantially all of 
our employees. The plans provide defined benefits based on years of service and final 
average salary. We also have other postretirement health care benefit plans covering 
substantially all of our employees. The health care plans are contributory with participants' 
contributions adjusted annually. 

Obligations and funded status: 

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits 
2006 2005 2006 2005 

(Thousands) 

Change in benefit obligation 
Benefit obligation at January 1 $2,366,748 $2,254.209 $ 536,997 $559.977 
Service cost 37,443 35.379 5,852 5,775 
Interest cost 127,197 127,785 29,319 30,719 
Plan participants' contributions - - 25 642 
Plan amendments - 418 247 - 
Actuarial loss (gain) (93,685) 81,844 (5,728) (23.686) 
Benefits paid (135,710) (1 32.887) (38,275) (36,430) 
Federal subsidy on benefits paid - - 2,006 - 
Benefit obl~gation at December 31 $2,301,993 $2,366,748 $530.443 $536,997 - 
Change inplan assets 
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 $2,584,525 $2,475,494 $31.128 $32,105 
Actual return on plan assets 366,210 187.449 3,306 1,516 
Employer contributions 400 54,469 28,125 26.463 
Plan participants' contributions - - 25 642 - 
Benefits paid (135,710) (132,887) (25,283) (29.598) 
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $2,815,425 $2,584,525 $37,301 $31.128 
Funded status at December 31 $51 3,432 $217.777 $(493,142) $(505,869) 
Unrecoanized net actuarial loss (') $481,244 $66,349 - 
Unrecognized prior service cost (benefit) (') 42,810 (36.770) - 
Unrecognized net transition obligation L1) - 47.599 



Total unrecognized amounts $524,054 $77,178 

Pre~aid (accrued) benefit cost $741.831 $(428,691) 

( ' ) ~ t  Ddcember31.2006, these amounts tor pension benefits and postretirement benefits am induded in regulatory a l s a  or regulatory llabllltias. as 
appropriate, due to h e  application of Statement 158 and in accordance with Statement 71. See Staternem 158 disdosure in Not. 1. 

Pension Benefit. Postretirement Benefits 

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet 2006 2005 2006 2005 
Noncurrent assets $577,356 - 
Current liabilities - t(26.228) 
Noncurrent liabilities (63,924) (466,914) 

$51 3,432 ((493,142) 

Prepaid benefit cost $741,831 
Accrued benefit cost - $(428.691) 
Additional minimum liablltty (1 85,791) - 
Intangible assets 6,595 - 
Regulatory liabilities 76,914 - 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 102.282 - 
Net amount recoanized $741,831 $(428.6911 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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The minimum liability for pension benefits included in other comprehensive income increased 
$20 million in 2005. We recorded a minimum pension liability of $186 million at December 31, 
2005, as required by Statement 87. We recognized the effect of the minimum pension liability 
in other long-term liabilities, intangible assets, regulatory liabilities and other comprehensive 
income, as appropriate. That treatment was prescribed when the accumulated benefit 
obligation in the plan exceeded the fair value of the underlying pension plan assets and 
accrued pension liabilities. The increase in the unfunded accumulated benefit obligation in 
2005 was primarily due to a decrease in the assumed discount rate. The minimum pension 
liability was eliminated and related amounts reversed based on their balances at December 
31, 2006, due to the application of Statement 158. See Statement 158 disclosure in Note 1. 

As explained in Note 1, we have determined that all of our operating companies are allowed to 
defer gs regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities items that would otherwise be recorded in 
accumulated other comwehensive income ~ursuant to Statement 158. Amounts recoanized in " 
regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities at December 31, 2006, consist of: 

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits 
(Thousands) 

Net loss (gain) f 220,806 $51,798 
Prior service cost (benefit) $38,082 $(28,723) 
Transition obligation - $40,800 

Our accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans at December 31 was 
$2.1 billion for 2006 and $2.2 billion for 2005. 



CMP's, CNG's and SCG's postretirement benefits were partially funded at December 31, 2006 
and 2005. 

Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit 
obligation in excess of  plan assets 
December 31, 2006 2005 
(Thousands) 
Projected benefit obligation $440,847 $569,560 
Accumulated benefit obligation $395,586 $51 1.653 
Fair value of plan assets $383,046 ~. $456,593 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Pension Benefits Postretirement Beneffts 

(Thousand.) 

Components of  net 
periodic benefit cost - 
Service cost $37,443 $35.379 $32.069 $5,852 $5.775 $6,082 
Interest cost 127,197 127,785 130,891 29,319 30,719 34,672 
Expected return on plan assets (221,702) (214,012) (206,120) (1,693) (2.248) (2,480) 
Amortization of prior 
service cost (benefit) 4,736 4,994 4,650 (7,504) (7,577) (7.273) 

Amortization of net loss (gain) 22,245 15,887 (1,106) 6,784 8,630 4,968 - 
Amortization of transition 

(asset) obligation - - (1.230) 6,800 6.800 8.001 
Curtailment - - (148) - - 230 
Settlement charge - - '12.186 - - (6,131) 
Net periodic benefit cost $(30,081) $(29.967) $(28,808) $39,558 $42,099 $38.069 - 
We include the net periodic benefit cost in other operating expenses. The net periodic benefit 
cost for postretirement benefits represents the amount expensed for providing health care 
benefits to retirees and their eligible dependents. The amount of postretirement benefit cost 
deferred at December 31 was $52 million for 2006 and $59 million for 2005. We expect to 
recover any deferred postretirement costs by 2012. We are amortizing over 20 years the - 

transition obligation for postretirement benefits that resulted from the adoption of Statement 
106. 

Amounts expected to be amortized from regulatory 
assets or regulatory liabilities into net periodic 
benefit cost for the fiscal year ended 
December 31,2007 Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits 
(Thousands) 

Estimated net loss (gain) $16,824 $5,494 
Estimated prior service cost (benefit) $4,524 $ (7.433) - 
Estimated transition obligation - $6,800 



Weighted-average assumptions used to determine Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits 
beneffi obligations a t  December 31, 2006 2005 2006 2005 
Discount rate 5.75% 5.50% 5.75% 5.50% 
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 

Notes to C o n s o l i d a t e d c i a l  Statemmts 
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As of December 31, 2006, we increased our discount rate from 5.50% to 5.75%. The discount 
rate is the rate at which the benefit obligations could presently be effectively settled. We 
determined the discount rate by developing a yield curve derived from a portfolio of high 
grade noncallable bonds that closely matches the duration of the expected cash flows of our 
benefa obligations. 

Weighted-avenge assumptions used to 
determine net ~e r i 0d i c  benefit cost for Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits 
years ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004 
Discount rate 5.50% 5.75% 6.25% 5.50% 5.75% 6.25% - 

* Expected long-term return on plan assets 8.75% 8.75% 8.75% 6.00% 8.75% 8.75% 
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 

We developed our expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumption based on a 
review of long-term historical returns for the major asset classes. That analysis considered 

a current capital market conditions and projected conditions. Given the current low interest rate 
environment, we selected an assumption of 8.75% per year, which is lower than the rate that 
would otherwise be determined solely based on historical returns. The operating companies 
amortize unrecognized actuarial gains and losses either over ten years from the time they are 
incurred or using the standard amortization methodology, under which amounts in excess of 

rn 10% of the greater of the projected benefit obligation or market related value are amortized 
over the plan participants' average remaining service to retirement. 

Assumed health care cost trend rates at December 31, 2006 2005 
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year 9.0% 10.0% 
Rate to which cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate trend rate) 5.0% 5.0% 

C Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 201 1 201 1 

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the 
health care plans. A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates 

a 
would have the following effects: 

1% increase 1% Decrease 
- - 

(Thousands) 

Effect on total of senrice and interest cost $1.733 $(I ,438) - Effect on postretirement benefit obligation $25,152 $(21,497) 



Plan assets: Our weighted-average asset allocations at December 31,2006 and 2005, by 
asset category, are: 

Pension Benefits Postretlmment Beneflts 
Tarnet Taraet 

Asset Category AIIOG~L" 2006 2005 ~l locatk" 2006 2005 
Equity securities 58% 64% 64% 50% 47% 56% 
Debt securities 27% 24% 28% 45% 40% 37% 
Real estate 5% 4% 2% - - - 
Other 10% 8% 6% 5% 13% 7% 
Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 
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Our pension benefits plan assets are held in a master trust with a trustee and our 
postretirement benefits plan assets are held with two trustees in multiple VEBA and 401(h) 
arrangements. Those assets are invested among and within various asset classes in order to 
achieve sufficient diversification in accordance with our risk tolerance. This is achieved for our 
pension benefits plan assets through the utilization of multiple asset managers and systematic 
allocation to investment management styles, providing broad exposure to different segments of 
the fixed income and equity markets; and for our postretirement benefits plan assets through 
the utilization of multiple institutional mutual and money market funds, providing exposure to 
different segments of the fixed income, equity and short-term cash markets. 

Equity securities did not include any Energy East common stock at December 31,2006 
and 2005. 

Contributions: In accordance with our funding policy we make annual contributions of not less 
than the minimum required by applicable regulations. We expect to contribute between $10 
and $20 million to our pension benefits plans and approximately $14 million to our other 
postretirement benefit plans in 2007. 

Estimated future benefltpayments: Our expected beneflt payments and expected Medicare 
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (Medicare Act) subsidy 
receipts, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are: 

Pension Postretirement Medicare Act 
Benefits Benefits Subsidy Receipts 

(Thousands) 
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Note 15. Segment Information 

Selected financial information for our operating segments is presented in the table below. Our 
electric delivery segment consists of our regulated transmission, distribution and generation 
operations in New York and Maine and our natural gas delivery segment consists of our 
regulated transportation, storage and distribution operations in New York, Connecticut, Maine 
and Massachusetts. We measure segment profitability based on net income. Other includes 
primarily our energy marketing companies, interest income, intersegment eliminations and our 
other nonutility businesses. 

Electric Natural GPO 
Delivery Delivery Other Total 

(Thour8nda) 

2006 
Operating Revenues $3,023,037 $1,697,601 $510,027 $5,230,665 
Depreciation and Amotibatibn $187,587 $86,728 $8,253 $282,568 
Interest Charges, Net $215,054 $86,263 $7,507 $308,824 
Income Taxes (Benefits) $117,184 $44,744 $(6,673) $155,255 
Net Income (Loss) $179,982 $78,166 $ 1,684 $259,832 
Total Assets $7,184,016 $4,073,320 $305,065 $11,562,401 
Capital Spending $253,103 $142,881 $12,247 $408,231 
2005 
Operating Revenues $2,989,558 $1,783.547 $545,438 $5,298,543 
Depreciation and Amortization $178,806 $85.050 $13.361 $277.217 
Interest Charges, Net $207,074 $81,365 $458 $288,897 
Income Taxes $1 16,310 $45.752 $7,935 $169,997 
Net Income (Loss) $206,117 $70.121 $(I 9,405) $256,833 
Total &sets. $7.1 75.864 $4.1 36,568 $175,276- $1 1,487,708 
Capital Spending $205,402 $1 19,266 $6,626 $331.294 
2004 
Operating Revenues $2,781,322 $1,549,150 $426.220 $4.756.692 
Depreciation and Amotibation $196.782 $88,998 $6,677 $292,457 
Interest Charges, Net $194,744 $77,700 $4.446 $276,690 
Income Taxes $203,898 $38,229 $9.31 8 $251,445 
Net income (Loss) $171,653 $64.139 $(6,455) $229,337 
Total Assets $6,738,511 $3,851,242 $206,869 $10,796,622 
Capital Spending $1 85.544 $107,735 $5.984 $299,263 
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Note 16. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) 



Quarter Ended March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 
(Thousands, except par ahan amount.) 

2006 
Operating Revenues 
Operating lncome 
Net Income 
Earnings per Share, basic 
Earnings per Share, diluted 
Dividends Declared per 
Share 
Average Common 
Shares Outstanding, basic 

Average Common Shares 
Outstanding, diluted 

Common Stock Price (') 
High 
Low 

2005 
Operating Revenues 
Operating lncome 
Net lncome 
Earnings per Share, basic 
Earnings per Share, diluted 
Dividends Declared per 
Share 
Average Common 

Shares Outstanding, basic 
Average Common Shares 
Outstanding, diluted 

Common Stock Price 
High 
I nw 

(')Our common Mock is listad on me New York Stock Exchame. The number of ahamholdem of nwrd was 28.884 at Dewmber 31.2006. 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountina Finn 

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors 
of Energy East Corporation and Subsidiaries: 

We have completed integrated audits of Energy East Corporation's consolidated financial 
statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, in 
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below. 

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Energy East Corporation and its 
subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash 



flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2006 in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our 

L opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all 
material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related 
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement . 

schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our 

n audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the 
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

n statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective December 31, 2006, 

n 
the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158 Employers' 
Accountina for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans - an amendment of 
FASB ~taiements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R). 

Internal control over financial re~orting 

Also, in our opinion, management's assessment, included in Energy East Management's 
Annual Report on lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A, that the 
Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2006 based on criteria established in lntemal Control - lntegrated ~ramework issued by the 
Committee of S~onsorina Orcaanizations of the Treadwav Commission (COSO). is fairlv stated. - in all material respects, base2 on those criteria. ~urthekore,  in our opinion, the company 
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control - lntegrated Framework 
issued by the COSO. The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective 
intemal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal 
control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management's 
assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in 
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 

States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in 
all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an 

L 
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's 
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, 
and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

A company's intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 



financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately - 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable - 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or - 
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are 
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
February 28,2007 

ENERGY EAST CORPORATION 

SCHEDULE II - Consolidated Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

Years Ended December 31,2006,2005 and 2004 

Beginning End 
Classification of Year Additions Write-offs ('1 Adjustments(2) of Year 
(Thousands) 

2006 
Allowance for Doubffil 
Accounts -Accounts 
Receivable 

Income Tax Valuation 
Allowance 

2005 
Allowance for Doubtful 
Accounts - Accounts 
Receivable $45.344 $63,166 $(64,355) $8.957 $53,112 

- 
2004 
Allowance for Doubtful 
Accounts -Accounts 
Receivable $52,848 $45.334 $(46.645) S(6.193) $45.344 

(') Uncalle*lble .aounta charged agalnsl lha allowanca, net of mrecoverle 
- 



(fl~epnsents changes in the estlmste of the write-offs Mat will not be nwwfed in rates. 

merit's Narrative Analvsis of Results of O ~ e r a t i o ~  Manaae 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 

RG&E meets the conditions set forth in General Instruction I(l)(a) and (b) of Form 10-K for a 
reduced disclosure format and is therefore presenting a management's narrative analysis of 
the results of operations as specified in General lnstruction I(2)(a) of Form 10-K. 

RG&E1s electric delivery business consists of its regulated electricity transmission and 
distribution operations in western New York. It also generates electricity from its one coal-fired 
plant, three gas turbines and several smaller hydroelectric stations. RG&E's natural gas 
delivery business consists of transporting, storing and distributing natural gas. 

Earnings 

RG&E1s earnings for 2006 increased $3 million compared to 2005, primarily because of a $9 
million increase for higher net margins on electricity sales, partially offset by higher income 
taxes as a result of tax adjustments that lowered tax expense in 2005. 

Operating Results for the Electric Delivery Business 

2006 2005 
(Thouundw) 

Operating Revenues 
Retail $432,821 $439,018 
Wholesale 213,675 219,026 
Other 84,689 33.1 15 
Total Operating Revenues 731,185 691.159 

Operating Expenses 
Electricity purchased and fuel used in generation 
Other operating and maintenance expenses 
Depreciation and amortization 
other taxes 46.881 42,367 
Total Operating Expanses 589,018 565,201 

Operating Income $142,167 $125,958 

Ooeratina Revenues: The $40 million increase in operating revenues for 2006 was primarily 
the result of: 

An increase of $34 million in average delivery prices resulting from higher transition 
charges, 
An increase of $13 million due to higher market prices for electric energy sold under 
various commodity options where RG&E provides supply, . An increase of $25 million resulting from lower accruals under the earnings sharing 
mechanism including $9 million in the first quarter for the finalization of the actual 
earnings sharing amount for 2005 per RG&E1s annual compliance filing, and 



An increase in other revenues of $25 million, primarily reflecting credits from RG&Ets 
ASGA to recover higher purchased power costs related to Ginna. 

Those increases were partially offset by: 

A decrease of $5 million due to lower wholesale revenues, 
A decrease of $5 million resulting from lower retail delivery volumes, and 
A decrease of $48 million resulting from lower electricity sales under RG&E1s 
commodity programs where RG&E provides supply. 

Manaaement's Narrative Anarlvsis of Results of Operations 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 

O~eratina Exwnses: The $24 million increase in operating expenses for 2006 was primarily 
the result of: 

An increase of $26 million for purchased power costs primarily to Ginna purchases, and 
An increase of $5 million in other taxes. 

Those increases were partially offset by a reduction in pension expense of $5 million. 

Operating Results for the Natural Gas Delivery Business 

- -- - - - - 

(Thousands) 

Operating Revenues 
Retail $378,847 $409,062 
Other 6,261 5.305 
Total Operating Revenues 385.1 08 414.367 

Operating Expenses 
Natural gas purchased 244,060 270,647 
Other operating and maintenance expenses 53,690 59,009 
Depreciation and amortization 18,668 19.251 
Other taxes 22,749 23,029 
Total Operating Expenses 339,167 371,936 

Operating Income $45,941 $42,431 

Onerating Revenues: The $29 million decrease in operating revenues for 2006 was primarily 
the result of: 

A decline of $53 million due to lower deliveries because of warmer weather. 

That decrease was partially offset by: 

An increase of $15 million due to higher purchased gas costs that were passed on to 
customers, and 
An increase of $8 million for accruals under the weather normalization mechanism. 

O~emtina Emensex The $33 million decrease in operating expenses for 2006 was primarily 



the result of: 

. A decrease of $5 million in various operating and maintenance costs, and . A decrease of $27 million in purchased natural gas costs due to lower sales volumes. 

New Accounting Standards 

a The FASB released FIN 48 in July 2006 and issued Statements 157 and 158 in September 
2006. See ltem 8 - Note 1 to RG&E1s Financial Statements for explanations about these new 
accounting standards and when they will become or became effective. 

- 
c. 

ltem 7A. Qua 
. . . . isclosures Market Risk nt~tatlve and Qualltatlve D 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 

Market risk represents the risk of changes in value of a financial or commodity instrument, 
derivative or nonderivative, caused by fluctuations in interest rates and commodity prices. 
The following discussion of RG&E1s risk management activities includes "forward-looking" 

A 
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from 
those contemplated in the "forward-looking" statements. RG&E handles market risks in 
accordance with established policies, which may include various offsetting, nonspeculative 
derivative transactions. (See Item 8 - Note 1 to RG&E's Financial Statements.) 

The financial instruments RG&E holds or issues are not for trading or speculative purposes. 
RG&E1s quantitative and qualitative disclosures below relate to the following market risk 
exposure categories: lnterest Rate Risk, Commodity Price Risk and Other Market Risk. 

Interest Rate Risk RG&E is exposed to risk resulting from interest rate changes on variable- 
rate debt and commercial paper. RG&E uses interest rate swap agreements to manage the 
risk f increases in variable interest rates and to maintain desired fixed-to-floating rate ratios. 
RG&E records amounts paid and received under those agreements as adjustments to the 
interest expense of the specific debt issues. After giving effect to those agreements RG&E 
estimates that, at December 31, 2006, a 1% change in average interest rates would change its 
annual interest expense for variable-rate debt by about $1 million. Pursuant to its current rate 
plans, RG&E defers any changes in variable-rate interest expense. (See ltem 8 - Notes 5, 6 
and 10 to RG&E1s Financial Statements.) 

RG&E also uses derivative instruments to mitigate risk resulting from interest rate changes on 
anticipated future tinancings, and amortizes amounts paid and received under those 
instruments to interest expense over the life of the related financing. 

Commoditv Price Risk Commodity price risk, due to volatility experienced in the wholesale 
energy markets, is a significant issue for the electric and natural gas industries. RG&E 
manages this risk through a combination of regulatory mechanisms, such as allowing for the 

a pass-through of the market price of electricity and natural gas to customers, and through 
comprehensive risk management processes. These measures mitigate RG&E's commodity 



price exposure, but do not completely eliminate it. 

RG&E1s current electric rate plan offers its retail customers choice in their electricity supply 
including fixed and variable rate options and an option to purchase electricity supply from an 
ESCO. During the fourth quarter of 2006, RG&E1s electric customers chose their supply 
options for 2007. Approximately 79% of RG&E's total electric load is now provided by an 
ESCO or at the market price. RG&Ets exposure to fluctuations in the market price of electricity 
is limited to the load required to serve those customers who select the fixed rate option, which . 

combines delivery and supply service at a fixed price. During 2006 RG&E used electricity 
contracts, both physical and financial, to manage fluctuations in the cost of electricity required 
to serve customers who select the fixed rate option. It included the cost or benefit of those 
contracts in the amount expensed for electricity purchased when the related electricity is sold. 
RG&E's owned electric 

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 

generation and long-term supply contracts significantly reduce its exposure to market 
fluctuations for procurement of its fixed rate option electricity supply, and reduce the volatility of - 

rates for those customers that have chosen a variable rate option. RG&E expects that its 
owned generation and long-term supply contracts will be sufficient to meet its fixed price load 
requirements in 2007. 

RG&E has a purchased gas adjustment clause that allows it to recover through rates any .. 
changes in the market price of purchased natural gas, substantially eliminating its exposure to 
natural gas price risk. RG&E uses natural gas futures and forwards to manage fluctuations in 
natural gas commodity prices in order to provide price stability to customers. It includes the 
cost or benefit of natural gas futures and forwards in the commodity cost that is passed on to 
customers when the related sales commitments are fulfilled. RG&E records changes in the fair - 
value of natural gas hedge contracts as regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities. 

RG&E faces risks related to counterparty performance on hedging contracts due to 
counterparty credit default. RG&E, in conjunction with Energy East, has developed a matrix of 
unsecured credit thresholds that are dependent on a counterparty's Moody's or S&P credit - 
rating. When Energy East's exposure to risk for a counterparty exceeds the unsecured credit 
threshold, the counterparty is required to post additional collateral or RG&E will no longer 
transact with the counterparty until the exposure drops below the unsecured credit threshold. 

Other Market Risk: RG&E8s pension plan assets are primarily made up of equity and fixed - 
income investments. Fluctuations in those markets as well as changes in interest rates may 
cause RG&E to recognize increased or decreased pension income or expense. RG&Ets 
pension income would change by approximately $1 million if either its expected return on plan 
assets or its discount rate were to change by 114%. Under its Electric and Natural Gas Rate 
Agreement, RG&E defers changes in pension income resulting from changes in market 
conditions. (See Item 8 - Note 12 to RG&E's Financial Statements.) - 



Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 
Statements of lncome 

n 

Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
(Thousands) 

Operating Revenues 
Electric ~~ ~ ~ 

c Natural gas 385;108 414,367 369,263 
Total Operating Revenues 1,116,293 1,105,526 1,034,057 

Operating Expenses 
Electricity purchased and fuel used in generation 
Natural gas purchased 

c Other operating expenses 
Maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Other taxes 
Gain on sale of generation assets 
Deferral of asset sale gain - . 

n 
228,785 

Total Operating Expenses 928,185 937.137 768,282 
Operating Income 188,108 168.389 265,775 
Other (Income) 
Other Deductions - - ~ - ~ ~ -  . , 

Interest Chargas, Net 56,203 56,445 54,831 
CI Income Before Income Taxes 135,055 113.651 223.644 

Income Taxes 52,760 34.662 153,327 
Net Income 82,295 78,989 70.317 
Preferred Stock Dividends - - 1.789 
Earnings Available for Common Stock $82,295 $78,989 $68.528 

a 
The on papel 106 through 125 are an Integral pan of me financial atatsrnenb. 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 
Balance Sheets 

December 31, 2006 2005 
(Thouunda) 

Assets 
n Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $5,902 $28,752 
Investments available for sale - 53,325 
Accounts receivable and unbilled revenues, net 213,142 193,807 
Fuel and natural gas in storage, at average cost 50,021 57,434 

C. Materials and supplies, at average cost 13,533 13,204 
Deferred income taxes 14,663 - 
Derivative assets 21 21,597 
Broker margin accounts 31,359 - 
Prepayments and other current assets 36,760 27,047 

L 
Total Current Assets 365,401 395.1 66 

Utility Plant, at Original Cost 



Electric 
Natural gas 

Less accumulated depreciation 619,262 583.557 
Net Utility Plant in Sewice 1,466,480 1,446,731 

Construction work in progress 80,291 18,748 
Total Utility Plant 1,546,771 1,465.479 

Other Property and Investments 11,271 ' .  11,634 
Regulatory and Other Assets 
Regulatory assets 
Nuclear plant obligations 
Deferred income taxes 
Unfunded future income taxes 
Environmental remediation costs 
Unamortized loss on debt reacquisitions 
Nonutility generator termination agreement 
Natural gas hedges 
Other 123,720 127,867 

Total regulatory assets 443,985 444.505 
Other assets 
Prepaid pension benefits 
Other 15,782 17,121 

Total other assets 112,962 65,489 
Total Regulatory and Other Assets 556,947 509,994 
Total Assets $2,480,390 $2,382,273 

The mks on pages 106 mrouph 125 am an intwnl par( of me financial statemenb. 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 
Balance Sheets 

December 31, 2006 2005 
(Thousands) 

Liabllffles 
Current Liabllffles 
Notes payable 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Interest accrued 
Taxes accrued 
Unfunded future income taxes 
Deferred income taxes 
Derivative liabilities 
Other 44,947 36,396 
Total Current Liabilities 250,529 188,069 

Regulatory and Other Liabilities - 

Regulatory liabilities 
Accrued removal obligation 
Deferred income taxes 



Unfunded future income taxes . 89,104 
Gain on sale of generation assets 11 8,031 11 1,262 

a Pension benefe 33,519 
Natural gas hedges - 21,969 
Other 39,096 51,015 

Total regulatory liabilities 386,222 455,696 
Other liabilities 

a Deferred income taxes 237,440 167,785 
Nuclear waste disposal 113,763 108.570 
Other postretirement benefes 74,583 80,045 
Asset retirement obligation 21,251 5,805 
Environmental remediation Costs 37,523 36,506 
Other 58,464 59.341 

L 
Total other liabilities 543,024 458,052 
Total Regulatory and Other Llabllltles 929,246 913,748 

Long-term debt 698,025 697.951 
Total Liabilities 1,877,800 1,799.768 

Commitments and Contingencies 
CI Common Stock Equity 

Common stock ($5 par value, 50,000 shares authorized, 
38,886 shares outstanding at December 31.2006 and 2005) 194,429 194,429 

Capital in excess of par value 483,662 483,252 
Retained earnings 50,844 28.549 - Accumulated other comprehenshre loss (9,107) (6,487) 
Treasury stock, at cost (4,379 shares at December 31.2006 
and 2005) (1 17,238) (1 17,238) 
Total Common Stock Equity 602,590 582,505 
Total Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity $2,480,390 $2,382,273 

C, nm LIQIQE on pages 105 mmugh 125 am m lntegml pan of the finandat autements. 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 
Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
(Thousands) 
Operating Activities - Net income $82,295 $78,989 $70.317 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 
provided by operating activities 
Depreciation and amortization 136,019 140,099 166.468 
Income taxes and investment tax credits deferred, net 45,114 (3.607) 37.945 
Income taxes related to gain on sale of generation assets - - 11 1,954 

CI Gain on sale of generation assets - - (340.739) 
Deferral of asset sale gain - 228.785 
Pension income (1 5,293) (10,471) (21,372) 

Changes in current operating assets and liabilities 
Accounts receivable and unbilled revenues, net (18,943) (38,243) 4.655 - Inventory 7,084 (23,598) (1 0.479) 
Prepayments and other current assets (41,073) (8.521) (4.839) 



Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Customer refund 
Interest accrued 
Taxes accrued 
Other current liabilities 

Changes in other assets 
Nuclear plant dispute settlement 
Other 

Changes in other liabiltties 
Generation related ASGA charges (55,420) (25,798) (31.084) 
Other 7,262 24,890 (7,627) 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 80,394 135.428 58,456 

Investing Activities 
Sale of generation assets 
Excess decommissioning funds retained 
Utility plant additions 
Nuclear generating plant decommissioning fund 
Maturities of current investments available for sale 
Purchases of current investments available for sale 
Investments (1 66) (346) - 
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Investing Activities (87,873) (49.696) 380,569 

Financing Activities 
Repayments of first mortgage bonds and preferred stock. 
including net premiums - - (201.000) - 
Notes payable three months or less, net 20,890 - - 
Book overdraft (1.261) 1,186 3,296 
Liquidating dividend - - (75.000) 
Dividends on common and preferred stock (35,000) (70,000) (1 71,789) 
Net Cash Used in  Financing Activities (15,371) (68,814) (444,493) 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (22,850) 16,918 (5,468) - 
) 1 1,834 17.302 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $5,902 $28,752 $1 1.834 

The m.tm on pages 106 through 125 a n  an I n ~ m I  part of me ilruneial MtMnenO. 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 
Statements of Changes in Common Stock Equity 

Common Stock Accur - 
Outstanding Capital in 
$5 Par Value Excess of Retained Comprel 

(Thous8nds) Shares Amount Par Value Earnings 

Balance, January I, 2004 38.886 $194,429 $556.190 $121,032 
Net income 70,317 
Other comprehensive income, 
net of tax 
Comprehensive income 

Liquidating dividend 
Equity contribution from parent 
Dividends declared 



Preferred stock (1,789) 
Common stock (1 70,000) 

Balance, December 31,2004 38,886 194,429 481,753 19,560 
Net income 78.989 
Other comprehensive inC0tI'Ie. 
net of tax 
Comprehensive income 

Equity contribution from parent 
Common stock dividends 
declared (70.000) 

Balance, December 31,2005 38,886 194.429 483.252 28.549 
Net income 82,295 
Other comprehensive income, 
net of tax 
Comprehensive income 

Adjustment to initially appb 
Statement 158 for 
nonqualified plans 

Equity contribution from parent 
Common stock dividends 

declared (60.000) 
Balance, December 31,2006 38,886 $194,429 $483.662 $50,844 : 

The mm on pagar 106 through 125 an an integral part of th. hnanclal sbbmanb. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies 

Background: RG&E is primarily engaged in electricity generation, transmission and 
distribution operations and natural gas transportation and distribution operations in western 
New York. RG&E is an operating utility subsidiary of RGS Energy. Effective June 28, 2002, 
RGS Energy became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Energy East Corporation. The acquisition 
was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. RGS Energy did not push 
goodwill down to RG&E. 

Accounts receivable: Accounts receivable include unbilled revenues of $50 million at 
December 31,2006, and $54 million at December 31,2005, and are shown net of an 
allowance for doubtful accounts of $1 1 million at December 31, 2006, and $13 million at 
December 31, 2005. Accounts receivable balances do not bear interest although late fees may 
be assessed. Bad debt expense was $8 million in 2006, $4 million in 2005 and $5 million in 
2004. 

Unbilled revenues represent estimates of receivables for energy provided but not yet billed. 
The estimates are determined based on various assumptions, such as current month energy 
load requirements, billing rates by customer classification and delivery loss factors. Changes in 
those assumptions could significantly affect the estimates of unbilled revenues. 

The allowance for doubtful accounts is RG&E's best estimate of the amount of probable credit 



losses in its existing accounts receivable, determined based on experience for each service 
reaion and o~eratina segment and other economic data. Each month RG&E reviews its 
aliwance fo; doubtiul accounts and past due accounts over 90 days andlor above a specified 
amount, and reviews all other balances on a pooled basis by age and type of receivable. When 
RG&E believes that a receivable will not be recovered, it charges off the account balance 
against the allowance. Changes in assumptions about input factors such as economic 
conditions and customer receivables, which are inherently uncertain and susceptible to change 
from period to period, could significantly affect the allowance for doubtful accounts estimates. 

Asset retirement obligation and FIN 47: In accordance with FASB Statement 143 and 
FIN 47, RG&E records the fair value of the liability for an asset retirement obligation andlor a 
conditional asset retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred and capitalizes the 
cost by increasing the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. RG&E adjusts the 
liability to its present value periodically over time, and depreciates the capitalized cost over the 
useful life of the related asset. Upon settlement RG&E will either settle the obligation at its 
recorded amount or incur a gain or a loss. RG&E defers any timing differences between rate 
recovery and depreciation expense as either a regulatory asset or a regulatory liability. 

FIN 47 clarifies that the term conditional asset retirement obligation as used in Statement 143 
refers to an entity's legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing 
andlor method of settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may not be within 
the control of the entity. FIN 47 requires that if an entity has sufficient information to reasonably 
estimate the fair value of the liability for a conditional asset retirement obligation, it must 
recognize that liability at the time the liability is incurred. RG&E began applying FIN 47 as of . 

December 31, 2005. RG&E1s application of FIN 47 did not have a material effect on its 
financial position, and there was no effect on its results of operations or cash flows. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 

RG&E1s asset retirement obligation (ARO) including its estimated conditional asset retirement 
obligation at December 31 was $21 million for 2006 and $6 million for 2005. The ARO primarily 
consists of obligations related to removal or retirement of: asbestos, polycholorinated biphenyl 
(PCB) contaminated equipment, gas pipeline and cast iron gas mains. The long-lived assets 
associated with the AROs are generation property, distribution property and other property. 
RG&Ets pro forma conditional asset retirement obligation was $3 million at December 31, 
2004. 

The following table reconciles the beginning and ending aggregate carrying amount of the 
ARO for the years ended December 31,2006 and 2005. The increase for 2006 is primarily for 
removal of asbestos from generating stations and the increase for 2005 is primarily for initially 
applying FIN 47. 

Year ended Decembr 31, 2006 2005 
(Thousands) 

ARO, beginning of year 
Liabilities incurred during the year 



Liabilities settled during the year (517) (143) 
Accretion expense 280 126 
Revisions in estimated cash flows 3,434 - 
ARO, end of year $21,251 $5,805 

RGBE has AROs for which it has not recognized a liability because the fair value cannot be 
reasonably estimated due to indeterminate settlement dates, including: the removal of hydro 
dams due to structural inadequacy or for decommissioning; the removal of property upon 
termination of an easement, right-of-way or franchise; and costs for abandonment of certain 
types of gas mains. 

Statements o f  cash flows: RG&E considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity date 
of three months or less when acquired to be cash equivalents and those investments are 
included in cash and cash equivalents. 

Statement 143 provides that if the requirements of Statement 71 are met, a regulatory liability 
should be recognized for financial reporting purposes only, for the difference between removal 
costs collected in rates and actual costs incurred. RG&E classifies those amounts as accrued 
removal obligations. 

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash F l o w  Information 2006 2005 2004 
(Thousands) 

Cash paid duting the year ended December 31: 
Interest, net of amounts capitalized $42,370 $41,261 $49.283 
Income taxes. net of benefts received $9,326 $37,742 $76,053 

The amount of capitalized interest was $1.5 million in 2006 and $0.5 million in 2005 and 2004. 

Decommissioning expense: Other operating expenses for 2004 include nuclear 
decommissioning expense accruals. As a result of the sale of Ginna in June 2004 RG&E no 
longer has a decommissioning obligation and will not incur additional decommissioning 
expense. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
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Depreciation and amortization: RG&E determines depreciation expense using the straight- 
line method. The average service lives of certain classifications of property are: transmission 
property - 58 years, discibution property - 53 years, generation -39 years and other 
property - 25 years. RG&E determines depreciation expense for the majority of its generation 
property using remaining service life rates, which include estimated cost of removal, based on 
operating license or anticipated closing dates. The remaining service lives of generation 
property range from 1 years for its coal station to 31 years for its hydroelectric stations. 
RG&E1s depreciation accruals were equivalent to 3.2% of average depreciable property for 
2006, 3.4% for 2005 and 3.6% for 2004. 

RG&E charges repairs and minor replacements to operating expense, and capitalizes 



renewals and betterments, including certain indirect costs. It charges the original cost of utility 
plant retired or otherwise disposed of to accumulated depreciation. 

Estimates: Preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. - 
FIN 48: In July 2006 the FASB released FIN 48, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty 
in income taxes recognized in financial statements in accordance with Statement 109 by 
prescribing a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement 
recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or to be taken in a tax return. The - 
evaluation of a tax position is a two-step process. The first step is for an entity to determine if it 
is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination. The second step 
involves measuring the amount of tax benefit to be recognized in the financial statements 
based on the largest amount of benefit that meets the prescribed recognition threshold. The 
difference between the amounts based on that position and the position taken in a tax return is 
generally recorded as a liability. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December - 
15, 2006. Upon adoption of FIN 48, the cumulative effect of applying the provisions of FIN 48 
must be reported as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings for that fiscal 
year. RG&E adopted FIN 48 effective January I, 2007. While RG&E is still in the process of 
measuring the effect of the adoption, it estimates that the adoption will not have a material 
effect on its results of operations or financial position. - 

Investments available for sale: RG&E held no current investments at December 31,2006 
and $53 million at December 31, 2005, which consisted of auction rate securities classified as 
available-for-sale. RG&E1s investments in those securities are recorded at cost, which 
approximates fair market value due to their variable interest rates, which typically reset every 7 
to 35 days. Despite the long-term nature of their stated contractual maturities, RG&E has the 
ability to quickly liquidate such securities. As a result, RG&E has no cumulative gross 
unrealized holding gains (losses) or gross realized gains (losses) from its current investments. 
All income generated from such current investments is recorded as interest income. 
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Other (Income) and Other Deductions: 

Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
(Thousands) 

Interest and dividend income f (2,853) $(3,574) S(3.653) 
2004 RGBE Electric and Natural Gas Rate Agreement - - (6-1 17) 
Miscellaneous (1,529) (81 7) (1.9471 
Total other (income) $(4,382) $(4,391) $(11,717) 
Miscellaneous $1,232 $2.684 $(983) 
Total other deductions $1,232 $2.684 $(983) 



Regulatory assets and liabilities: Pursuant to Statement 71, RG&E capitalizes, as regulatory 
assets, incurred and accrued costs that are probable of recovery in future electric and natural 
gas rates. Substantially all regulatory assets for which funds have been expended are either 
included in rate base or are accruing carrying costs. RG&E also records, as regulatory 
liabilities, obligations to refund previously collected revenue or to spend revenue collected from 
customers on future costs. 

RG&E amortizes its various regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities as follows: Unfunded 
future income taxes and deferred income taxes as the related temporary differences reverse; 
Nuclear plant obligations, other regulatory assets and other regulatory liabilities over various 
periods in accordance with RG&E's current rate plans. 

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, RG&E's Other regulatory assets and liabilities consisted of: 

2006 2005 
(Thou88nda) 

Loss on sale of Oswego generating unit $41,895 $48,371 
Deferred ice stom costs 28,811 32.014 
~ s s e t  retirement obligation 16,668 3.541 
Merger costs 12,406 24,393 . 

Other 23,940 19,548 
Total other regulatory assets $123,720 $1 27.867 

Pension $6,527 $2.719 
Nuclear fuel disposal 
Overcollection of Gross Receipts Tax 
Accrued earnings sharing - 
Other 21,334 15,795 
Total other regulatory liabilities $39,096 $51,015 
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Relatedparty transactions: Utility Shared Services Corporation and Energy East 
Management Corporation provide various administrative and management services to Energy 
East's operating utilities, including RG&E, pursuant to service agreements. The cost of those 
services is allocated in accordance with methodologies set forth in the service agreements. 
The cost allocation methodologies vary depending on the type of service provided. The cost for 
services provided to RG&E by Utility Shared Services Corporation and Energy East 
Management Corporation was approximately $23 million in 2006, $22 million in 2005 and 
$26 million in 2004. 

Revenue recognition: RG&E recognizes revenues upon delivery of energy and energy- 
related products and services to its customers. 

RG&E enters into power purchase and sales transactions with the NYISO. When RG&E sells 
electricity from owned generation to the NYISO, and subsequently repurchases electricity from 



the NYlSO to serve its customers, RG&E records the transactions on a net basis in its 
statements of income. 

Risk management The financial instruments RG&E holds or issues are not for trading or 
speculative purposes. 

RG&E uses derivative instruments to mitigate risk resulting from interest rate changes on 
anticipated future financings and amortizes amounts paid or received under those instruments 
to interest expense over the life of the corresponding financing. 

RG&E faces risks related to counterparty performance on hedging contracts due to 
counterparty credit default. RG&E, in conjunction with Energy East, has developed a matrix of 
unsecured credit thresholds that are dependent on a counterparty's Moody's or S&P credit 
rating. When Energy East's exposure to risk for a counterparty exceeds the unsecured credit 
threshold, the counterparty is required to post additional collateral or RG&E will no longer 
transact with the counterparty until the exposure drops below the unsecured credit threshold. 

RG&E uses electricity contracts, both physical and financial, to manage fluctuations in the cost 
of electricity. It includes the cost or benefit of those contracts in the amount expensed for 
electricity purchased when the electricity is sold. 

RG&E has a purchased gas adjustment clause that allows it to recover through rates any 
changes in the market price of purchased natural gas, substantially eliminating its exposure to 
natural gas price risk. RG&E uses natural gas futures and forwards to manage fluctuations in 
natural gas commodity prices and provide price stability to customers. It includes the cost or 
benefit of natural gas futures and forwards in the commodity cost when the related sales 
commitments are fulfilled. 

RG&E recognizes the fair value of its financial electricity contracts, natural gas hedge contracts 
and interestrate derivative instruments as current derivative assets or liabilities, other assets 
or other liabilities. RG&Ets financial electricitv contracts and interest rate derivative instruments -~ -~ ~ 

are designated as cash flow hedging instruments. RG&E records changes in the fair value of 
the cash-flow hedging instruments in other comprehensive income, to the extent they are 
considered effective, until the underlying transaction occurs. RG&E records the ineffective 
portion of any 
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change in fair value of cash flow hedges to the income statement as either Other (Income) or 
Other Deductions as appropriate. RG&E records changes in the fair value of natural gas hedge 
contracts as regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities. At December 31, 2006, RG&E had $1 
million of derivative assets all of which were noncurrent and $32 million of derivative liabilities, 
of which $23 million were current. At December 31, 2005, it had $22 million of derivative 
assets, all of which were current, and $4 million of derivative liabilities, of which $3 million were 
noncurrent. 



RG&E uses quoted market prices to determine the fair value of derivatives and adjust for 
volatility and inflation when the period of the derivative exceeds the period for which market 
prices are readily available. 

As of December 31,2006, the maximum length of time over which RG&E has hedged its 
exposure to the variability in future cash flows for forecasted transactions is 16 months. 

RG&E has commodity purchase and sales contracts for both capacity and energy that have 
been designated and qualify for the normal purchases and normal sales exception in 
Statement 133, as amended. 

Statement 157: In September 2006 the FASB issued Statement 157. Changes from current 
practice that will result from the application of Statement 157 relate to the definition of fair 
value, the methods used to measure fair value, and expanded disclosures about fair value 
measurements. Statement 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or 
~ermit  fair value measurements in which the FASB ~reviouslv concluded that fair value is the 
;elevant measurement attribute. It does not require any new fair value measurements, but may 
change current practice for some entities. Statement 157 will be effective for financial 
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods 
within those fiscal years, with earlier application encouraged. The provisions are to be applied 
prospectively, with certain exceptions. A cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings is 
required for application to certain financial instruments. RG&E will adopt Statement 157 
effective January I, 2008. RG&E is currently assessing the effect Statement 157 would have 
on its results of operations, financial position and cash flows. 

Statement 158: In September 2006 the FASB issued Statement 158, which amends FASB 
Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R), and requires an employer to: 

recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of defined benefit pension andlor other 
postretirement plans as an asset or liability in its balance sheet; 
recognize changes in the funded status of such plans in the year in which the changes 
occur through comprehensive income; 
measure the funded status of a plan as of the date of its year-end balance sheet, and 
disclose in the notes to the annual financial statements certain effects that the delayed 
recognition of the gains or losses, prior service costs or credits and transition asset or 
obligation are expected to have on net periodic benefit cost for the next fiscal year. 

The funded status of a benefit plan is measured as the difference between plan assets at fair 
value and the benefit obligation, which is the projected benefit obligation for a pension plan 
and the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation for any other postretirement plan. As 
required by Statement 158, gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise during 
the period 
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but are not recognized as components of net periodic beneffi cost pursuant to Statement 87 or 



Statement 106 are recognized as a component of other comprehensive income, net of tax. 
Gains or losses, prior service costs or credits and the transition asset or obligation remaining 
from the initial application of Statements 87 and 106 that are recognized in accumulated other - 

comprehensive income are adjusted as they are subsequently recognized as components of 
net periodic benefit cost pursuant to the recognition and amortization provisions of those 
Statements. However, RG&E is a rate-regulated entity that meets the criteria to apply 
Statement 71. Based on its assessments of the facts and circumstances applicable to RG&E's 
jurisdiction and regulatory environment, RG&E has determined that it is allowed to defer as - 
regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities the above indicated items. Other entities that are not 
rate-regulated would recognize those items as a component of other comprehensive income 
andlor include them in accumulated other comprehensive income. 

RG&E initially applied the recognition and disclosure provisions of Statement 158 as of - 

December 31, 2006, with no material effect on its financial position and no effect on its results 
of operation or cash flows. Retrospective application of the recognition provisions and 
measurement provisions is not permitted. RG&E measures its pension and other 
postretirement plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of its fiscal year-end balance 
sheet and therefore has no need to change its measurement date. The incremental effect of - 
applying Statement 158 for RG&E's qualified plans on individual line items in its balance sheet 
as of December 31,2006, is: 

Before After 
Application of Application of 
Statement 158 Adjustments Statement 158 

(Thousands) 

Other Assets 
Prepaid pension benefits $63,661 $33,519 $97,180 

Total other assets 79.443 33,519 112,962 
Total Assets $2,446,871 $33,519 $2,480.390 

Current Liabilitiss 
Deferred income taxes $2,294 $(2,294) - 
Other current liabilities 39,194 5.753 $44.947 

Total current liabilities 247,070 3,459 250.529 
Regulatory liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 20,375 (13,834) 6.541 
Pension benetit - 33.519 33,519 
Other 37,921 1,175 39,096 

Total regulatory liabilities 365,362 20.860 386.222 
Other liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 221.312 16.128 237,440 
Other postretirement benefits 81,511 (6,928) 74.563 

Total other liabilities 533,824 9,200 543.024 
Total Reaulatow and Other Liabilities 899,186 30,060 929.246 
Total ~iajbilities- 1.844.281 33,519 1,877,800 
Total Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity $2,446,871 $3351 9 $2,480,390 

Notes to Financial Statementh 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 



Taxes: RG&E computes its income tax provision on a separate return method. The 
determination and allocation of RG&E's income tax provision and its components are outlined 
and agreed to in its tax sharing agreement with Energy East. 

Deferred income taxes reflect the effect of temporary differences between the amount of 
assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting purposes and the amount recognized for 
tax purposes. RG&E amortizes lTCs over the estimated lives of the related assets. 

RG&E accounts for sales tax collected from customers and remitted to taxing authorities on a 
net basis. 

Energy East revised its Income Tax Allocation Agreement (Agreement) in 2006. The revised 
Agreement, which applies to income tax returns after 2004, and is accounted for at the time of 
the filing of the income tax returns in the subsequent year, eliminates the push-down 
requirements of PUHCA and better aligns the allocation of income taxes with the Cost of 
Service "stand alone" approach used in each of our regulated entities' rate structures. 

If the revised agreement had been in place in 2004 and 2005, RG&E1s income taxes would 
have been $0.1 million higher for 2004 and $5.7 million higher for 2005. 

Note 2. Sale of Ginna 

In June 2004, after receiving all regulatory approvals, RG&E sold Ginna to CGG. RG&E 
received at closing $429 million and received in September 2004 an additional $25 million for 
postclosing adjustments. RG&E1s 2004 statement of income reflects a gain on the sale of 
Ginna of $341 million. The deferral of the asset sale gain, after related taxes of $1 12 million, is 
$229 million. 

RG&E1s Electric Rate Agreement resolved all regulatory and ratemaking aspects related to the 
sale of Ginna, including providing for an ASGA of $378 million after the post-closing 
adjustments, and addressing the disposition of the asset sale gain. Upon closing of the sale of 
Ginna, RG&E transferred $201 million of decommissioning funds to CGG, which has taken 
responsibility for all future decommissioning funding. RG&E retained $77 million in excess 
decommissioning funds, which was credited to its customers as part of the ASGA. 

Note 3. Other Intangible Assets 

RG&E amortizes intangible assets with finite lives (amortized intangible assets) and reviews 
them for impairment. RG&E has no goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite lives. RG&E1s 
amortized intangible assets consist of water rights and had a gross carrying amount of 
$3 million and accumulated amortization of about $2 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005. 
Estimated amortization expense for intangible assets is $78 thousand for each of the next five 
years, 2007 through 201 1. 

c Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 



Note 4. lncome Taxes 

Year Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
(Thousands) 

Current 
Federal 
State (2,297) 7.520 (5.924) 

Current taxes charged to expense 7,645 39.857 66,522 
Deferred 

Federal 34,798 (5,631) 75,231 
State 11,505 1.624 17.702 

Deferred taxes charged to expense 46,303 (4,007) 92.933 
ITC adjustment (1,188) (1,188) (6,128) 

Total $52,760 $34,662 $153,327 

RG&E's tax expense differed from the expense at the statutory rate of 35% due to the 
following: 

Year Ended December 31, 
(Thoua8nds) 

Tax expense at statutory rate 
Depreciation and amortization not normalized 
ITC amortization 
State taxes, net of federal benefit 
Cost of removal not normalized 
Audn settlement, reserve for disputed items 
ASGA. Ginna 
Consolidated federal tax allocation 
Other, net (830) (3,464) 1,094 

Total $52,760 $34.662 $153.327 

RG&Ets effective tax rate was 39% in 2006,31% in 2005 and 69% in 2004. RG&E's tax 
expense for 2005 differed from the expense at the statutory rate primarily due to a decrease in 
taxes recorded in 2005 related to the allocation of the 2004 consolidated current income tax 
provision pursuant to the tax sharing agreement with Energy East. RG&E's effective tax rate 
differed from the statutory rate in 2004 primarily due to the implication of the sale of Ginna. 
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At December 31, 2006 and 2005, RG&E1s deferred tax assets and liabilities consisted of: 

- 

(Thouunda) 

Current Deferred lncome Tax Assets (Liablllties) 
Derivaf~e assets $8,980 S(7.989) 
Other 5,683 7.291 



Total Current Deferred Income Tax Asseta (Liabilities) $14,663 f (698) 
Noncurrent Deferred lncome Tax Liabilities 
Depreciation $239,237 $203.1 88 
Unfunded future income taxes 2,222 20.341 
Accumulated deferred ITC 6,797 7,985 
Deferred (gain) loss on sale of generation assets (31,620) (49.200) 
Statement 106 postretirement benetits (27,957) (31,632) 
Pension 22,177 29,882 
Derivative liability (5,852) (9.734) 
Other 38,977 (1 5,052) 
Total Noncurrent Deferred Income Tax Liabllitles 243,981 155,778 
Less amounts classified as regulatory liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 6,541 (12,007) 
Noncurrent Deferred Income Tax Liabilities $237,440 $167,785 

Deferred tax as- $80,092 $1 12,909 
Deferred tax liabiiitim 309,410 269.385 
Net Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes $229,318 $1 56,476 

RG&E has no federal or state tax credit or loss carryforwards, and no valuation allowances. 
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Note 5. Long-term Debt 

At December 31,2006 and 2005, RG&E's long-term debt was: 

Interest Rates Maturity 2006 2005 
(Thousands) 

First mortgage bondsb) 
Series B 5.84% 2008 
Series B 7.60% 2009 
Series TT 6.95% 201 1 
Series UU 6.65% 2032 
PCN 2004 Series A 3.60% 2032 
PCN 2004 Series B 3.85% 2032 . - . . - - . - . - - 
Series W 6.375% 2033 75,000 751000 
Total first mortgage bonds 571,500 571,500 

Unsecured pollution control notes, fixed 
1998 Series A 5.95% 2033 25,500 25.500 

Unsecured pollution control notes, variable 
1997 Series A 3.45% 2032 34,000 34.000 
1997 Series B 3.50% 2032 34,000 34,000 
1997 Series C 3.38% 2032 33,900 33.900 



Total unsecured pollution control notes, variable 101,900 101,900 

Unamortized discount on debt (875) (949) 

Total $698,025 $697.951 

(') R G I ~  nnt rnortpape bonas am sewred by a first mornape lien on SubsUntlPlly a11 oi IW pmpert+as. RG&E tus no other sewred ind8bhdne.s. 
None of RGIE's other debt obligrUona are pusrant& or secured by any of b anillates. 

At December 31, 2006, long-term debt, including sinking fund obligations (in thousands), that 
will become due during the next five years is: 

Cross-default Provisions: RG&E has a provision in a participation agreement relating to 
certain series of pollution control bonds, which provides that default by RG&E with respect to 
bonds issued under its first mortgage indenture will be considered a default under the 
participation agreement. 

Note 6. Bank Loans and Other Borrowings 

RG&E is a joint borrower, along with NYSEG, CNG, SCG, CMP and Berkshire Gas, in a 
revolving credit facility providing maximum borrowings of up to $475 million in aggregate. 
Sublimits that total to the aggregate limit apply to each joint borrower and can be altered within 
the constraints imposed by maximum limits that apply to each joint borrower. The facility 
expires in 201 1 and requires fees on undrawn borrowing capacity. RG&E has no liability for 
any other joint borrower. RG&E1s maximum borrowing limit under the facility is $100 million. 
RG&E pays a facility fee of 10 basis points annually on its revolver sublimit. 
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RG&E uses drawings on its credit facility to finance working capital needs, to temporarily 
finance certain refundings and for other corporate purposes. RG&E had $21 million of short- 
term debt outstanding at December 31, 2006 and no short-term debt outstanding at December 
31, 2005. The weighted average interest rate on short-term debt was 8.25% at December 31, 
2006. 

In the revolving credit facility, each joint borrower covenants not to permit, without the consent 
of the lender, its ratio of total indebtedness to total capitalization to exceed 0.65 to 1.00 at any 
time. For purposes of calculating the maximum ratio of indebtedness to total capitalization, 
RG&E excludes from net worth the balance of 'Accumulated other comprehensive income 
(loss)' as it appears on the balance sheet. The facility contains various other covenants, 
including a restriction on the amount of secured indebtedness each borrower may maintain. 



Continued unremedied failure to observe those covenants for five business days after written 
notice of such failure from the lender constitutes an event of default and would result in 

L acceleration of maturity for the party in default. At December 31, 2006, RG&E1s ratio of total 
indebtedness to total capitalization was 0.54 to 1.00. RG&E is not in default, and no condition 
exists that is likely to create a default, under the facility. 

Note 7. Preferred Stock Redeemable Solely at the Option of RG&E 
C 

RG&E redeemed the following amounts of preferred stock, all at a premium, on May 5, 
2004: $12 million of 4% Series F (120,000 shares), $8 million of 4.10% Series H (80,000 
shares), $6 million of 4.75% Series 1 (60,000 shares), $5 million of 4.10% Series J (50,000 
shares), $6 million of 4.95% Series K (60,000 shares) and $10 million of 4.55% Series M 

c (1 00,000 shares). 

At December 31, 2006, RG&E had 2,000,000 shares of $100 par value cumulative preferred 
stock, 4,000,000 shares of $25 par value cumulative preferred stock and 5,000,000 shares of 
$1 par value preference stock authorized but unissued. 

a 

Note 8. Commitments and Contingencies 

Capitalspendjng: We have commitments in connection with our capital spending program. 
We plan to invest amounts in our energy delivery infrastructure during the next five years, 

c including amounts dedicated to electric reliability. We expect that approximately one-half of our 
capital spending will be paid for with internally generated funds and the remainder through the 
issuance of debt securities. The program is subject to periodic review and revision. Our capital 
spending will be primarily for the extension of energy delivery service, increased transmission 
capacity, necessary improvements to existing facilities, the installation of an advanced 
metering infrastructure and compliance with environmental requirements and governmental 

C mandates. 

Nuclear entitlement power purchase contracts: In connection with RG&E's sales of nuclear 
generating assets in 2004 and 2001, RG&E entered into two entitlement contracts under which 
it purchases electricity at a fixed contract price. RG&E expensed approximately $200 million 

a for nuclear entitlement power in 2006, $203 million in 2005 and $1 39 million in 2004. RG&E 
estimates that its nuclear entitlement power purchases will be $222 million in 2007, $226 
million in 2008, $230 million in 2009, $245 million in 2010, and $21 9 million in 201 1. 

L)I 
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NYISO billing adjustment: The NYISO frequently bills market participants on a retroactive 
basis when it determines that billing adjustments are necessary. Such retroactive billings can 
cover several months or years and cannot be reasonably estimated. RG&E records 
transmission or supply revenue or expense, as appropriate, when revised amounts are 
available. RG&E has developed an accrual process that incorporates available information 

r about retroactive NYISO billing adjustments as provided to all market participants. However, 
on an ongoing basis, RG&E cannot fully predict either the magnitude or the direction of any 



final billing adjustments. 

Note 9. Environmental Liability 

From time to time environmental laws, regulations and compliance programs may require 
changes in RG&E's operations and facilities and may increase the cost of electric and natural 
gas service. 

The EPA and various state environmental agencies have notified RG&E that it is among the 
potentially responsible parties who may be liable for costs incurred to remediate certain 
hazardous substances at seven waste sites. The seven sites do not include sites where gas 
was manufactured in the past, which are discussed below. With respect to the seven sites, five 
sites are included in the New York State Registry of Inactive Hazardous Waste Disposal Sites 
and three of the sites are also included on the National Priorities List. 

Any liability may be joint and several for certain of those sites. RG&E has recorded an 
estimated liability of less than $1 million related to the seven sites. It has recorded an 
estimated liability of $1 million related to another seven sites where RG&E believes it is 
probable that it will incur remediation costs, although it has not been notified that it is among 
the potentially responsible parties. The ultimate cost to remediate the sites may be significantly 
more than the accrued amount. Factors affecting the estimated remediation amount include 
the remedial action plan selected, the extent of site contamination and the portion attributed to 
RG&E. 

RG&E has a program to investigate and perform necessary remediation at its 10 sites 
where gas was manufactured in the past. Eight sites are included in the New York Voluntary 
Clean-up Program. 

RG&Eas estimate for all costs related to investigation and remediation of the 10 sites ranges 
from $36 million to $72 million at December 31, 2006. The estimate could change materially 
based on facts and circumstances derived from site investigations, changes in required 
remedial action, changes in technology relating to remedial alternatives and changes to current 
laws and regulations. 

RG&E's liability to investigate and perform remediation, as necessary, at its known inactive 
gas manufacturing sites was $36 million at December 31, 2006, and $35 million at 
December 31.2005. 

RG&E1s environmental liability accruals, which are expected to be paid within the next 12 
years, have been established on an undiscounted basis. RG&E has received insurance 
settlements during the last three years, which it accounted for as reductions in its related 
regulatory asset. 
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Note 10. Falr Value of Financial Instruments 



The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of RG&E's financial instruments are shown in 
the following table. The fair values are based on the quoted market prices for the same or 
similar issues of the same remaining maturities. 

December 31, 2006 2005 
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated 
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value 

(Thouunde) 

Noncurrent investments - classified as 
available-for-sale $11,120 $11,120 $1 1,374 $11,374 

First mortgage bonds $570,625 $588,545 $570.551 $629,990 
Pollution control notes, fixed $25,500 $26,737 $25.500 $27,745 
Pollution control notes, variable $101,900 $101,900 $101,900 $101,900 

The carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents, current investments available for sale, 
derivative assets, derivative liabilities and interest accrued approximate their estimated 
fair values. 

- 
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Note 1 I. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss 

Balance Belmce 8ehn.x 
January 2008 Dmcembor 2006 December 
1.2006 Change 31.2006 Change 31.2006 

(Thouunds) 

Unmalhed (losws) pains 
on Investments: 
Unrealhed holdlng ( l o s 8 ~ )  
pains during p e w ,  net of income 

tax benefit (expense) 
of $19 for 2005, and S(3.95) 
for 2006 S(29) 5581 

Net unrealized (losses) pain8 
on investments (20) S(29) 581 $552 
Minimum pension liability 
adjustment, net of i n m m  tax benaM 

(expense) of 12.538 for 
2005 and f(2.538) for2006 (3,827) (3.827) 3.827 

Adjustment to infiiaiiy apply StlIement 
158 for nonqualified plans, net of 
income tax benefit of 12.987 for 2006 

(4.505) (4.505) 
Unrealized (losses) gains on 
derivativesqualifiedashedges: 
Unrealwed (losses) pains 
during period on derivatium qualified 

as hedges, net of income tax benefit 
(expense) 
of $1 50 for 2005. and 
$6.223 for2006 (200) (9,383) 
Reclassification adlwtrnent bf 
(gains) included in net income. 
net of income tax expense Of 
11,595 for 2005 and S(4.549) 
for 2006 (2.405) 6.880 

Net unrealized (losses) on d e h h  
qualified as hedges ((26) (2,605) (2.631) (2.523) (5.154) 



Accumubied Othar 
Compnhenslve L o u  S(28) $(6,461) $6487) $(2.620) S(8,107) 

(See Risk management in Note 1.) 
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Note 12. Retirement Benefits 

RG&E has funded noncontributory defined benefit pension plans that cover substantially all of 
its employees. The plans provide defined benefits based on years of service and final average 
salary. RG&E also has other postretirement health care benefit plans covering substantially all 
of its employees. The health care plans are contributory with participants' contributions 
adjusted annually. 

Obligations and funded status: 

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits 
2006 2005 2006 2005 

(Thousands) 

Change in benefit obligation 
Benefit obligation at January 1 
Service mst 
Interest cost 
Actuarial loss (gain) 
Benefits paid 
Federal subsidia~ on benefits paid . - . 
Other - (17,626) - (5,299) 
Benefit obligation at December 31 $481,270 $509,085 $80,336 $82,772 
Change in  plan assets 
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 $542,355 $575,967 - - 
Actual return on plan assets 76,677 38,362 - - 
Employer contributions - - $5,200 $5,286 
Benefits paid (40,582) (37,088) ( ~ ~ 2 0 0 )  (5.286) 
Other - (34,886) . - 
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $ 578,450 $542,355 . - 
Funded status at December 31 $97,180 $33,270 $(80,336) $(82.772) 
Unrecoanized net actuarial loss (gain) $831 $(13,289) - 
Unrecoanized prior service cost (') 14,267 5,052 - 
Unrecognized net transition obligation (') - 10,964 

Total unrecognized amounts $15,098 $2.727 

Prevaid (accrued) benefit cost $48,368 $(80,045) 

('1 ~t Deannbr31 .20~ ,  mess  amounts far pension benefit$ and postretirement benem am induded in regulsmry assets or mgu~atory llabillthr, as 
appropriate, due M h e  appliution of Statement (58 and in acmrdance wlth Statement 71. See Statement 158 dlsdowm in Nola 1. 



Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefb 

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet 2008 2005 2006 2005 
Noncurrent assets $97,180 - 
Current liabilities 
Noncurrent liabilities 
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Amounts recognized in regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities at December 31, 2006, 
consist of: 

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits 
(Thousand.) 

Net loss (gain) $(46,303) $ (14,505) 
Prior sewice cost $12,784 $4.1 93 
Transition obligation - $9,137 

RG&Ets accumulated beneffi obligation for all defined benefit pension plans at December 31 
was $438 million for 2006 and $459 million for 2005. 

RG&E1s postretirement benefits were unfunded at December 31. 2006 and 2005. 

Pension Benefits Postretlrernent Benefits 

Components of net periodic 
benefit cost 

Service cost $4,701 $4,862 $5,479 $636 $731 $1.030 
interest cost 26,841 31,323 29,805 4,453 5.519 6.054 
Expected return on plan assets (45,942) (45,148) (49,184) - - - 
Amortization of transition obligation - - - 1,828 1.828 2.119 
Amortbation of prior sewice cost 1,483 1.483 1,262 859 859 1,141 
Amortization of net (gain) (2,376) (2,991) (6.906) (1,322) (3) (263) 
Curtailment - - (1 1,835) - - 7,401 
Settlement charge - - 10.007 - - (7.007) 
Net periodic benefit cost $(15,293) $(10,471) $(21,372) $6,454 $8,934 $10,475 

RG&E includes the net periodic benefit cost in other operating expenses. The net periodic 
benefit cost for postretirement benefits represents the amount expensed for providing health 
care benefits to retirees and their eligible dependents. RG&E expects to recover any costs 
related to the transition obligation by 2011. RG&E is amortizing over 20 years the transition 
obligation for postretirement benefits that resulted from the adoption of Statement 106. 



Amounts expected to be amortized from regulatory 
assets and regulatory liabilities into net periodic 
benefit cost for the fiscal year ended 
December 31,2007 Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits 
(Thousands) 

Estimated net (gain) S(4.033) $(1.628) 
Estimated prior service cost $1,483 $859 
Estimated transition obligation - $1,827 

Weighted-average assumptlons used to determine Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits 
benefit obligations at December 31, 2006 2005 2006 2005 
Discount rate 5.75% 5.50% 5.75% 5.50% 
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% NIA NIA 
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As of December 31, 2006, RG&E increased its discount rate from 5.50% to 5.75%. The 
discount rate is the rate at which the benefit obligations could presently be effectively settled. 
RG&E determined the discount rate by developing a yield curve derived from a portfolio of high 
grade noncallable bonds that closely matches the duration of the expected cash flows of its 
benefit obligations. 

Weighted-average assumptions used to 
determine net periodic benefit cost for Penslon Benefits Postretirement Benefits 
years ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004 
Discount rate 5.50% 5.75% 6.25% 5.50% 5.75% 6.25% 
Expected long-term retum on plan assets 8.75% 8.75% 8.75% NIA NIA N/A 
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% NIA NIA NIA 

RG&E developed its expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumption based on a 
review of long-term historical returns for the major asset classes. That analysis considered 
current capital market conditions and projected conditions. Given the current low interest rate 
environment, RG&E selected an assumption of 8.75% per year, which is lower than the rate 
that would otherwise be determined solely based on historical returns. RG&E amortizes 
unrecognized actuarial gains and losses over ten years from the time they are incurred. 

Assumed health care cost trctnd rates at December 31, 2006 2005 
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year 9.0% 10.0% 
Rate to which cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate trend rate) 5.0% 5.0% 
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 201 1 201 1 

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the 
health care plans. A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates 
would have the following effects: 

1% Increase 1% Decrease 



Effect on total of service and interest cost - f (3) 
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation $7 $(74) 

Plan assets: RG&E's pension plan weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2006 
and 2005, by asset category, are: 

Target 
Asset Category Allocation 2006 2005 
Equity securities 58% 64% 64% 
Debt securities 27% 24% 28% 
Real estate 5% 4% 2% 
Other 10% 8% 6% 
Total 100% 100% 100% 
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RG&E's pension plan assets are held in a master trust with a trustee and are invested among 
and within various asset classes in order to achieve sufficient diversification in accordance with 
RG&E1s risk tolerance. This is achieved through the utilization of multiple asset managers and 
systematic allocation to investment management styles, providing broad exposure to different 
segments of the fixed income and equity markets. 

Equity securities did not include any Energy East common stock at December 31,2006 
and 2005. 

Contributions: RG&E does not anticipate any contributions to its pension benefit plans in 
2007. 

Estimated future benefit payments: RG&E's expected benefit payments and expected 
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (Medicare Act) 
subsidy receipts,'which refiect expected future service, as appropriate, are: 

Pension Postretirement Medicare Act 
Benefits Benefits Subsidy Receipts 

(Thoummndm) 

Notes to F i n a n c i a l m e n t s  
C 



Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 

Note 13. Segment lnformation 

Selected financial information for RG&E1s operating segments is presented in the table 
below. RG&E's electric delivery segment consists of its regulated transmission, distribution 
and generation operations. Its natural gas delivery segment consists of its regulated 
transportation, storage and distribution operations. RG&E measures segment profitability 
based on net income. 

Electric 
Delivery 

(Thousands) 

2006 
Operating Revenues 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Interest Charges, Net 
lncome Taxes 
Net lncome 
Total Assets 

Natural Gas 
Delivery Total 

Capital Spending $101,543 $39,489 $141,032 
2005 
Operating Revenues 
Depreciation and Amortibation 
Interest Charges, Net 
Income Taxes 
Net lncome 
Total Assets $1.715.237 $667,036 $2,382,273 
Capital Spending $39,924 $15,526 $55,450 
2004 
Operating Revenues $664.794 $369,263 $1,034.057 
Depreciation and Amortization $71,080 $18,742 $69,822 
Interest Charges, Net $41.914 $12.917 $54,831 
Income Taxes $145,697 $7,630 $1 53.327 
Net Income $51.095 $19.222 $70,317 
Total Assets $1,670.657 $649,700 $2,320,357 
Capital Spending $58,836 $22.661 $81,717 

Note 14. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) 

Quarter Ended March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 
(Thousands) 

2006 
Operating Revenues $346,511 $236,108 $ 252,487 $281,187 
Operating Income $77,168 $33,139 $34,947 $42,854 
Net lncome and Eamings Available 
for Common Stock $40,285 $1 1,952 $12,441 $17,617 

2005 
Operating Revenues $315.720 $225,817 $259,439 $304,550 
Operating Income $64.876 $32,735 $34,303 $36.473 
Net lncome and Eamings Available 



for Common Stock $30.928 $10,976 $15,512 $21,573 

1 Report of lnde~endent Reaistered Public Accountina Firm 

To the Shareholder and Board of Directors of 
Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation: 

^ In our opinion, the financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation at 
December 31,2006 and 2005, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of 
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the 

r financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all material 
respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related financial 
statements. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public 
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall 

C 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, effective December 31, 2006, the Company 
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158 Employers' Accounting for 
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans - an amendment of FASB Statements 

^ No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R). 

Pricewaterhousecoopers LLP 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
February 28,2007 

1 ROCHESTER GAS AND ELECTRIC CORPORATION 

SCHEDULE II -Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

Years Ended December 31,2006,2005 and 2004 
1 

Beginning End 
Classification of Year Additlons Write-offs ('1 Adjustments f2) of Year 
(Thousands) 

r 2006 
Allowance for Doubtful 



Accounts -Accounts 
Receivable 

2005 
Allowance for Doubtful 
Accounts -Accounts 
Receivable 

2004 
Allowance for Doubtful 
Accounts - Accounts 
Receivable $27,182 $4.733 S(4.733) $(5,700) $21,482 

Uncollectlble accounts charged aoalnst he allowance. nat of m c o v e ~ r .  

") Represents changes In the estimate of tha wrne-ofb that wlll not Lm ncovnred In rates. 

Energy East: lnformation required by Part Ill as to Energy East is incorporated herein by 
reference to the information under the caption(s), indicated in the table below, in Energy East's 
Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the Commission on or before April 30, 2007. 

Caption@) in  Energy East's Proxy Statement 

ltem 10. Directors and Executive Officers and Corporate Governance, " "Committees, " "Election of 
Corporate Governance of the Registrants Directors" and "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership 

Reporting Compliance" 

ltem 11. Executive Compensation "Compensation Dlscussion and Analysis. " 
"Compensation Committee Report. " "Summary 
Compensation Table, " "Grants of Plan-Based 
Awards, " "Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year 
End," "Option Exercises and Stock Vested, " 
"Pension Benefits. " "Summary of Potential Post 
Employment Termination Payments, " "Directon' 
Compensation. " 

Item 12. Securlty Ownership of Certain "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners 
Beneficial Owners and Management and Management" 
and Related Stockholder Matters 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related "Election of Directors," "Related Party Transactions 
Transactions, and Director Independence Policy" 

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees "Independent Accountants, " "Audit Fees, " "Audlt- 
and Services Related Fees. " "Tax Fees" and "All Other Fees" 

lnformation for ltem 10 regarding executive officers of Energy East is on page 1-1 7 of 
this report. 

RG&E RG&E meets the conditions set forth in General Instruction I(l)(a) and (b) of Form 10- 



K for a reduced disclosure format. Accordingly, the information required for Items 10, 11, 12 
and 13 in this Part IKI related to RG&E is not presented. 

a 

ltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services 

Audit Fees: Aggregate fees billed to or allocated to RG&E by Energy East as part of its 
consolidated audits for each of the last two fiscal years for professional services rendered for 

a the audit of RG&E1s annual financial statements and the reviews of the financial statements 
included in RG&E1s Forms 10-Q were $1,180,467 for 2006 and $667,233 for 2005. 

Audit-Related Fees: Aggregate fees billed to or allocated to RG&E by Energy East for each of 
the last two fiscal yearsfor assurance and related services reasonably related to the 

rn performance of the audit of RG&E's annual financial statements and the reviews of the 
financial statements included in RG&E1s Forms 10-Q were $-for 2006 and $2,389 for 2005, 
consisting of the following: 

2006 2005 
Benet3 Plan Audits - $1,389 
Agreed Upon Procedures Leltem 51,000 $1,000 

Tax Fees: Aggregate fees billed to or allocated to RGBE by Energy East for each of the last 
two fiscal years for professional tax services rendered consisting of tax compliance and 

a 
refunds were $8,015 for 2006 and $10,406 for 2005. 

A l l  Other Fees: Other fees were $275 for 2006 and $1,500 for 2005. 

PART N 

ltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules 

The following documents are filed as part of this report for Energy East: 
a 

Financial statements 
Included in Part II of this report: 

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,2006 and 2005 
For the three years ended December 31,2006 
Consolidated Statements of Income 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Common Stock Equity 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

a 
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

Financial statement schedule 
Included in Part II of this report: 
For the three years ended December 31,2006 

II. Consolidated Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 



The following documents are filed as part of this report for RG&E: 

Financial statements 
Included in Part II of this report: 

Balance Sheets as of December 31,2006 and 2005 
For the three years ended December 31,2006 
Statements of Income 
Statements of Cash Flows 
Statements of Changes in Common Stock Equity 

Notes to Financial Statements 
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

Financial statement schedule 
Included in Part II of this report: 
For the three years ended December 31,2006 

II. Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

Schedules other than those listed above have been omitted since they are not required, are 
inapplicable or the required information is presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
Financial Statements or notes thereto. 

Exhibits 

(a)(l) The following exhibits are delivered with this report: 

Reaistrant Exhibit No. Descri~tion 
Energy East Corporation (A)10-17 -Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of 

December 31,2006, by and among the Company, Energy East 
Management Corporation and W. W. von Schack. 

(A)10-26 -Award Agreement (February 2007) under the 2000 Stock 
Option Plan. 

12-1 -Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges. 
12-2 -Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and 

Preferred Stock Dividends. 
21 -Subsidiaries. 
23 -Consent of PdcewaterhouseCoopers LLP to incorporation by 

reference into certain registration statements. 
31-1 -Certification under section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 

of 2002. 

Rochester Gas and Electric 
Corporation 

31-2 -Certification under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
of 2002. 

'32 -Certifications under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
of 2002. 

31-1 -Certification under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
of 2002. 

31-2 -Certification under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
of 2002. 

'32 -Certifications under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
of 2002. 



Furnished pursuant to Regulation S-K Item 601 (b)(32). 
a 

(A) Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement. 

c (a)(2) The following exhibits are incorporated herein by reference: 

Reaistrant Eh l iO  
Energy East Corporation 3-1 -Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the 

Company pursuant to Section 807 of the 
Business Corporation Law filed in the Office of 
the Secretary of State of the state of New 
York on April 23. 1998 - Posteffective 
Amendment No.1 to Registration No. 
033-541 55 

3-2 -Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of 
lncorporation filed in the Office of the 
Secretary of State of the state of New York on 
April 26,1999 - Company's 1 0 4  for the 
quarter ended March 31,1999 - File No. 
1-14766 

3-3 -Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of 
lncorporation filed in the Office of the 
Secretary of State of the state of New York on 
June 21.2004 - Company's 1 0 4  for the 
quarter ended June 30.2004 - File No. 
1-14766 

3-4 -Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of 
lncorporation filed in the Oftice of the 
Secretary of State of the state of New York on 
June 12,2006 - Company's 10-Q for the 
quarter ended June 30.2006 - File No. 
1-14766. 

3-5 -By-laws of the Company as amended April 6. 
2006 - Company's 10-Q for the quarter ended 
March 31, 2006 - File No. 1-14766 

4-1 -Indenture between the Company and 
JPMorgan Chase Bank (formerly The Chase 
~anhanan Bank), as Trustee, dated as of 
August 31,2000 - Company's 10-Q for the 
quarter ended September 30.2000 - File No. 
1-14766 

4-2 -Third Supplemental lndenture between the 
Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank 
(formerly The Chase Manhattan Bank), as 
Trustee. dated as of November 14.2000 
related to the lndenture between the 
Company and JPMogan Chase Bank, as 
Trustee, dated as of August 31, 2000 - 
Company's 10-K for the year ended 
December 31.2000 - File No. 1-14766 

4-3 -Fourth Supplemental Indenture between the 
Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank 
(formerly The Chase Manhattan Bank), as 
Trustee, dated as of November 14, 2001, 
related to the lndenture between the 

As Fxhibit NQ. 



Reaistrant 
Energy East Corporation 

Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as 
Trustee. dated as of August 31,2000 - 
Company's 10-K for the year ended 
December 31.2001 - File No. 1-14766 4-4 

Exhibii No. Wedin AS Fxhlblt NO . . 
4-4 -Sixth Supplemental lndenture between the 

Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank 
(formerly The Chase Manhattan Bank), as 
Trustee. dated as of June 14, 2002. related to 
the lndenture between the Company and 
JPMorgan Chase Bank, as Trustee, dated as 
of August 31,2000 - Company's 1 0 4  for the 
quarter ended June 30,2002 - File No. 
1-14766 4% 

4-5 -Seventh Supplemental lndenture between the 
Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank 
(formerly The Chase Manhattan Bank), as 
Trustee, dated as of September 9, 2003, 
related to the lndenture between the 
Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as 
Trustee. dated as of August 31, 2000 - 
Company's 10-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30.2003 - File No. 1-14766 

4-6 -Eighth Supplemental lndenture between the 
Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank 
(formerly The Chase Manhattan Bank), as 
Trustee, dated as of July 24, 2006, related to 
the lndenture between the Company and 
JPMorgan Chase Bank, as Tnrstee, dated as 
of August 31,2000 - Company's 10-Q for the 
quarter ended September 30, 2006 - File No. 
1-14766 4-8 

(A)lO-1 -Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors - 
Company's 10-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30.2000 - File No. 1-14766 10-40 

(A)lC-2 -Amended and Restated Director Share Plan - 
Company's 10-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30.2000 - File No. 1-14766 10-38 

(A)10-3 -Amendment No. 1 to Director Share Plan - 
Company's 10-K for the year ended 
December 31,2005 - File No. 1-14766 10-3 

(A)lO-4 -Amendment No. 2 to Director Share Plan - 
Company's 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2005 - File No. 1-14766 10-4 

(A)lO-5 -Deferred Compensation Plan - Director Share 
Plan - Company's 10-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30.2000 - File No. 1-14766 10-39 

(A)lO-6 -Amendment No. 1 to Deferred Compensation 
Plan - Director Share Plan - Company's 10-K 
for the year ended December 31.2005 - File 
NO. 1-14766 10-6 

(A)l0-7 -Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan - 
Company's 10-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30. 2001 - File No. 1-14766 10-33 

(A)l0-8 -Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 



Reaistrant 

a Energy East Corporation 

Amendment No. 1 - Company's 10-K for the 
year ended December 31.2001 - File No. 
1-14766 10-5 

Fxhibit Np. .E&!Jh 
(A)10-9 -Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 

Amendment No. 2 - Company's 10-Q for the 
quarter ended June 30,2004 - File No. 
1-14766 

(A)lO-10 -Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 
Amendment No. 3 - Company's 10-K for the 
year ended December 31.2005 - File No. 
1-14766 

(A)10-11 -Annual Executive Incentive Plan - Company's 
10-K for the year ended December 31,2000 - 
File No. 1-14766 

(A)IO-12 -Annual Executive Incentive Plan Amendment 
No. 1 Company's 10-K for the year ended 
December 31,2000 - File No. 1-14766 

(A)lO-13 -Annual Executive Incentive Plan Amendment 
No. 2 - Company's 10-Q for the quarter 
ended June 30.2001 - File No. 1-14766 

(A)10-14 -Annual Executive Incentive Plan Amendment 
No. 3 - Company's 10-Q for the quarter ended 
March 31. 2005 - File No. 1-14766 

(A)10-15 -Deferred compensation Plan, effective 
January 1, 2004 - Company's 10-K for the 
year ended December 31,2003 - File No. 
1-1 4766 

(A)10-16 -Amendment No. 1 to Deferred 
Compensation Plan - Company's 10-K for 
the year ended December 31.2005 - File 
No. 1-14766 

(A)10-18 -Amended and Restated Employment 
Agreement dated as of June 14,1999, by 
and among the Company. CMP Group, Inc. 
and F. Michael McClain, Jr. - Company's 
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30.2005 - 
File No.1-14766 

(A)lO-19 -Restricted Stock Plan - Company's 10-K for 
the year ended December 31,1998 - File 
NO. 1-14766 

(A)10-20 -Restricted Stock Plan Amendment No. 1 - 
Company's 10-K for the year ended 
December 31.2002 - File No. 1-14766 

(A)lOdl -Form of Restricted Stock Award Grant - 
Company's 10-Q for the quarter ended 
March 31,2005 - File No. 1-14766 

(A)10-22 -Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Option 
Plan, effective October 15, 2003 - 
Company's 10-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30.2003 - File No. 1-14766 

(A)10-23 -Award Agreement under the 2000 Stock 
Option Plan - Company's 10-Q for the 
quarter ended June 30,2000 - File No. 1- 
14766 

As Exhibit No. 



(A)10-24 -Award Agreement (February 2001) under the 
2000 Stock Option Plan - Company's 10-K 
for the year ended December 31.2000 - File 
NO. 1-14766 10-27 

Reaistrant !E?@buh 
Energy East Corporation (A)10-25 -Award Agreement (February 2006) under the 

2000 Stock Option Plan - Companvs 10-K 
for the year ended December 31,2005 - File 
NO. 1-14766 

(A)10-27 -Amended and Restated Directoh Charitable 
Giving Program - Company's 10-K for the 
year ended December 31,2005 - File No. 
1-14766 

(A)? 0-28 -Energy East Management Corporation Form 
of Employee Invention and Confdentiality 
Agreement - Company's 10-K for the year 
ended December 31,2001 - File No. 1- 
14766 

(A)10-29 -Energy East Management Corporation Form 
of Severance Agreement for executive 
officers who do not have employment 
agreements - Company's 10-K for the year 
ended December 31.2005 - File No. 1- 
14766 

(A)10-30 -ERISA Excess Plan effective Janualy 1, 
2005- Company's 10-K for the year ended 
December 31,2005 - File No. 1-14766 

3-1 -Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the 
Company pursuant to Section 807 of the 
Business Corporation Law filed in the Office 
of the Secretary of State of the state of 
New York on June 23, 1992 - Registration 
NO. 33-49805 

3-2 -Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of 
lncorporation of the Company under Section 
805 of the Business Corporation Law filed 
with the Secretary of State of the state of 
New York on March 18,1994 - Company's 
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,1994 - 
File No. 1-672 

3-3 -By-Laws of Company as amended June 28. 
2002 - Company's 1 0-Q for the quarter ended 
June 30,2002 - File No. 1-672 

4-1 -General Mortgage to Bankers T ~ s t  Company. 
as Trustee, dated September 1. 1918. and 
supplements thereto, dated March 1, 1921, 
October 23,1928, August 1,1932 and May I. 
1940 - Company's 10-K for the year ended 
December 31,1990 - File No. 1-672 

As Exh~blt No. 
. . 

10-26 

10-27 

10-24 

Rochester Gas and Electric 
Corporation 

4-2 -Supplemental Indenture. dated as of March 1, 
1983, between the Company and Bankers 
Trust Company, as Trustee - Company's 8-K 
dated July 15, 1993 - File No. 1-672 

10-1 -Agreement dated February 5. 1980 between 



the Company and the Power Authority of the 
state of New York - Company's 10-K for the 
year ended December 31.1989 - File No. 
1-672 10-10 

Reaistrant Waaia Exhibit No, 
c Rochester Gas and Electric 10-2 -Agreement dated March 9,1990 between the 

Corporation Company and Mellon Bank. N.A. - Company's 
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1990 - 
File No. 1-672 10-1 

10-3 -Agreement between New York Independent 
System Operator and Transmission Owners, 
dated as of December 2,1999 - New York 
State Electric 8 Gas Corporation's 10-K for 
the year ended December 31.1999 - File No. 
1-31 03-2 10-1 

10-4 -Independent System Operator Agreement, 
dated as of December 2,1999 - New York 
State Electric 8 Gas Corporation's 10-K for 
the year ended December 31, 1999 - File No. 
1-3103-2 10-2 

10-5 -Asset Purchase Agreement by and among 
Rochester Gas and Electric Corporatiin, 
Constellation Generation Group, LLC and 
Constellation Energy Gmup. Inc. dated as 
of November 24,2003 -Company's 10-K 
for the year ended December 31,2003 - File 
NO. 1-672 10-7 

10-6 -Power Purchase Agreement between 
Constellation Power Source, Inc. and the 
Company dated as of November 24,2003 - 
Company's 10-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2005 - File No. 1-672 10-28 

(A) Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement. 

n 
Energy East agrees to furnish to the Commission, upon request, a copy of the following 
documents: 

A. Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement among Energy East, certain lenders. Citibank. N.A.. as 
Administrative Agent. Bank of America. N.A., as Syndication Agent and HSBC Bank USA. 

m National Association, UBS Securities LLC and Wachovia Bank. N.A., as Co-Documentation 
Agents, as amended and restated as of June 2,2006. 

B. Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement among RGBE. New York State Electric 8 Gas 
Corporation, Central Maine Power Company, The Southern Connecticut Gas Company, 
Connecticut Natural Gas Corporation and The Berkshire Gas Company, certain lenders, 
Wachovia Bank N.A.. as Administrative Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank. N.A., as Syndication 
Agent and The Bank of New York, Citibank, N.A. and Sovereign Bank, as Co-Documentation 
Agents, as amended and restated as of June 2, 2006 (the "Joint Revolving Credii Agreement"). 

C. Indenture dated as of August 1. 1989, between Central Maine Power Company and The Bank of 
New York, and the Supplemental Indentures related thereto. 

D. Loan and Trust Agreement dated as of December 1,2001. among the Business Finance Authority 
of the state of New Hampshire, Central Maine Power Company and State Street Bank and Trust 

1 company, as Trustee, relating to Pollution Control Revenue Refunding Bonds (Series 2001). 



E. The Southern Connecticut Gas Company's Indenture, dated as of March 1,1948, with The 
Bridgeport City Trust Company (now US Bank, N.A.), as Trustee, and Supplemental Indentures 
related thereto. ~ - - ~ 

F. Connecticut Natural Gas Corporation's Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement with The 
Connecticut National Bank (now US Bank, N.A.) for Medium Term Notes. Series A, dated 
November 1, 1991. 

G. Connecticut Natural Gas Corporation's lssuing and Paying Agency Agreement with Shawmut 
Bank Connecticut, National Association (now US Bank, N.A.) for Medium Term Notes, Series B, 
dated June 14, 1994, and an Amendment related thereto. 

H. Connecticut Natural Gas Corporation's Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement with US Bank. 
N.A. for Medium Term Notes, Series C, dated September 12. 2005. 

I. The Berkshire Gas Company's First Mortgage Indenture and Deed of Trust, dated as of July 1, 
1954, with Chemical Corn Exchange Bank (now The Bank of New York), and the Supplemental 
lndenture related thereto. 

J. Loan Agreement, dated April 30,2004, between The Berkshire Gas Company 
and Banknorth, N.A. 

K. Senior Note Agreement dated as of July 1.1990 between The Berkshire Gas Company and 
Allstate Life Insurance Company. 

L. Senior Note Agreement dated as of November I. 1996 between The Berkshire Gas Company and 
First Colony Life Insurance Company, and Amendments related thereto. 

The total amount of securities authorized under each of such documents does not exceed 10% 
of the total assets of Energy East. 

RG&E agrees to furnish to the Commission, upon request, a copy of the Participation 
Agreement dated as of August 1, 1997, between RG&E and NYSERDA relating to Pollution 
Control Revenue Bonds, Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation Project (1 997 Series A), 
(1 997 Series B), (1 997 Series C) and (1 998 Series A); a copy of the Participation Agreements 
dated as of August 1, 2004, between RG&E and NYSERDA relating to Pollution Control 
Revenue Bonds (2004 Series A) and (2004 Series B); a copy of certain supplemental 
indentures to the General Mortgage dated September 1, 1918, as supplemented; and a copy 
of the Joint Revolving Credit Agreement. The total amount of securities authorized under each 
of such documents does not exceed 10% of the total assets of RG&E. 

Siqnatures 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
each Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, 
thereunto duly authorized. 

ENERGY EAST CORPORATION 

Date: February 28,2007 By /s/Robert D. Kumo 
Robert D. Kump 
Senior Vice President & 
Chief Financial Officer 

ROCHESTER GAS AND ELECTRIC CORPORATION 

Date: February 28,2007 By lslJoseoh J. Svta 
Joseph J. Syta 
Vice President - Controller and Treasurer 



I Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been 
signed below by the following persons on behalf of each Registrant and in the capacities and 
on the dates indicated. 

ENERGY EAST CORPORATION 
PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Date: February 28, 2007 By lsMleslev W. von Schack 
Wesley W. von Schack 
Chairman, President, Chief 

C Executive Officer & Director 

PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL AND ACCOUNTING OFFICER 

Date: February 28,2007 By IsIRobert D. K u m ~  
a Robert D. Kump 

Senior Vice President & 
Chief Financial Officer 

Date: February 28,2007 
C 

Date: February 28, 2007 

Date: February 28,2007 

Date: February 28, 2007 

I.. 

Date: February 28,2007 

Date: February 28,2007 
LL 

Date: February 28,2007 

Sianatures (Continued) 

ENERGY EAST CORPORATION, continued 
By lsNames H. Brandi 

James H. Brandi, Director 

By /s/John T. Cardis 
John T. Cardis, Director 

By IsIJose~h J. Castialia 
Joseph J. Castiglia, Director 

By /s/Lois B. DeFleur 
Lois B. DeFleur, Director 

By /s/G. Jean Howard 
G. Jean Howard, Director 

By IsIDavid M. Jaaaer 
David M. Jagger, Director 

By /s/Seth A. Kaplan 
Seth A. Kaplan, Director - Date: February 28,2007 By IslBen E. Lvnch 
Ben E. Lynch, Director 



Date: February 28, 2007 By IslPeter J. Movnihan 
Peter J. Moynihan, Director 

Date: February 28,2007 By IsMlalter G. Rich 
Walter G. Rich, Director 

Sianatures (Continued) 

ROCHESTER GAS AND ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Date: February 28, 2007 By IslJames P. Laurito 
James P. Laurito 
Director, President and Chief Executive Officer 

PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL AND ACCOUNTING OFFICER 

By IsIJose~h J. Svta 
Date: February 28, 2007 Joseph J. Syta 

Vice President - Controller and Treasurer 

Date: February 28, 2007 By 1slRobe1-t E. Rude 
Robert E. Rude. Director 

Date: February 28, 2007 By IsNVeslev W. von Schack 
Wesley W. von Schack, Director 

EXHIBIT INDEX 
Reaistrant Exhibit No. Descriotion 
Energy East Corporation '3-1 -Restated Certificate of incorporation of the Company pursuant 



to Section 807 of the Business Corporation Law filed in the 
Office of the Secretary of State of the state of New York on 
April 23. 1998. 

'3-2 -Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of lncorporation 
filed in the Office of the Secretary of State of the state of New 
York on April 26, 1999. 

'3-3 -Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation 
filed in the Office of the Secretary of State of the state of New 
York on June 21,2004. 

'34 -Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation 
riled in the office of the Secretary of State ofthe state of New 
York on June 12,2006. 

'3-5 - By-Laws of the Company as amended April 6.2006. 
'4-1 -Indenture between the Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank 

(formerly The Chase Manhattan Bank), as Trustee, dated as 
of August 31. 2000. 

'4-2 -Third Supplemental lndenture between the Company and 
JPMorgan Chase Bank (formerly The Chase Manhattan 
Bank), as Trustee. dated as of November 14, 2000 related to 
the lndenture between the Company and JPMorgan Chase 
Bank, as Trustee, dated as of August 31,2000. 

*4-3 - Fourth Supplemental lndenture between the Company and 
JPMorgan Chase Bank (formerly The Chase Manhattan 
Bank), as Trustee, dated as of November 14,2001, related to 
the lndenture between the Company and JPMorgan Chase 
Bank. as Trustee. dated as of August 31.2000. 

'4-4 -Sixth Supplemental lndenture between the Company and 
JPMorgan Chase Bank (formerly The Chase Manhattan 
Bank), as Trustee, dated as of June 14, 2002, related to the 
lndenture between the Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank. 
as Trustee, dated as of August 31, 2000. 

*4-5 -Seventh Supplemental lndenture between the Company and 
JPMorgan Chase Bank (formerly The Chase Manhattan 
Bank), as Trustee, dated as of September 9, 2003, related to 
the lndenture between the Company and JPMorgan Chase 
Bank, as Trustee, dated as of August 31,2000. 

'4-6 -Eighth Supplemental lndenture between the Company and 
JPMorgan Chase Bank (formerly The Chase Manhattan 
Bank), as Trustee, dated as of July 24, 2006, related to the 
lndenture between the Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank. 
as Trustee, dated as of August 31, 2000. 

'(A)10-1 -Deferred Compensation Plan for Directon. 
*(A)10-2 -Amended and Restated Director Share Plan. 
*(A)10-3 -Amendment No. 1 to Director Share Plan. 
*(A)10-4 -Amendment No. 2 to Director Share Plan. 
*(A)10-5 - Deferred Compensation Plan Director Share Plan. 
*(A)10-6 -Amendment No. 1 to Deferred Compensation Plan - Director 

Share Plan. 
'(A)10-7 -Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. 
'(A)10-8 -Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Amendment No. 1. 
'(A)l0-9 -Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Amendment No. 2. 

*(A)10-10 -Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Amendment No. 3. 

EXHIBIT INDEX (Continued) 
Li lwMm!lt Frhibii No. Descr i~t im 

Energy East Corp0R3tiOfl '(A)10-11 -Annual Executive Incentive Plan. 



*(A)10-12 -Annual Executive Incentive Plan Amendment No. 1. 
'(A)10-13 -Annual Executive lncentive Plan Amendment No. 2. 
'(A)10-14 -Annual Executive Incentive Plan Amendment No. 3. 
'(A)lO-15 -Deferred Compensation Plan. effective January 1, 2004. 
'(A)10-16 -Amendment No. 1 to Deferred Compensation Plan. 
(A)10-17 -Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of 

December 31,2006, by and among the Company, Energy 
East Management Corporation and W. W. von Schack. 

'(A)lO-18 -Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of 
June 14,1999, by and among the Company, CMP Group, Inc. 
and F. Michael McClain, Jr. 

*(A)10-19 -Restricted Stock Plan. 
*(A)10-20 - Restricted Stock Plan Amendment No. 1. 
'(A)10-21 -Form of Restricted Stock Award Grant. 
'(A)10-22 -Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Option Plan, effective 

October 15, 2003. 
'(A)10-23 -Award Agreement under the 2000 Stock Option Plan. 
'(A)10-24 -Award Agreement (February 2001) under the 2000 Stock 

Option Plan. 
*(A)10-25 -Award Agreement (February 2006) under the 2000 Stock 

Option Plan. 
(A)10-26 -Award Agreement (February 2007) under the 2000 Stock 

Option Plan. 
^(A)10-27 -Amended and Restated Director's Charitable Giving Program. 
'(A)10-28 - Energy East Management Corporation Form of Employee 

Invention and Confidentiality Agreement. 
*(A)10-29 - Energy East Management corporation Form of 

Severance Agreement for executive officers who do not have 
employment agreements. 

'(A)10-30 -ERISA Excess Plan effective January 1, 2005. 
12-1 -Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges. 
12-2 -Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and 

Preferred Stock Dividends. 
21 -Subsidiaries. 
23 -Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to incorporation by 

reference into certain registration statements. 
31-1 -Certification under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 

of 2002. 
31-2 -Certification under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 

of 2002. 
"32 -Certifications under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 

of 2002. 

EXHIBIT INDEX (Continued) 
E&lwXlt Exhibit No. Descri~tiM 
Rochester Gas and Electric '3-1 -Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company pursuant 
Corporation to Section 807 of the Business Corporation Law filed in the 



Offm of the Secretary of State of the state of New Yo* on 
June 23,1992. 

'3-2 -Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of 
the Company under Section 805 of the Business Corporation 
Law tiled with the Secretary of State of the state of New York 
on March 18,1994. 

'3-3 - By-Laws of the Company as amended June 28,2002. 
V-1 -General Mortgage to Bankers Trust Company, as Trustee, 

dated September I, 1918, and supplements thereto, 
dated March 1,1921, October 23,1928, August 1,1932 and 
May 1.1940. 

'4-2 -Supplemental Indenture. dated as of March I. 1983. between 
the Company and Bankers Trust Company. as Trustee. 

'10-1 -Agreement dated February 5.1980 between the Company 
and the Power Authority of the state of New York. 

*10-2 -Agreement dated March 9,1990 between the Company and 
Mellon Bank. N.A. 

'10-3 -Agreement between New Yo* Independent System Operator 
and Transmission Owners. dated as of December 2,1999. 

*lo-4 -Independent System Operator Agreement, dated as of 
December 2.1999. 

'10-5 -Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Rochester Gas 
and Electric Corporation. Constellation Generation 
Group, LLC and Constellation Energy Group, Inc. dated as of 
November 24,2003. 

'106 -Power Purchase Agreement between Constellation 
Power Source. Inc. and the Company dated as of 
November 24.2003. 

31-1 -Certification under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
of 2002. 

31-2 -Certification under Section 302 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxiey Act 
of 2002. 

-32 -Certifications under Sectbn 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
of 2002. 

Incornrated bv reference. 
1 * l 

r - ~ - ~ ~  ~ . 
Furnished pursuant to Reguldon S-K Item 601(b)(32). 

(A) Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement. 
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UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D. C. 20549 

FORM 10-Q 

(Mark One) 
[XI QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF M E  SECURITIES 

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 
~ ~ ~ 

For the quarterly period ended March 31.2007 

[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 
For the transition period from to 

Commlsslon Exact name of  Registrant as specified In Its chalter, IRS Employer 
file number State of lncor~oration. Address and Telephotw number ldentlfication NQ. 

114766 Energy East Corporation 14-1798693 
(Incorporated in New York) 

52 Farm View Drive 
New Gloucester, Maine 04260-5116 

(207) 688-6300 
www.energyeast.com 

1-672 Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 16-0612110 
(Incorporated in New York) 

89 East Avenue . . - - - . . . . -. . - - 
Rochester. New York 14649 

(800) 743-21 10 

Indicate by check mark whether each registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) 
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the - registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 
days. Yes No- 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non- 
accelerated filer. See definition of "accelerated filar and lame accelerated filer" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. - - 
(Check one): 

I 

Large accelerated Accelerated Nonaccelerated 
Reakrtrant flier flier filer 
Energy East Corporation X 
Rochester Gas and Electric Corporatlon X 

m Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). 

Realstrant 
Energy East Corporation 
Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 

A 



Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuers' classes of common stock, as of the latest 
practicable date. 

As of April 30. 2007, shares of common stock outstanding for each registrant were: 

Realstrant ~ c r l ~ t l o n  Shares 
Energy East Corporation Par value $.01 per share 158,031.822 
Rochester Gas and Electric Corporatlon Par value $5 per share 34,506,513(') 

(" All shares are owned by RGS Energy Group. Inc.. a whclly-owned subsMary of Energy East Corporsllon. 

This combined Form 10-Q is separately filed by Energy East Corporation and Rochester Gas and Electric 
Corporation. Information contained herein relating to either registrant is filed by such registrant on its own behalf. 
Neither registrant makes any representation as to information relating to the other registrant. 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporatlon meets the conditions set forth in General Instruction H(l)(a) and (b) of 
Form 10-Q and is therefore filing this Form 10-Q with the reduced disclosure format specified in General 
Instruction H(2) of Form 10-Q. 
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Glossary 

Abbreviatlons for the Energy East companies mentioned In thls report: 

Berkshlre Gas The Berkshire Gas Company is a MNG Maine Natural Gas Corporation is a small 
regulated utility primarily engaged in the distribution natural gas delivery company in the state 
of natural gas in western Massachusetts. Berkshire of Maine. 
Gas is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Berkshire 
Energy Resources. NYSEG New York State Electric & Gas 

Corporation is a regulated utility primarily 
CMP Central Maine Power Company is a engaged in purchasing and delivering electricity 
regulated utility primarily engaged in transmitting 

n 
and natural gas in the central, eastern and 

and distributing electricity generated by others to western parts of the state of New York. NYSEG 
retail customers in Maine. CMP is a wholly-owned is a wholly-owned subsidiary of RGS Energy 
subsidiary of CMP Group, Inc. Group, Inc. 

CNG Connecticut Natural Gas Corporation is a RG&E Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 
regulated utility primarily engaged in the retail is a regulated utility primarily engaged in 

a distribution of natural gas in Connecticut CNG is a generating, purchasing and delivering electricity 
wholly-owned subsidiary of CTG Resources, Inc. and purchasing and delivering natural gas in an 

area centered around the city of Rochester. 
Energetlx Energetix, Inc. markets electric and New York. RG&E is a wholly-owned subsidiary 
natural gas services in upstate New York. of RGS Energy Group. Inc. 

a 
Energy East, the company, we, our or us SCG The Southern Connecticut Gas Company 
Energy East Corporation is the parent company is a regulated utility primarily engaged in the 
of RGS Energy Group. Inc., Connecticut Energy retail distribution of natural gas in Connecticut 
Corporation, CMP Group, Inc., CTG Resources, SCG is a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
Inc., Berkshire Energy Resources. The Energy Connecticut Energy Corporation. 
Network, Inc. and Energy East Enterprises, Inc. 

Abbrevlatlons or acronyms frequently used in thls report: 
1 

AW Administrative Law Judge MW, MWh megawatt, megawatt-hour 

AM1 advanced metering infrastructure NBC nonbypassable wires charge 

ARP 2000 Alternative Rate Plan 2000 

C ASGA Asset Sale Gain Account 

NUG nonutilily generator 

NYlSO New York Independent System Operator 

DIG Issue 626 Derivatives Implementation Group NYPSC New York State Public 
(DIG) lssue No. G26. "Cash Flow Hedges: Hedging Service Commission 
Interest Cash Flows on Variable-Rate Assets and 



Liabilities That Are Not Based on a Benchmark 
lnterest Rate" 

DPUC Connecticut Department of Public 
Utility Control 

Dth dekatherm 

EPA Environmental Protection Agency 

EPS earnings per share 

ESCO energy s e ~ i c e  company 

FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board 

FERC Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

FIN 46(R) FASB lnterpretation No. 46 (revised 
December 2003). Consolidation of Variable Interest 
Entities, an interpretation of Accounting Research 
Bulletin No. 51 

FIN 48 FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for 
Uncertainty in lncome Taxes, an interpretation of 
FASB Statement No. 109 

ISO-NE IS0 New England Inc. 

MDaA Management's Discussion and Analysis 
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

NYSDEC New York State Department of 
Environmental Consewation 

OPEB other past-employment benefits 

PCB polychlorinated biphenyl 

ROE return on equity 

RTO Regional Transmission Organization 

Russell Station A coal-fired electric generation 
facility in Greece, New York 

SAR stock appreciation right 

SEC United States Securities and Exchange 
Commission 

Statement 109 Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting for 
Income Taxes 

Statement 157 Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 157. Fair Value 
Measurements 

Statement 159 Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 159. The Fair Value 
Option for Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities, Including an amendment of FASB 
Statement No. I I 5  

MPUC Maine Public Utilities Commission 

Forw8d-looklng Statements 

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a safe harbor for forward-looking statements in 
certain circumstances. This Form 10-Q contains certain forward-looking statements that are based upon 
management's current expectations and information that is currently available. Whenever used in this report, the 
words "estimate," "expect," "believe," "anticipate," or similar expressions are intended to identify such forward- 
looking statements. 

In addition to the assumptions and other factors referred to specifically in connectlon with such statements, 
factors that involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those 
contemplated in any forward-looking statements are discussed in our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2006, ltem 1A - Risk Factors and ltem 7 - MD&A - Market Risk, and also include, among others: 

the deregulation and continued regulatory unbundling of a formerly vertically-integrated utility industry, 
our ability to compete in the rapidly changing and competitive electric andlor natural gas utility markets, 
regulatory uncertainty and volatile energy supply prices. 
implementation of NYSEG's electric rate order issued by the NYPSC that has been in effect since January 
1,2007, 
implementation of the Energy Pollcy Act of 2005, 
increased state and FERC regulation of, among other things, intercompany cost allocations, 



the operation of the NYlSO and retroactive NYlSO billing adjustments, 
the operation of ISO-NE as an RTO and CMP's continued participation in ISO-NE, 

a our continued ability to recover NUG and other costs, 
changes in fuel supply or cost and the success of strategies to satisfy power requirements, 
our ability to expand our products and services including our energy infrastructure in the Northeast, 
the effect of commodity costs on customer usage and uncollectible expense. 
our ability to maintain enterprise-wide integration synergies, 
market risk from changes in value of financial or commodity instruments, derivative or nonderivative, 

C caused by fluctuations in interest rates or commodity prices, 
the ability of third parties to continue to supply electricity and natural gas, 
our ability to obtain adequate and timely rate relief andlor the extension of current rate plans, 
the possible discontinuation or further modification of fixed-price supply programs in New York, 
nuclear decommissioning or environmental incidents, 

n legal or administrative proceedings, 
changes in the cost or availability of capital, . economic growth or contraction in the areas in which we do business, 
extreme weather-related events such as floods, hurricanes, ice stonns or snow storms, 
weather variations affecting customer energy usage, 
authoritative accounting guidance, 

C 
acts of terrorism, 
the effect of volatility in the equity and fixed income markets on the cost of pension and other 
postretirement benefits, 
the inability of our internal control framework to provide absolute assurance that all incidents of fraud or 
error will be detected and prevented, and 

n other considerations that may be disclosed from time to time in our publicly disseminated documents 
and filings. 

We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new 
information, future events or otherwise. 

c PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

ml. Financial Statements 

Energy East Corporation - Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income - (Unaudited) - 
Three months ended March 31, 2007 2006 
(Thousands. except per sham amount.) 

a 

Electricity purchased and fuel used in generation 

Other 88. 59 
* 

n 



- 

- 

 he notes on pages 23 through 29 are an integral pan of our condensed consolidated firrarlual siarrments. 

Energy East Corporation 
- 

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets -(Unaudited) 
March 31. Dec. 31. 

2007. 2006. 
(Thousands) 

. 

- 

n ~ f ~ r r ~ d  lncome taxes 42.875 93.187 

Utility Plant, at Original Cost 

Regulatory and Other Assets 

Nuclear olant obli i9 

- 

Environmental remedlatlon costs 
II 

144,155 128,925 



76 555 79 241 

1 

1,526,048 
ii 

1,526 048 
C 

Total Assets 
a 

$11,655,300 $11,562,401 
The notes on pages 23 through 29 are an integral part of our condensed consolidated financial statements. 

- 
her asset! 

Energy East Corporation 
L. Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets - (Unaudited) 

March 31, Dec. 31, 
2007 2006 

Current Liabilities 
A 

- 
Notes payable 

ncome ta) - Interest accrued 59,257 57,243 

n 

Customer refunds 130 70,770 

a Reoulatow l~ab~l~ties ~ ~- -~ ~~- , -~ ~ 

Pension benefits 123,520 127,330 
a 

Total rec 3 
II 
lulatory lit 

nefits 



Long-term debt 3.726,162 3,726.709 

1 1 
~ n d  Conti - Commitments a ngencies 

II 
24,592 - 

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $11,655,300 $11,562,401 
The notes on pages 23 through 29 are an Integral part of our condensed consolldated finanual statements 

Energy East Corporation 
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - (Unaudited) 

Three months ended March 31, 2007 2006 

Depreciation and amortization 

Pension income 

Accou nts receiv able and I - unbilled revenues. r 

Prepayments and other current assets 45,271 5,730 

Customer refunc 

Other assets 

Other orooertv sold 

Issuance of common stock 

Long-term note issuances 40.000 

8 of 37 



Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period $233,717 $178,989 
The noles on pages 23 through 29 are an integral part of our condensed wnsolidated financial statements. 

- 
f applying 
- 
the provi 

Energy East Corporation 
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings -(Unaudited) 

Three months ended March 31, 2007 2006 
(Thowands) 

1.427.821 ., , - - .  

Balance, End of Period pi,e/z,avti $1,385,147 
The mes on pages 23 through 29 are an integral part of our wndensed wnsolidated financial statements. 

Energy East Corporation 
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income - (Unaudited) 

Three months ended March 31, 2007 2008 
(Thousands) 

Other com~rehensive income, net of tax 

Amortization of oension costs for nonoualified olans . . . . . . . . . - -. . . . . r -  ~ ~ 

net of income tax (expense) of $(138j for 200j  209 

Reclassification adjustment for derivative losses included in 
net income, net of income tax (benefit) of $(25,930) for 
2007 and $(20.416) for 2006 39,098 30,897 

Total other comprehensive income (loss) 26,l (89,557) 

The notes an pages 23 through 29 are an Integral part of our condensed consolidated financial statements. 

Item 2. Manaaement's Discussion and Analvsls of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations 

Energy East Corporation 



Overview 

Energy East's primary operations, our electric and natural gas utility operations, are subject to 
rate regulation established predominately by state utility commissions. The approved 
regulatory treatment on various matters significantly affects our financial position, results of 
operations and cash flows. We have long-term rate plans for NYSEG's natural gas segment, 
RG&E, CMP and Berkshire Gas that currently allow for recovery of certain costs, including 
stranded costs, and provide stable rates for customers and revenue predictability. Where long- 
term rate plans are not in effect, we monitor the adequacy of rate levels and file for new rates 
when necessary. NYSEG's five-year electric rate plan expired December 31,2006, and new 
rates went into effect on January 1,2007. SCG received approval for new rates that became 
effective January 1,2006, and CNG recently received approval for new rates that became 
effective April 1, 2007. 

Continuing uncertainty in the evolution of the utility industry, particularly the electric u t i l i  
industry, has resulted in several federal and state regulatory proceedings that could 
significantly affect our operations and the rates that our customers pay for energy. Those 
proceedings, which are discussed below, could affect the nature of the electric and natural gas 
utility industries in New York and New England. 

We expect to make significant capital investments to enhance the safety and reliability of our 
distribution systems and to meet the growing energy needs of our customers in an 
environmentally friendly manner. Capital spending is expected to exceed $3 billion through 
2011, including $496 million in 2007. Major spending programs include the installation of 
advanced metering infrastructure (AMI) in New York and Maine requiring an investment of 
approximately $500 million; $500 million of transmission investments, predominantly in Maine; 
a high efficiency transformer replacement program; and a "green" fleet initiative. The majority 
of our planned transmission investments will be pursuant to a regional reliability planning 
process and should qualify for the FERC's transmission investment ROE incentive adders for 
New England transmission owners. We have also proposed to the NYlSO that Russell Station 
be repowered, using either clean coal technology or natural gas, to meet projected load 
requirements in the Rochester, New York area. The cost would be approximately $500 million. 
We estimate that over one-half of our capital spending program will be funded with internally 
generated funds and the remainder through the issuance of a combination of debt and equity 
securities. 

This MD&A for the quarter ended March 31, 2007, should be read in conjunction with our 
MD&A, financial statements and notes contained in our report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2006. Due to the seasonal nature of our operations, financial results for 
interim periods are not necessarily indicative of trends for a 12-month period. 

Manaaement's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations 

Energy East Corporation 

Strategy 



We have maintained a consistent energy delivery and services strategy over the past several 
years, focusing on the safe, secure and reliable transmission and distribution of electricity and 
natural gas. Our operating companies have become increasingly efficient throuah realization of 

C 
merger-enabled synergies. our  current strategic focus is on addressing many c? the precepts 
of the Energy Policy Act of 2005 including: (1) investing in transmission to increase reliability, 
meet new load growth and connect new, renewable generation to the grid; (2) investing in AM1 
to promote customer conservation and peak load management; (3) investing in our distribution 
infrastructure to make it more efficient by reducing losses; and (4) investing in new regulated 

* generation that is environmentally friendly and, where possible, sustainable. 

Our individual company rate plans are a critical component of our success. While specific 
provisions may vary among our public utility subsidiaries, our overall strategy includes creating 
stable rate environments that allow our subsidiaries to earn a fair return while minimizing price 

n increases and sharing achieved savings with customers. 

Electric Delivery Business Developments 

Our electric delivery business consists primarily of our regulated electricity transmission, 
n distribution and generation operations in upstate New York and Maine. 

NYSEG's SUDDIV Service Filing: On April 5,2007, NYSEG submitted to the NYPSC its 
proposal for revisions to its supply service. Details of the proposal include: 

n 
Simplified Supply Program 

NYSEG will offer customers a single fixed price supply service. 
Residential and small commercial customers who do not choose an ESCO will receive 
fixed price supply service from NYSEG. The rate would be fixed throughout the year. 
Large commercial and industrial customers who do not choose an ESCO will receive 

a supply service from NYSEG pursuant to NYSEG's current hourly pricing tariff. 
The fixed price will be reset each calendar year. 
The supply component of the fixed price will be based on recent, competitive wholesale 
solicitations and a market price index. - Preservation and Enhancement of Customer Choice 

NYSEG will eliminate the enrollment period in which customers choose between utility 
and ESCO suppliers. 
Customers may switch from NYSEG service to an ESCO or back at any time without 

L. 
penalty. NYSEG will assume all switching risk. 
All customers in a service classification will be charged the same fixed nonbypassable 
wires charge (NBC), thereby making it easier for customers to compare NYSEG's supply 
rate to ESCO offers. The NBC would be fixed and trued-up annually for all customers. 
The NBC would be reset each calendar year. 

Manaaement's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condmon an . . d Results of  
Operations - 



Energy East Corporation 

Customer Guarantee and Sharing 

NYSEG's customers will be guaranteed an aggregate $20 million (pretax) credit to the 
NBC, which would be retained by the customers even if NYSEG's pretax margin from 
offering fixed price supply service is below that level. 
Margins, if any, in excess of the $20 million (pretax) will be shared equally between 
customers and NYSEG. 
The customers' share will be reflected as a credit in the subsequent year's NBC. 

NYSEG is requesting NYPSC approval of its proposal by September 1,2007, in order to 
implement supply service by January 1, 2008. NYSEG cannot predict the outcome of this 
proceeding. 

NYPSC Proceeding on NYSEG's Accountinu for OPEB: In August 2006 the NYPSC issued its 
decision in the NYSEG electric rate case. Among other things, the NYPSC instructed the ALJ 
to open a separate proceeding regarding the NYPSC staffs position that NYSEG should have 
retained $57 million of interest in its OPEB reserve and used it to reduce rate base. A 
proceeding has been opened and hearings on the issues raised by the NYPSC staff are 
currently expected to be held in late 2007. NYPSC acceptance of its staffs position would 
result in NYSEG treating all or a portion of the $57 million as an addition to its internal OPEB 
reserve, with a corresponding charge to income. While NYSEG is vigorously opposing staff on 
these issues, contending that the NYPSC staff is engaged in retroactive ratemaking, it cannot 
predict how this matter will be resolved. 

Advanced Metering Infrastructure: In February 2007, in response to an August 2006 NYPSC 
order, NYSEG and RG&E filed a plan to install AM1 (smart meters) for all of their electric and 
natural gas customers. Smart meters would provide customers with detailed consumption 
data, enabling them to better control their energy usage. Smart meters would also eliminate 
the need for routine manual meter readings and estimated bills, improve the companies' 
response to service interruptions, improve the gas balancing and settlement process, reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions, and create opportunity for a wide range of timedifferentiated 
rates, load management, and load aggregation programs that are expected to reduce peak 
loads and thereby defer the need for additional electric generation sources. The plan calls for a 
total capital investment of approximately $370 million between 2007 and 2012. 

Threatened Litigation for Russell Station: In October 1999 RG&E received a letter from the 
New York State Attorney General's office alleging that RG&E may have constructed and 
operated major modifications to its Beebee and Russell generating stations without obtaining 
the required prevention of significant deterioration or new source review permits. The letter 
requested that RG&E provide the Attorney General's office with a large number of 
documents relating to this allegation. In January 2000 RG&E received a subpoena from the 
NYSDEC ordering production of similar documents. RG&E supplied documents and complied 
with the subpoena. 



Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations 

Energy East Corporation 

The NYSDEC sewed RG&E with a notice of violation in May 2000 alleging that between 1983 
and 1987 RG&E completed fwe projects at Russell Station and two projects at Beebee Station, 
which is currently shut down, without obtaining the appropriate permits. RG&E believes it has 
complied with the applicable rules and there is no basis for the Attorney General's and the 
NYSDEC's allegations. Beginning in July 2000 the NYSDEC, the Attorney General and RG&E 
had a number of discussions with respect to the resolution of the notice of violation. In October 
2006 the Attorney General's ofice and the NYSDEC notified RG&E of their intention to file a 
complaint in federal court for violations involving Russell Station unless a settlement can 
be reached. 

If the Attorney General and the NYSDEC were to commence a Clean Air Act lawsuit against 
RG&E, they would need to demonstrate that, among other things, the challenged modifications 
to Russell Station caused an "increase" in emissions from the station. The issue of what 
constitutes the appropriate test for an emissions increase was before the United States 
Supreme Court in Environmental Defense v. Duke Energy Corporation, Docket No. 05-848. In 
April 2007 the US Supreme Court ruled that the lower courts, in an attempt to reconcile 
perceived inconsistencies in the EPA's regulation of stationary sources of air pollution, 
impermissibly invalidated certain of those regulations. The court did not reach a decision 
concerning whether Duke had in fact violated those regulations. The case was remanded so 
that that issue, as well as other defenses asserted by Duke, can be adjudicated. The effect of 
this decision on discussions between RG&E, the Attorney General and NYSDEC is unknown. 
RG&E, the NYSDEC and the Attorney General continue to discuss this matter and no suit has 
been filed to date. RG&E is not able to predict the outcome of this matter. 

CMP Alternative Rate Plan: CMP submitted to the MPUC its annual price change filing 
pursuant to the terms of its current ARP 2000 on March 15, 2007. In its filing and subsequent 
update on April 11, 2007, CMP proposes a distribution rate increase of 2.1% comprised, in 
part, of the basic price change of inflation minus a productivity offset, the elimination of prior 
year one-time adjustments, and recovery for additional electric lifeline program costs. Once 
approved by the MPUC, revised rates will become effective July I, 2007. ARP 2000 expires 
December 31,2007. 

On May 1, 2007, CMP submitted a filing to the MPUC proposing a new alternative rate plan for 
a seven-year term beginning January I, 2008 (ARP 2008). CMP's proposal retains the basic 
structure of ARP 2000, including annual price changes based on a specified inflation index 
less a predetermined productivity offset, service quality indicators and associated penalties for 
failure to achieve the indicator performance targets, and explicit provisions for the recovery of 
certain exogenous or mandated costs. The filing proposes to maintain the existing rates at the 
termination of ARP 2000 as the initial rates for ARP 2008. The first price change under the 
new rate plan would occur on July 1, 2008. The proposal includes fixed productivity offset 
values of 0.25% for the initial two years of the rate plan and 0.50% for the remaining five years. 
It utilizes reserve accounting mechanisms to address recovery of costs associated with major 
storm restoration and environmental clean-up costs for manufactured gas sites and PCB- - 
contaminated facilities. CMP's ARP 2008 proposal also incorporates incremental investment . . 

and operating expenses for new initiatives including: (1) an AMI project to deploy advanced 
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meters and communications to all of CMP's customers; (2) proposed enhancements in 
vegetation management, inspection practices and distribution lietterment projects designed to 
im~rove distribution reliabilitv: and (3) accelerated de~lovment of more efficient distribution . . 
transformers. CMP cannot predict the outcome of these proceedings. 

Manaaement's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of 
merations 

Energy East Corporation 

Natural Gas Delivery Business Developments 

Our natural gas delivery business consists of our regulated natural gas transportation, storage 
and distribution operations in New York, Connecticut, Massachusetts and Maine. 

Natuml Gas S u ~ ~ l v  Agreements: Our natural gas companies - NYSEG, RG&E, SCG, CNG, 
Berkshire Gas and MNG - each had a three-year strategic alliance with BP Energy Company 
that ended on March 31,2007. NYSEG, RG&E, SCG, CNG and Berkshire Gas - have each 
entered into a new three-year strategic alliance with Coral Energy Resources, beginning on 
April I ,  2007, that optimizes transportation and storage services. 

CNG Reuulatow Proceeding: In September 2006 CNG submitted a general rate filing, 
requesting a net rate increase of $28.2 million, or 7.9%, in base delivery revenues effective 
April I, 2007, based on an 11.0% ROE. The requested increase includes $6.7 million for 
increased bad debt expense, including a hardship program, $5.6 million for sharing of 
achieved management efficiencies and $4.3 million to offset lower normalized customer usage. 

In December 2006 CNG and The Office of Consumer Counsel in the State of Connecticut 
filed with the DPUC a proposed settlement agreement. On March 14,2007, the DPUC 
approved the settlement with minor modifications. The approval included a rate increase of 
$14.4 million, based on an allowed ROE of 10.1% and a non-firm margin of $12.6 million. The 
agreement allows CNG to proceed with its proposed automated meter reading project and 
defer the net costs until its next rate case. CNG also agreed to freeze its base distribution rates 
for 24 months. The new rates became effective April 1, 2007. 

Advanced Meterina Infrastructure: See Electric Delivery Business Developments. 

New Accounting Standards 

The FASB issued Statement 157 in September 2006 and Statement 159 in February 2007. 
The FASB cleared DIG Issue G26 in December 2006 and it was posted to the FASB website in 
January 2007. See Item 1, Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements for explanations 
about these new accounting standards. 

(a) Liquidity and Capital Resources 

O~eratino Activities: Significant operating activities that affected cash flows during the three 
months ended March 31, 2007, included the following: 

. A decrease in accounts payable that reduced cash $45 million, primarily due to payments 



for natural gas and electricity purchases, 
An increase in receivables that reduced cash $1 13 million, . A $77 million refund credited to customer account pursuant to NYSEG's 2006 electric 
rate proceeding, 
A reduction in fuel inventories that increased cash $184 million, and 
Payments of refunds by RG&E of $10 million, which represented the last scheduled 
refund pursuant to its 2004 electric rate agreement. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations 

Energy East Corporation 

Investing Activities: Utility capital spending for the three months ended March 31, 2007, was 
$78 million. Utility capital spending is projected to be $496 million in 2007, the majority of 
which is expected to be paid for with internally generated funds. Capital spending will be 
primarily for the extension of energy delivery service, necessary improvements to existing 
facilities, compliance with environmental requirements and governmental mandates, and the - 
RGBE transmission project. 

Current investments available for sale, which consist of auction rate securities, increased 
$166 million during the quarter as a result of funds available from our March 2007 issuance of 
common stock. 

Financing Activities: The financing activities discussed below include those activities necessary 
for the company and its principal subsidiaries to maintain adequate liquidity and credit quality 
and ensure access to capital markets. 

On March 27, 2007, we sold nine million shares of common stock at $24.25 per share. As 
provided for in an underwriting agreement, we sold an additional one million shares of common 
stock at $24.25 per share on April 2,2007, pursuant to an over-allotment provision. After 
deducting underwriting fees and other costs, the aggregate net proceeds were $235 million. 
The proceeds will be used to fund the repurchase of debt and for general corporate purposes, 
including our construction program. The sale increased our common equity ratio to 44%. 

During the first quarter of 2007 we issued 196,133 shares of our common stock at an average 
price of $25.23 through our Investor Services Program. 

We repurchased 350,000 shares of our common stock in January 2007, primarily for grants of 
restricted stock. We awarded 296,145 shares of our common stock, issued out of treasury 
stock, to certain employees through our Restricted Stock Plan, at a grant date fair value of 
$24.76 per share of common stock. 

(b) Results of Operations 

Earnings per Share 



Average Common Shares Outstanding, diluted 148,406147 ,679 

Earnings per basic share for the first quarter 2007 were $0.90 compared to $0.91 per share 
earned in the first quarter 2006. 

Manaqement's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Oeerations 

Energy East Corporation 

While earnings were relatively consistent on a year-over-year basis, several key factors 
affected results: 

Favorable year-over-year weather drove increased retail sales in both the electricity and 
gas delivery businesses. Heating degree days during the first quarter of 2007 were near 
normal levels but were approximately 13% higher than the first quarter of 2006, which 
experienced a relatively mild winter. Weather helped drive a 3% increase in retail electric 
sales and a 10% increase in retail gas sales. This resulted in $0.04 per share benefit 
from electric margins and an additional $0.05 per share in natural gas margins. 

w Absent sales increases, electric margins reduced earnings per share $0.15 for the 
quarter due largely to the August 2006 NYSEG rate order. 
Interest costs declined by $0.04 per share on a year-over-year basis driven by lower 
carrying costs on regulatory liabilities and savings from debt refinancings completed in 
2006. 

w Year-over-year operation & maintenance expenses were down $0.01 per share. This 
was driven by lower storm costs which were partially offset by small increases in other 
O&M items. 

Energy Deliveries 

Energy deliveries and electricity commodity sales for the first quarter of 2007 compared to the 
same period in 2006 are shown below. 

Electricity Deliveries (MWh) Natural Gas Deliveries (Dth) 
Three months ended March 31, 2007 2006 Change 2007 2006 Change 
(Thousands) 

Commercial 2.461 2.239 10% 12.416 11.13 



Total Deliveries 10,016 10,355 (3%) 83,871 75,633 11% 

I 
(') Included in total deliveries 

Several factors influenced the volume of energy deliveries, with the primary factor being 
weather. Temperatures in the first quarter of 2007 were significantly colder than in 2006. The 
effects of warmer or colder winter weather are especially significant to the demand for natural 
gas. We estimate that for the first quarter of 2007, approximately one-third of the 3% increase 
in retail electricity deliveries and one-half of the 10% increase in retail natural gas deliveries 
was the result of colder winter weather. Comparative weather data is shown in the following 
table. 

Ma a em t's Dis ssi al sults of 
Operations 

Energy East Corporation 

Weather Conditions 

Three months ended March 31, 2007 2006 N01m8l 

Heating degree days 3,347 2.989 3,411 

(Warmer) than normal (2%) 

New England 

Colder than ~ r i o r  vear 13% 

While significantly colder than last year, weather for the first quarter of 2007, on a heating 
degree day basis, approximated normal weather. 

Operating Results for the Electric Delivery Business 

Three months ended March 31, 2007 2006 
(Thouunda) 

Operating Expenses 



Operating Income $131,184 $152.951 

O ~ e r a t i n ~  Revenues: The $19 million decrease in operating revenues for the first quarter of 
2007 was primarily the result of: 

A decrease of $23 million resulting from higher accruals for earnings sharing, which is 
included in other revenues. $14 million of this decrease related to adiustments recorded 
in 2006 resulting from the finalization of NYSEG's and RG&E's annual compliance filings. 
A decrease of $10 million resulting from NYSEG's delivery rate decrease pursuant to the 
order in its 2006 rate proceeding, 
A decrease of $26 million in wholesale revenues, reflecting a 23% decline in wholesale 
volume, 
A decrease of $36 million resulting from lower accruals for the NBC, which will be passed 
on to customers through lower transition charges, and 
A decrease of $8 million resulting from a 4% decline in electricity sales under supply 
sewice programs in New York. 

Manaaement's Discussion and Analvsis of  Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations 

Energy East Corporation 

Those decreases were partially offset by: 

An increase of $64 million in average delivery prices, primarily resulting from higher 
transition charges. Transition charges allow the companies to recover actual generation 
and purchased power costs and have no net effect on earnings. The increase in 
transition charges was partially offset by the NBC accrual discussed above. 
An increase of $9 million resulting from increased prices for electricity sales under supply 
service programs in New York, and 
An increase of $1 1 million resulting from a 3% increase in retail deliveries. Approximately 
one-third of the increase was due to colder temperatures in 2007. 

O ~ e r a t i n ~  Ex~enses: The $3 million increase in operating expenses for the first quarter of 
2007 was primarily the result of: 

An increase of $8 million for higher purchased power costs. 

That increase was partially offset by: 

A decrease of $3 million in operating and maintenance expenses attributable largely to 
storm-related costs. 

Operating Results for the Natural Gas Delivery Business 

Three months ended March 31, 2007 2006 
IThousands) 



Retail 

Other 

Other operating and maintenance expenses 55,876 56,127 

Other taxes 35.487 32.722 - . . . - . . -. . . . --. - - , ~ - -  

Operating Income $145,418 $136,938 

O~eratina Revenues: The $40 million increase in operating revenues for the first quarter of 
2007 was primarily the result of: 

An increase of $89 million resulting from a 10% increase in retail deliveries. 
Approximately one-half of the increase was due to colder temperatures in 2007 

Those increases were partially offset by: 

A decrease of $44 million resulting from lower market prices for natural gas that were 
passed on to customers, and 
A decrease of $6 million resulting from lower weather normalization accruals. 

Manaaement's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations 

Energy East Corporation 

Operating Expenses: The $32 million increase in operating expenses for the first quarter of 
2007 was primarily the result of: 

An increase of $66 million in natural gas purchases due to increased delivery volumes, 
and 
An increase of $3 million in gross receipts taxes resulting from higher revenues. 

Those increases were partially offset by: 

A decrease of $37 million in natural gas purchases resulting from lower market prices. 

Operating Results for the Energy Marketing Business 

The primary business included in our Other segment is our energy marketing business 
comprised of Energetix, Inc. and NYSEG Solutions. Inc., which market electricity and natural 
gas to customers throughout the state of New York. They currently have 162,000 electricity 
customers and 52,000 natural gas customers in the service territories of RG&E, NYSEG and 



several other New York state utilities. 

Three months ended March 31, 2007 2006 
(Thousands) 

Operat~ng Income $3,363 $5,426 

Operatina Revenues: The $3 million decrease in operating revenues for the first quarter of 
2007 was primarily the result of: 

A decrease of $12 million due to lower electricity sales due to the loss of some large 
customers to other suppliers, and 
A decrease of $10 million due to lower natural gas prices. 

Those decreases were partially offset by: 

An increase of $13 million due to higher electricity prices, and 
An increase of $6 million due to higher natural gas volumes. 

O~eratina Expenses: The $1 million decrease in operating expense for the first quarter of 2007 
was primarily the result of: 

A decrease of $1 1 million in purchased electricity due to lower sales volume, and 
A decrease of $6 million in purchased natural gas due to lower market prices. 

Those decreases were partially offset by: 

An increase of $1 I million in purchased electricity due to higher prices, and 
An increase of $5 million in natural gas purchases due to higher sales. 

Item 1. Financial Statements 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 
Condensed Balance Sheets - (Unaudited) 

March 31, Dec. 31, 
2007 2006 

IThomands) 



Current Assets 

248,724 213,142 

verage cc - 
Electric 

61 
P 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Construction work in progre 88,: 80,291 

114 953 123 720 

Other 
- 

16 994 15 782 

The m . 5  on pages 23 through 29 are an integral pad of the condensed financial statements. 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 
Condensed Balance Sheets - (Unaudited) 

March 31, Dec. 31, 
2007 2006 

and accru - (Thotmanda) 

Current Liabilities 

Taxes accrued 19,239 12,711 



Pension benefit 

Total reaulatorv I 

Other postretirement benr - 
n costs Environmental remediatiol 

Total other liabilit 

Long-term debt 

Commitments and Contin 

Retained earning 

13 (1 17,238) 

Total Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity 
I 

$2,418,116 $2,480,390 
The on pages 23 through 29 are an integral part of the condensed financial statements. 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 
Condensed Statements of Income - (Unaudited) 

Three months ended March 31, 2007 2006 
(Thousands) 

35 
1111 
uel used il 

1111 
n generati 

111 
ion - 



Income Taxes 20,889 23,482 

D The no_tee: on pages 23 through 29 are an integral part of the condensed financial statements. 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows - (Unaudited) 

Three months ended March 31, 2007 2006 
(Thousands) 

Depreciation and amortization 34,334 33.952 
1, 

other cur 

Penslon income 

(35,582) (1 8,435) 

m 

Customer refund (10,056) (1 3.998) 

n Other assets 5.9 6.688 

-- 

Ut~l~ty plant additions (30,884) (13,508) 
Em 

Purchases of current investments available for (20.21 !5) 

Notes payable three months or less, net (14,890) 
a 

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (39,890 

The notes on pages 23 through 29 are an integral pan of the conaensed Rnanclal statements 
1 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 

* 



Condensed Statements of Retained Earnings - (Unaudited) 
Three months ended March 31, 2007 2006 
(Thousands) 

The notes on pages 23 through 29 are an lntegral part of the condensed financial statements 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 
Condensed Statements of Comprehensive Income - (Unaudited) 

Three months ended March 31, 2007 2006 
(Thousands) 

Other ~0m~rehenSive income, net of tax 

Unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives qualif,,, ,, 
hedoes. net of income tax (expense) benefit of $(4.831) 

Net unrealized oains on derivatives aualified as hedoes 

-- 

comprehe%ve Income $38,383 $42.111 
The nofe_s on pages 23 through 29 are an Integral part of the condensed flnanuat statements. 

Item 2. Management's Narrative Analvsis of Results of O~erations 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 

RG&E meets the conditions set forth in General Instruction H(l)(a) and (b) of Form 10-Q for a 
reduced disclosure format and is therefore presenting a management's narrative analysis of 
the results of operations as specified in General lnstruction H(2)(a) of Form 10-Q. 

Earnings 

RG&E's net income for the first quarter of 2007 decreased $5 million compared to the first 
quarter of 2006 primarily as a result of $3 million in increased operating and maintenance 
expenses, including $2 million for increased reserves for uncollectibles; $1 million due to lower 
margins on electric deliveries; and $1 million for higher gross receipts taxes. 

Operating Results for the Electric Delivery Business 



Three months ended March 31, 2007 2006 
(Thousands) 

Other operating and maintenance expenses 43,352 37.785 

Other taxes 12,174 10,596 

Oneratino Income $38.545 $481 17 

O~emtina Revenues: Operating revenues increased $8 million for the first quarter of 2007 as a 
result of: 

An increase of $7 million resulting from a 10% increase in wholesale delivery volumes, 
and 
An increase of $61 million resulting primarily from higher transition charges. Transition 
charges allow RG&E to recover actual generation and purchased power costs and have 
no net effect on earnings. The increase in transition charges was partially offset by the 
NBC accrual discussed below. 

Those increases were partially offset by: 

A decrease of $9 million due to lower market prices for electricity sales, under commodity 
options where RG&E provides supply, . A decrease of $39 million for lower NBC accruals, which will be passed on to customers 
through lower transition charges, . A decrease of $2 million for lower sales under RG&E's commodity programs, and 
A decrease of $9 million resulting from higher earnings sharing accruals. In 2006 
earnings sharing was reduced by $9 million because of an adjustment to the actual 2005 
amount, pursuant to RG&E's annual compliance filing. 

Management's Narrative Analvsis of  Results of Operations 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 

O~eratinu Ex~enses: The $18 million increase in operating expenses for the first quarter of 
2007 was the result of: 

An increase of $1 1 million for purchased power costs, and 
An increase of $6 million in operating and maintenance costs. 

Operating Results for the Natural Gas Delivery Business 
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Three months ended March 31, 2007 2006 
(Thousands) 

Retail $189 347 $167 991 

Deprectat~on and arnortlzation 4,773 4,583 

1111 

O~eratina Revenues: The $23 million increase in operating revenues for the first quarter of 
2007 was primarily the result of: 

. A increase of $21 million due to higher delivery volumes, and . An increase of $2 million in other revenue. 

O~eratina Expenses: The $21 million increase in operating expenses for the first quarter of 
2007 was primarily due to higher natural gas purchases to meet increased delivery volumes. 

New Accounting Standards 

The FASB issued Statement 157 in September 2006 and Statement 159 in February 2007. 
See ltem 1, Note 7 to RG&E's financial statements for explanations about these new 
accounting standards. 

ltem I. Financial Statements 

Notes to Condensed Financial Statements 
for 

Energy East Corporation 
and 

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation 

Notes to Condensed Financial Statements of Registrants: 

Reqistrant A~~ l i cab le  Notes 
Energy East 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10 
RG&E 1,2,4,6,7,8,9,10 

Note 1. Unaudited Condensed Financial Statements 

In the opinion of each registrant's management, the accompanying unaudited condensed 
financial statements reflect all adjustments necessary for a fair statement of the interim 



periods presented. All such adjustments are of a normal, recurring nature. The yearend 
condensed balance sheet data was derived from audited financial statements, but does not 

rn include all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Energy East's financial statements consolidate its majority-owned subsidiaries after eliminating 
all intercompany transactions. 

n The accompanying unaudited financial statements for each registrant should be read in 
conjunction with the financial statements and notes contained in the report on Form 10-K filed 
by each registrant for the fiscal year ended December 31.2006. Due to the seasonal nature of 
the registrants' operations, financial results for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of 
trends for a 12-month period. 

I 

Reclassifications: Certain amounts have been reclassified in the companies' unaudited 
financial statements to conform to the 2007 presentation. Effective January I, 2007, the 
companies recognized book overdrafts where no credit was required to be extended by a bank 
as an operating activity rather than as a financing activity. As a result, Energy East's net cash 
provided by operating activities and net cash used in financing activities decreased $7.2 million 
for the three months ended March 31, 2006. RG&E's net cash provided by operating activities 
and net cash used in financing activities decreased $1.7 million for the same period. 

Note 2. Other (Income) and Other Deductions 

L 
Three months ended March 31, 2007 2008 
(Thourwndw) 

- 
Miscellaneous 

. 

Allowance for funas used during construct~on - 
Total othe 

Total other deductions $294 $182 

c Note 3. Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share 

We determine basic EPS by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of shares of 
common stock outstanding during the period. The weighted-average common shares 
outstanding for diluted EPS include the incremental effect of restricted stock and stock options - 



issued and exclude stock options issued in tandem with SARs. Historically, we have issued 
stock options in tandem with SARs and substantially all stock option plan participants have 
exercised the SARs instead of the stock options. The numerator we use in calculating both 
basic and diluted EPS for each period is our reported net income. 

The reconciliation of basic and dilutiie average common shares for each period follows: 

Three months ended March 31, 2007 2006 
(Thousands) 

Options iss,ea w ~ t h  SARs 

We exclude from the determination of EPS options that have an exercise price that is greater 
than the average market price of the common shares during the period. Shares excluded from 
the EPS calculation for the three months ended March 31 were: 2.1 million in 2007 and 
1.5 million in 2006. 

Note 4. lncome Taxes 

Our effective tax rate was 38.4% for the quarter ended March 31,2007. lncome taxes were 
$3.2 million less than they would have been at the statutory rate of 39.9%, primarily due to the 
flow-through effects of removal costs and the permanent difference related to the subsidy 
available under the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003. 
The effective tax rate was 39.9% for the quarter ended March 31, 2006, and was essentially 
the same as the statutory rate. 

RG&E's effective tax rate was 37.0% for the quarter ended March 31,2007, and 36.8% for the 
quarter ended March 31,2006. lncome taxes were less than they would have been at the 
statutory rate of 39.9%, $1.6 million less for 2007 and $1.9 million less for 2006, primarily due 
to the flow-through effects of removal costs and the allowance for funds used during 
construction. 

FIN 48: In July 2006 the FASB released FIN 48, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty 
in income taxes recognized in financial statements in accordance with Statement 109 by 
~rescribina a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement 
;ecognition and measurement of a tax position taken or to be taken in a tax return. The 
evaluation of a tax position is a two-step process. The first step is for an entity to determine if it 
is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination. The second step 
involves measuring the amount of tax benefit to be recognized in the financial statements 
based on the largest amount of benefit that meets the prescribed recognition threshold. The 
difference between the amounts based on that position and the position taken in a tax return is 
generally recorded as a liability. 

FIN 48 also provides guidance for the representation of reserves in the balance sheet and the 
proper measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities using the FIN 48 standard. That 
guidance requires classifying as current reserves that are expected to be addressed in the 
next 12-month period. It also requires that the tax basis of assets and liabilities reflect the 



presumed FIN 48 outcome vs. the actual filing position in determining the proper level of 
accumulated deferred income taxes in accordance with Statement 109. 

m 
We adopted FIN 48 effective January I, 2007. The total amount of gross unrecognized tax 
benefits at the date of adoption was $26.6 million. This amount includes income taxes of 
$21.2 million, interest of $5.2 million and a penalty of $0.2 million. Including interest and 
penalty, $14 million of the gross unrecognized tax benefits would affect the effective tax rate, if 
recognized. There was no material change to those amounts during the quarter ended 

a March 31, 2007. The adoption did not have a material effect on our results of operation, 
financial position or cash flows. Upon our adoption of FIN 48, the cumulative effect was an 
increase to retained earnings of $1.3 million. In addition, we reclassified $2.3 million of 
accumulated deferred income tax liabilities. 

r We have been audited through 2000 for New York State income taxes, through 2001 for 
federal income taxes and through 2002 for Maine income taxes. The statute of limitations in 
Connecticut has expired for all years through 2002. Our New York State returns for 2001 
through 2004, federal returns for 2002 through 2005 and Maine returns for 2003 and 2004 are 
currently under review. We anticipate that the reviews will be completed within the next 12 
months. Approximately $13.8 million of the gross income tax reserves relate to the years 
currently under audit, with the majority relating to combined state reporting issues. We cannot 
estimate the ultimate outcome of the reviews. 

.L 
RG&E adopted FIN 48 effective January I, 2007. The total amount of gross unrecognized tax 
benefds at the date of adoption was $3.6 million. This amount includes income taxes of 
$3.1 million and interest of $0.5 million. Including interest and penalty, $0.3 million of the gross 
unrecognized tax benefit would affect the effective tax rate, if recognized. There was no 
material change to those amounts during the quarter ended March 31.2007. RG&E's adoption 
did not have a material effect on its results of operation, financial position or cash flows. Upon 

' RG&E's adoption of FIN 48, there was no cumulative effect on retained earnings. However, 
RG&E reclassified $2.3 million of accumulated deferred income tax liabilities. 

RG&E has been audited through 2000 for New York State income taxes and 2001 for federal 
income taxes. RG&E's New York State returns for 2000 through 2004 and federal returns for 
2002 through 2005 are currently under review. RG&E anticipates that the reviews will be 
completed within the next 12 months. Approximately $1.7 million of the gross income tax 
reserve relates to those years, with the majority relating to the application of transition rules 
applicable to utilities in New York State. RG&E cannot estimate the ultimate outcome of 
the reviews. 

n 

The company and RG&E continue to classify all interest and penalties related to uncertain tax 
positions as income tax expense. 

New York State Income Tax Legislation: On April 9,2007, New York State enacted its 2007 
L - 2008 budget, which included amendments to the state income tax. Those amendments 

include a reduction in the corporate net income tax rate to 7.1% from 7.5%, and the adoption 
of a single sales factor for apportioning taxable income to New York State. Both amendments 
are effective January 1, 2007. 



The company and RG&E are evaluating the effects of the amendments, but believe that the 
amendments will not have a material effect on their financial position, cash flows or results 
of operation. 

Note 5. Variable Interest Entities 

A variable interest entity is an entity that is not controllable through voting interests andlor in 
which the equity investor does not bear the residual economic risks and rewards. FIN 46(R) 
requires a business enterprise to consolidate a variable interest entity if the enterprise has a 
variable interest that will absorb a majority of the entity's expected losses. 

We have power purchase contracts with various NUGs. However, we were not involved in the 
formation of and do not have ownership interests in any NUGs. We have evaluated all of our 
power purchase contracts with NUGs with respect to FIN 46(R) and determined that most of 
the purchase contracts are not variable interests for one of the following reasons: the contract 
is based on a fixed price or a market price and there is no other involvement with the NUG, the 
contract is short-term in duration, the contract is for a minor portion of the NUG's capacity or 
the NUG is a governmental organization or an individual. We are not able to determine if we 
have variable interests with respect to power purchase contracts with six remaining NUGs 
because we are unable to obtain the information necessary to: (1) determine if any of those 
NUGs is a variable interest entity, (2) determine if an operating utility is a NUG's primary 
beneficiary or (3) perform the accounting required to consolidate any of those NUGs. We . . .  
routinely request necessary informationhm the six NUGs, and will-continue to do so, but no 
NUG has yet provided the requested information. We did not consolidate any NUGs as of 
March 31,2007, or December 31,2006. 

We continue to purchase electricity from the six NUGs at above-market prices. We are not 
exposed to any loss as a result of our involvement with the NUGs because we are allowed to 
recover through rates the cost of our purchases. Also, we are under no obligation to a NUG if it 
decides not to operate for any reason. The combined contractual capacity for the six NUGs is 
approximately 462 MWs. The combined purchases from the six NUGs totaled approximately 
$106 million for the three months ended March 31.2007, and $91 million for the three months 
ended March 31.2006. 

Note 6. Commitments and Contingencies 

NYISO Billing Adjusfment The NYISO frequently bills market participants on a retroactive 
basis when it determines that billing adjustments are necessary. Such retroactive billings can 
cover several months or years and cannot be reasonably estimated. NYSEG and RG&E 
record transmission or supply revenue or expense, as appropriate, when revised amounts are . .  . 

available. The two companies have developed an accrual process that incorporates available 
information about retroactive NYISO billing adiustments as provided to all market participants. 
However, on an ongoing basis, they cannot fully predict either the magnitude or the direction of 
any final billing adjustments. 

NYPSC Proceeding on NYSEG's Accounting for OPEB: In August 2006 the NYPSC issued 
its decision in the NYSEG electric rate case. Among other things, the NYPSC instructed the 
ALJ to open a separate proceeding regarding the NYPSC stars position that NYSEG should 



have retained $57 million of interest in its OPEB reserve and used it to reduce rate base. A 
proceeding has been opened and hearings on the issues raised by the NYPSC staff are 
currently expected to be held in late 2007. NYPSC acceptance of its staffs position would 
result in NYSEG treating all or a portion of the $57 million as an addition to its internal OPEB 
reserve, with a corresponding charge to income. While NYSEG is vigorously opposing staff on 
these issues, contending that the NYPSC staff is engaged in retroactive ratemaking, it cannot 
predict how this matter will be resolved. 

Note 7. New Accounting Standards 

Statement 157: In September 2006 the FASB issued Statement 157. Changes from current 
practice that will result from the application of Statement 157 relate to the definition of fair 
value, the methods used to measure fair value, and expanded disclosures about fair value 
measurements. FAS 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or 
~ermi t  fair value measurements in which the FASB ~reviously concluded that fair value is the 
relevant measurement attribute, but does not require any new fair value measurements. 
Statement 157 will be effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after 
November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years, with earlier application 
encouraged. The provisions are to be applied prospectively, with certain exceptions. A 
cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings is required for application to certain financial 
instruments. Energy East and RGBE plan to adopt Statement 157 effective January 1, 2008, 
and are currently assessing the effects Statement 157 would have on their results of operation, 
financial position and/or cash flows. 

Statement 159: In February 2007 the FASB issued Statement 159, which will allow an entity 
to measure eligible financial instruments and certain other items at fair value as of specified 
election dates on an instrument-by-instrument basis (the fair value option). The fair value 
option is irrevocable unless a new election date occurs. The fair value option will significantly 
expand an entity's ability to select the measurement attribute for certain key assets and 
liabilities, and allow it to mitigate potential mismatches that arise under the current mixed 
measurement attribute model. Statement 159 will be effective as of the beginning of an entity's 
first fiscal year that begins after November 15,2007, with early adoption permitted when 
specified conditions are met. Retrospective application to fiscal years preceding the effective 
date is not permitted unless the entity chooses early adoption. Application to eligible items 
existing at the effective date (or early adoption date) is permitted. Energy East and RGBE plan 
to adopt Statement 159 as of January I, 2008, and are currently assessing the effects 
Statement 159 would have on their results of operation, financial position and/or cash flows. 

DIG lssue 626: In December 2006 the FASB cleared DIG lssue G26, which provides 
guidance concerning a cash flow hedge of a variable-rate financial asset or liability for which 
the interest rate risk is not based solely on an index, such as an interest rate that is reset 
through an auction process. According to DIG lssue G26, an entity may designate the risk 
being hedged as the risk of overall changes in the hedged cash flows related to a variable-rate 
financial asset or liability. However, it may not designate the risk being hedged as the interest 
rate risk (the risk of changes in cash flows attributable to changes in the designated 
benchmark interest rate) unless the cash flows of the hedged transaction are explicitly based 
on that same benchmark interest rate. The implementation guidance of DIG lssue G26 is 
effective April 1, 2007. As a result of applying DIG lssue G26, we dedesignated the hedging 
relationships as of April I, 2007, for two of NYSEG's cash flow hedges. A $3.3 million pretax 
loss on those derivatives for the period prior to April 1,2007, will remain in accumulated other 



comprehensive income and be reclassified into earnings in the same periods that the hedged 
forecasted transactions affect earnings. RG&E's cash flow hedges were not affected by DIG 
Issue G26. 

Note 8. Accounts Receivable 

Energy East's accounts receivable includes unbilled revenues of $245 million at March 31, 
2007, and $221 million at December 31,2006, and are shown net of an allowance for doubtful 
accounts of $60 million at both March 31, 2007, and December 31, 2006. 

RG&E's accounts receivable include unbilled revenues of $55 million at March 31,2007, and 
$50 million at December 31,2006, and are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of 
$14 million at March 31, 2007, and $1 1 million at December 31,2006. 

Note 9. Retirement Benefits 

Energy East and RG&E have funded noncontributory defined benefit pension plans that cover 
substantially all of their employees. The plans provide defined benefits based on years of 
service and final average salary. Energy East and RG&E also have other postretirement health 
care benefit plans covering substantiany all of their employees. The health care plans are 
contributory with participants' contributions adjusted annually. 

Components o f  net periodic benefit (income) cost 

Pension Beneflts Postretirement 
Benefits 

Three months ended March 31, 2007 2006 2007 2006 
(Thousands) 

Service cost 153 $1 567 

Expected return on plan assets (58,234 

Recognized net loss 4.605 1 ,? 2.076 - 

Net periodic benefit (income) cost $44,449) $(3,514) $1,545 $1,602 

Note 10. Segment Information 

Our electric delivery segment consists of our regulated transmission, distribution and 



generation operations in New York and Maine, and our natural gas delivery segment consists 
of our regulated transportation, storage and distribution operations in New York, Connecticut, 
Maine and Massachusetts. We measure segment prof~ability based on net income. Other 
includes primarily our energy marketing companies, and interest income, intersegment 
eliminations and our other nonutility businesses. 

RG&E's electric delivery segment consists of its regulated transmission, distribution and 

C 
generation operations and its natural gas delivery segment consists of its regulated 
transportation, storage and distribution operations in New York. RG&E measures segment - 
profitability based onnet income. 

Selected information for Energy East's and RG&E's business segments includes: 

A Operatlng Revenues Net Income 
Three months ended March 31, 2007 2006 2007 2006 
(Thomands) 

Other 149,674 154,349 1,745 1,764 

Natural Gas Delivery 183,903 160,873 16,644 15,590 

ltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 
(See report on Form 10-K for Energy East for the fiscal year ended December 31,2006, ltem 
7A - Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.) 

NYSEG's and RG&E's exposure to fluctuations in the market price of electricity is limited to the 
load required to serve those customers who select the fixed rate option, which effectively 
combines delivery and supply service at a fixed price. NYSEG uses electricity contracts,both 

A physical and financial, to manage fluctuations in the cost of electricity required to serve 
customers who select the fixed rate option. We include the cost or benefit of those contracts in 
the amount expensed for electricity purchased when the related electricity is sold. Owned 
electric generation and long-term supply contracts reduce NYSEG's exposure, and 
significantly reduce RG&E's exposure, to market fluctuations for procurement of their fixed rate 

1. 
option electricity supply. 

As of April 2007 the expected load for NYSEG's fixed rate option customers is fully hedged for 
Mav throuah December 2007. A fluctuation of $1.00 per MWh in the averaae price of electricitv 
wohd change NYSEG's earnings less than $250 th&sand for May throug6 ~ecember 2007. - 
RG&E ex~ects to meet its fixed orice load obliaations for 2007 with owned aeneration or lona- 

A term supply contracts. The of NYS~G'S and RG&E's hedged load is based on load 
forecasts, which include certain assumptions such as historical weather patterns. Actual 
results could differ as a result of changes in the load compared to the load forecasts. 

All of our natural gas utilities have purchased gas adjustment clauses that allow them to 
a 



recover through rates any changes in the market price of purchased natural gas, substantially 
eliminating their exposure to natural gas price risk. NYSEG and RG&E use natural gas futures 
and fowards to manage fluctuations in natural gas commodity prices in order to provide price 
stability to customers. The cost or benefit of natural gas futures and forwards is included in the 
commodity cost that is passed on to customers when the related sales commitments are 
fulfilled. We record changes in the fair value of natural gas hedge contracts as regulatory 
assets or regulatory liabilities. 

Energetix and NYSEG Solutions, Inc. offer retail electric and natural gas service to customers 
in N ~ W  York State and actively hedge the load required to serve cus6mers that have chosen 
them as their commoditv supplier. As of A~ri l2007 the enerav marketina subsidiaries' 
expected fixed price loads were fully hedged for May through ~ecemb& 2007. A fluctuation of 
$1.00 per MWh in the average price of electricity would change their earnings less than 
$10,000 for May through December 2007. The percentage of hedged load for the energy 
marketing subsidiaries is based on load forecasts, which include certain assumptions such as 
historical weather patterns. Actual results could differ as a result of changes in the load 
compared to the load forecasts. 

NYSEG, RG&E, Energetix and NYSEG Solutions face risks related to counterparty 
performance on hedging contracts due to counterparty credit default. We have developed a 
matrix of unsecured credit thresholds that are dependent on a counterparty's or the 
counterparty guarantor's applicable credit rating (normally Moody's or S&P). When our 
exposure to risk for a counterparty exceeds the unsecured credit threshold, the counterparty is 
required to post additional collateral or we will no longer transact with the counterparty until the 
exposure drops below the unsecured credit threshold. 

We use interest rate swap agreements to manage the risk of increases in variable interest 
rates (such as NYSEG's auction rate notes) and to maintain desired fixed-to-floating rate 
ratios. We record amounts paid and received under those agreements as adjustments to the 
interest expense of the specific debt issues. As required by DIG Issue G26 (see Part I, ltem 1, 
Note 7. New Accounting Standards) we dedesignated the hedging relationships as of April 1, 
2007, for NYSEG's two cash flow hedges related to its auction rate notes. We are investigating 
our options concerning the future management of interest rate risk for those instruments. 

ltem 4. Controls and Procedures 

The principal executive officers and principal financial officers of Energy East and RG&E 
evaluated the effectiveness of their respective company's disclosure controls and procedures 
as of the end of the period covered by this report. "Disclosure controls and procedures" are 
controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information 
required to be disclosed by the company in the reports that it files or submits under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and 
forms, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, and is accumulated and 
communicated to the company's management, including its principal executive officer and 
principal financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required 
disclosure. Based on their evaluation, the principal executive officers and principal financial 
officers of Energy East and RG&E concluded that their respective company's disclosure 
controls and procedures are effective. 

Energy East and RG&E each maintain a system of internal control over financial reporting 



designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting 

,, principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Each company's system of 
internal control over financial reporting contains self-monitoring mechanisms and actions are 
taken to correct deficiencies as they are identified. There was no change in Energy East's or 
RG&E's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the most recent fiscal 
quarter that materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the respective 

rn 
company's internal control over financial reporting. 

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION 

u. Leaal Proceedinas 

a (See Energy East's Part I, Item 2, MDM, Threatened Litigation for Russell Station.) 

Item 2. Unreaistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of  Proceeds 

* (c) issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 

Energy East Corporation 

Period 
C 

(c) 
Total number of 

(a) shares 
Total number (b) purchased 

of shares Average price as part of 
purchased ( I )  paid per share publicly 

announced 
plans 

or programs 

(dl 
Maximum 
number of 

shares that 
may yet be 
purchased 
under the 

plans 
or 

programs 

Month #I 
(January 1,2007 to 

a 
January 31.2007) 385,114(l) $24.01 

Month #2 
(February 1,2007 to 
February 28,2007) 4,724(2) $25.14 

Month #3 
a (March 1,2007 to 

March 31,2007) 4,839@) $24.15 - - 
Total 394,677 $24.02 - - 

") Includes 4.850 shams of the cwnpaWs Oammon shxk (Par V a h  5.01) p u r c h a d  in OFm-marka bsruactlona on behalf of ihe 
a companvs Employee's Sock Purchase Plan: 30.284 shares d the wmpam/s wmmon stock (Par Value S.01) that mtre wlthheld to 

satlsiy Lax wlthhokllng obllgatlons upon vesting of shares of reamctsd sto& awarded through tha company's Reslrided Stock Plan; and 
350.000 shares of me comDants wmmon stock (Par Value 5.011 Dunhased (or Treasurv for Issuance under the WmDanVs Resmded . . 
stock Plan and Stock 0 ~ t i o n  i n n .  

@) Reprom18 shams of the mmpany's common stock (Par Value 5.01) purchased in operrnurkd bamndlons on behlnol ihe 

m 



company3 Employees' St& Purchase Plan 

RG&E had no issuer purchases of equity securities during the quarter ended March 31,2007. 

Item 6, Exhibits 

See Exhibit Index. 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each Registrant has duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

ENERGY EAST CORPORATION 
(Registrant) 

Date: May 3, 2007 

Date: May 3,2007 

By IslRobert D. K u m ~  
Robert D. Kump 
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Accounting Ofticer) 

ROCHESTER GAS AND ELECTRIC CORPORATION 
(Registrant) 

By IsIJose~h J. Syta 
Joseph J. Syta 
Vice President - Controller and Treasurer 
(Principal Financial Ofticer) 

EXHIBIT INDEX 

The following exhibits are delivered with this report: 

Reaistrant Exhibit No. Descri~tion of Exhibit 

Energy East Corporation 31-1 Certification under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

31-2 Certification under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

*32 Certifications under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002. 

Rochester Gas and 
Electric Corporation 31-1 Certification under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 



31-2 Certification under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

'32 Certifications under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002. 
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